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Definitions

Bx

"R EES
[Bze]

“3DMed Beijing”
[ B b

“3DMed Hong Kong”
[BREEE

“3DMed Qingdao”
[BEBES]

“3DMed Shanghai”
[BEkE HF ]

“3DMed Sichuan”
91| BB B |

“3DMed Xuzhou”
[ B B& RN ]

“3D Medicines”
[ B

“AGM”
[BRBEFAE ]

“Alphamab Group’

[FEEGREE]

“Articles of Association”

[ ERAA

“Audit Committee”

[BZEZEE

envafolimab (brand name: ENWEIDA, Z#i£®), a subcutaneously-injectable PD-L1
inhibitor for the treatment of tumor-agnostic indication

BORRFIEH (84 - B#Ee) B —HANARZBERN K X5 PD-L1#PHI A

3D Medicines (Beijing) Co., Ltd.* (B (b %) BE&REERAR])

3D Medicines (Hong Kong) Co., Limited (BB ERIE (F8) BRAT)

3D Medicines (Qingdao) Co., Ltd.* (BiKhEz (FSE) BRAR])

3DMed Shanghai Pharmaceutical Technology Co., Ltd.* (2 ( L)5) BRI AR A7)
Sichuan 3DMed-Alphamab Co., Ltd.* (P9)I| B BEE B R A R])

Xuzhou 3D Medicines Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.* (/1 BREEEEH R A F])

3D Medicines Biotechnology (Shanghai) Co., Ltd.* (B EE (L&) GRAA)

the annual general meeting of the Company to be held on Monday, June 30, 2025
2025F6 A30H (28 —) BT AR RAIRRBFRE

Alphamab Oncology (BRZE#In4EYREL), an exempted company with limited liability
incorporated under the laws of the Cayman Islands on March 28, 2018 and listed
on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 9966), and its subsidiaries, each of which is an
Independent Third Party

REGIGEYRE - —HR2018F3 A28 HIRIEM S B AR A ML WA BT £ (R
5% : 9966) WEMRER AR REMB AT ARBILE=7)

the amended and restated articles of association of the Company adopted on June 28,
2024

AR AR20224F 11 A23 AR R 20224 12 A 15 A A2 &S 5T R E S A E 2 A Al

the audit committee of the Board

ExgEhEEe

3D Medicines Inc. Annual Report 2024



‘BLA"
[BLA]

“Board of Directors” or
“Board”

=30

“CDg3”

[CD3]

“Ch47”

[CD47]

“CDE”
[CDE]

“CG Code”
[{EEESFRI]

‘CGT”
[CGT]

“China” or “PRC”
[ E
“CMO(s)”
[CMO(s)]
“Co-Development

Agreements”
[&1EME ]

“Company”, “our Company”

[ARA ]

“‘CRO”

[CRO]

Definitions

Bx

biologic license application

VB mET RIS R
the board of Directors
EEE

cluster of differentiation 3, a protein complex (enzyme) and T-cell co-receptor that is
involved in activating both the cytotoxic T-cell and T helper cells

DEE3 - —EEREESY (8) MTARARE - SRR ARSUETARME B IETAR

cluster of differentiation 47, a glycoprotein found on the surface of immune cells such as
T helper cells

D47 - —REERZ MK (NTEHAIM) XREERNEER

the NMPA Center for Drug Evaluation
HREREEERRHERTTTO

the “Corporate Governance Code” as contained in Appendix C1 to the Listing Rules

CETRADMERCIAEM [ BEER<FAI

Cellular and Gene Therapy
MpERERE

the People’s Republic of China, which, for the purpose of this annual report and for
geographical reference only, excludes Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan

hEARKNE - ERAFERERMRL2ENE - TRESE  BRPISITREMNGEE

a contract manufacturing organization, which provides support to the pharmaceutical
industry in the form of manufacturing services outsourced on a contract basis

BREEMAR MR OERIIBEERBNTARBETERHIIE

the co-development agreement and the subsequent amendments and supplemental
agreements thereto entered into by our Company with Alphamab Group for envafolimab

AN B ET A I 5 B 5 BUR M B RT L RO & 1R B 1 S LR OB AT AN Ml ST p

3D Medicines Inc., an exempted company with limited liability incorporated under the
laws of the Cayman Islands on January 30, 2018
BEBEHRMHERAR - —KN2018F 1 A0BREFMEHS EZEZIMKUNEREERA
Al

contract research organization, a company provides support to the pharmaceutical,
biotechnology, and medical device industries in the form of research and development
services outsourced on a contract basis

BRMETAL - EENER FLUNRIRBRBOE X RBREE - EYRMMEBERMITEEMRS
EOPNG|

BHRAEHRHERIR —B-MNFFH
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Definitions

Bx

‘Csco”
[Cscol

“Director(s)”

(&%
“Dr. Gong”
[EE1 L |

“EC”
[EC]

‘FDA”
[FDA]

“Frost and Sullivan”
[ 555 BT FI 3

“Global Offering”
[ZIREE ]

“‘GMP”

[GMP]

“Group”, “our Group”, “our”,

“we” or “us”

s SRR AN

the Chinese Society of Clinical Oncology
PRERERSS

the director(s) of the Company or any one of them

AAREESHEPEMN—BES

Dr. Gong Zhaolong (E2Jk3), the chairman of the Board, executive Director, the chief
executive officer of the Company and the key founder of the Group

BIEEEL  ARRERER  WTES  ERRITERFTEEIZARA

Endometrial cancer

= AR

the United States Food and Drug Administration
EHAMEREEERR

Frost & Sullivan (Beijing) Inc., Shanghai Branch Co., an independent market research
and consulting company
HBEMFDFIX (R FERABRAFT LSRR A—RKBULNTHFHE K

B

NG

el

iy

the Hong Kong Public Offering and the International Offering
EELRBERBEREE

good manufacturing practice, guidelines and regulations issued from time to time
pursuant to the PRC Law on the Administration of Pharmaceuticals (A 3E A K A0
mEIEE)) as part of quality assurance which ensures that pharmaceutical products
subject to these guidelines and regulations are consistently produced and controlled in
conformity to the quality and standards appropriate for their intended us
(BEmEEMEERRS)  BE(PEARKMBEEREIRE) PRBMHESIZER - (ERm
BREN—FD  BWRXZFESINERARNERRREREASRERNME MEERFELE
ERZE

the Company and all of its subsidiaries, or any one of them as the context may require
or, where the context refers to any time prior to its incorporation, the business which its
predecessors or the predecessors of its present subsidiaries, or any one of them as the
context may require, were or was engaged in and which were subsequently assumed by
it

RARIREMREBEMBRT @ RXEFERER—RDE) - Sl S0 5873 M S AT E fa
- AEEA F ARISIRKHBARNA S AR - IEXEMEEREN—RATEREERE
R H AR R

3D Medicines Inc. Annual Report 2024



“Hong Kong”
(&%)

“Hong Kong dollars” or “HK

dollars” or “HK$”
[l B

‘IFRS”

[ BIRR B 75 5 2 Al

“IND”

[INDJ

“Jiangsu Simcere”

B
H
ko
fF

T
s
s
HE
i

“Joint Representatives”

(B

‘KRAS”

[KRAS |

“Listing”

[ £

“Listing Date”
[ A

“Listing Rules”

[ LRI

Definitions

Bx

the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC
HEFBR AT R

Hong Kong dollars and cents respectively, the lawful currency of Hong Kong
ERHDEE G BT REN

International Financial Reporting Standards, as issued from time to time by the
International Accounting Standards Board

B e ERR B e MR RMN(BRMBREEAD

investigational new drug or investigational new drug application, also known as clinical
trial application in China

BRI AR AR - P BT ARSI R

Jiangsu Simcere Pharmaceutical Co. Ltd., the subsidiary of Simcere Pharmaceutical
Group Limited (L& EE B[R AR]), a private company limited by shares incorporated
under the laws of Hong Kong on November 30, 2015 and listed on the Stock Exchange
(stock code: 2096), an Independent Third Party

IHAEBEXARAF  CREXEEBRAFNMELRR - —HKR20165411 A30 A REE
AR R BB ZA E (RGOS - 2096) IFARNDERAR - RBLE=F

the joint representatives as named in the section headed “Directors and Parties Involved
in the Global Offering” of the Prospectus
BIHRER[EER2EXBRBENSH | —HHNBREREK

Kirsten rat sarcoma virus, a gene that provides instructions for making a protein called
K-Ras, a part of the RAS/MAPK pathway

TRNTBEABNBERS  —RBAEEBAK-RasHEAREESHER - ZEABRRAS/
MAPK 38 &

the listing of the Shares on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
MRD PR BB FT EAR

December 15, 2022
202212 A15H

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (as amended, supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time)

(BEBARZMBRAFES EMRAD (BAREET « AR EM T N E%)

BHRAEHRHERIR —B-MNFFH
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Definitions

Bx

“Model Code”
[{IRZE<FAID]

“‘MRCT”
[MRCT ]

“‘NDA"
[NDA]

‘NMPA”

[BIREES ]

St

“NRDL”
[NRDLJ

“‘NSCLC”
[NSCLC]

“Over-allotment Option”

[ R RR O A |
“PD-1"
[PD-1]
“PD-L1”
[PD-L1J

the “Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers” set out in
Appendix C3 to the Listing Rules
CEMHRADMEERCIFAEMIC EMETAEFETESF R HIELESFAD
multi-regional clinical trial

BB % L ER R S B

new drug application
FBE FTERE

the National Medical Product Administration of the PRC (BI%R ?u“u%
to the China Food and Drug Administration or CFDA (Bl R & fn %% 5 B2
TREBRREZMEEEER  HilSRRRRREREEERAR

the National Reimbursement Drug List
BlZ B R B B 8%

non-small cell lung cancer

FE/ AR AR B

the option exercised by the Joint Representatives on behalf of the International
Underwriters under the International Underwriting Agreement in respect of an aggregate
of 415,000 Shares on January 6, 2023

Bk R R RAR R BB A S 1 8 ) R R B BR A S R 70 20236 1 A6 B st 4851 415,000 RBR1A 1T 19
[

programmed cell death protein 1, an immune checkpoint receptor expressed on T
cells, B cells and macrophages. The normal function of PD-1 is to turn off the T cell
mediated immune response as part of the process that stops a healthy immune system
from attacking other pathogenic cells in the body. When PD-1 on the surface of a T cell
attaches to certain proteins on the surface of a normal cell or a cancer cell, the T cell
turns off its ability to kill the cell

BAMABIETERT - AT - B@H@&E M FRENSERETE - PD-1ESD
BERRERTARNENEERE  EREIIRREESERFNERBNEMBURMARMNBIEN—
D - BTHEKXE&PD- 1MT%EE%“%H@&F%H@%E%%J“%El’féItHT TARSHEEAAR
FRILABM A BE

PD-1 ligand 1, which is a protein on the surface of a normal cell or a cancer cell that
attaches to certain proteins on the surface of the T cell that causes the T cell to turn off
its ability to kill the cancer cell

PD-1fCH81 > RIEFMAMIBEARIAN —BEAE  MEETARRENELELE -
BT H AR St AR B Y BE

3D Medicines Inc. Annual Report 2024



‘R&D”
[ 712 |

“RCC”
[RCC]

“Reporting Period”

[RE 8]

‘RMB”
[ARE]

“Share(s)”

[ Bt ]

“Shareholder(s)”
[ AR |

“Single Largest Shareholder

Group”

[B-HRARREER]

“Stock Exchange”
[ BB

“TRACON”

[TRACON

“Ue”
rucl

“United States” or “U.S.”

Definitions

Bx

research and development
fiff 5% ER B 8

renal cell carcinoma

2y t)iopd

for the year ended December 31, 2024
HZE2024F12A31HIEFE

Renminbi, the lawful currency of the PRC
PREEEEBEARE

ordinary share(s) with nominal value of HK$0.001 each in the share capital of the
Company
RABRAFEAREEO0.0018 TH) E @A

holder(s) of the Share(s)
EUESEEPN

Dr. Gong Zhaolong, Dragon Prosper Holdings Limited, Immunal Medixin US Limited,
Immunal Medixin Cino L. Limited and Immunal Medixin Cino Limited

BEJKBEE L + Dragon Prosper Holdings Limited * Immunal Medixin US Limited * Immunal
Medixin Cino L. Limited &zImmunal Medixin Cino Limited

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
BEREBMARGAERAT

TRACON Pharmaceuticals, Inc., a leading biopharmaceutical company incorporated
in the U.S. on October 28, 2004 and listed on the Nasdaq Stock Market (stock code:
TCON), which is an Independent Third Party

TRACON Pharmaceuticals * Inc. * —ZK 20044 10 A 28 B 7£ 3= B 5 i Ak 37 I 78 49 27 2 72 A%
RH% AL EYMRENT - (RMHRS - TCON) » RBIE=H

urothelial carcinoma

PR3 B

the United States of America, its territories, its possessions and all areas subject to its

jurisdiction
[5H | EFRERE - HELT  BHMZHEENMGHHE
‘Us$” United States Dollars, the lawful currency of the United States
=y EEDEFEEWET
% per cent
[%] Ao
* For identification purpose only
* EHHS

BHRAEHRHERIR —B-MNFFH



Corporate Information

AAEHR

BOARD OF DIRECTORS EExe
Executive Director HITES

Dr. Gong Zhaolong (Chairman of the Board) kgl (FFER)
Non-executive Directors FHTES

Mr. Zhu Pai KFESLE

Mr. Zhou Feng A%k %

Ms. Chen Yawen PRIEZELZ L
Independent Non-executive Directors BUkHTES
Dr. Li Jin Li Jinf§=+

Dr. Lin Tat Pang EERE L

Mr. Liu Xinguang Bzt kA
REMUNERATION COMMITTEE FMEEE
Mr. Liu Xinguang (Chairman) Bl kE (£E)
Dr. Gong Zhaolong BEJkEEtE

Dr. Li Jin Li Jinf& =+
NOMINATION COMMITTEE REAZES
Dr. Gong Zhaolong (Chairman) ke (FE)
Dr. Li Jin Li Jinf§ L

Mr. Liu Xinguang BlEnkE

Ms. Chen Yawen (was appointed on March 31, 2025) PRIET L+ (R2025F3 531 HEZ(E)
Dr. Lin Tat Pang (was appointed on March 31, 2025) EEEE L (R2025F3H31 HEZ(T)
AUDIT COMMITTEE EREES
Dr. Lin Tat Pang (Chairman) EERELE (EE)
Mr. Zhu Pai KFLE

Dr. Li Jin Li Jinf§ =
JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES BEARWE
Ms. Xia Fang BEFa+

Ms. Li Ching Yi FERLZLT
AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES REAR

Dr. Gong Zhaolong LS e

Ms. Li Ching Yi TERLTL
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Corporate Information

DNEEHR

COMPANY WEBSITE
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Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board of Directors, | am pleased to present the
annual report of 3D Medicines Inc. for the year ended December 31,
2024.

Guided by the long-term strategic goals of sustainable growth
and global expansion, our company continues to strengthen its
research and development capabilities. During the reporting period
and up to the date of this announcement, the company recorded a
modest revenue decline, yet demonstrated an improving trend with
significantly enhanced operational efficiency, and made important
progress in subsequent events and early-stage R&D platforms,
including:

Chairman’s Statement

EEREE

SRR -

BERREEE  XEFHMEE2ER3ID
Medicines Inc.#Z2024%12 A31HILF
EMFEERSE

20245  EAIREBEXRREEZKEMBENE
HBRE BAZESIET - AR AIFEMARTE
B RBEEHAREERAAEEH - &
REIBERRANETEE - BEHEBY
BERACERE  AHBEEENRFHT
BESHREBEZLR

BHRAEHRHERIR —B-MNFFH
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Chairman’s Statement

EEREE

Stable Product Revenue: For the year of 2024, revenue from the sales
of B#:=® decreased by 29.8% due to fierce market competition.
However, sales in the second half of 2024 increased by 15.9%
compared to sales in the first half of the year, reflecting a positive
turnaround in sales trend. The company reduced Management
Costs, further improved workforce efficiency, and diversified the
product pipeline with 13 products, including the newly added
radiopharmaceutical drug conjugate (RDC) 3D1015. Progress
was made in the mRNA drug R&D platform, establishing in-house
intellectual property (IP)-protected lipid nanoparticle (LNP) library.
B #E® achieved multiple advancements in clinical development,
commercialization, and international expansion. Its high quality
preclinical and clinical research results were published in prestigious
academic conferences and journals, and it was continuously
added to authoritative clinical guidelines and expert consensus
recommendations. It has also integrated Environmental, Social, and
Governance (ESG) into its daily operations. During the reporting
period, we continuously explored the potential for product pipeline
development and combination mechanisms, adding momentum to
global innovation and long-term sustainable growth.

Our financial performance in 2024 reflects our strong operational
execution and prudent capital allocation. We have generated revenues
of RMB445.6 million, and have also maintained disciplined control
over our operating expenses; our research and development expenses
was RMB180.7 million, representing a 57.5% decrease from 2023.
As of December 31, 2024, cash and bank balances, financial assets
at fair value through profit and loss and financial assets measured
at amortized costs of RMB864.3 million. We had cash and bank
balances of RMB444.3 million, which we believe is sufficient to fund
our operations for at least the next two years, even without calculating
the stable and growing year-on-year revenue of B #E®.

3D Medicines Inc. Annual Report 2024

EmBABERT  2024F %5 B % Ee
MEERNEARK4456BET > AR
MRS RE - R T29.8% &
B FAFRL - 2024F N EFRHE R
R£T715.9% REEEHEBLELRTER
WS RABEEKANRE  AMRE—F
e ZBLILEREGREREI13RER
E g iz SR 224301015 : mRNAZE
MAEFEMBERYELT BB NHBE
FERBEE K BBRL(LNP) B : B ECTER:
REE - MECRBBAEITE HRET
ZIHER  mEEMEKRATMERIFRE
REZEANEMSI NPT LBRX : 58
TG AN B RE B ER PR 48 B R
ESGRAB®EESE - RREHMA - KM
TEHRREMEGERO M KA
F - BERRAIFRREEASEERIERS
j] °

BAIE2024 F 19 B 75 48 Bl 11 3 1958 K
HEERITENANBROEANGLERE -
BRMPEBERTARK445 6 BB THNEEW
A EMERFTHELE B WEBE
#l: PO EREZBARK180.7HE
JL 0 82023 F A T 57.5% © E E 2024 F
12A318 B RRTTEH - IBAFER
AEHENEBEERNESRAAFEZ S
MEEBARES43BET  BfFEE M
RITHRBABARBI4AIEET  BATH
BMPELRRMFREE L - BMERRT
BREMECHBENZFERAKRA -



Looking ahead, we are confident that we are well-positioned to
achieve our vision of transforming cancer from a terminal illness
into a manageable chronic disease. We have a robust pipeline of
differentiated cancer therapies that address unmet medical needs
in the future and offer significant value to patients, physicians,
and payers. We have a talented and passionate team of scientists,
clinicians and professionals who are committed to delivering on our
promise of bringing hope and healing to millions of cancer patients
around the world. We have a supportive and visionary group of
shareholders who share our long-term perspective and strategic
direction.

| would like to take this opportunity to express my sincere gratitude
to our shareholders, partners, physicians, and patients for their
continued support and trust. | would also like to thank our board
members, management team, and all staff for their hard work and
dedication. Together, we can make a difference in the fight against
cancer and help cancer patients live longer and better.

Sincerely,

Gong Zhaolong
Chairman and CEO
3D Medicines Inc.

Chairman’s Statement

EEREE

RERK  BMEELERBERBREER
BRI S - HIFHEE BIRERARN R
BETRKNERBAFREDESR BRE
F - OBEMINERHATBNEES B
FHRMEBER  BRARBEMEZEATAEAKS
BERE maABNER  IRAs2
RERSESREZRHNARERE B
REEMZ  HMRE=ZHE-BHAEER
BXHHEMEHERIBBEANESK
o

HBELERERETRIFRMANKRE -
SEBH  BENMBEMIERMARY
B - R BRARMNESTEKE - &
EEBMAAEETINFHTHEMER - &
MRS - EREBRENMAFH ML A
CHERM  EBEREELSEAEL -

B

BEJkRE
BEFRFEREHNTE

3D Medicines Inc.
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Financial Summary

PBEHE

As at December 31
HZ=12A31R8

2024 2023 2022 2021 2020
20245 20235 20224 20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTE ARETT ARBTIT ARBTT ARBTI

Cash and bank balances, Re RFITHER  AER
financial assets measured at KANEZEREE -
amortised cost, financial assets BAFERFABRD
at fair value through profit or ERMEERERER
loss and pledged deposits 864,318 1,120,849 942,028 824,484 420,261
Total assets BELE 1,216,256 1,428,882 1,332,063 1,060,293 496,216
Total liabilities BELE 512,542 558,197 436,649 3,332,855 1,766,031
Total Equity/(deficits) g%z /(B4 25 703,714 870,685 895,414 (2,272,562) (1,269,815)
For the year ended December 31
HE12ANBLFE
2024 2023 2022 2021 2020
2024 2023%F 20224 20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTRE ARBTT ARETT AR®TT ARETR
Revenue KA 445,647 634,949 567,392 60,260 -
Cost of sales SHERK A (36,572)  (49,091)  (42,215) (4,277) =
Other income and gains Hp A K zs 54,736 40,988 48,945 19,637 2,337
Research and development expenses 25 (180,721)  (425,497) (350,864) (371,162)  (263,970)
Selling and marketing expenses HEREHAS (235,937) (378,806) (357,659) (42,834) =
Royalty expenses FIREERE (37,337)  (61,845) (59,965) (7,153)
Administrative expenses THRAX (78,256) (217,080) (142,830) (150,956) (40,528)
Other expenses Hibfx (111,378)  (99,149) (53,391) (8,940) (5,929)
Finance costs BARE AR AR (9,503) (7,772) (3,113) (1,528) (8,058)
Fair value losses on preferred shares Bl A FEFIE - (657,155)  (954,742)  (319,232)
Impairment losses on financial assets, &@EEEREBEFE
net (10,057) 837 (1,175) (130) =
Income tax expense FERAX - (55) = = =
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE LOSS FHEEEESE (199,378)  (562,521) (1,052,030) (1,461,825)  (635,380)

14 3D Medicines Inc. Annual Report 2024



Management Discussion and Analysis

BUSINESS OVERVIEW

Established in 2014, 3D Medicines Inc.
commercial-stage bio-pharmaceutical enterprise, dedicated to help

is an innovative

people with cancer live longer and better. The Company is dedicated
to independent R&D and global discovery and developing innovative
cancer drugs and vaccines that cover the entire treatment period,
including the treatment of metastasis and recurrence worldwide.
The pipeline includes several globally leading or clinically valuable
differentiated innovative drug candidates. We have established an
international professional team, covering research and development,
production, and commercialization.

The company adheres to a research philosophy guided by the trend
of managing cancer as a chronic disease, establishing an innovative
drug development system that meets clinical needs and expanding its
global presence to help more cancer patients access better treatment
options.

In 2024, driven by its global development strategy, the company
strengthened its independent R&D capabilities. Under strategic
guidance and effective measures, our commercial sales achieved
modest growth in the first half of 2024, with improved operational
efficiency and increasingly mature R&D platforms. With an end-to-
end innovation approach and distinctive drug development validation
capabilities, we leveraged our strengths in overseas regulatory
communication and established a new business model centered on

extensive collaboration.

(1)  Our commercialized products, now on the market for three years,
have demonstrated stable sales revenue. After a slight decline,
they have shown a new upward growth trend.
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(2)

B ##® (Envafolimab, subcutaneously-injectable PD-L1 inhibitor)
is our first commercial product, and we are responsible for
global development and commercialization. Since 2016, we
have conducted international clinical research on B#iE®, and
successfully commercialized it in 2021 in China. As a commercial
product of the company, B##£® has achieved sales revenue
of RMB445.6 million in China of 2024, resulting in a total sales
of approximately RMB1.7 billion in China. Tens of thousands
of cancer patients have been helped and supported. As of
December 31, 2024, the Group’s total revenue decreased by
approximately 29.8% compared to the corresponding period
in 2023. This decline was primarily attributed to a reduction in
sales revenue for B#EE®. BEAE® has established a strong
reputation among doctors and patients, particularly those who
have experienced long-term benefits from our drug. In addition,
the sales in the second half of the year increased by 15.9%
compared to the first half year sales, reflecting a positive
turnaround in sales trend. With the positive policies in 2025, we
are considering the implementation of improved sales strategies
in the future. We believe that with the commercial capabilities
of our partners, especially after B##® expands its range of
significant indications, our sales will enter a positive growth
cycle.

Reduced Management Costs and Improved Efficiency: The
company has lowered management costs and further enhanced
workforce efficiency, including maintaining a stable high gross
margin for products, reducing the ratio of sales and marketing
expenses, and decreasing administrative expenses. These
comprehensive improvements have led to a further narrowing
of losses, consistently demonstrating the sustainability of the
company’s business model.
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Significant progress has been made in our R&D pipeline, with
new products continuously emerging: The Al-driven mRNA
platform has been progressively refined, enabling scientists
to rapidly design and test vaccines, significantly shortening
the time from discovery to market. Additionally, Al has been
utilized to design and screen hundreds of lipid compounds,
establishing an ionizable cationic lipid R&D platform targeting
different cell types and organs. This efficiently synergizes with
the development of our in-house mMRNA cancer vaccine projects,
breaking through delivery technology barriers, improving drug
targeting, addressing challenges such as non-specific tissue
distribution, enhancing drug development efficiency, and
building differentiated competitive advantages. A key component
of the self-developed lipid nanoparticles (LNP) for nucleic acid
drug delivery—the ionizable cationic lipid—has recently been
filed for a PCT patent. The radiopharmaceutical platform has also
continued to yield promising drug candidates. As of the reporting
period, in addition to the original 12 R&D pipelines, the company
added a new mRNA vaccine candidate pipeline in June 2024—
a universal cancer vaccine—3D124 in the second half of 2024,
the first radiopharmaceutical candidate targeting PSMA-3D 1015
was added to the pipeline. Both candidates have shown positive
signals in preliminary experiments.

The execution team delivered strong performance, driving
strategic goals: securing a Breakthrough Therapy designation
from Chinese regulators and approval for one sNDA. Additionally,
extensive communication was conducted with the FDA, PMDA,
Singapore, and Hong Kong regulatory agencies on the global
development strategy for our products. IND applications in
multiple countries are expected to be submitted this year.
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We embarked on a journey of international commercialization
from 2024. In January 2024, B##® completed a licensing
agreement with Glenmark and received approved for market
entry in Macau, signifying significant progress. This achievement
will further provide new growth opportunities for the Company’s
revenue. We have obtained 19 clinical recommendations in
the field of research in China. In 2024, B##® (Envafolimab)
demonstrated significant advancements in clinical development,
with 22 studies published globally. These included 5 full-text
articles in high-impact international journals and over 17
presentations at leading oncology conferences (e.g., CSCO,
ASCO, ESMO, ESMO Asia, ELCC, WCLC, and APASL), spanning
multiple solid tumor types such as lung cancer, gastrointestinal
tumors, and gynecological cancers. Data from these studies
highlighted significant efficacy and favorable safety profiles for
both monotherapy and combination regimens, reinforcing its
clinical value and international recognition.

The Board announced that the adoption of “B & ihE MDA R
AA]” as the dual foreign name in Chinese of the Company has
become effective. The Chinese stock short name of “/B i &8 4%
f&1n” for trading of the Shares on the Stock Exchange became
effective from 9:00 a.m. on August 5, 2024. The English stock
short name of “3D MEDICINES” and the stock code of “1244” of
the Company and other trading arrangements in relation to the
Shares remained unchanged.

To conclude, 2024 marked significant progress for us—breakthroughs

in Al+mRNA-based cancer vaccines, promising early-stage signals

in radiopharmaceuticals, and high-efficiency execution by our team.

These advancements demonstrate our precise strategic planning

and operational excellence. Moving forward, we will continue actively

developing early-stage pipeline candidates while strategically

expanding our commercial portfolio. This dual approach will further

solidify our position in transforming cancer into a manageable chronic

disease, ultimately benefiting more patients worldwide.
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The following chart highlights the clinical development status of our

pipeline candidates as of the date of this annual report:
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KEY BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT

. B#3E° (envafolimab, subcutaneously-injectable PD-L1

inhibitor)

7. On January 24, 2024, 3D Medicines agreed to grant
Glenmark an exclusive license and the right to sublicence
in respect of oncology indications of Envafolimab, among
others, (a) develop Envafolimab in India, Asia Pacific
(except Singapore, Thailand and Malaysia), Middle-east and
Africa, Russia, the Commonwealth of Independent States
and Latin America (the “Territory”) for the purpose of
commercialization in all field of use in oncology (the “Field”)
in the Territory; and (b) commercialize Envafolimab in the
Field in the Territory, subject to the terms and conditions
of the License Agreement. Glenmark will develop and
commercialize Envafolimab in the Field in the Territory at its
own cost and expense and we will receive sales royalties

after reaching the milestones. IND applications in multiple

countries are expected to be submitted this year.

2. B#E® was registered and listed with the Macau
Pharmaceutical Administration. In January 2024, B #E®
was successfully registered and listed with the Macau
Pharmaceutical Administration Bureau for the treatment
of adult patients with advanced solid tumors that are
unresectable or metastatic with high microsatellite instability

(MSI-H) or mismatch repair deficiency (dMMR).

3. Smooth Progress in Phase Il Trial in NSCLC Perioperative
Regimens. This is double-blind, placebo-controlled,
randomized, multicenter study that evaluates the efficacy
and safety of Envafolimab (KNO035) in combination with
neoadjuvant platinum-based chemotherapy followed
by adjuvant Envafolimab monotherapy compared to
placebo in combination with neoadjuvant platinum-based
chemotherapy followed by adjuvant placebo alone, for the
treatment of patients with resectable NSCLC (IIIA to IIIB,

per AJCC 8th).

3D Medicines Inc. Annual Report 2024

FEXBER

o  B#EEe(!
PD-L13%| &

7.

RAFMER » R TEH
B

202417248 BiRmEL
R EMmGlenmark® T EXF| e
MERBRENBR A REE
A (EFBE) (a)EHE
DRE (MK - ZERER
FEIEHRIN) - FERIEMN - B
- -BIBREBAERNT X
M(TH & |) FERRFER -
Nzt ERERAEAE
o (TEE ) K% R(b)fE
[ A B B I P L BUR T B
o HEE TR AR BRI R &
&M o Glenmarki§ B 1TREE
HE RN % B R EELR
AAETMNBRERARAY - 1
BRFBEEX BIRBEZESHE
BIRK - SFEFNZEERER
INDERRE °

B EC B EYEEERR
FEMEEIL LT o 202418 -
B ECR IR IR EEE
BERaEMERY W - AR
TR REREMEEaE BT
(MSI-H) sk s AL 518 E E R pa A
(IMMR)BIRC A BR A BE PR B
HRE o

NSCLCEFi 88 A R EA B
HEIEF -E2—HEEF %
RBIER - BER - 2O
& 1EaT{h BORFI B H1(KNO35) B
BEFE B S ALE (fiT1g BIRF
BENEBEREAWHIAE) HHE
RPN PA %2 7 75 B8 B2 00 B PR 1 Bt
AFEHB S AE (TR L2 RE
BRIEATHIAE) AREER
YIFRNSCLCE & (AJCCHE8hR
HINAZINIB) MEM R R 2 o



Management Discussion and Analysis

On March 30, 2024, Professor Kuang Ming from the First
Affiliated Hospital of Sun Yat-sen University presented at
the 33rd Annual Meeting of the Asia-Pacific Association for
the Study of the Liver (APASL). He reported on the clinical
study of PD-L1 inhibitors combined with chemotherapy
and targeted therapy (envafolimab and durvalumab) in
43 patients with advanced biliary tract cancer. The study
showed a median progression-free survival of 11.29 months
and a median overall survival of 14.8 months.

In May 2024, at the American Society of Clinical Oncology
(ASCO) Annual Meeting, nine studies on envafolimab
were selected for presentation, including four poster
presentations and five online publications. The research
covered areas such as biliary tract cancer, liver cancer,
rectal cancer, endometrial cancer, esophageal squamous
cell carcinoma, and gastric/gastroesophageal junction
adenocarcinoma.

Among these, the first clinical data of envafolimab combined
with lenvatinib for the treatment of advanced endometrial
cancer that has failed at least one line of platinum-
containing chemotherapy or is intolerant to it, and is non-
MSI-H/non-dMMR, was disclosed in a poster presentation.
This study had previously been included as a breakthrough
therapy by the Center for Drug Evaluation (CDE) of the
China National Medical Products Administration (NMPA).
Currently, there is no standard treatment for this indication
in China. The available chemotherapy drugs, PD-1/PD-
L1 inhibitors, and lenvatinib monotherapy for endometrial
cancer have shown low objective response rates and
survival indicators. The disclosure of this data suggests that
envafolimab combined with lenvatinib may provide a more
effective, safer, and more convenient new clinical treatment
option for patients with advanced endometrial cancer
who have failed at least one line of platinum-containing
chemotherapy or are intolerant to it.
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BEEREN WD

Another noteworthy study is the ENLIGHTEN Study. This is a
single-arm, open-label, phase Il study aiming to investigate
the efficacy and safety of Envafolimab, combined with
Lenvatinib and gemcitabine plus cisplatin in patients
with advanced biliary tract cancer (BTC). Based on the
interim analysis, the ORR and DCR were 45% and 80%

respectively. Survival data is expected.

6. On July 3, 2024, the Company received a notification of
approval for a Supplemental New Drug Application (sNDA)
for BE#=® (Envafolimab injection) from the National
Medical Products Administration. The approval included
the change of self-developed media and adding new raw
material suppliers, the internal control standards for some
new raw materials and the change of production scale from
1,000L to 2,000L etc. The supplemental application was
supported by the data from a randomized, double-blind,
single-dose, parallel controlled Phase | clinical study to
evaluate the Pharmacokinetics, safety, and immunogenicity
of Envafolimab Injection in healthy male subjects
(ClinicalTrials.gov, NCT05849311), which demonstrated that
ENWEIDA® has stable manufacturing process and sufficient
clinical data. The expansion of production capacity can fully

meet the market demand.

7. On August 12, 2024, B#E® was granted Breakthrough
Therapy Designation (BTD) by the NMPA for the treatment
of patients with unresectable or metastatic tumor mutational
burden-high (TMB-H) solid tumors that have progressed
following prior treatment and who have no satisfactory
alternative treatment options. This indication addresses
life-threatening conditions for which there are currently no
approved standard therapies in China. In recent years,
high tumor mutational burden (TMB) has been utilized in
the United States as a biomarker for tissue agnostic drug

development by the FDA.
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In September 2024, B #Z® presented clinical data from a
Phase Il study (NCT05243355) evaluating the combination
of recombinant human endostatin and chemotherapy as
first-line treatment for advanced squamous non-small
cell lung cancer (sg-NSCLC) in a poster format. Among
the 24 efficacy evaluable subjects, the ORR was 81%
and the DCR was 100%, with no new safety signal. This
finding demonstrated the combination of Envafolimab plus
angiogenesis inhibitor and chemotherapy resulted in a
favorable clinical efficacy with tolerable safety profile in
advanced sqg-NSCLC, representing a promising treatment
regimen for this population.

Meanwhile, a team led by Professor Di Ge from Zhongshan
Hospital, Fudan University, presented a prospective study
outcome titled “Efficacy and Safety of Envafolimab Plus
Platinum-based Chemotherapy as Neoadjuvant Therapy
in Resectable Stage II-11IB NSCLC.” The study aimed to
evaluate the efficacy and safety of envafolimab combined
with platinum-based chemotherapy as neoadjuvant therapy
in patients with resectable stage IlI-11IB NSCLC. Thirteen
patients were enrolled. The pCR rate was 30.7%, and the
MPR rate was 53.8%. RO resection rate reached 92.3%.
Only two patients (15.4%) experienced grade 3 or 4
treatment-related adverse event. No grade 5 TEAE related
to Envafolimab were reported. Results indicated that the
combination elicited favorable safety profiles and promising
a novel option for neoadjuvant treatment.
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In September 2024, Professor Wei Li from the First Affiliated
Hospital of Soochow University presented interim data from
the B-Enefit study (ChiCTR2400080783), a Phase Il trial
evaluating B##E® (envafolimab injection) in combination
with GEMOX chemotherapy and chidamide as first-line
treatment for advanced biliary tract cancer (BTC) at the
ESMO Congress. The study enrolled advanced BTC patients
with no prior systemic anti-tumor therapy. Preliminary
results showed that among 22 evaluable patients (16 with
cholangiocarcinoma and 6 with gallbladder cancer), the
ORR and DCR reached 50% and 77.27%, respectively,
while median progression-free survival (PFS) and overall
survival (OS) were not yet reached. The incidence of grade
3 or higher treatment-related adverse events (TRAEs) was
59.9%, with no treatment-related deaths reported. These
results suggest that the combination of B#®, chidamide,
and chemotherapy exhibits promising antitumor activity with
a manageable safety profile.
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In September 2024, the PRECAM study led by Professor
Sheng Dai’s team at Sir Run Run Shaw Hospital of Zhejiang
University was published in the high-impact journal*
International Journal of Surgery* (IF 12.5). The study
focused on MSS-type locally advanced rectal cancer
and aimed to evaluate the efficacy of a neoadjuvant
regimen combining short-course radiotherapy followed by
envafolimab and CAPEOX. Preliminary results showed that
short-course chemoradiotherapy combined with envafolimab
achieved a remarkable pathological complete response
(pCR) rate of 62.5% in MSS locally advanced rectal
cancer patients—20 out of 32 patients completed surgery
reached pCR. This suggests that neoadjuvant short-course
chemoradiotherapy combined with immunotherapy can lead
to higher pCR rates for MSS locally advanced rectal cancer,
thereby improving organ preservation rates and enhancing
patients’ quality of life. High organ preservation rates
and quality of life are key goals in the treatment of locally
advanced or low-lying rectal cancer.

In October 2024, a research team led by Professor Tingbo
Liang from the First Affiliated Hospital of Zhejiang University
School of Medicine published a study in the high-impact
journal *Signal Transduction and Targeted Therapy*. The
study, titled *“Envafolimab plus lenvatinib and transcatheter
arterial chemoembolization for unresectable hepatocellular
carcinoma: a prospective, single-arm, phase Il study,”
demonstrated that the combination therapy of TACE,
envafolimab, and lenvatinib achieved notably higher tumor
response rates (50% per RECIST 1.1, and 83.3% per
mRECIST) compared to other studies. The response rates
outperformed those in the IMbrave150 trial (which also
explored an immune checkpoint inhibitor combined with an
angiogenesis inhibitor in UHCC) across all groups: overall
population (47.4% vs. 30%), BCLC stage B (94.12% vs.
44%), and stage C (66.67% vs. 27%). Furthermore, this
study demonstrated a surgical conversion resection rate
of 47.2% with 100% RO resection achieved. Pathological
outcomes were favorable (pCR 31.3%, MPR 56.3%). In
terms of safety, the adverse event profile was aligned with
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the established safety data of each agent, demonstrating
good tolerability. Notably, no infusion-related reactions
were observed, likely due to envafolimab’s subcutaneous
administration, which offers practical advantages over
intravenous PD-1/PD-L1 inhibitors. The study indicated
that envafolimab-based combination therapy demonstrated
robust efficacy and safety, benefiting various patient
subgroups. It shows promise not only for intermediate-stage
HCC but also as a conversion strategy for advanced uHCC.

72. In October 2024, a research team from the First
Affiliated Hospital of Zhejiang University School of
Medicine published a study titled “Envafolimab plus
lenvatinib and transcatheter arterial chemoembolization
(TACE) for unresectable hepatocellular carcinoma
(UHCC): a prospective, single-arm, phase Il study” in
Signal Transduction and Targeted Therapy. The study
(NCT05213221) evaluated the efficacy and safety of TACE
followed by envafolimab and lenvatinib in patients with
unresectable hepatocellular carcinoma (UHCC). Results
showed that among 36 efficacy-evaluable patients, the
objective response rate (ORR) and disease control rate
(DCR) reached 50% and 83.3%, respectively. Notably, 17
patients achieved surgical conversion, with 16 completing
surgery and an RO resection rate of 100%. These findings
suggest Envafolimab plus lenvatinib and TACE yielded
promising survival outcomes and conversion efficiency with

a tolerable safety profile.
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From December 6 to 8, 2024, the European Society for
Medical Oncology Asia Congress (ESMO Asia) was held
in Singapore. During the conference, results from a Phase
II' clinical trial led by Professor Qingming Shi from Anhui
Chest Hospital were presented in a poster session. The
findings suggested that for patients with locally advanced or
metastatic non-small cell lung cancer (NSCLC), particularly
for those patients had not received PD-L1 inhibitors in first-
line treatment, envafolimab combined with chemotherapy
or anti-angiogenic therapy may serve as an effective, safe,
and convenient second-line treatment option.

In 2024, envafolimab was included in the 2024 edition of the
“Chinese Expert Consensus on the Perioperative Treatment
of Advanced Gastric Cancer with Immune Checkpoint
Inhibitors” published by the Gastric Cancer Professional
Committee of the Chinese Anti-Cancer Association and
and the Expert Consensus on Pharmaceutical Services
for the Clinical Application of Innovative Subcutaneous
Formulations of Antitumor Drugs has been released
by the Hospital Pharmacy Committee of the Chinese
Pharmaceutical Association. With this inclusion, B#&Ee®
has now been recommended in 19 of the latest authoritative
clinical guidelines and consensus recommendations
domestically.
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(@  Chinese Edition of the “2023 NCCN Cervical Cancer

”

Clinical Practice Guidelines (1st Edition)

Chinese Edition of the “2023 NCCN Uterine Tumor
Clinical Practice Guidelines (2nd Edition)”

Chinese Edition of the “2023 NCCN Ovarian Cancer
including Fallopian Tube Cancer and Primary
Peritoneal Cancer Clinical Practice Guidelines (2nd
Edition)”

Chinese Expert Consensus on the Perioperative

Treatment of Advanced Gastric Cancer with Immune
Checkpoint Inhibitors (2024 Edition)

Guidelines for the Clinical Application of Immune
Checkpoint Inhibitors in Cervical Cancer (2024 Edition)

CSCO Guidelines for Endometrial Cancer 2024 Version

CSCO Guidelines for Cervical Cancer 2024 Version

CSCO Guidelines for Ovarian Cancer 2024 Version

CSCO Guidelines for Clinical Application of Immune
Checkpoint Inhibitors 2024 Version

CSCO Guidelines for Gastric Cancer 2024 Version

CSCO Guidelines for Colorectal Cancer 2024 Version

Expert Consensus on Pharmaceutical Services for
the Clinical Application of Innovative Subcutaneous
preparations of antineoplastic drugs (2024)

Chinese Expert Consensus on MDT Management of
Colorectal Cancer Liver Metastasis (2024 Edition)
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Expert Consensus on Immunotherapy for Gastric
Cancer Based on PD-L1 Protein Expression Levels
(2023 Edition)

@  Expert Consensus on Drug Therapy for Gastric Cancer

Chinese Guidelines on Standardized Application of
Immunotherapy for Lung Cancer (2024 Edition)

(D  Expert consensus on the whole-process management
of clinical application of immune checkpoint inhibitors
for esophageal cancer

Practice Guidelines for Off-Label Use of Immune
Checkpoint Inhibitors

Expert Consensus on Microsatellite Instability (MSI)
Detection Technology

3D189

1. Finish recruitment in Phase | Trial of 3D189

- The Company’s Phase | clinical trial to evaluate
the safety and immunogenicity of 3D189 in
Chinese patients with hematological malignancies
makes satisfactory progress. This multicenter,
open-label, single-arm Phase | trial is designed
to assess the safety and immunogenicity of
3D189 WT1 peptide vaccine in patients with
acute leukemia (AL) who are WT1-positive and
in complete remission after at least first-line
standard of care therapy, as well as patients with
multiple myeloma (MM), non-Hodgkin's lymphoma
(NHL), or higher-risk myelodysplastic syndrome
(MDS) who achieve complete remission or
partial remission. The clinical trial has completed
patient recruitment, and as of the date of this
announcement, no new safety signals for 3D189
have been observed in Chinese patients.
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The progress of MRCT by SELLAS

A global Phase Il trial is underway to evaluate
the efficacy and safety of 3D189 monotherapy
for maintenance treatment compared to
investigator’s choice of best available therapy
(BAT) in patients with AML who have achieved
complete remission or complete remission with
incomplete platelet recovery (CR2 or CRp2)
after second-line salvage therapy. The primary
objective is to compare 3D189 with BAT in
terms of overall survival (OS) in CR2/CRp2 AML
patients. The trial has complete recruiting.

The ongoing Phase Il overseas clinical study
of 3D189 for the treatment of acute myeloid
leukemia (AML), led by our partner SELLAS
Life Sciences Group, Inc. (NASDAQ: SLS),
underwent positive reviews by the Independent
Data Monitoring Committee (IDMC) on April 29,
2024, and June 17, 2024. Following two times
reviews, the IDMC conducted a prespecified
risk-benefit assessment of unblinded data
from the study and has recommended that the
trial continue without modifications. Based on
a detailed analysis of all unblinded data, the
IDMC projects with a high level of confidence
that the interim analysis (60 events) will occur
by the fourth quarter of 2024. On January 23,
2025 as receiving a positive outcome from
the Independent Data Monitoring Committee
(IDMC). Following an interim analysis triggered
by 60 events (death) in the study population,
the IDMC conducted a predetermined benefit/
risk assessment of the unblinded data from the
study and recommended that the trial continue
without modification. SELLAS anticipates that
next and final analysis (80 events) will be
reached this year.
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3D185
Smooth Progress in Phase | Trial of 3D185
- 3D185-CN-001

and preliminary clinical efficacy of 3D185 capsule as a
monotherapy in patients with advanced solid tumors.

Our Selected IND-enabling Drug Candidates

In addition to our clinical-stage drug candidates, mRNA platform is
being established with 3D124 as a mRNA therapeutic cancer vaccine
under developing. There are five drug candidates in IND-enabling

is an open-label, MRCT, dose- -
escalation Phase | clinical trial designed to assess the
safety, tolerability, preliminary pharmacokinetic profile,
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Assets Target(s) Indications Rights Partner
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3D1015 PSMA Multiple indications Worldwide Independent R&D

3D1015 PSMA % i e AE 25 B

3D124 Tumor neoantigens Multiple indications Worldwide Independent R&D

3D124 FEBH R %A E 354 B

3D057 CD3+PD-LA1 Multiple indications Greater China; Y-Biologics
Worldwide Priority
Transfer right

3D057 CD3+PD-L1 % i e AE AFPER Y-Biologics
2RELTHEE

3D059 WTH1 Multiple indications Greater China SELLAS

3D059 WTH % B AE RPER SELLAS

3D062 KRAS Multiple indications Worldwide Independent R&D

3D062 KRAS % R AE 2K B

3D1015 is an innovative molecule developed by 3D Medicines based
on its proprietary prostate-specific membrane antigen (PSMA)-
targeted small molecule 3D011. It is designed for the treatment
of metastatic castration-resistant prostate cancer (mCRPC) and
represents a promising next-generation radionuclide drug conjugate
(RDC). This candidate has the potential to enhance both the safety
and efficacy of PSMA radioligand therapy (PRLT). Leveraging this
innovation, 3D Medicines will officially conduct the development of
next-generation PRLT, with 3D1015 designated as the lead candidate.
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Preliminary preclinical studies of 3D1015 have demonstrated robust
target protein binding affinity, exceptional tumor tissue targeting
specificity, prolonged retention with high exposure, and an extended
half-life. Given that lutetium-177 (Lu-177) has a half-life of 6.6 days,
3D1015 is engineered to maximize Lu-177’s duration of action within
tumor tissues, thereby amplifying its tumoricidal potential. Our
research team conducted an efficacy study in a xenograft model,
performing a head-to-head comparison of 3D1015 against Pluvicto.
Results showed that 3D1015 achieved significant tumor suppression
at one-tenth of Pluvicto’s dosage and surpassed Pluvicto’s efficacy
at half its dosage. The molecule’s ability to maintain superior tumor
inhibition at substantially lower dosage levels underscores its potential
for optimized therapeutic outcomes and improved safety profiles in
clinical applications.

A new mRNA therapeutic cancer vaccine, is under developing. 3D124
targets multiple tumor specific antigens and shows strong anti-tumor
effect in preclinical studies.

3D124 is an ‘off-the-shelf’ cancer theraputic vaccine for various
cancer indications. Compared to ‘custom-made’ personalized cancer
vaccine, it is faster and more affordable for a larger number of
patients. 3D124 targets numerous cancer antigens, especially cancer
driver mutations, such as KRAS, NRAS and EGFR. 3D124 is based
on mRNA-containing lipid nanoparticles (LNPs). The LNP is self-
developed and very effective in inducing humoral and cellular immune
response. 3D124 shows strong anti-tumor effect in preclinical studies.
We plan to submit Investigational New Drug (IND) applications to
both FDA and CDE in 2025. 3D124 is a fully self-developed, off-
the-shelf therapeutic cancer vaccine that utilizes our proprietary Al-
driven antigen prediction platform—3D-PreciseAg for tumor antigen
screening and design. It incorporates 24 tumor-associated antigens
targeting multiple cancer indications and is encapsulated in our self-
developed 3D-B051-LNP delivery system. In multiple murine tumor
models, 3D124 demonstrated potent tumor growth inhibition.
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Notably, the B051 lipid component exhibited superior immune-
stimulating activity in preclinical studies. This optimized lipid was
derived from our Al-designed and screened library of hundreds of
lipid compounds.To overcome delivery challenges, we established
an ionizable cationic lipid R&D platform tailored for different cell
types and organ targeting. This platform: Enhances mRNA vaccine
development efficiency ' improves drug targeting precision * reduces
off-target tissue distribution, creates differentiated competitive
advantages. A key breakthrough is our self-developed ionizable
cationic lipid for nucleic acid delivery (a critical LNP component),
which has recently been filed for a PCT patent.

3D057 is a novel bispecific antibody targeting PD-L1 and CD3 based
on ALICE platform. A robustness process has been developed and the
non-clinical research is in progress with a confirmed strategy.

3D062 is our internally developed KRAS mutation inhibitor. Based on
the latest research results, we applied for PCT on January 17, 2023
and March 8, 2023, respectively.

Warning under Rule 18A.08(3) of the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on the Stock Exchange: There is no assurance that
the Company will continuously succeed in the commercialization
of B #3°® (Envafolimab, subcutaneously-injectable PD-L1
inhibitor). There is no assurance that Batiraxcept (3D229),
Galinpepimut-S (3D189), 3D1001, 3D1002, 3D185, 3D011, 3D1015,
3D197, 3D057, 3D059, 3D062, and 3D124 will ultimately be
successfully developed and/or marketed by the Company. As of
the date of this announcement, no material adverse changes had
occurred with respect to the regulatory approvals we had received
in relation to our drug candidates.
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Other Business Development
1. Strategic Cooperation with Qingdao Sino-Cell Biomed

The signing ceremony for the strategic cooperation between the
Company and Qingdao Sino-Cell Biomedicine Co, Ltd. (“Sino-
Cell Biomed”) took place in Shanghai, China, on January 26,
2024. Dr. Gong Zhaolong, Chairman of the Board and CEO of the
Company, and Mr. Gao Qing, Chairman of the Board of Directors
of Sino-Cell Biomed, entered into the strategic cooperation
agreement. The agreement aims to facilitate joint research efforts
in innovative therapy within the field of oncology immunotherapy,
leveraging the respective advantages of both parties. They also
aim to explore new collaborative models to provide improved
treatment options for cancer patients.

2. Strategic Cooperation with Novatim (Zhejiang) Pharmaceutical

Technology Co., LTD. (hereinafter referred to as “Novatim”)

On February 21, 2024, 3D Medicines Inc. and Novatim strategic
cooperation signing ceremony was held in Shanghai, which
aims to explore the combination of B#tZ® (Envafolimab) and
KY-0118. In addition, the two parties will also discuss further
cooperation in many aspects such as the product rights and
interests of Novatim Pharmaceutical’s double-target CAR-T and
global clinical trial research.

Research and Development

Our management team has extensive industry experience for new
drug development including working experience in the FDA and global
pharmaceutical companies, which has led us to build a proven track
record capability from discovery to commercialization.

Our R&D platform has strong molecule design and screening
capabilities that increase the possibility of success in moving
molecules from preclinical studies to market, enable innovative
therapeutic approaches and support pipeline assets built around key
pathways and targets.

Our R&D centers in Shanghai and Beijing include macromolecule
and small molecule R&D platforms, cell line screening platforms, and
compound screening platforms. Based on our R&D innovation needs,
we have newly established a synthesis and screening platform for
ionizable cationic lipids — the key component in lipid nanoparticles

(LNP) — to support the development of our nucleic acid drug pipeline.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

In the field of early-stage product research, the company has
established a comprehensive nucleic acid drug R&D system capable
of conducting all preclinical studies including drug design, drug
preparation, cellular and animal experiments. Focusing on tumor
neoantigen vaccine applications, we have independently developed
the 3D-PreciseAg antigen prediction system to enhance tumor antigen
identification accuracy. This system is continuously optimized using
extensive tumor patient genetic databases to improve its predictive
capabilities. Combined with our self-developed LNP system that
supports nucleic acid drug delivery, these innovations lay the
foundation for advancing tumor vaccine development.

Based on the company’s prior experience in prostate-specific
membrane antigen (PSMA)-targeted drug development and the
significant unmet clinical and market demand for radionuclide
drug conjugates (RDCs), our company has formally initiated the
development of next-generation radioligand therapy (RLT) products,
strategically leveraging PSMA as our entry point.

In the field of macromolecular drug development, leveraging
the market launch of Envafolimab and the IND-stage PD-L1/CD3
series bispecific antibodies, the company is actively exploring
new combinations of TCE-type bispecific antibodies/bispecific
antibody-ADCs and novel approaches such as high- concentration
formulation robotic capsule for oral administration. These efforts aim
to accelerate iterative upgrades of existing products, enhance patient
benefits, and strengthen product competitiveness.

We believe that R&D is key to maintaining competitiveness in our
industry. We have built a comprehensive platform to enable our R&D
in the area of chronic cancer treatment.

We employ a clinical-demand-oriented and market-driven approach to
our clinical R&D efforts. Our clinical development team is composed
of scientists and physicians with years of experience in drug
development. Our clinical development team carefully customizes
clinical development plan for each of our candidate drugs by taking
into consideration scientific rationale, probability of technical and
regulatory success, competition, commercial assessment, expert
feedback, timeline and cost.
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Manufacture

We have been building our in-house production facilities in Xuzhou,
Jiangsu province, with current GMP-compliant manufacturing system
and facilities throughout the drug development process, including
chemical drugs and biologics, to meet stringent global standards. Our
GMP-compliant manufacturing facilities are designed and validated
according to the FDA, the EMA, and the NMPA regulations, to support
the entire drug development process, from drug discovery to process
development, GMP-compliant pilots and commercial manufacturing. In
anticipation of the large needs of our drugs upon commercialization,
we purchased the land use right of the land in Xuzhou with an
aggregate area of 65,637.97 square meters. We have obtained the
construction permit and started construction of new manufacturing
facilities in Xuzhou.

We work with qualified CMOs to manufacture and test drug
candidates for pre-clinical and clinical supply. In the near future, we
plan to continue outsourcing the manufacturing of our product and
drug candidates, including commercial-scale manufacturing of our
approved drugs, to qualified CMOs/CDMOs.

As disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated July 14, 2023,
around 40% of the net proceeds from the 2023 Placing (as defined
below) shall be allocated to expediting the building construction and
the procurement of new equipment for our manufacturing facilities in
Xuzhou, China. We have a steady capacity expansion plan to meet
our future clinical development and commercialization needs.

Quality Management System

We have established a comprehensive quality management system
centered on Good Laboratory Practice (GLP), Good Clinical Practice
(GCP), and Good Manufacturing Practice (GMP). This system covers
the entire drug development process — from non-clinical research
and clinical trials to commercial production — ensuring compliance
with both international and domestic regulatory standards from early-
stage R&D through to product commercialization. To support the
effective implementation of this system, we have assembled a highly
qualified professional team specializing in GLP, GCP, and GMP quality
management.

As the Marketing Authorization Holder (MAH) for Envafolimab, we
strictly adhere to GMP and relevant regulations governing contract
manufacturing. We have developed a systematic and robust quality
management framework for outsourced drug production, ensuring
that we fully fulfill our responsibilities and obligations as the MAH. Our
commitment to excellence in quality management has enabled us to
successfully pass multiple GMP compliance inspections by regulatory
authorities.
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Sales and Marketing

We are committed to accelerating the commercialization of B #E®
(Envafolimab, Subcutaneously-Injectable PD-L1) through marketing
strategies tailored to patient needs and academic-oriented marketing
activities that emphasize product differentiation and improve the
quality of life for cancer patients. The product has been recommended
by several professional guidelines, and we have been actively
providing assistance to cancer patients and gaining recognition
from third-party payers, reducing the cost of using our products for
patients.

We have established a commercial function dedicated to the
commercialization of pipeline products. We are building a qualified
commercial team with rich experience in oncology commercialization,
responsible for product positioning, market strategy, promotion
planning, and patient assistance.

Since we obtained NDA approval for the treatment of MSI-H/
dMMR advanced solid tumors that have been previously treated
on November 24, 2021, we have sold B #3E® (i) pharmaceutical
distribution companies and (ii) distributors who contract with us (for
hospital channels). We hire professional employees to negotiate
contracts, manage distributors and supply chains, and provide
sufficient products to patients.

In 2024, B#43Z® was sold in over 3,000 hospitals and more than 763
pharmacies in 30 provinces and more than 305 cities. B##® has
been included in the specific high-expense self-paid drug category of
the “Huimin Insurance” in 36 cities in China.

We are also gradually carrying out pre-launch preparations for
products that are expected to be near commercialization.

Intellectual Property Rights

We have an extensive portfolio of patents to protect our product, drug
candidates and technologies. As of the date of this annual report,
we owned (including co-owned) (i) 13 granted patents in China, (ii)
23 granted patents in other jurisdictions, and (iii) 19 pending patent
applications, including 12 Chinese patent applications, and 7 patent
applications in other jurisdictions, relating to certain of our product,
drug candidates and technologies.
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Social and Industry Recognition

Top 100 Chinese Pharmaceutical Innovation Enterprises

In September 2024, 3D Medicines Inc. was honored to be
listed among the “Top 100 Chinese Pharmaceutical Innovation
Enterprises,” a distinction jointly awarded by Healthcare
Executive (EZ41 A) and independent third-party organizations.
This marks the third consecutive year that 3D Medicines has
been recognized in this prestigious ranking, highlighting
its exceptional innovation capabilities in the field of cancer

immunotherapy.

Top 500 Enterprises in the National SME Innovation and
Entrepreneurship Competition

In November 2024, the Qingdao branch of 3D Medicines Inc.
(Stock Code: 1244 .HK) was selected as one of the “Top 500
Enterprises in the National SME Innovation and Entrepreneurship
Competition” during the 9th “Chuangke China” SME Innovation
and Entrepreneurship Competition. The event was organized by
the Cybersecurity Industry Development Center of the Ministry of
Industry and Information Technology (MIIT Information Center),
in collaboration with provincial SME authorities and relevant
organizations. The company earned this accolade by showcasing
the potential and development prospects of its “mRNA Cancer
Vaccine Platform R&D Project.”

Zhiyuan Award — ESG Social Responsibility (S) Pioneer
Enterprise Award

On November 29, 2024, 3D Medicines Inc. (Stock Code:
1244 HK) was awarded the “Zhiyuan Award - ESG Social
Responsibility (S) Pioneer Enterprise Award” at the 5th Caijing
ESG Forum hosted by Caijing Media Group.

Best Commercial Return Award (Biotech Category)

On December 17, 2024, B##E® a commercialized product of
3D Medicines Inc. (Stock Code: 1244.HK), was honored with
the “Best Commercial Return Award (Biotech Category)” at the
2024 China Biopharmaceutical Industry Chain Innovation Awards
Ceremony.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW HEBE
2023
20234
RMB’000
AREFTT
Revenue ' ON 634,949
Cost of sales SHEE R AR (49,091)
Gross profit EH 585,858
Other income and net gains HAD YA RS e 40,988
Research and development expenses R (425,497)
Administrative expenses THAX (217,080)
Selling and marketing expenses HEREHAXZ (378,806)
Royalty expenses TG R E (61,845)
Other expenses HibFx (99,149)
Finance costs B RS AR (7,772)
Impairment of financial assets, net BRBRATEEE 837
LOSS BEFORE TAX BRELATE B (562,466)
Income tax expense Frisfim s (55)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE LOSS FOR AEELHEEBEAE
THE YEAR (562,521)
Attributable to: LA AR
Owners of the parent BRRHEAR A (524,697)
Non-controlling interests IR 2 (37,824)
(562,521)

Overview

The following discussion is based on,
financial information and the notes included elsewhere in this annual

report.

and in conjunction with, the
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Revenue

For the year ended December 31, 2024, our revenue decreased
to RMB445.6 million from RMB634.9 million for the same period in
2023, representing a decrease of 29.8%. All of our revenue during
the Reporting Period was generated from the sales of B#iE®
(Envafolimab, Subcutaneously-Injectable PD-L1) which was approved
and commercialized in late November 2021. The revenue decrease is
a result of the highly competitive market of PD-1/L1 in 2024. However,
from a half year sales perspective, sales in the second half of the
year increased by 15.9% compared to the first half driven by the
improvement of market environment, reflecting a positive turnaround in
sales trend.

Cost of Sales

During the Reporting Period, the cost of sales represented our
purchases from our contract manufacturer for production of Z#
#Z©®. For the year ended December 31, 2024, our cost decreased by
25.5% to RMB36.6 million from RMB49.1 million for the same period
in 2023. The decrease in cost of sales was mainly attributable to
the decrease in the number of units sold for BE#E® (Envafolimab,
Subcutaneously-Injectable PD-L1).

Gross Profit and Gross Profit Margin

Our gross profit decreased by 30.2% from RMB585.8 million for the
year ended December 31, 2023 to RMB409.1 million for the year
ended December 31, 2024. It was mainly attributable to the decrease
in product sales. Our gross profit margin reached 92.3% and 91.8%
for the year ended December 31, 2023 and 2024, respectively, The
slight decrease in gross profit margin is mainly due to the increase
in sales related surcharged taxes and the cost of relevant product
quality expenses, reflecting the company continually investment in the
product side.

Other Income and Net Gains

During the Reporting Period, our other income and net gains primarily
consisted of (i) investment income and fair value gains on certain
financial instruments; (ii) Foreign exchange gains; and (iii) interest
income. For the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023, we
recorded other income and net gains of RMB54.7 million and RMB41.0
million, respectively. The increase was mainly due to (i) increased
bank interest income RMB4.4 million from increased deposits; (ii)
foreign exchange gains increased RMB9.0 million; and (iii) investment
income increased RMB1.5 million.
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Research and Development Expenses

During the Reporting Period, our research and development expenses
primarily consisted of (i) employee benefit expenses, including
salaries, social insurance, pension, bonus and share-based expenses
related to our research and development personnel; and (ii) third-party
contracting expenses paid to service providers.

For the year ended December 31, 2024, our research and
development expenses decreased by 57.5% to RMB180.7 million
from RMB425.5 million for the same period in 2023. The decrease
was mainly due to (i) a decrease of RMB78.8 million in third-party
contracting expenses paid to service providers; (ii) a decrease
of RMB146.2 million in employee benefit expenses related to our
research and development, including salaries, social insurance,
pension, bonus and share-based expenses; and (iii) a decrease of
RMB20 million as a result of the mix of received technology services
payments associated with license-out arrangements and the milestone
costs associated with the exclusive development rights of our
in-licensed drug candidates.

Administrative Expenses

During the Reporting Period, our administrative expenses primarily
consisted of (i) employee benefit expenses, including salaries, social
insurance, pension, bonus and share based expenses related to our
administrative personnel; and (ii) professional service expenses paid
to third parties primarily in connection with operating activities. For
the year ended December 31, 2024, our administrative expenses
decreased by RMB138.8 million to RMB78.3 million from RMB217.1
million for the same period in 2023, which was primarily attributable to
a decrease of share-based payment expenses of RMB135.3 million,
due to the acceleration of vesting of the Group’s restricted share units
in prior year.

Selling and Marketing Expenses

During the Reporting Period, our selling and marketing expenses
mainly represented expenses incurred for promoting B4 #® in China
in accordance with industry standards to boost sales. Our selling and
marketing expenses decreased by 37.7% from RMB378.8 million for
the year ended December 31, 2023 to RMB235.9 million for the year
ended December 31, 2024. The decrease was primarily attributable
to the decrease rate of selling and marketing expenses in 2024 (i.e.
37.7%) exceeding the decease rate of sales in the same period (i.e.
29.8%) due to a newly effective sales promotion regime and cost
reduction measurement.
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Royalty Expenses

In February 2016, we entered into a co-development agreement, as
amended, with Alphamab Group for envafolimab (collectively with the
subsequent amendments and supplemental agreements thereto, the
“Co-Development Agreements”).

As agreed under the Co-Development Agreements, upon the approval
and commercialization of B##® we are entitled to 51% while
Alphamab Group is entitled to 49% of the profit before tax generated
from the sales of B #:E® globally in the field of oncology therapy.

For the year ended December 31, 2024, our royalty expenses
decreased by 39.6% to RMB37.3 million from RMB61.8 million for the
same period in 2023, which was primarily attributable to the decrease
in sales of B #EiEe.

Total Comprehensive Loss for the Year

For the reasons discussed above, total comprehensive loss for the
year decreased by 64.6% from RMB562.5 million for the year ended
December 31, 2023 to RMB199.4 million for the year ended December
31, 2024. This improvement was the result of effective cost reductions
and improved efficiencies.

Non-IFRSs Measures

In order to supplement our consolidated statements of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income which are presented in accordance
with IFRSs, we use adjusted loss and total comprehensive loss
as an additional financial measure, which is not required by, or
presented in accordance with IFRSs. Our adjusted loss and total
comprehensive loss represents our loss and total comprehensive
loss for the year, adjusted to add back fair value losses on preferred
shares and share-based payment expenses. We believe that such
measure provides investors and other persons with useful information
to understand and evaluate our consolidated results of operation in
the same manner as it helps our management. However, adjusted net
loss presented by us may not be comparable to the similar financial
measure presented by other companies. There are limitations to the
non-IFRSs measure used as an analytical tool, and you should not
consider it in isolation or regard it as a substitute for our results of
operation or financial position analysis that is presented in accordance
with IFRSs.
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The following table sets forth our loss and total comprehensive loss

and adjusted loss and total comprehensive loss for the year, which

is adjusted by adding back fair value losses on preferred shares and

TREINNATFENFABRERZ2EE
BRBEARKREBER2HBRARE (K
MEEER A FEEBERARD RERD

share-based payment expenses, for the years indicated: NREBRELAE)
2024 2023
2024F 20234
RMB’ 000 RMB’000
AR¥T R AREFT
Total comprehensive loss for the year FREHEEIBERE (199,378) (562,521)
Add: Y/
Share-based payment expenses LARR 7 BEER S R E A 32,672 298,963
Adjusted total comprehensive loss for the year FREHAE 2 EEEEEE (166,706) (263,558)
Selected Data from Consolidated Statement of Financial Position FEVBHMRR RO REIE
2024 2023
20244 20234
RMB’ 000 RMB’000
AR%E T ARETT
Total non-current assets SEMBEELE 228,505 333,728
Total current assets MBEELE 987,751 1,095,154
Total assets EERE 1,216,256 1,428,882
Total non-current liabilities EMEBBEERE 24,754 57,826
Total current liabilities mENBEERE 487.788 500,371
Total liabilities aEeE 512,542 558,197
BREEARGERLT —ZSNFFIR
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENRE DN

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Since our inception, we have incurred net losses and negative cash
flows from our operations. Our primary uses of cash are to fund the
research and development of our drug pipeline, our clinical trials,
administrative expenses and other recurring expenses.

As of December 31, 2024, the current assets of the Group were
RMB987.8 million, including cash and bank balances, financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss, and financial assets
measured at amortised cost with a total amount of RMB841.0 million,
which decreased by RMB155.6 million to RMB841.0 million as of
December 31, 2024 from RMB996.6 million as of December 31, 2023.
The decrease is primarily attributable to the increase in accounts
receivable and the decrease in bank loans as the timing difference of
bank loan renewal completion. As of December 31, 2024, the current
liabilities of the Group were RMB487.8 million, mainly including
trade payables of RMB51.1 million, other payables and accruals of
RMB223.7 million, interest-bearing bank borrowings of RMB204.6
million, lease liabilities of RMB8.3 million.

Our net cash used in operating activities amounted to RMB210.7
million and RMB144.4 million for the years ended December 31, 2024
and 2023, respectively. As our business develops and expands, we
expect to generate more cash from our operating activities mainly
through sales of our products. We shall continue to advance our late
stage clinical assets into NDA stage and commercialization which will
bring incremental cash flow to fund our operations in the foreseeable
future.

For the year ended December 31, 2024, our net cash flows from
investing activities was RMB18.0 million, primarily as a result of (i)
purchase of items of property, plant and equipment of RMB1.5 million;
(i) purchase of financial assets at FVTPL of RMB230.0 million, partially
offset by proceeds from disposal of financial assets at FVTPL of
RMB279.2 million; and (iii) purchase of financial assets measured at
amortised cost of RMB60.0 million, partially offset by proceeds from
disposal of financial assets at amortised cost of RMB63.3 million.

3D Medicines Inc. Annual Report 2024
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Management Discussion and Analysis

For the year ended December 31, 2024, our net cash flows used in
financing activities was RMB33.8 million, primarily as a result of (i) new
interest-bearing bank borrowings of RMB246.4 million and partially
offset by repayment of interest-bearing bank borrowings of RMB264.1
million; and (ii) lease payments of RMB13.5 million.

Asset-liability Ratio

As at December 31, 2024, the asset-liability ratio (calculated by total
liabilities divided by total assets multiplied by 100%) of the Group was
42%, representing an increase of 3% from the asset-liability ratio of
39% as at December 31, 2023.

Charges on the Group’s Assets

As of December 31, 2024, the company did not have any pledged
assets.

Capital Commitments

As of December 31, 2024, the Group had RMB39.3 million in capital
commitment to fixed asset, which had been contracted but not
provided for (December 31, 2023: RMB39.3 million).

Contingent Liabilities

The Company and SELLAS Life Sciences Group, Inc., a company
listed on the Nasdag Stock Market (stock code: SLS) (“SELLAS”)
entered into an exclusive license agreement and several
supplementary agreements regarding the development and
commercialisation of 3D189 as well as 3D059 in Chinese Mainland,
Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan. On December 20, 2023, the Company
received a notice of arbitration filed by SELLAS and its subsidiary,
SLSG Limited, LLC with the Hong Kong International Arbitration
Centre against the Company as respondent, alleging certain disputes,
including, among other things, the triggering of milestone payments
relating to initiation of the phase Il clinical trials for 3D189, as well
as failure to maintain sufficient expertise and resources to fulfil its
obligations under the licensing agreements (the “Application”).
The directors, having considered the advice from the Group’s
external legal counsel as well as the latest information and evidence
available, believe that based on current development, the Company
has reasonable chances of defending the claimants’ claim in the
Arbitration. Hence, the Group has not provided for any claim arising
from the arbitration, other than the related legal and other costs for the
years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENRE DN

Significant Investments, Material Acquisitions and Disposals
Investment in a Fund

On September 25, 2023, the Company announced that the Company
subscribed for relevant participating shares attributable to a
segregated portfolio of Future Vision Fund SPC on December 19,
2022, at a subscription amount of US$12,700,000 (equivalent to
approximately RMB88.6 million) (the “Investment”). The source
of funds for subscribing the Investment is the Company’s internal
resources. As at the date of this report, the Investment had not been

redeemed.

For details, please refer to the announcement of the Company dated
September 25, 2023.

Subscription of Wealth Management Products
On August 11, 2023,
management product with UBS AG in the amount of HK$180 million
(the “UBS Subscription”) and as of December 31, 2024, US$14
million (approximately 60.67% of the subscription amount) has been

the Company subscribed for a wealth

redeemed.

For details of the UBS Subscription, please refer to the announcement
of the Company dated September 25, 2023.

Total redeemed
amount after the
Subscription

EXRE  WRRHEHESRE
EERE

20239 H25H ' RRARIRER2022F
128198 LA12,700,000E T (A AR
#88.6 A& r) W Future Vision Fund
SPCHTEREMHEGHNAERZ2ERN ([&

BE&E])

R BEARERY

?‘ﬁuﬁ

Iggjéﬂﬂwu%
2023%F8H11H » A7

TR EMR -

R’

BEXET (HER

B HEImIRR

B RREIS

FOR25BNE ©

Realised and

 RBREAE S FRNAR TN HE
AR MR -

MZARRI2023F9 A25 H AL »

7 70 i I R & B 2
TEHA180E BB L ([HiR
c HE2024%12A310  BEERI14
S EER60.67%) °

B2H AR AT 2023

Fair value
relative to the
Company’s

Date up to  unrealised gain  Fair value as at  total asset as at
Principal Subscription December 31, during the December 31, December 31,
Name amount Date 2024 Reporting Period 2024 2024
RERE R2024F HUREAREE
2024F12A31H REHEEER 12A318H  2024512A31H
£ N REAH NERASH MRERYE AVHE WBEENDATE
(RMB’000) (RMB’000)
(AR¥Tx) (AR®F )
Future Vision Fund SPC US$12,700,000 December 10, 2022 - 5,082 98,779 8.12%
Future Vision Fund SPC 12,700,000 T 2022F 12108
UBS Subscription HK$180,000,000 August 11, 2023 US$14,000,000 3,832 70,737 5.82%
IhiRREEE 180,000,000/ # 202358A11H 14,000,000 ¢
Save as disclosed above, the Group did not have material acquisitions BREMBEN  AEBEARSHANLEE
or disposals of subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures during the BRPBREEFAA  BMERARNMEE
Reporting Period. e

3D Medicines Inc. Annual Report 2024



Management Discussion and Analysis

Foreign Exchange Exposure

For the year ended December 31, 2024, the Group mainly operated in
China and a majority of its transactions were settled in Renminbi, the
functional currency of the Company’s primary subsidiaries. The Group
is exposed to foreign currency risk as a result of certain cash and
bank balances, financial assets at fair value through profit and loss,
and financial assets measured at amortised cost. We currently do not
have a foreign currency hedging policy. However, our management
monitors foreign exchange exposure and will consider hedging
significant foreign exchange exposure should the need arise.

Future Investment Plans and Expected Funding

The Group had no material capital expenditure plan as of the date of
this annual report.

Employees and Remuneration

As of December 31, 2024, the Group had 191 full-time employees,
who were based in Shanghai, Beijing, and other cities of China and
U.S.. The total employee benefits expenses of our Group, which
consisted of (i) wages, salaries and bonuses, (ii) social security costs,
(iii) employee welfare and (iv) equity-settled share awards, for the year
ended December 31, 2024, were approximately RMB123.0 million.

We recruit our employees based on a number of factors, including
work experience, educational background and the requirements
of a relevant vacancy etc. We invest in continuing education and
training programs for our management staff and other employees
to upgrade their skills and knowledge continuously. We provide our
employees with regular feedback as well as internal and external
training in various areas, such as product knowledge, project
development and team building. We also assess our employees
based on their performance to determine their salary, promotion and
career development. In compliance with the relevant PRC labor laws,
we enter into individual employment contracts with our employees
covering matters such as terms, wages, employee benefits, workplace
safety, confidentiality obligations, non-competition and grounds
for termination. In addition, we are required under PRC laws to
make contributions to statutory employee benefit plans (including
pension plans, medical insurance, work-related injury insurance,
unemployment insurance, maternity insurance and housing funds) at
a certain percentage of our employees’ salaries, up to a maximum
amount specified by local governments.
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Biographies of Directors and Senior Management

ESNSREEEEE

The biographical details of the Directors and senior management are
set out as follows:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Gong Zhaolong (EJK3E), the key founder of the Group, aged 60, has
been a Director and Chief Executive Officer since October 9, 2019
and was re-designated as an Executive Director on June 25, 2021. Dr.
Gong has been the Chief Executive Officer since January 30, 2018,
and the Chairman of the Board since October 11, 2019. Dr. Gong
is primarily responsible for the overall strategic planning, business
direction and operational management of the Group. Dr. Gong also
holds the following positions in the subsidiaries of the Group:

EEREREEENBEAEHIIWNT

HITES

BkEE  AEEMEBABA 0 605 B
201910 AR AEETRERTHITE -
T HR2021 566 258 AT ARATES -
EE+H2018F 1 A0 A RETEHEWNIT
B H2019F10A11BEETEER - &
BTEEEEAEBMOEERERE - £
BIEERBELERE - BTN EREEK
B AR LA TR

Name of Subsidiary Position(s) Period

MEAR B ;-2 R

Full Goal Trading Limited Director November 2019 to present
Bx 201911 AZES

Integral Lane Holdings Limited Director November 2019 to present
BF 201911 R&ES

3DMed Hong Kong Director November 2019 to present

BREHAEE 5% 201911 AES

3DMed Beijing Executive Director October 10, 2019 to present

B AR HITES 20191010 ES

3DMed Sichuan

P91 BB B B
3D Medicines

B BE B

5

3DMed Xuzhou

SBER AR M
3DMed Shanghai
BiE e
3DMed Qingdao

BHEES

Executive Director and
General Manager
BITE S RELE
Executive Director and
General Manager
BITE SRR
Chief Executive Officer
BENTE
Executive Director and
General Manager
BITE S RELRE
Executive Director
WITES
Executive Director and
General Manager
BITEERELRE

October 25, 2019 to present

2019410 A25RES
June 7, 2018 to present

20186 A7TAES

January 30, 2018 to present
20181 H30HZES
November 24, 2020 to present

2020511 A24RES
October 10, 2019 to present
2019410 A10BES

June 11, 2021 to present

2021F6 A11HES
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Dr. Gong has around 26 years of experience in the pharmaceutical
industry and regulatory agency. From October 1998 to March 2008,
Dr. Gong worked as a new drug reviewer of the Center for Drug
Evaluation and Research in the United States FDA. Dr. Gong then
served as a General Manager of Beijing Labsolutions Pharmaceutical
Technology Co., Ltd. (JLFRIGEEREYEHZARAA]) from March
2012 to April 2013. From May 2013 to July 2014, he served as Vice
President for New Drug Development and Regulatory Affairs (%45
BEMERESEILE) of BeiGene (Beijing) Biotechnology Co., Ltd. (B
ErN (b5 £RHZ AR 2 7)), an indirectly wholly owned subsidiary
of BeiGene, Ltd. ("“BeiGene”), which was subsequently listed on
NASDAQ (stock code: BGNE) and the Stock Exchange (stock code:
6160).

From September 2015 to August 2021, Dr. Gong served as an
Independent Director of Staidson (Beijing) Biopharmaceutical Co.,
Ltd. (8% (JLR) £MRERMHER A F), a company listed on the
Shenzhen Stock Exchange (stock code: 300204). From July 2017
to December 2023, he has also served as an Independent Director
of Shandong Jincheng Pharmaceutical Group Co., Ltd. (LLER&HE
BmEBAH AR AR), a company also listed on the Shenzhen Stock
Exchange (stock code: 300233).

Dr. Gong obtained his Bachelor degree in medicine from Peking
Medical College (It RERIKE) (currently known as Peking University
Health Science Center (LR AZEEE2E)) in the PRC in July 1984. He
proceeded to obtain his PhD in toxicology from New York University
in the United States in September 1996. Dr. Gong is a member of
various industry associations, including the China Advisory Committee
of the Drug Information Association, the Translational Medical Expert
Committee (E{LEZBEREEE) of the Chinese Society of Clinical
Oncology, the International Innovative Drug Supervision Professional
Committee of the China Pharmaceutical Innovation and Research
Development Association (FHEZAIFEESHRAMEYEETEES
E%), an editorial board member of the Chinese Journal of New Drugs
(P EIH B3 55) and Progress in Pharmaceutical Sciences (2223 R).
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ESNSREEEEE

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Zhu Pai (%), aged 33, has been a Director since June 23, 2021 and
was re-designated as a non-executive Director on June 25, 2021. He
participates in decision-making in respect of major matters such as
corporate and business strategies.

Mr. Zhu has around 9 years of experience in the asset management
sector. From December 2016 to May 2018, he was the project
manager of the asset management headquarters of Guosen Securities
Co., Ltd (REFEERMAERAE]). From August 2016 to March 2021,
Mr. Zhu has been a director of Shenzhen Jinbaihui Investment
Management Co., Ltd. (RJIEHEKREEERER2AF]). Mr. Zhu joined
the Efung investment group in May 2018, and has been an authorized
representative of the executive partner of Shenzhen Efung Investment
Management Enterprise (Limited Partnership) (RYITEEEEEIE
% (BRAE%)) since July 2018, an executive partner of Shenzhen
Qiaoyue Entrepreneurship Center Enterprise (Limited Partnership) (%
T EHEIERLDE (BRAE)) since October 2019, an executive
director and general manager of Shenzhen Efung Investment Group
Co., Ltd. (R &£ E B AR A7), and an executive director and
general manager of Hainan Efung Junma Fund Management Co., Ltd.
(BHEEESLEESEEARAT]) since December 2020. He was
also an executive director and general manager of Shenzhen Yixing
Investment Management Co., Ltd. (FYITTEEEBERABR AR (L
A& FISEREEEARADF)) from June 2018 to March 2021 and
the supervisor of the foregoing company since March 2021, and a
director of Shenzhen Tuwei Anchuang Technology Development Co.,
Ltd. (FRYITEMZ eI R EBRAF) since May 2019. From August
2020 to September 2022, he was a director of Heyuan Biotechnology
(Shanghai) Co., Ltd. (FIyTEMEM (L&) R BR2AT) a company
listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange STAR Market (stock code:
688238) since March 2022. Since December 2020, he has been a
director of Shenzhen Shineng Ketai Energy Technology Co., Ltd. (%
Yt gERL LR B AT A (5 B R A A]). Since October 2023, he has been
a director of Hubei Topgene Biotechnology Co., Ltd.(#it X&) £ %l
& EBRAR]). Since May 2021, he has been a director of Beijing
Amsino Medical Instruments Co., Ltd. (dbRIEREMEEEMAD
fR2R])). Since November 2020, he has been a director of Beijing
Biostar Pharmaceuticals Co., Ltd. (b REZHFRENBELERMHDERR
a]), a company listed on HKEX (Stock code: 2563).

Mr. Zhu obtained his bachelor’s degree in economics from University
of California, San Diego in the United States in March 2016.
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Zhou Feng (/&I#), aged 42, has been a Director since October 9,
2019, and was re-designated as a non-executive Director on June 25,
2021. He participates in decision-making in respect of major matters
such as corporate and business strategies.

Mr. Zhou has around 13 years of experience in corporate finance.
From June 2011 to August 2013, he was an analyst of China
International Capital Corporation Limited (FEIBEEE@MAERAQR).
From August 2013 to June 2015, he was a senior fund manager at
Sinopharm Capital Co., Limited (B#2&AERBRAR]). He was a
vice president at Bank of America Merrill Lynch (Asia Pacific) Limited
from May 2015 to June 2016, and joined Guoxin Venture Capital
Management (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. (BEFEBRIEEERE CRY) BRL
Al) as an executive director from May 2017 to December 2022. Since
December 2023, he has been an independent director of Shandong
WEGO Blood Purification Products Co., Ltd (ILEESMAF R R
MERRAR).

Mr. Zhou obtained his bachelor’'s degree in accounting from Fudan
University (8 BX22) in July 2005.

Chen Yawen (BRH#=), aged 34, has been a Director since July 12,
2022, and was re-designated as a non-executive Director on the same
date. She participates in decision making in respect of major matters
such as corporate and business strategies.

Ms. Chen has involved herself in business incubation programmes and
venture capital. For instance, from October 2018 to December 2020,
she consulted and incubated projects with Xinli001.com (Z0 ), a
startup business providing online mental health services and networks
for more than 20 million users in China. From 2020 to 2021, Ms. Chen
served as an investment advisor at Waveray Capital (Fi{Zi%%&), a
China and US-based venture firm focusing on biomedical technology.
Since February 2021, she has been an investment director of Fang
Fund Partners (¥ REAEHREES), primarily focused on sustainability
investing.

Ms. Chen obtained her bachelor’s degree in computer science and art
history from Carleton College in the United States in June 2015.
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ESNSREEEEE

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Li Jin, aged 59, was appointed as an independent non-executive
Director on June 25, 2021 (with effect from Listing Date). He is
responsible for providing independent advice and judgment to our
Board.

Dr. Li has been the chairman of the board and general manager of
Beijing Orbiepharm Co., Ltd. (At REEH B &R BRAF]) since
August 2015, chairman of the board of Qingdao Pet Love Animal
Hospital Management Co., Lid. (ESE2EEBMBREBEERAA)
since August 2018. He has also served as a director in Pharmacodia
Pharma Intelligence (Beijing) Technology Co., Ltd. (B8EEZ (L R)E
BRIF AR A F]) since July 2017, and Beijing Zhongguancun Shangdi
Biotechnology Development Co., Ltd. (It R AN LA DRIRZERES
[R A7) since September 2021. Since December 2018 to December
2024, he has served as an independent director at Chengdu Easton
Biopharmaceuticals Co., Ltd (FKEBICREMRERMHERAF]), a
company listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange STAR Market
(stock code: 688513). Since December 2023, he has served as an
independent non-executive director of HighTide Therapeutics, Inc., a
company listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 2511).

Dr. Li obtained his Ph.D. in chemistry from the University of Wisconsin-
Milwaukee in the United States in May 1999. He has published more
than 25 papers and 14 book chapters in the chemistry field, and is the
inventor of more than 30 patents. He also obtained the Fund Practicing
Qualification Certificate (E& {2 &) in September 2018 from the
Asset Management Association of China (FEIFESEEELEHE),
and the independent director certificate issued by the Shanghai Stock
Exchange in November 2018.
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Lin Tat Pang (EZH#§), aged 68, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on June 25, 2021 (with effect from Listing
Date). He is responsible for providing independent advice and
judgment to our Board.

Dr. Lin has 44 years of experience in accounting, finance and
public offerings. Dr. Lin served as assistant accountant, accounting
manager and chief accountant in Sun Hung Kai Securities Limited
during 1980 to 1988. He was an executive director at Sun Hung Kai
Investment Services Limited and Sun Hung Kai Forex & Bullion Co.
Limited from December 1989 to December 1992. From November
1990 to November 1992, he was the company secretary of Sun Hung
Kai & Co. Limited (stock code: 86), a company listed on the Stock
Exchange. Subsequently, he worked for Hong Kong Exchanges and
Clearing Limited and the Stock Exchange between December 1992
and March 2013, and his last position was senior consultant to the
Listing, Listing & Regulatory Affairs Division of Hong Kong Exchanges
and Clearing Limited.

Dr. Lin was an adjunct professor of Huazhong University of Science
and Technology Law School (EREHIAZEZM) in the PRC from
May 2009 to May 2012, and a visiting professor of the same university
from December 2011 to December 2014. He was also a visiting
professor of the Southwest University of Political Science and Law (7§
A KE) in the PRC from May 2012 to May 2015. From October
2015 to June 2020, he was a part-time lecturer at the Faculty of
Business, the City University of Macau.

Dr. Lin also serves as an independent non-executive director of
three companies listed on the Stock Exchange. He has been an
independent non-executive director of China Aluminum Cans Holdings
Limited (stock code: 6898) since June 2013, and that of Leadway
Technology Investment Group Limited (formerly known as HNA
Technology Investments Holdings Limited) (stock code: 2086) since
December 2017, and that of CT Vision S.L. (International) Holdings
Limited (stock code: 994) since June 2022.

Dr. Lin obtained his Doctor of Law, Master of Law and Bachelor of
Law from Peking University (LK) in the PRC in 2009, 1998 and
1992 respectively. He also completed his Postgraduate Certificate in
Hong Kong Law in City University of Hong Kong (previously known as
City Polytechnic of Hong Kong) in November 1993. Dr. Lin has been
a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
since May 1983 and a fellow of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants, United Kingdom since August 1987. He has been also
a member of the Chartered Institute of Arbitrators, United Kingdom
since February 2000.
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ESNSREEEEE

Liu Xinguang (2lf53*), aged 64, on-the-job — postgraduate, senior
expert in capital markets. He was a civil servant, a reporter of some
newspaper group and a reporter of Xinhua News system. In 2001, he
began to engage in investment banking and investment work in the
capital market, involving stock investment and equity investment, and
has provided restructuring, listing (IPO), refinancing, mergers and
acquisitions, reorganization and other services for a number of listed
companies. He is a special expert of Shenzhen Institute of Financial
Stability and Development (RYIT & BIRE & &M 5TH) and the vice
president of Beijing Global Bank Securities Investment Co., Ltd. (1t
RREBEREARLRA).

From October 1988 to September 1994, he worked as a civil servant
in the Guangshan County Committee of the Communist Party in Henan
Province. From October 1994 to November 1997, he was a reporter
at Henan Economic Daily (AR #EBR). From December 1997 to
December 1999, he was the head of the news department at Henan
Business Daily (JfFR#R), which belongs to Xinhua News Agency.

Mr. Liu has around 23 years of experience in investment banking and
stock investments. From October 2001 to August 2003, he was a vice
president of Bestar Investment Consultant Co., Ltd. (At R1BEFHKE
BRI AFR /A A]). Since September 2004, he has been a vice president
of Beijing Global Bank Securities Investment Co., Ltd. (1tFIREKIR
FHIEBRAT]). From July 2014 to August 2020, he served as an
independent director of Zhejiang Yinlun Machinery Co., Ltd (47T iR #
A1 B R A R]), a company listed on the Shenzhen stock exchange
(stock code: 002126). Since April 2019, he has been an independent
director of Angel Yeast Co., Ltd. (ZHEFRHERAF]), a company
listed on the Shanghai stock exchange (stock code: 600298). Since
October 2018, he has been an expert member of the Independent
Board Committee of Association of Listed Companies (& _EM2A A
WEBIEEZ B D). Since April 2022, he has been an independent
director of Hubei Yihua Chemical Industry Co. Ltd. (#dt B/ TRHD
BBR/AF]), a company listed on the Shenzhen stock exchange (stock
code: 000422). Since November 2022, he has been an independent
director of Hubei Mailyard Share Co.,Ltd. (HitE=B KD E R
‘A7]), a company listed on the Shanghai stock exchange (stock
code: 600107). He served as an independent director of Zhongxing
Tianheng Energy Technology (Beijing) Co., Ltd (FF B XIBaERERIE (4t
) PP 2 &), From December 2024, serving as an expert committee
member of the Mergers and Acquisitions Financing Committee of the
China Association for Public Companies.
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Mr. Liu obtained his college diploma in Chinese from Henan
University in the PRC in June 1988. He obtained the Fund Practicing
Qualification Certificate (&% &EHEFE) in 2015 and the Securities
Practitioner Qualification Certificate (FFHF{EEEMFE) in 2004 from the
Asset Management Association of China (I EIZE 52 e).

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Gong Zhaolong (B8Jk8E), see the paragraph headed “Biographies of
Directors and Senior Management — Executive Director” in this section
for details.

Ding Gan, 60 years old, has served as the Chief Commercial Officer
of 3D Medicines since February 10, 2025, primarily responsible for
product commercialization. With over 30 years of industry experience,
he previously held positions at the headquarters and U.S. divisions
of leading multinational pharmaceutical companies (Eli Lilly and
GSK). During his more than a decade working in the U.S., he led
key functional areas such as market strategy, brand marketing, new
product development strategy, pricing, and channel strategy. He
possesses extensive hands-on experience in international markets
and is well-versed in end-to-end product value chain strategy and
management (including early-stage R&D, clinical development,
regulatory affairs, pre- and post-launch market expansion, and
lifecycle strategies for products post-patent expiration). After returning
to China in 2008, he took on divisional management roles at GSK
China and Cardinal Health China. In 2017, he joined Mylan as General
Manager for China. In 2021, he became CEO of a biotech startup
focused on kidney diseases. Beyond his corporate roles, he has also
worked as an independent commercial consultant, providing advisory
services on cross-border M&A, product launch strategies, and market
expansion to private equity firms and several large domestic and

international pharmaceutical companies.

Mr. Ding graduated from the Department of Chemistry at Peking
University with a Bachelor of Science degree and later taught at Tongji
University in Shanghai. He then pursued further studies in the U.S.,
earning a Master's degree in Bioanalytical Chemistry from Rutgers,
The State University of New Jersey, followed by an MBA from New
York University Stern School of Business.
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ESNSREEEEE

Zhang Jing (&%), aged 51, has been the chief financial officer of
the Company since August 28, 2020, and is responsible for overall
management of financial, fundraising and business development.
Since August 28, 2020, she has served as the chief financial officer of
the Company.

Ms. Zhang had almost 26 years of experience in financial
management. After working in public accounting firms in the United
States, including KPMG, on taxation and financial assurance from
January 1999 to February 2005, Ms. Zhang took on management
positions in several MNCs and was responsible for their internal audit
and financial planning and analysis functions in the Asia region, as an
auditor in the internal audit department of the headquarters and the
director of China region at Anthem Inc., a renowned medical, health
and insurance company in the U.S. and listed on the New York Stock
Exchange (stock code: ANTM), from November 2006 to December
2012. From April 2015 to October 2019, she served multiple roles in
United Technologies Corporation, a company listed on the New York
Stock Exchange (stock code: UTX), and most recently as the regional
chief financial officer in Hong Kong, Macau, Taiwan region and Guam
regions. From November 2019 to July 2020, she was the chief financial
officer at Miconvey Technologies Co, Ltd., a medical device company.

Ms. Zhang obtained her bachelor’s degree in medical nutrition from
Yat-sen University of Medical Sciences (FILIERIAE) in the PRC in
July 1995. She then obtained her master's degree in accounting from
the University of South Carolina in the United States in December
1998. She is a certified public accountant with the Washington
State Board of Accountancy. She was also a Certified Information
Systems Auditor (CISA) of the Information Systems Audit and Control
Association from November 2007 to January 2011. Her audit projects
were awarded the first prizes in US national competitions.
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Xia Fang (%), aged 44, has been the head of regulatory affairs
of the Group since March 1, 2019 and the vice president (EI42%EIE)
of 3D Medicines since January 1, 2020, and is responsible for 3D
Medicines Beijing. She has been the board secretary since September
1, 2020. She has been appointed as our joint company secretary
on June 25, 2021. From November 1, 2024, appointed as Head of
Development Strategic and Cooperation Department, responsible for
corporate strategy formulation and external partnership projects.

Prior to joining our Group, from August 2003 to November 2016, Ms.
Xia had worked at Taiji Group Co., Ltd. (KiBREBH AR AR (“Taiji
Group”), a company listed on the Shanghai stock exchange (stock
code: 600667). Specifically, from January 2008 to November 2016,
she was the deputy director of the Beijing product design centre of
Taiji Group. She also served as the board secretary of the executive
committee of the Tai Chi Anti-Cancer Science Foundation of China
Anti-Cancer Association (FBE#EHE ABTIERZEES) from January
2007 to December 2012.

Ms. Xia obtained her bachelor's degree from Jilin Agricultural
University (S22 AE) in the PRC in July 2003. She obtained her
master's degree from Peking University Health Science Center (it
FAEEEE) in the PRC in July 2013. She also obtained a MBA of
Harvard Business School in May 2022. She is a member of the Hong
Kong Investor Relations Association and a member of the fourth (2022-
2024) Professional Committee on China Pharmaceutical Innovation
and Research Development Association (PhIRDA).

He Yue (fai#), aged 47, has been the executive director of the quality
management department of the Group since August 1, 2019, and is
responsible for building a quality management system for the full life
cycle of products and supervising its effective operation.

Mr. He has 15 years of experience in the pharmaceutical industry.
From 2005 to 2010, he worked in Ronggang Biotechnology Consulting
(Beijing) Co., Ltd. (B 4&#EM (JbR) BRAF]). From 2010 to 2013,
he served as the medical director of Baitai Biopharmaceutical Co.,
Ltd (BREWEEAFRAT]). From 2013 to 2015, he was the clinical
associate director of the clinical development department in BeiGene
Biotechnology Co., Ltd. (B &4 M A ¥ EHEBR A F]). Mr. He first joined
our Group as the clinical operation director and was subsequently
appointed as the quality assurance director of our Group in February
2018, and since then he has been in charge of clinical research and
quality management of the Group. From July 2016 to January 2018,
Mr. He worked at the Predecessor Holdco.
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ESNSREEEEE

Mr. He obtained his bachelor's degree in clinical medicine from
North Sichuan Medical College (JIIJEEEZFR) in the PRC in July 2001,
his master’s degree in on-the-job clinical medicine from Sichuan
University (P9)I1K2) in the PRC in July 2003, and his master’s degree
in business administration from the Hong Kong Asia Business College
(BB EMEERT) in January 2021,

JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES

Xia Fang (%), see the paragraph headed “Biographies of Directors
and Senior Management — Senior Management”.

Li Ching Yi (Z&14), has been appointed as our joint company
secretary on June 25, 2021. Ms. Li is a senior manager of the Listed
& Fiduciary Corporate Services Department of Trident Corporate
Services (Asia) Ltd., a global professional services firm. She has over
10 years of professional experience in company secretarial field. She
is currently the company secretary of Yadong Group Holdings Limited
(stock code: 1795), and a joint company secretary of Laopu Gold
Co., Ltd. (Stock code: 6181), Yidu Tech Inc. (stock code: 2158), Pop
Mart International Group Limited (stock code: 9992), Acotec Scientific
Holdings Limited (stock code: 6669) and Sipai Health Technology Co.,
Ltd. (stock code: 314), all of which are listed on the Stock Exchange.

Ms. Li is an associate member of The Chartered Governance Institute
(formerly known as The Institute of Chartered Secretaries and
Administrators) in the United Kingdom and The Hong Kong Chartered
Governance Institute (formerly known as The Hong Kong Institute of
Chartered Secretaries). She obtained a bachelor’'s degree in social
sciences in October 2011 from Lingnan University in Hong Kong and a
master’s degree in professional accounting and corporate governance
in July 2015 from City University of Hong Kong.

3D Medicines Inc. Annual Report 2024

fA] e £ 200147 BEEFE)I| It B b
HFRREEEBE L+ B4 » R2003F7 AR
PRI KBRS SE T 260Kk
R2021F1 AEBEADNEFERMIY
ERELENL -

BEARWE
X SRIEFNBRETERE - 4K
EEEI R -

ZER - R2021F6 A25 HEZ T AR
WBELARNE - TR+ AEBREERS
BRAR(—REBRBEERBAR) EWhd
ERZAARBBRRLE - HRABMW
EEEAABI0OFHELR - RERKAD
REBMIZERABRAR (BRMHARSE - 1795) 8
ARAWE  UREHHSRMHERAF (K
MR% - 6181) » BERIEABRAR (&RH
RER : 2158)  BIBRFEBREEGR AR
(BDHRER - 9992) ~ SLmiE B ERIIER
BRAT (BHHRE : 6669) & BIRGEFER
BRARAR (BHRYE : 314) BB FE A 7
£ T ARIIR BB LT »

U+ AEBRETATIAEAS (AIBER
FHWERITRABAEG) REBLENAE
AE(ABEBHTWERAS)NESE -
HBR2011F10 A EBESERASHER
BE+ B WR2015FE7 AEBEBH
MAEBBEESH RMEERBELEN -



Corporate Governance Report

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Board is pleased to present this corporate governance report in
this annual report (the “Corporate Governance Report”).

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board is committed to maintaining high corporate governance
standards. The Board believes that high corporate governance
standards are essential in providing a framework for the Company
to safeguard the interests of Shareholders and to enhance corporate
value and accountability.

Since the shares of the Company were listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange on December 15, 2022, the Company has
adopted the principles and code provisions as set out in the CG Code
contained in Appendix C1 to the Listing Rules and complied with the
applicable code provisions throughout the period from the Listing
Date to the date of this annual report, save for deviation from code
provisions C.2.1 and F.1.1 as disclosed below.

The Company is committed to enhancing its corporate governance
practices appropriate to the conduct and the growth of its business
and to reviewing such practices from time to time to ensure that they
comply with statutory and professional standards and align with the
latest development.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board oversees the Group's businesses, strategic decisions and
performance and takes decisions objectively in the best interest of the
Company as well as aligning the Company’s culture with its purpose,
value and strategy.

The Board has delegated the authority and responsibilities for
day-to-day management and operation of the Group to the senior
management of the Group. To oversee particular aspects of the
Company’s affairs, the Board has established three Board committees
including the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and
the Nomination Committee. The Board has delegated to the Board
committees responsibilities as set out in their respective terms of
reference. All Board committees are provided with sufficient resources
to perform their duties.

The Board regularly reviews the contribution required from a Director
to perform his responsibilities to the Company, and whether the
Director is spending sufficient time performing them.
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Board Composition

The Board currently comprises seven Directors, consisting of
one executive Director, three non-executive Directors and three
independent non-executive Directors as follows:

Name Position in the Company
=1 R A = R B AL

E=EmER
E=eAmtRESAN  HPaE—
RHMTES BN TEEN =B
FEHITES

Dr. Gong Zhaolong

BIkEE L BER O BITEZR AERTE TE2AHBA
Mr. Zhu Pai Non-executive Director

RFEFRE FRITEF

Mr. Zhou Feng Non-executive Director

[EU& S FEHMITESR

Ms. Chen Yawen Non-executive Director

BRIEE42 FERITEE

Dr. Li Jin Independent Non-executive Director
Li Jinfé+ BIFATES

Dr. Lin Tat Pang Independent Non-executive Director
HEEEE L BIUFRITES

Mr. Liu Xinguang Independent Non-executive Director
2EHEE BIFATES

The list of Directors (by category) is also disclosed in all corporate
communications issued by the Company from time to time pursuant
to the Listing Rules. The independent non-executive Directors are
expressly identified in all corporate communications pursuant to the
Listing Rules.

The biographies of the Directors are set out in the section headed
“Biographies of Directors and Senior Management” of this annual
report and the relationships between the Directors are disclosed in the
respective Director’s biography.

To the best knowledge of the Company, there are no financial,
business, family or other material or relevant relationships among

members of the Board.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Code provision C.2.1 of the CG Code stipulates that the roles of
chairman and chief executive officer should be segregated and
should not be performed by the same individual. According to the
current structure of the Board, the positions of the Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer of the Company are held by Dr. Gong Zhaolong.
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The Board believes that this structure will not impair the balance of
power and authority between the Board and the management of the
Company, given that: (i) decision to be made by the Board requires
approval by at least a majority of the Directors and that the Board
comprises three independent non-executive Directors out of seven
Directors, and the Board believes there is sufficient check and
balance on the Board, (ii) Dr. Gong Zhaolong and the other Directors
are aware of and undertake to fulfil their fiduciary duties as Directors,
which require, among other things, that they act for the benefit and
in the best interests of the Company and will make decisions of the
Group accordingly, and (iii) the balance of power and authority is
ensured by the operations of the Board which comprises experienced
and high caliber individuals who meet regularly to discuss issues
affecting the operations of the Group. Moreover, the overall strategic
and other key business, financial and operational policies of the
Group are made collectively after thorough discussion at both the
Board and senior management levels. Finally, as Dr. Gong Zhaolong
is our principal founder, the Board believes that vesting the roles of
both chairman and chief executive officer in the same person has
the benefit of ensuring consistent leadership within the Group and
enables more effective and efficient overall strategic planning for
the Group. The Board will continue to review the effectiveness of
the corporate governance structure of the Group in order to assess
whether separation of the roles of chairman and chief executive officer
is necessary.

Independent Non-executive Directors

During the Reporting Period, the Board has at all times fulfilled the
requirements of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at
least three independent non-executive directors representing one-third
of the board with one of whom possessing appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial management
expertise.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from
each of the independent non-executive Directors in respect of his
independence in accordance with the independence guidelines set
out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company is of the view that
all independent non-executive Directors are independent this year.
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Independent View

The Board has established mechanisms to ensure independent
views and input are available to the Board. The Board ensures the
appointment of at least three independent non-executive directors
and at least one-third of its members being independent non-
executive directors. Further, independent non-executive directors
will be appointed to committees of the Board as required under the
Listing Rules and as far as practicable to ensure independent views
and input are available. The Nomination Committee strictly adheres
to the independence assessment criteria as set out in the Listing
Rules with regard to the nomination and appointment of independent
non-executive directors, and is mandated to assess annually the
independence of independent non-executive directors to ensure that
they can continually exercise independent judgement. All Directors
may also obtain independent professional advice at the Company’s
expense for carry out their functions.

Appointment and Re-election of Directors

The executive Director has entered into a service contract with the
Company for an initial term of three years commencing from the
Listing Date, which are subject to termination in accordance with the

respective terms.

Each of the non-executive Directors has entered into a service contract
with the Company for an initial term of three years commencing from
the Listing Date, which are subject to termination in accordance with
their respective terms.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has entered into
a letter of appointment with the Company for an initial term of three
years commencing from the Listing Date and shall be subject to
retirement by rotation once every three years.

All Directors will hold office subject to provision of retirement and
rotation of directors under the Articles of Association. Pursuant to
the Articles of Association, at every annual general meeting of the
Company one-third of the Directors for the time being (or, if their
number is not three or a multiple of three, then the number nearest to
but not less than one-third) shall be subject to retirement by rotation
at least once every three years. Any Director required to stand for re-
election pursuant to Article 83(3) shall not be taken into account in
determining the number of Directors and which Directors are to retire
by rotation. A retiring Director shall retain office until the close of the
meeting at which he retires and shall be eligible for re-election thereat.
The Company at any annual general meeting at which any Directors
retire may fill the vacated office by electing a like number of persons
to be Directors.
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Accordingly, Mr. Liu Xinguang , Mr. Zhu Pai and Dr. Lin Tat Pang shall
retire by rotation and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at
the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.

Responsibilities, Accountabilities and Contributions of the Board
and Management

The Board should assume responsibility for leadership and control
of the Company and is collectively responsible for directing and
supervising the Company’s affairs.

The Board directly, and indirectly through its committees, leads and
provides direction to management by laying down strategies and
overseeing their implementation, monitors the Group’s operational and
financial performance, and ensures that sound internal control and

risk management systems are in place.

All Directors, including non-executive Directors and independent
non-executive Directors, have brought a wide spectrum of valuable
business experience, knowledge and professionalism to the Board for
its efficient and effective functioning. The independent non-executive
Directors are responsible for ensuring a high standard of regulatory
reporting of the Company and providing a balance in the Board for
bringing effective independent judgement on corporate actions and
operations.

All Directors have full and timely access to all the information of the
Company and may, upon request, seek independent professional
advice in appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s expenses, for
discharging their duties to the Company.

The Directors shall disclose to the Company details of other offices
held by them.

The Board reserves for its decision all major matters relating to policy
matters, strategies and budgets, internal control and risk management,
material transactions (in particular those that may involve conflict of
interests), financial information, appointment of directors and other
significant operational matters of the Company. Responsibilities
relating to implementing decisions of the Board, directing and
coordinating the daily operation and management of the Company are
delegated to the management.
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The Board has clearly set out the circumstances under which the
management should report to and obtain prior approval from the
Board before making decisions or entering into any commitments on
behalf of the Company. The Board regularly reviews the above said
circumstances and ensures they remain appropriate.

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance coverage on
Directors’ and officers’ liabilities in respect of any legal actions taken
against Directors and senior management arising out of corporate
activities.

Continuous Professional Development of Directors

Directors shall keep abreast of regulatory developments and changes
in order to effectively perform their responsibilities and to ensure that
their contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant.

Every newly appointed Director has received formal, comprehensive
and tailored induction on the first occasion of his/her appointment
to ensure appropriate understanding of the business and operations
of the Company and full awareness of Director’s responsibilities
and obligations under the Listing Rules and relevant statutory
requirements.

Directors should participate in appropriate continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills.
Internally-facilitated briefings for Directors would be arranged and
reading material on relevant topics would be provided to Directors
where appropriate. All Directors are encouraged to attend relevant
training courses at the Company’s expenses.

During the Reporting Period, the Company organized training
sessions for all Directors conducted by the legal adviser of the
Company. The training sessions covered a wide range of relevant
topics including directors’ duties and responsibilities, continuing
connected transaction, disclosure of interests and regulatory updates.
In addition, relevant reading materials including compliance manual/
legal and regulatory updates/seminar handouts have been provided to
the Directors for their reference and studying.
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The training records of the Directors for the year ended December 31,

2024 are summarised as follows:
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Attending training,
briefings, seminars,
conferences and
workshops relevant to
the Company’s industry
and business, director’s
duties and/or corporate

SEEABE

HZE2024F 12 A1 HILFEMESEEIIRE

Reading news alerts,
newspapers, journals,
magazines and
publications relevant to
the Company’s industry
and business, director’s
duties and/or corporate

governance governance
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Name of Directors BEEHR BENMEE RS R
Executive Director BITEE
Dr. Gong Zhaolong BjkEEE L Vv v
Non-Executive Directors HHITESE
Mr. Zhu Pai KAERE ) Vv
Mr. Zhou Feng A& vV Vv
Ms. Chen Yawen PRAEZ L+ v v
Independent Non-Executive Directors BV HHiTEE
Dr. Li Jin Li Jinf8+ vV Vv
Dr. Lin Tat Pang EEMREL vV V)
Mr. Liu Xinguang BlEkinE vV Vv
BOARD COMMITTEES EESZEg

BExgXRuUT=E%8g R

=
Bl
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o
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The Board has established three committees, namely, the Audit
Committee, the Remuneration Committee, the Nomination Committee,
each of which has been delegated responsibilities and reports back to
the Board. The roles and functions of these committees are set out in
their respective terms of reference. The terms of reference of each of
these committees will be revised from time to time to ensure that they
continue to meet the needs of the Company and to ensure compliance
with the CG Code where applicable. The terms of reference of the
Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee are available on the Company’s website and the Stock
Exchange’s website.
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Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises three members, including two
independent non-executive Directors, namely Dr. Lin Tat Pang and Dr.
Li Jin and one non-executive Director, namely Mr. Zhu Pai. Dr. Lin Tat
Pang is the chairman of the Audit Committee.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are of no less exacting
terms than those set out in the CG Code. The main duties of the
Audit Committee are to assist the Board in reviewing the financial
information and reporting process, risk management and internal
control systems, effectiveness of the internal audit function, scope
of audit and appointment of external auditors, provide advice and
comments to the Board and arrangements to enable employees of the
Company to raise concerns about possible improprieties in financial
reporting, internal control or other matters of the Company.

During the Reporting Period, the Audit Committee held six meetings
to discuss annual results for the year ended December 31, 2023,
interim results for the six months ended June 30, 2024, audit plan for
the year ended December 31, 2024, significant issues on the financial
reporting, operational and compliance controls, effectiveness of the
risk management and internal control systems and internal audit
function.

The Audit Committee considers that the annual financial results
for the year ended December 31, 2024 are in compliance with the
relevant accounting standards, rules and regulations and appropriate
disclosures have been duly made.

The Audit Committee also met the external auditors once without the
presence of the executive Director.
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Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee comprises three members, including
two independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Liu Xinguang
and Dr. Li Jin and one executive Director, namely Dr. Gong Zhaolong.
Mr. Liu Xinguang is the chairman of the Remuneration Committee.

The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are of
no less exacting terms than those set out in the CG Code. The
primary functions of the Remuneration Committee include making
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages
of individual executive Director and senior management, making
recommendations to the Board on the Company’s remuneration policy
and structure for all Directors and senior management; establishing a
formal and transparent procedure for developing remuneration policy
to ensure that no Director or any of his/her associates will participate
in deciding his/her own remuneration; and reviewing and/or approving
matters relating to share schemes under Chapter 17 of the Listing
Rules (as amended from time to time).

During the Reporting Period, the Remuneration Committee held two
meetings to review the remuneration policy and structure of the
Company and assessed the performance and remuneration packages
of the Directors and senior management, and made recommendations
to the Board, where appropriate.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee comprises five members, including three
independent non-executive Directors, namely Dr. Li Jin, Dr. Lin Tat
Pang and Mr. Liu Xinguang, one non-executive Director, namely Ms.
Chen Yawen and one executive Director, namely Dr. Gong Zhaolong.
Dr. Gong Zhaolong is the chairman of the Nomination Committee.

The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are of no less
exacting terms than those set out in the CG Code. The principal duties
of the Nomination Committee include reviewing the structure, size and
diversity required of the Board annually and making recommendations
on any proposed change to the Board to complement the Company's
corporate strategy; monitoring the implementation of diversity policy
for board members, and assessing the independence of independent

non-executive Directors.

During the Reporting Period, the Nomination Committee held one
meeting to discuss the nomination and appointment matters of
Directors, and review the structure, size and composition of the Board
and the independence of the independent non-executive Directors.
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In accordance with the Articles of Association, Directors shall be
elected by the general meeting with a term of three years and may
serve consecutive terms if re-elected. Any person appointed by the
Board to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition to the Board shall hold
office only until the next general meeting of the Company, and shall
then be eligible for re-election.

At the expiry of a Director’s term, the Director may stand for re-election
and re-appointment for further term. Subject to the compliance of
the provisions of the relevant laws and administrative regulations,
the general meeting of the Shareholders may dismiss by ordinary
resolution any Directors of whom the term of office has not expired
(the claim for compensation under any contracts shall however be not
affected).

The procedures for the appointment, re-election and removal of
directors are set out in the Articles of Association. The Nomination
Committee will identify individuals suitably qualified to become
directors and make recommendations to the Board on the selection of
individuals. The Nomination Committee will determine the composition
of board members based on a range of diversity perspectives,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge
and length of service. The Nomination Committee will also make
recommendations to the Board of Directors on the appointment or re-
appointment of directors and succession planning for directors (in
particular the Chairman of the Board of Directors and the general
manager), taking into account the Company’s corporate strategy
and mix of skills, knowledge, experience and diversity needed in the
future.

BOARD DIVERSITY AND WORKFORCE DIVERSITY

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy (the “Board Diversity
Policy”) which sets out the basic principles to be followed to ensure
that the board has the appropriate balance of skills, experience and
diversity of perspectives necessary to enhance the effectiveness of
the Board and to maintain high standards of corporate governance.
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The Directors have a balanced mixed of knowledge and skills,
including but not limited to overall business management, finance
and accounting, research and development, and investment. They
obtained degrees in various majors including public health and
toxicology, biotechnology, organic chemistry, economics, law and
history of science. Furthermore, our Board consists of six male
members and one female member. We will also continue to take steps
to promote gender diversity at all levels of our Company, including
but without limitation at our Board and senior management levels.
We target to maintain at least one suitable female candidate as a
Director for the Board’s consideration at all times. We are of the
opinion that we have achieved gender diversity on our Board and in
our senior management team in accordance with our Board Diversity
Policy. In particular, our chief financial officer and board secretary
are both females, they are responsible for supervising the financial
management and corporate governance in senior management team
as important roles. We will implement policies to ensure gender
diversity when recruiting staff to develop a pipeline of female
potential successors to the Board. Furthermore, we will implement
comprehensive programs aimed at identifying and training our female
staff who display leadership and potential, with the goal of promoting
them to the Board.

The Nomination Committee shall review the Board Diversity Policy and
the measurable objectives periodically, and as appropriate, to ensure
the continued effectiveness of the Board.

As of December 31, 2024, the Group’s total gender ratio is 68%,
representing 130 female employees out of 191 total employees
(including senior management). To support diversity in all areas, the
Group is strengthening its diversity and inclusion efforts through fair
hiring practices, policies and awareness-raising activities, and training
for all employees to support inclusive behavior.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for performing the functions set out in the
code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code.

During the Reporting Period, the Board had reviewed the Company’s
corporate governance policies and practices, training and continuous
professional development of directors and senior management, the
Company’s policies and practices on compliance with legal and
regulatory requirements, the compliance of the Model Code and
compliance manual, and the Company’s compliance with the CG Code
and disclosure in this Corporate Governance Report.

SEEABE

EEHABENABERREES - 2R
TRENBREEBER  MBEMG - HE
TRE - REESLAHABERTESE &
MM AR RER  ERMAME
SELEFEENBAL - I BRFINES
EEREANEEUEKRE R —BLMKE - &
MESEBRRER  ERFANZEREE
REMRNZHL  BEETERRMNE

$ﬁ&mﬁxﬁﬁ°ﬁﬁ%9ﬁ5%%$
REL-—ZEANRMEREAN HESFS

ZRAMAEE - BMRAE - BEEMD
ELLbBER  EEEENaRER
ExTERTMHRZEL - AEBWE B
MOEFEMHEENESSNEYI LM -
BREEEEPAEQRMBEEMD
XERNEZRE - RMBEECHREETIR

BEHEERERZTERBER - UWIFELE
EESSBUTHETIE - LI BMBERS
Hitdl BEBARFIRMEBEEES

RENNZEET BEBRRBKREEHE

=i
2 m

EHEEEZ TR
CATERREES

ol
=
o
m-%

HZE2024F 128318 » AEBEMER LA
568% F 191 BB THHH B 1308
BT (RERREBAR) BTXEHMA
EHMERYE  AEBEEEMARE LT
WiBBAFEBHE  BEEMRESREE
BURBIEAEEISZHARMTR -

TEERBAE
EECRENTLEENSR
HF R E B AE ©

SFRIFEA 2. 11E

REH EFESEETRANGEER
BERNEE BBENSREEAENEI
MHEBEZXEER  RRAYEEMERE

o BEFRREGRAFMOEFTER - N
AR CEEARATAUMACEE RS
FHEENETER

BHRAEHRHERIR —B-MNFFH

69



70

Corporate Governance Report

EEERBRE

ATTENDANCE RECORDS OF DIRECTORS AND

COMMITTEE MEMBERS

During the Reporting Period, the Company in accordance with code

provision C.5.1 of the CG Code, has adopted the practice of holding

Board meetings regularly with at least four times a year, and at

approximately quarterly intervals with active participation of majority

of the Directors, either in person or through electronic means of

communication.

The attendance records of each Director at the Board and Board

committee meetings of the Company held during the Reporting Period

are set out below:
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Audit Remuneration = Nomination
Board Committee Committee Committee General
meeting(s) meeting(s) meeting(s) meetings(s) meeting(s)
BEEg EREEE FHEES REZE®
Name of Director EEME =] =] =f ] =f ] BREXE
Executive Director BITEE
Dr. Gong Zhaolong ket 717 N/A 2/2 1/1 1/1
Non-Executive Directors FHITEE
Mr. Zhu Pai KERE 7/7 6/6 N/A N/A 1/1
Mr. Zhou Feng A%k % 717 N/A N/A N/A 1/1
Ms. Chen Yawen RIEZE 2+ 7/7 N/A N/A N/A 1/1
Independent Non-Executive B FE#1T
Directors EE
Dr. Li Jin Li Jinf§ £ 717 6/6 2/2 11 11
Dr. Lin Tat Pang EERE T 717 6/6 N/A N/A 11
Mr. Liu Xinguang 2l 77 N/A 2/2 1/1 1/1
Note: AR -

Notices of not less than 14 days will be given for all regular Board meetings to

provide all Directors with an opportunity to attend and include matters in the

agenda for a regular meeting. For other Board and Board committee meetings,

reasonable notice will be generally given.
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Board papers together with all appropriate, complete and reliable
information are sent to all Directors at least three days before each
Board meeting or committee meeting to keep the Directors apprised
of the latest developments and financial position of the Company and
to enable them to make informed decisions. The Board and each
Director also have separate and independent access to the senior
management whenever necessary.

The senior management attends all regular Board meetings and
where necessary, other Board and committee meetings to advise on
business developments, financial and accounting matters, statutory
and regulatory compliance, corporate governance and other major
aspects of the Company.

The company secretary is responsible for taking and keeping minutes
of all Board meetings and committee meetings. Draft minutes are
normally circulated to Directors for comment within a reasonable
time after each meeting and the final version is open for Directors’
inspection.

The Articles of Association contain provisions requiring Directors to
abstain from voting and not to be counted in the quorum at meetings
for approving transactions in which such Directors or any of their
associates have potential or actual conflicts of interests.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for the risk management
and internal control systems and reviewing their effectiveness.
Such systems are designed to manage rather than eliminate the
risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can only provide
reasonable but not absolute assurance against material misstatement
or loss.

The Board has the overall responsibility for evaluating and determining
the nature and extent of the risks it is willing to take in achieving the
Company’s strategic objectives, and establishing and maintaining
appropriate and effective risk management and internal control
systems.

The Audit Committee assists the Board in leading the management
and overseeing the design, implementation and monitoring of the risk
management and internal control systems.
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SEEABE

Below is a summary of the internal control policies, measures, and
procedures we have implemented:

The Company conducted, an annual audit of the internal controls
of each business department, a review on the effectiveness of the
risk management and internal control systems and considered
them effective and adequate. The audit included reviewing the
management of financial statements, sales and receivables,
purchasing and payment, fixed assets and intangible assets,
human resource, research and development, nature and extent
of significant risks (and the Company’s ability to respond to such
risks and changes). The audit procedures could be summarized
as below, including not limited:

0 Interview with responsible personnel;

o] Obtain and review the required documents;

o Test the design and operating effectiveness of the internal
control system.

The Company published the risk management and internal
control policies, measures and procedures to ensure that the
Company maintained reasonable and effective internal controls
and compliance with applicable laws and regulations. Besides,
the Company insisted on monitoring the implementation of
internal control policies, measures, and procedures, making sure
that they were the most updated version based on the current
business model.

The Company implemented the relevant internal control policies,
measures and procedures on the site and making quarterly and
annual regular inspections about the on-site implementation of
such policies, measures, and procedures for each stage of the
Company’s drug discovery and development process.

The Company adopted various measures and procedures
regarding each aspect of the Company’s business operation,
such as project management, quality assurance, environmental
protection, and occupational health and safety. The Company
provided the periodic training for the employees, which was one
part of Employee Training Program. The Company also required
the staff to carry out business activities in accordance with
relevant laws, regulations and Company policies by regularly
communicating updates and reminders through emails, staff
meetings.
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o The Company has developed internal policies that provide
general guide to the Company’s Directors, officers, senior
management and relevant employees in handling confidential
information, monitoring information disclosure and responding to
enquiries. Control procedures have been implemented to prevent

unauthorized access and use of inside information.

. The Company has also developed a risk management process
to identify, evaluate and manage significant risks and to resolve
material internal control defects. Senior management of the
Group is responsible for the risk reporting process. Risks
identified are documented and mitigation plans are devised. The
risk assessment is reviewed by certain members of the senior
management and presented to the Audit Committee and the
Board for their review.

o The Audit Committee had the responsibility for monitoring
the effectiveness of the risk management and internal control
systems. It is willing to take in achieving the Company’s strategic
objectives, and establishing and maintaining appropriate and
effective internal control systems.

WHISTLEBLOWING POLICY

The Company has adopted arrangement to facilitate employees and
other stakeholders to raise concerns, in confidence, about possible

improprieties in financial reporting, internal control or other matters.

The Audit Committee shall review such arrangement regularly and
ensure that proper arrangements are in place for fair and independent
investigation of these matters and for appropriate follow-up action.

INSIDE INFORMATION

The Company has developed its disclosure policy which provides a
general guide to the Company’s Directors, senior management and
relevant employees in handling confidential information, monitoring
information disclosure and responding to enquiries. Control
procedures have been implemented to ensure that unauthorised
access and use of inside information are strictly prohibited.
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DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in Appendix C3
to the Listing Rules as its own code of conduct regarding dealings in
the securities of the Company by the Directors. Having made specific
enquiries of all the Directors, all the Directors have confirmed that they
have complied with the required standards as set out in the Model
Code for the Reporting Period.

The Company’s relevant employees, who because of his/her office
or employment, are likely to be in possession of inside information of
the Company, are also subject to the Model Code. The Company is
not aware of any noncompliance of the Model Code by the relevant
employees of the Group during the Reporting Period.

To the best knowledge of the Company, on January 29 and 30, 2024,
the spouse of a non-executive Director acquired a total of 13,000
shares of the Company on the open market at the price of HK$6.16
and HK$5.84 per share respectively without notifying the Company
prior to such acquisition, with a total holding of 41,000 shares of
the Company. The relevant Director reported the non-compliance of
rule A.3(a) and B.8 of the Model Code was inadvertent and he and
his spouse had no intention to commit such breaches. The relevant
Director also confirmed that neither himself nor his spouse possess
any inside information of the Company when the dealing took place,
and he will apply closer scrutiny towards rule A.3(a) and B.8 of the
Model Code to avoid committing similar breaches in the future.

Upon becoming aware of the above incident, the Company has
immediately reminded the Directors and senior management again of
the requirements of the Model Code and the importance of compliance
with the Model Code. In order to ensure compliance with the Model
Code and prevent similar incidents in the future, the Company
will continue to provide regular training to the Directors, senior
management and staff of the Company so as to keep them abreast of
the relevant requirements. The Company will also circulate the Model
Code and remind the Directors to comply with the Model Code more
frequently, in addition to the reminders sent before the commencement
of each blackout period, to ensure compliance with and enhance their
awareness of good corporate governance practices.
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY IN RESPECT OF
THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
financial statements of the Company for the year ended December 31,
2024.

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and
understandable assessment of annual and interim reports,
announcements relating to disclosure of insider information and other
disclosures required under the Listing Rules and other statutory and
regulatory requirements.

The management has provided to the Board such explanation and
information as are necessary to enable the Board to carry out an
informed assessment of the Company’s financial statements, which
are put to the Board for approval.

The Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties relating to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern.

The statement of the independent auditor of the Company about their
reporting responsibilities on the consolidated financial statements is
set out in the Independent Auditor’'s Report of this annual report.
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SEEABE

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

The total fee payable to the external auditors of the Company, Modern
Assure CPA Limited, in respect of audit services and non-audit
services for the year ended December 31, 2024 is set out below:

S ETE

BARRQ AISNER IR B AT 2ok & R AN B IS AT
HZE2024F12 31 HILFEREHZE R
BRI EN B AEBEISHINT ¢

Fees Payable

Service Category RIS R EAERA

RMB’000

AREFT

Audit Services ZER T 2,100
Non-audit Services IEZE AR

— Interim review — R HIEE R 500

Total =1 2,600

JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES

Ms. Xia Fang (“Ms. Xia") and Ms. Li Ching Yi (“Ms. Li") were
appointed as the joint company secretaries of the Company.

Ms. Xia has been appointed as our joint company secretary on
June 25, 2021. She brings over 20 years of pharmaceutical industry
knowledge and management experiences. She has been the board
secretary since September 1, 2020. She is also a member of the
Hong Kong Investor Relations Association and a member of the
fourth (2022-2024) Professional Committee on China Pharmaceutical
Innovation and Research Development Association (PhIRDA).

Ms. Li has been appointed as our joint company secretary on June
25, 2021. Ms. Li is a senior manager of the Listed & Fiduciary
Corporate Services Department of Trident Corporate Services (Asia)
Ltd., a global professional services firm. She has over 10 years of
professional experience in company secretarial field. Ms. Li is an
associate member of The Chartered Governance Institute (formerly
known as The Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators)
in the United Kingdom and the Hong Kong Chartered Governance
Institute (formerly known as the Hong Kong Institute of Chartered
Secretaries). Ms. Li has assisted on the company secretarial matters
of the Company and has closely communicated with Ms. Xia.

During the year ended December 31, 2024, each of Ms. Xia and Ms.
Li have undertaken not less than 15 hours of relevant professional
training in compliance with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules during the
year ended December 31, 2024.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTORS/INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company considers that effective communication with
Shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations and investor
understanding of the Group’s business performance and strategies.
The Company also recognizes the importance of transparency
and timely disclosure of corporate information, which will enable
Shareholders and investors to make the best investment decisions.

The Company endeavours to maintain an on-going dialogue with
Shareholders and in particular, through annual general meetings
and other general meetings. The general meetings of the Company
provide a platform for communication between the Board and the
Shareholders. The chairman of the Board as well as chairmen of the
Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee or, in their absence, other members of the respective
committees, are available to answer Shareholders’ questions at
general meetings. The external auditor of the Company is also
invited to attend the annual general meetings of the Company to
answer questions about the conduct of audit, the preparation and
content of the auditor’s report, the accounting policies and auditor
independence.

To promote effective communication and to build a communication
channel between the Company and the Shareholders, the Company
adopts a Shareholders’ communication policy and maintains a website
(https://www.3d-medicines.com/), where information and updates on
the Company’s financial information, corporate governance practices,
biographical information of the Board and other information are
available for public access.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

To safeguard Shareholders’ interests and rights, separate resolution
should be proposed for each substantially separate issue at general
meetings, including the election of individual Director. All resolutions
put forward at general meetings will be voted on by poll pursuant to
the Listing Rules and poll results will be posted on the websites of the
Company and of the Stock Exchange after each general meeting.
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Procedures for Shareholders to Convene Extraordinary General
Meeting

Article 58 of the Articles of Association provides that general meetings
shall be convened on the written requisition of any one or more
members holding together, as at the date of deposit of the requisition,
shares representing not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of
the Company which carry the right of voting at general meetings of
the Company. The written requisition shall be deposited to the Board
or the Secretary of the Company to require an extraordinary general
meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction of any business
or resolution specified in such requisition. Such meeting shall be held
within two months after the deposit of such requisition.

If the Board does not within twenty-one days from the date of
deposit of the requisition proceed duly to convene the meeting,
the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do so in the same
manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s)
as a result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the
requisitionist(s) by the Company.

Procedures for shareholders to propose a person for election as a
director

For proposal of a person for election as Director, pursuant to Article 85
of the Articles of Association, no person shall, unless recommended
by the Board, be eligible for election to the office of Director at any
general meeting unless a Notice signed by a Member (other than
the person to be proposed) duly qualified to attend and vote at the
meeting for which such notice is given of his intention to propose
such person for election and also a Notice signed by the person to
be proposed of his willingness to be elected shall have been lodged
at the head office or at the Registration Office provided that such
Notices must be lodged with the Company at least fourteen days prior
to the date of the general meeting of election but no earlier than the
day after despatch of the Notice of the general meeting appointed for
such election.

Base on this, if a Shareholder wishes to propose a person (the
“Candidate”) for election as a Director at a general meeting, he/she
shall deposit a written notice at the Company’s principal place of
business in Hong Kong at 19th Floor, Golden Centre, 188 Des Voeux
Road Central, Hong Kong. The notice must (i) include the personal
information of the Candidate as required by Rule 13.51(2) of the
Listing Rules; and (ii) be signed by the Shareholder concerned and
signed by the Candidate indicating his/her willingness to be elected
and consent of publication of his/her personal information.
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Putting Forward Proposals at General Meeting

There are no provisions in the Articles of Association or in the
Companies Law of the Cayman lIslands for putting forward proposals
of new resolutions by Shareholders at general meetings. Shareholders
who wish to move forward a resolution may request the Company
to convene a general meeting in accordance with the procedures
mentioned above. For proposing a person for election as a Director,
please refer to the procedures set out in the preceding paragraph.

Putting Forward Enquiries to the Board

For putting forward any enquiry to the Board, Shareholders may send
written enquiries to the Company. The Company will not normally deal
with verbal or anonymous enquiries.

Shareholders may send their enquiries or requests as mentioned
above to the following:

Address: 7 Liangshuihe 1st Street, Building 3-6, Yizhuang Biomedical
Park, BDA, Beijing, China

Email: fang.xia@3d-medicines.com

For the avoidance of doubt, Shareholders must deposit and send the
original duly signed written requisition, notice or statement, or enquiry
(as the case may be) to the above address and provide their full
name, contact details and identification in order to give effect thereto.
Shareholders’ information may be disclosed as required by law.

Change in Constitutional Documents

On March 28, 2024, the Board proposed the amendment and
adoption of the amended and restated Memorandum and Articles
of Association in order to, among others, update and bring the
Memorandum and Articles of Association in line with the amendments
to the Listing Rules which mandate the electronic dissemination of
corporate communications by listed issuers to their securities holders
from December 31, 2023 onwards, as well as other housekeeping
changes (the “Amendments”). The Amendments were approved by
the shareholders and adopted at the annual general meeting of the
Company held on June 28, 2024. For details, please refer to the
circular of the Company dated June 5, 2024.
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SEEABE

Shareholder’s Communication Policy

The Company has in place a Shareholders’ Communication Policy
to ensure that Shareholders’ views and concerns are appropriately
addressed. The policy is regularly reviewed to ensure its effectiveness.
Under the Communication Policy, the annual shareholders’ meetings
and other shareholders’ meetings of the Company are the primary
forums for communication by the Company with its shareholders and
for shareholder participation. The chairman of the Board in person
chairs the annual general meeting to ensure Shareholders’ views are
communicated to the Board. Moreover, the briefing on the Company’s
business and the questions and answers session at the annual general
meeting allow Shareholders to stay informed of the Group’s strategies
and goals.

After the Board has reviewed the implementation and effectiveness of
the Communication Policy for the Reporting Period, the Communication
Policy was found to be effective and adequate.

Dividend Policy

Code provision F.1.1 of the CG Code provides that the issuer should
have a policy on payment of dividends. As the Company expects to
retain all future earnings for use in the operation and expansion of the
business and does not have any dividend policy to declare or pay
any dividends in the near future. The Board will review the Company’s
status periodically and consider adopting a dividend policy if and
when appropriate.

3D Medicines Inc. Annual Report 2024

REBBEHE
ARBHETRERBBEE - ABERER
MERNESSIEEHRR THEEX
BRARREARE - REBBBRE - 2
AIMNFERRREMEMBIEANSELQA
BEREANMBR2ENTIERE - EF
EREBIRRERBFRE  UBEREER
MERBERESRE - LI BRAAE
BHEBRMBERBFRENHERBER
SRR HIRE I I AR SR (B Y B RE TN B AR -

Ei%A%ETﬁiH}%WE BR B E i
MEMMER  BERBBRREZEARMED
) o

BB BE

EERTFRISFANEXFA1RTE « BITA
FEHIE IR B BUR - AR A RIEEBR
BETAARRKZEARERHELNER - I
BEAARBHEE MR EBRKRE M
FENEARE - ESSHTHEE QA
AR - I AE R BB R E B R B
= o



The Board is pleased to present its report together with the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Company for the year ended
December 31, 2024.

PRINCIPAL BUSINESS

The Company is an investment holding company and its subsidiaries
are principally engaged in the research and development of oncology
therapies for cancer patients, especially those who require long-term
care. An analysis of the Group’s revenue and operating results for the
year ended December 31, 2024 by its principal activities is set out in
note 5 to the consolidated financial statements of the Group.

Analysis of the principal activities of the Group during the Reporting
Period is set out in note 1 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended December 31, 2024 are
set out in the consolidated financial statements on pages 193 to 304
of this annual report.

DIVIDENDS DISTRIBUTION

During the year ended December 31, 2024, no dividends have been
paid or declared by the Company.

The Company intends to retain most, if not all, of the Company’s
available funds and any future earnings to fund the development and
growth of the Company’s business and has not yet adopted a dividend
policy to declare or pay any dividends in the near future.

The Board has discretion as to whether to distribute dividends, subject
to certain restrictions under Cayman Islands law and the Articles of
Association, namely that the Company may only pay dividends either
out of profits or share premium account, and provided always that in
no circumstances may a dividend be paid if this would result in the
Company being unable to pay its debts at they fall due in the ordinary
course of business. In addition, our Shareholders may by ordinary
resolution declare a dividend, but no dividend may exceed the amount
recommended by our Board. Even if our Board decides to declare and
pay dividends, the timing, amount and form of future dividends, if any,
will depend on, among other things, our future results of operations
and cash flow, our capital requirements and surplus, the amount of
distributions, if any, received by us from our subsidiary, our financial
condition, contractual restrictions and other factors deemed relevant
by our board of directors.
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The Board did not recommend the payment of a final dividend for the
year ended December 31, 2024.

TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION

The Directors are not aware of any tax relief and exemption available
to the Shareholders by reason of their holding of the Company’s
securities.

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The AGM of the Company will be held on Monday, June 30, 2025.
The notice of the AGM will be published and dispatched to the
Shareholders in due course in the manner as required by the Listing
Rules.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

In order to determine the entitlement to attend and vote at the
AGM, the register of members of the Company will be closed from
Wednesday, June 25, 2025 to Monday, June 30, 2025, both days
inclusive, during which period no transfer of Shares will be registered.
The record date for entittement to attend and vote at the AGM is
Monday, June 30, 2025. In order to be qualified to attend and vote at
the AGM, all completed transfers forms accompanied by the relevant
share certificates must be lodged for registration with the Company’s
branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services Limited,
at 17/F, Far East Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong no
later than 4:30 p.m. on Tuesday, June 24, 2025.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A fair review of the business and a discussion and analysis of
the Group’s performance during the year and the material factors
underlying its results and financial position as well as the outlook of
the Group’s business are provided in the “Management Discussion
and Analysis” on pages 15 to 47 of this annual report. Description of
the principal risks and uncertainties faced the Group can be found
throughout this annual report. Events affecting the Company that have
occurred since the end of the financial year are set out in the section
headed “Significant Events After the End of the Reporting Period” in
this annual report.
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In addition, more details regarding the Group’s performance by
reference to financial key performance indicators and environmental
policies, as well as compliance with relevant laws and regulations
which have a significant impact on the Group, are provided in the
“Management Discussion and Analysis” of this annual report. Each of
the above-mentioned relevant contents form an integral part of this
Report of the Directors.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

Our business involves certain risks as set out in the section headed
“Risk Factors” in the Prospectus. The following list is a summary of
certain principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group, some of
which are beyond its control.

o its ability to obtain additional financing to fund its operations;

. its ability to continuously succeed in the commercialization of
B4=® (Envafolimab, Subcutaneously-Injectable PD-L1), and
develop and commercialise its drug candidates;

o its ability to discovery, licence in, co-develop additional drug
candidates;

o its success in demonstrating safety and efficacy of its drug
candidates to the satisfaction of regulatory authorities or produce
positive results in its clinical trials;

. material aspects of the research, development and
commercialisation of pharmaceutical products being heavily
regulated;

o lengthy, time-consuming and inherently unpredictable regulatory
approval processes of the regulatory authorities for its drug
candidates;

o competition in the pharmaceutical industry where the Group

serves; and

. its ability to obtain and maintain patent protection for its drug
candidate.

However, the above is not an exhaustive list. Investors are advised
to make their own judgment or consult their own investment advisors

before making any investment in the Shares.
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ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

The Group is committed to fulfilling social responsibility, promoting
employee benefits and development, protecting the environment
and giving back to community and achieving sustainable growth.
An account of the Company’s key relationships with its employees,
customers and suppliers and others that have a significant impact on
the Company is set out in the “Environmental, Social and Governance
Report”.

COMPLIANCE WITH RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

As far as the Board and management are aware, the Group has
complied in all material aspects with the relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the business and operation of the
Group. During the Reporting Period, there was no material breach
of, or non-compliance with, applicable laws and regulations by the
Group.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the Company’s results, assets and liabilities for the last
five financial years are set out on page 14 of this annual report. This
summary does not form part of the audited consolidated financial
statements of the Group.

RELATIONSHIP WITH STAKEHOLDERS
Employees

As of December 31, 2024, the Group had 191 full-time employees,
who were based in Shanghai and Beijing, other cities of China and
u.s.

We recruit our employees based on a number of factors, including
work experience, educational background and the requirements of a
relevant vacancy etc.. We invest in continuing education and training
programs for our management staff and other employees to upgrade
their skills and knowledge continuously. We provide our employees
with regular feedback as well as internal and external training in
various areas, such as product knowledge, project development
and team building. We also assess our employees based on their
performance to determine their salary, promotion and career

development.
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In compliance with the relevant PRC labor laws, we enter into
individual employment contracts with our employees covering
matters such as terms, wages, employee benefits, workplace
safety, confidentiality obligations, non-competition and grounds
for termination. In addition, we are required under PRC laws to
make contributions to statutory employee benefit plans (including
pension plans, medical insurance, work-related injury insurance,
unemployment insurance, maternity insurance and housing funds) at
a certain percentage of our employees’ salaries, up to a maximum
amount specified by local governments.

We believe that we have maintained good working relationships with
our employees. During the year ended December 31, 2024, we were
not subject to any material claims, lawsuits, penalties or administrative
actions relating to non-compliance with occupational health and
safety laws or regulations, and had not experienced any strikes, labor
disputes or industrial actions which have had a material effect on our
business.

Customers

For the year ended December 31, 2024, the Group's five largest
customers accounted for 24.1%, as compared to 25.0% of the Group’s
total sales for the year ended December 31, 2023. The Group’s single
largest customer accounted for 5.8% of the Group’s total sales for the
year ended December 31, 2024, as compared to 7.2% for the year
ended December 31, 2023.

All of our five largest customers during the year ended December
31, 2024 are Independent Third Parties. So far as our Directors are
aware, none of the Directors or any of their close associates or any
Shareholders (which, to the knowledge of the Directors, own more
than 5% of total issued Shares of the Company), had any interests in
any of our five largest customers during the year ended December 31,
2024 and up to the date of this annual report.
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Suppliers

For the year ended December 31, 2024, the Group’s five largest
suppliers accounted for 88.2%, as compared to 82.7% of the Group's
total purchases for the year ended December 31, 2023. The Group’s
single largest supplier accounted for 48.1% of the Group’s total
purchase for the year ended December 31, 2024, as compared to
43.9% for the year ended December 31, 2023.

All of our five largest suppliers during the year ended December
31, 2024 are Independent Third Parties. So far as our Directors are
aware, none of the Directors or any of their close associates or any
Shareholders (which, to the knowledge of the Directors, own more
than 5% of total issued Shares of the Company), had any interests in
any of our five largest suppliers during the year ended December 31,
2024 and up to the date of this annual report.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during
the year ended December 31, 2024 are set out in note 26 to the
consolidated financial statements.

As at December 31, 2024, the issued share capital of the Company
was 258,207,000 shares.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group during the year
ended December 31, 2024 are set out on pages 204 to 205 in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity in this annual report.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at December 31, 2024, we did not have any distributable reserves.

BANK LOANS AND OTHER BORROWINGS

Particulars of bank loans and other borrowings of the Company as at
December 31, 2024 are set out in note 25 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the year ended December 31, 2024 are set out in note
14 to the consolidated financial statements.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

As at the date of this annual report and based on the information
publicly available to the Company and to the best knowledge of the
Directors, the Company has maintained the minimum public float of
25% as required under the Listing Rules.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under Articles of
Association or the laws of the Cayman Islands that would oblige
the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing
shareholders of the Company.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The Directors and senior management of the Company during the year
ended December 31, 2024 and up to the date of this annual report are

set out below:

EENRSREEAE
HE2024F12A31HILFEREEARAFE
HKEAH ARAREBELERERAEH
FIER

Name Position in the Company Appointment date of current term
i3] N o) A EREHNEERS
Directors
)
Dr. Gong Zhaolong Chairman, Executive Director, October 9, 2019
Chief Executive Officer, Key Founder

BlkEEL BER WOEF EFEVOTERIZABA 2019F10A9H
Mr. Zhu Pai Non-executive Director June 23, 2021
REFKAE FRTER 202156 A23H
Mr. Zhou Feng Non-executive Director October 9, 2019
B I 5 A= FRTER 2019410 A9A
Ms. Chen Yawen Non-executive Director July 12, 2022
BRMEE L FRTES 2022%7A12R
Dr. Li Jin Independent Non-executive Director June 25, 2021 (effective from the Listing Date)
Li Jinf§+ BUFNTES 2021564250 (8 £ BB AR
Dr. Lin Tat Pang Independent Non-executive Director June 25, 2021 (effective from the Listing Date)
HEREL BUNTES 2021564250 (8 £ B B4R
Mr. Liu Xinguang Independent Non-executive Director June 25, 2021 (effective from the Listing Date)
AfEkEE BUFNTES 202156 A250 (B £ B HE AR
Senior management
BREEAR
Dr. Gong Zhaolong Chief Executive Officer January 30, 2018
2SSk BEREHTE 201841 A30R
Mr. Ding Gan Chief Commercial Officer February 10, 2025
Tk BREAKE 202525108
Ms. Zhang Jing Chief Financial Officer August 28, 2020
R L BRIBE 202058 A28H
Ms. Xia Fang Board Secretary September 1, 2020
EFxut ExgiE 20209 H1H

Joint Company Secretary June 25, 2021

HEARWE 2021456 A25A

Head of Development Strategic and November 1, 2024

Cooperation Department

BRERESIETETA 202411818
Mr. He Yue Quality Assurance Executive Director August 1, 2019
Al f 5 & mEREERAE 2019%8H1H
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To the best of the Board’s knowledge, information and belief, save as
disclosed in this annual report, the Directors and senior management
do not have any relationship amongst them.

Biographical details of the Directors and senior management are set
out on pages 48 to 58 of this annual report.

SERVICE AGREEMENTS OF DIRECTORS

The executive Director has entered into a service contract with the
Company under which he agreed to act as an executive Director for
an initial term of three years with effect from the date of his service
contract or until the third annual general meeting of the Company
since the Listing Date (whichever is earlier). The service contract may
be terminated by not less than 30 days’ notice in writing served by
either the executive Director or the Company.

Each of the non-executive Directors has signed a letter of appointment
with the Company for an initial term of three years with effect from the
date of his/her letter of appointment or until the third annual general
meeting of the Company since the Listing Date (whichever is earlier).
The letters of appointment may be terminated by not less than 30
days’ notice in writing served by either the non-executive Directors or
the Company.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has signed a letter
of appointment with the Company for a term of three years with effect
from the date of his letter of appointment or until the third annual
general meeting of the Company since the Listing Date (whichever
is earlier). The letters of appointment may be terminated by not less
than 30 days’ notice in writing served by either the independent non-
executive Director or the Company.

The appointment of Directors is subject to the provisions of retirement
and rotation of Directors under the Articles of Association.

None of the Directors has or is proposed to have a service contract
which is not determinable by the Company or any of its subsidiaries
within one year without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).

INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT NON-
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received from each of the independent non-
executive Directors an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers
all of the independent non-executive Directors to be independent and
remain so as of the date of this annual report.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

As at December 31, 2024, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and the chief executive of the Company in the Shares,
underlying Shares and debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO)
which had been notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests
and short positions which they were taken or deemed to have taken
under such provisions of the SFO), or which were recorded in the

ESVERITERRDG - A
BB 10 B RAR R Y R am TR
B

M2024F 128318 - AARIEZEREEH
TERARRISEREREEE (&R F
HREIERGIZEXVED) 2k - ARG &

BERETHEENRIEER R EIEGEXV
%%Mmﬂimﬁ§¢ A B ASEBR AT
ZHERRXE (BERSREZSFRBERK
ﬂZE@IYﬁ*%%ﬁW%ﬁZ%ﬁ&
KR RIREEF R ERNE 3521678

register required to be kept pursuant to section 352 of the SFO or as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant

to the Model Code were as follows:

Interests in Shares and underlying Shares of the Company

RAZGAR BNz # s
ESP R ARG A RE RB BT

Qe
ZHEEKARIT

Kok SR

RAR TR R EER G H S

Total number of

Shares/underlying

Approximate
percentage of
shareholding
interest in the

Name of Director Capacity/Nature of interest Shares held® Company (%)™
FriEmRe 1E 2 RIRER
EERE B Ry R B EHO BB D (%)
Dr. Gong Interest of controlled corporation @ 35,992,364 (L) 13.94%
Bt REAEER?
Interest held through voting powers 38,338,040 (L) 14.85%
entrusted by other persons ®
FRHEMATRANRERERE
Bz
Beneficial owner® 2,760,056 (L) 1.07%
ERAANO
Mr. Zhu Pai Interest held through voting powers 13,717,381 (L) 5.31%
KESLE entrusted by other persons
FRHEMATRANRERERE
Bk @
Interest of the spouse ©® 41,000 (L) 0.02%
[N 2]
Beneficial owner © 100,000 (L) 0.04%
ERAA®
Mr. Zhou Feng Beneficial owner © 150,000 (L) 0.06%
JEI& 5% A ERAA®
Ms. Chen Yawen Beneficial owner © 100,000 (L) 0.04%
PRIEZELZ L EmEaA®
Dr. Li Jin Beneficial owner © 100,000 (L) 0.04%
Li Jinf§+ EnfAAN®
Dr. Lin Tat Pang Beneficial owner © 100,000 (L) 0.04%
EEEE L EnfAAN®
Mr. Liu Xinguang Beneficial owner © 100,000 (L) 0.04%
BlEHkE EnfAAN®
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Notes:

(1

As at December 31, 2024, the Company had issued 258,207,000 Shares
in total. The letter “L” denotes the person’s long position in the Shares.

Dr. Gong is the sole director and sole shareholder of Dragon Prosper
Holdings Limited and is deemed to be interested in the Shares held by
Dragon Prosper Holdings Limited.

Immunal Medixin US Limited and certain other entities are share incentive
platforms managed by KASTLE LIMITED as trustee, who, in accordance
with the trust deed, acts in accordance with Dr. Gong’s instructions when
exercising voting rights attached to the Shares held by itself. Dr. Gong is
deemed to be interested in the Shares held by the trustee of the Immunal
Medixin US Limited.

Shenzhen Efung is interested in our Shares through its affiliate, Shanghai
Zhenlu Enterprise Management Consulting Partnership (Limited
Partnership). Shenzhen Efung’s executive partner is Shenzhen Efung
Investment Management Enterprise (L.P.), which is in turn owned as
to 51% by Shenzhen Efung Holding. Shenzhen Efung Holding is in
turn owned as to 54% and 23% by Mr. Zhu Jingiao and Mr. Zhu Pai
respectively. Mr. Zhu Jingiao and Mr. Zhu Pai shall act in concert in
relation to the exercising of their voting rights in Shenzhen Efung Holding.
Accordingly, each of Shenzhen Efung, Shanghai Zhenlu Enterprise
Management Consulting Partnership (Limited Partnership), Shenzhen
Efung Investment Management Enterprise (L.P.), Shenzhen Efung Holding,
Mr. Zhu Pai and Mr. Zhu Jingiao are deemed to be interested in the Shares
held by Shanghai Zhenlu Enterprise Management Consulting Partnership
(Limited Partnership).

Ms. Zhang Ni, spouse of Mr. Zhu Pai, owns 41,000 Shares in total. Mr. Zhu
Pai is deemed to be interested in the Shares held by Ms. Zhang Ni.

On April 5, 2024, certain number of share options were granted to each
Director under the share option scheme adopted by the Company on
June 26, 2023. For further details, please refer to the announcement of the
Company dated April 5, 2024.

Save as disclosed above, as at December 31, 2024, none of the
Directors of the Company had or was deemed to have any interest or
short position in the Shares, underlying Shares or debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of the SFO) which was required to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV
of the SFO (including interests and short positions which they were
taken or deemed to have taken under such provisions of the SFO), or
which were required to be recorded in the register to be kept by the
Company under Section 352 of the SFO, or which were required to
be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code.
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258,207,000 %% - TRI[L] KRB A
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HIRR 17 A A
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RYEREBLEBROEEELAANER
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

As at December 31, 2024, to the best knowledge of the Directors or
chief executives of the Company, the following persons (not being
a Director or chief executive of the Company) had interests or short
positions in the Shares or underlying Shares which fall to be disclosed
to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV
of the SFO as recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company pursuant to section 336 of the SFO:

Interests in Shares and underlying Shares of the Company

FERRREORABRG W

BERKXE

M2024F 12318  BARESKEFEHR
TEFA - LTAB GERRZESLEFEH
B)ERBELSRASKRIEXVIBE2R
3D AR TEARA R AHERRD K48
RGP REEZIORE  ZEEEIA
BRBEARBREESRPEIEHEI36
IRBEBTRERRP

D

RAERXRRS REERDHER

Total number of

Shares/underlying

Approximate
percentage of
shareholding
interest in the

Name of Shareholder Capacity/Nature of interest Shares held® Company (%)™
R EAEREN
RREEE8B 513 Rty HERGEARO  BHABE DL (%)
Simcere Pharmaceutical Group Limited Beneficial owner 23,047,468 (L) 8.93%
EBEEEEFR AT BEnEBA
Dragon Prosper Holdings Limited Beneficial owner @ 35,992,364 (L) 13.94%
EHEHAO
Immunal Medixin US Limited Beneficial owner © 19,143,360 (L) 7.41%
EmBAA®
KASTLE LIMITED Trustee @ 19,143,360 (L) 7.41%
FHAQ
Shanghai Zhenlu Enterprise Beneficial owner ¢ 13,717,381 (L) 5.31%
Management Consulting
Partnership (Limited Partnership)
FETECEEREAGEEE EmBEAAY
(BRER)
Shenzhen Efung Ruishi Investment Interest in controlled 13,717,381 (L) 5.31%
Enterprise (Limited Partnership) Corporation @
(“Shenzhen Efung”)
RYTREEERECE (BRE®) RiEEREEY
(MRYIMFEED)
Shenzhen Efung Investment Interest in controlled Corporation ¥ 13,717,381 (L) 5.31%

Management Enterprise (L.P.)
AN FEREBTECE (BRER)
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Name of Shareholder

Capacity/Nature of interest

Total number of
Shares/underlying
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Approximate
percentage of
shareholding
interest in the

Shares held™ Company (%)™

Frismim EARRER
BREE S EB B REmME HEARGAEY  BABEDIL(%)O
Shenzhen Efung Holding Co., Ltd. Interest in controlled Corporation 13,717,381 (L) 5.31%
(“Shenzhen Efung Holding”)
R EEEREEERAR S AE RS
(MRYIMEmeER )
Zhu Jingiao Interest held through voting powers 13,717,381 (L) 5.31%
entrusted by other persons
KER FREMATEZENIREEREE
R @
Notes: B3

As at December 31, 2024, the Company had issued 258,207,000 Shares
in total. The letter “L” denotes the person’s long position in the Shares.

Dr. Gong is the sole director and sole shareholder of Dragon Prosper
Holdings Limited and is deemed to be interested in the Shares held by
Dragon Prosper Holdings Limited.

Immunal Medixin US Limited and certain other entities are share incentive
platforms managed by KASTLE LIMITED as trustee, who, in accordance
with the trust deed, acts in accordance with Dr. Gong’s instructions when
exercising voting rights attached to the Shares held by itself. Dr. Gong is
deemed to be interested in the Shares held by the trustee of the Immunal
Medixin US Limited.

Shenzhen Efung is interested in our Shares through its affiliate, Shanghai
Zhenlu Enterprise Management Consulting Partnership (Limited
Partnership). Shenzhen Efung’s executive partner is Shenzhen Efung
Investment Management Enterprise (L.P.), which is in turn owned as
to 51% by Shenzhen Efung Holding. Shenzhen Efung Holding is in
turn owned as to 54% and 23% by Mr. Zhu Jingiao and Mr. Zhu Pai
respectively. Mr. Zhu Jingiao and Mr. Zhu Pai shall act in concert in
relation to the exercising of their voting rights in Shenzhen Efung Holding.
Accordingly, each of Shenzhen Efung, Shanghai Zhenlu Enterprise
Management Consulting Partnership (Limited Partnership), Shenzhen
Efung Investment Management Enterprise (L.P.), Shenzhen Efung Holding,
Mr. Zhu Pai and Mr. Zhu Jingiao are deemed to be interested in the Shares
held by Shanghai Zhenlu Enterprise Management Consulting Partnership
(Limited Partnership).

M2024F12A31H » "RARHEETT
258,207,000 % & - TRI[L] KRB A
THRBRGBETAE -

BEf§+2Dragon Prosper Holdings
Limited ®)ME —Z EMME—fRE - WK A
#Dragon Prosper Holdings Limited¥4&
KR A o

Immunal Medixin US Limited flH b —4k
B2 2HKASTLE LIMITEDE B ARG
BEFEAEATZTIA  REEAEN &
TEEMBARMHTNREERIZRE
BEHIERITE - BEIWE A Immunal
Medixin US Limited3 st A 4A KI5
A o

FIEEER EIMBECXETREZANEY
TE(EREE) REMORMHPEEE
e AARIBEATREBEERKAL
EoRIEHRIIEEITERS4% Rk 23% IR
- mRIIE SR IZERFEARYIFENRTT
EBEANRINTARERETECE (ARG
B)o1%iEs  c REREERKFELLERE
BEATER ARG EIERORE R —
BiTE - Ft - RINEE - EEWmBEE
ERFZEANCELE(ARAER)  RYImE
BREAEECE (ARE%)  AlEEE
B REAEMAEBREEABREAY L
BOEECETEANEGBLE (ARER)
REMRNDES#ERS -

BHRAEHRHERIR —B-MNFFH
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Save as disclosed above, as at December 31 2024, the Company had
not been notified by any other persons (other than the Directors of
the Company) who had an interest or short position in the Shares or
underlying Shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed
under Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were required
to be entered in the register required to be kept by the Company
pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as otherwise disclosed in this annual report, at no time during
the year, was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any
arrangement that would enable the Directors to acquire benefits by
means of acquisition of Shares in, or debentures of, the Company or
any other body corporate, and none of the Directors or any of their
spouses or children under the age of 18 were granted any right to
subscribe for the equity or debt securities of the Company or any
other body corporate or had exercised any such right.

ISSUANCE OF DEBENTURES

During the year ended December 31, 2024, no issuance of debentures
was made by the Company.

NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKING

The Single Largest Shareholder Group, namely Dragon Prosper
Holdings Limited, Immunal Medixin Cino L. Limited, Immunal Medixin
Cino Limited, Immunal Medixin US Limited and Dr. Gong, provided a
Non-Competition Undertaking in favour of the Company on November
23, 2022, pursuant to which they undertook not to, either directly or
indirectly, compete with the Company’s business, which includes
novel drug development for cancer treatment (the “Restricted
Activities”). The Single Largest Shareholder Group further irrevocably
undertaken in the Non-Competition Undertaking that, during the term
of the Non-Competition Undertaking, they will not, alone or with a
third party, in any form, directly or indirectly, engage in, participate in,
support to engage in or participate in any business that competes, or
is likely to compete, directly or indirectly, with the Restricted Activities.

Each of the Single Largest Shareholder Group has provided to the
Company a written confirmation in respect of his/its compliance with
the Non-Competition Undertaking during the year ended December
31, 2024.
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DIRECTORS’
BUSINESSES

To the knowledge of the Board, none of the Directors or their close

INTERESTS IN COMPETING

associates (as defined in the Listing Rules) had any interests in any
business which competes or is likely to compete, directly or indirectly,
with the businesses of the Group for the year ended December 31,
2024, which would require disclosure under Rule 8.10 of the Listing
Rules.

CONTINUING DISCLOSURE OBLIGATIONS
PURSUANT TO THE LISTING RULES

Save as disclosed in this annual report, the Company does not have
any other disclosure obligations under Rules 13.20, 13.21 and 13.22
of the Listing Rules.

CHANGES IN DIRECTORS’ INFORMATION

Save as disclosed in this annual report, the Company is not aware of
any changes in Directors’ information that is required to be disclosed
pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of the related party transactions entered into by the Company
during the year ended December 31, 2024 are set out in note 33
to the consolidated financial statements, which are not regarded
as connected transactions under the Listing Rules. There was no
connected transaction nor continuing connected transaction of the
Group which has to be disclosed in accordance with the Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules during the Reporting Period.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

No Director or an entity connected with a Director was materially
interested, either directly or indirectly, in any transaction, arrangement
or contract which is significance in relation to the business of the
Group to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries or fellow
subsidiaries was a party during the Reporting Period.

CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

No contract of significance was entered into between the Company, or
one of its subsidiary companies, and a controlling Shareholder or any
of its subsidiaries during the year ended December 31, 2024.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the year ended December 31, 2024
between the Company and a person other than a Director or any
person engaged in the full-time employment of the Company.

DIRECTORS’ PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover for Directors’
and officers’ liabilities in respect of legal actions arising out of
corporate activities against the Directors and officers of the Company
and its associated companies during the year ended December 31,
2024.

Except for such insurances, at no time during the year and up to the
date of this annual report, there was or is, any permitted indemnity
provision being in force for the benefit of any of the directors of the
Company or associated companies.

STAFF, EMOLUMENT POLICY AND DIRECTORS’
REMUNERATION

Our Directors’ remuneration is determined with reference to
the relevant Director’s experience and qualifications, level of
responsibility, performance and the time devoted to our business, and
the prevailing market conditions.

In compliance with the relevant PRC labor laws, we enter into
individual employment contracts with our employees covering matters
such as terms, wages, bonuses, employee benefits, workplace
safety, confidentiality obligations, non-competition and grounds for
termination. The remuneration package of our employees includes
salary and bonus, which are generally based on their qualifications,
industry experience, position and performance. We consider the
remuneration package of our employees to be competitive among
our domestic competitors. We, by ourselves or through third-party
human resource agencies, make contributions to social insurance
and housing provident funds for our employees as required by the
applicable PRC laws and regulations, and did not have any material
non-compliance in this regard during the year ended December 31,
2024.
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The Remuneration Committee was set up for reviewing the Group’s
policy and structure for all Directors and senior management
remuneration and on the establishment of a formal and transparent
procedure for developing remuneration policy.

Details of the emoluments of the Directors and five highest paid
individuals for the year ended December 31, 2024 are set out in
note 9 to note 10 to the consolidated financial statements. During
the Reporting Period, no emoluments were paid by the Group to any
Directors or any of the five highest paid individuals as an inducement
to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office.
For the year ended December 31, 2024, none of the Directors has
waived or agreed to waive any emoluments.

The table below shows the emolument of senior management by band:
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Emoluments Range s E 2024

2024 F
Less than HK$ 500,000 A H500,000/8 70 1
HK$ 1,000,001 to HK$ 1,500,000 1,000,001,87C% 1,500,000/8 7T 1
HK$ 2,500,001 to HK$ 3,000,000 2,500,001 7L £ 3,000,000/8 7T 1
HK$ 3,500,001 to HK$ 4,000,000 3,500,001 JLE 4,000,000/8 7T 1
HK$22,500,001 to HK$23,000,000 22,500,001 7T E 23,000,000 7T 1
Total &5t 5

SHARE INCENTIVE SCHEME
RSU Scheme

The RSU Scheme was adopted by the Company on June 22, 2021
and subsequently amended on June 26, 2023. Details of the RSU
Scheme are set forth in Appendix IV “D. Share Incentive Scheme” in
the Prospectus of the Company dated November 29, 2022 and the
circular of the Company dated June 2, 2023.

The following is a summary of the principal terms of the RSU Scheme.
Capitalized terms used but not otherwise defined in this section have
the meaning given to those terms in the above documents.
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(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Purpose of the RSU Scheme

The purposes of the RSU Scheme is to recognize and motivate
the contributions by the Participants and give incentives thereto
in order to retain them, as well as to attract suitable personnel for
further development of the Company.

Participants of the RSU Scheme

The participants of the RSU Scheme are (i) any full-time and part-
time employees or officers (including executive, non-executive
and independent non-executive directors) of the Company or
any of its subsidiaries; (ii) any person or entity (including but
not limited to Consultants) that provides research, development,
consultancy and other technical or operational or administrative
support to the Company; and (iii) any other persons including
former employees who, in the sole opinion of the ESOP
Department, have contributed or will contribute to the Company

or any of its subsidiaries.

Duration and Administration

The RSU Scheme shall be valid and effective for the period of
ten years commencing on the adoption date of the RSU Scheme
(the “Term”). The provisions of this Scheme shall remain in full
force and effect and Awards that are granted during the Term
may continue to be exercisable in accordance with their terms of
issue. The remaining life of the RSU scheme as of December 31,
2024 is approximately 6.47 years.

This Scheme shall be subject to the administration of the ESOP
Department and the decision of the ESOP Department shall
be final and binding on all parties. The ESOP Department may
appoint independent trustee (the “Trustee”) to assist with the
administration and vesting of the Awards.

Grant and Acceptance of Awards

On and subject to the terms of the RSU Scheme and the terms

and conditions (e.g. the period of service, position, loyalty,
contribution to the Company of the Company and service term
upon being granted RSU) that the ESOP Department imposes,
the ESOP Department shall be entitled at any time during
the life of the Scheme to grant certain number of RSU(s) to
any Participant, as the ESOP Department may in its absolute

discretion determine.
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(e)

A Grant shall be made to a Participant by a letter and/or any
such notice or document in such form as the ESOP Department
may from time to time determine, which shall, among other
things, address the terms and conditions of such Award. Any
grant of an Award to any director, chief executive or substantial
shareholder of any member of the Group, or any of their
respective associates (as defined in the Listing Rules), shall be
subject to the prior approval of the independent non-executive
directors (excluding the independent non-executive director who
is the proposed Grantee of the Awards in question) and shall
otherwise be subject to compliance with the requirements of the
Listing Rules. If a Participant accepts the Award, he or she shall
pay a nominal consideration of RMB1.00 as the Award Price and
execute non-competition and non-disclosure agreements with the
Group to accept the Awards granted to such Participant.

Vesting Period

The Award(s) shall be vested in accordance with the vesting
schedule set out below, subject to the satisfaction of performance
condition in relation on the relevant Grantee(s) as determined
by the ESOP Department at its the sole discretion as set out in
each of the Notice of Grant, which may also be adjusted and
redetermined by the ESOP Department from time to time.

(e)
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Maximum percentage
of underlying Shares
in respect of the
Awards may be vested

ERTEBRBN
Vesting date EEAH HERAFEESEST
Last day of the 12th month from the Grant Date BRHAHEE1I2EANSZE X 25%
Last day of the 24th month from the Grant Date EEHBHRFE24EANEE X 50%
Last day of the 36th month from the Grant Date EREBEHREIEANRE—K 75%
Last day of the 48th month from the Grant Date ARHBEREAEANRE—K 100%
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For the purposes of vesting of the RSU(s), the ESOP Department
may release the RSU(s) to the selected Participants by
transferring the number of underlying Shares in respect of the
RSUs to the selected Participants in such manner as determined
by it from time to time. The ESOP Department shall inform the
Trustee the number of underlying Shares in respect of the RSU(s)
being transferred and released to the selected Participant in the
manner as determined by the ESOP Department. Upon fulfillment
or waiver of the vesting period and vesting conditions (if any)
applicable to each of the Grantees, a vesting notice (the “Vesting
Notice”) will be sent to the Grantee by the ESOP Department or
by any other means as determined by the ESOP Department in
its sole discretion from time to time, the Grantee is required to
execute, after receiving the Vesting Notice.

If the vesting conditions are not satisfied and no waiver of such
the RSU shall be cancelled according
to conditions as determined by the ESOP Department in its

condition is granted,

absolute discretion. In the event that the Grantee fails to execute
the required documents within three months after receiving the
Vesting Notice, the vested RSU(s) will lapse.

For the avoidance of doubt, all RSUs under the RSU Scheme
were vested prior to the Listing.

Restrictions on Grant of Awards

No Grant shall be made to, nor shall any Grant be capable of
acceptance by, any Participant at a time when the Participant
would or might be prohibited from dealing in the Shares by any
applicable rules, regulations or laws. A Grant must not be made
after a price sensitive event has occurred or a price sensitive
matter has been the subject of a decision until such price
sensitive information has been announced in accordance with
the requirements of the Listing Rules.
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(9)

Where any Award is proposed to be granted to a director of any
members of the Group, it shall not be granted on any day on
which the financial results of the Company are published and
during the period of: (a) sixty (60) days immediately preceding
the publication date of the annual results or, if shorter. the period
from the end of the relevant financial year up to the publication
date of the results; and (b) thirty (30) days immediately
preceding the publication date of the quarterly results (if any)
and half-year results or, if shorter, the period from the end of the
relevant quarterly or half-year period up to the publication date
of the results.

For the avoidance of doubt, all RSUs under the RSU Scheme
were granted and vested prior to the Listing.

Maximum Limits

The Shares with respect to the RSU(s) that may be delivered
under this Scheme will be the Company’s issued 38,338,040
Ordinary Shares which are held by trustee entity for the purpose
of the RSU Scheme (the “Scheme Limit”),
approximately 14.8% of the Shares in issue as at December 31,

which represents

2024. The overall limit on the number of Shares which may be
granted and yet to be exercised under the RSU Scheme of the
Company at any time must not exceed the Scheme limit.

Pursuant to Rules 17.12(2) and 17.05A of the Listing Rules, the
trustee of the RSU Scheme will abstain from voting in respect of
unvested shares it holds on matters that require Shareholders’
approval under the Listing Rules in the future.

A Participant may be granted an Award under this Scheme
provided that such participation will be subject to such limits
and conditions as the ESOP Department may determine in its
absolute discretion. There is no maximum entitlement for each
Participant under the rules of the RSU Scheme.

(9)
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As of December 31, 2024, the particulars of the RSUs granted
under the RSU Scheme are as follows:

HE2024F12A31H * REZREH
AR 17 B AL 5T &% A IR 6l AR (0 B

ZEHEIT

Lapsed during  Cancelled during Exercised during

Asat  theyearended  theyearended the year ended As of
Exercise price January 1, December 31, December 31, December 31, December 31,
Date of grant (HK$) 2024 20240 2024 2024 2024
REBE2024F  REZ204F  REZ0UEF
e R2024% 12A31AL 12A31AL 12A31AL BZ2025
RHEH (B1) 1B1R FE%HO FEHE EEFR 128318
Dr. Gong 2ET September 21, 22078 5,384,031 0 0 0 5,384,031
20210 0.001 0 0 0 0 0
20215
9A2180
October 22, 2.2078 3,238,782 0 0 0 3,238,782
20222 0.001 0 0 0 0 0
20228
10A228@
Employees &2 September 30, 2.2078 2,048,750 (162,500) 0 0 1,886,250
20210 0.001 1,234,826 (115,000) 0 0 1,119,826
20215
9A30A0
Total a3t 11,906,389 (277,500) 0 0 11,628,889
Notes: MfsE -

1. The vesting schedule for these RSUs is: 100% to be vested prior to

the Listing.

2. The vesting schedule for these RSUs is: 100% to be vested on the

date of grant.

3. As a result of the departure of certain employees, 277,500 RSUs

lapsed during the Reporting Period.

4. No RSUs were exercised during the Reporting Period.
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Please refer to the Prospectus for further details of the RSU Scheme.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company adopted the Share Option Scheme on June 26, 2023,

the principal terms of which are disclosed in the circular of the
Company dated June 2, 2023.

The following is a summary of the principal terms of the Share Option

Scheme. Capitalized terms used but not otherwise defined in this

section have the meaning given to those terms in the above circular.

(a)

(b)

Purpose of the Share Option Scheme

The Share Option Scheme is established to enable the Group
to: (a) recognize and acknowledge the contributions that
Eligible Participants have or may have made or may make to the
Group (whether directly or indirectly); (b) attract and retain and
appropriately remunerate the best possible quality of Employees
and other Eligible Participants; (c) motivate the Eligible
Participants to optimize their performance and efficiency for the
benefit of the Group; (d) enhance its business and employee
relations; and/or (e) retain maximum flexibility as to the range
and nature of rewards and incentives which the Group can offer
to Eligible Participants.

Duration and Administration

The Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effective for a
period of ten (10) years commencing on the Effective Date, after
which no further Options may be offered or granted under this
Scheme but the provisions of this Scheme shall remain in full
force and effect to the extent necessary to give effect to the
exercise of any Options granted prior thereto or otherwise as
may be required in accordance with the terms and conditions of
this Scheme.

The Share Option Scheme shall be subject to the administration
of the Board, whose decision shall (save as otherwise provided
in the Share Option Scheme) be final and binding on all parties.
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(c)

(d)

Participants of the Share Option Scheme

The eligible participants are the Category A Participants and
the Category B Participants. A Category A Participant refers to
any director of the Company or any of its subsidiaries or any
employee employed by any member(s) of the Company (whether
full time or part time), including persons who are granted Options
under the Share Option Scheme as an inducement to enter into
employment contracts with any of such companies. A Category
B Participant refers to a person who provides services to the
Company and its subsidiaries on a continuing and recurring
basis in its ordinary and usual course of business which are in
the interests of the long-term growth of the Group, and fall into
any of the following categories, provided that placing agents or
financial advisers providing advisory services for fundraising,
mergers or acquisitions, and auditors or valuers who provide
assurance or are required to perform their services with
impartiality and objectivity shall be excluded. The criteria for
determining their eligibility are set out in the paragraphs headed
‘2. Who May Join and Eligibility Criteria” in Appendix Ill to the
circular of the Company dated June 2, 2023.

Grant and Acceptance of Options

Subject to the terms of the Share Option Scheme, the Board
shall be entitled at any time on a business day within 10 years
commencing on the Effective Date to make an Offer to any
Eligible Participant as the Board may in its absolute discretion
select. An Offer shall be made to an Eligible Participant in writing
on a business day in such form as the Board may from time to
time determine. An Offer shall be deemed to have been accepted
when the Company receives a duplicate Offer letter duly signed
from the Grantee together with a remittance of HK$1.00 (or such
other nominal sum in any currency as the Board may determine)
in favor of the Company as consideration for the grant thereof.
Such remittance shall in no circumstances be refundable. Once
accepted, the Option shall be deemed to have been granted
as from the date on which it was offered to the relevant Eligible
Participant. No Offer shall be capable of or open for acceptance
after the expiry of ten (10) years from the Effective Date.
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(9)

(h)

Vesting Period

the vesting period of the Options which shall not be less than
12 months, save and except that Options to be granted to a
Category A Participant may be subject to a vesting period of
less than 12 months (or no vesting period) in the circumstances
prescribed in the paragraph headed “5. Grant and Acceptance
of Options” in Appendix Il to the circular of the Company dated
June 2, 2023.

Exercise Price

The Exercise Price in respect of any particular Option under the
Share Option Scheme shall be a price determined by the Board
and stated in the Offer letter, which shall be at least the higher
of: (a) the closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange'’s daily quotations sheet on the date of the Offer; (b)
the average closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange's daily quotations sheets for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of the Offer; and (c) the nominal
value of a Share.

Exercise of Option

Subject to the Applicable Laws and as provided in the
paragraphs headed “9. Exercise of Option” in Appendix Il to
the circular of the Company dated June 2, 2023, an Option may
be exercised by the Grantee at any time during the applicable
exercise period, which is the period not more than ten (10)
years from the commencement date notified by the Board to
each Grantee which the Board may in its absolute discretion

determine.

Maximum Limits

Subject to the terms and conditions in the Share Option Scheme,
(a) the total number of Shares which may be issued in respect
of all options and awards to be granted under the Share Option
Scheme and any other awards or options schemes shall not, in
aggregate, exceed 25,605,700 Shares, which represents 10.0%
of the Shares in issue as at the adoption date of the Share
Option Scheme; and (b) the total number of Shares which may
be issued in respect of all options and awards to be granted
to all Category B Participants under the Share Option Scheme
in aggregate, exceed 3,840,855
Shares, which represents 1.5% of the Shares in issue as at the
Adoption Date and 10.0% of the Scheme Mandate Limit. The
maximum number of Shares to which each Participant is entitled

and Other Schemes shall not,

shall be subject to any shareholders approval requirement as
required under the Listing Rules.

()

(9)

(h)
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Grant of Options to Connected Persons

Without prejudice to the terms and conditions stipulated in the
terms of the Share Option Scheme: (a) any grant of Options
to a Director, chief executive or substantial shareholder of
the Company, or any of their respective associates shall be
approved by the independent non-executive Directors (excluding
any independent non-executive Director who is the proposed
Grantee of such Options); and (b) where any grant of Options
to an independent non-executive Director or a substantial
shareholder of the Company or any of their respective associates
would result in the Shares issued and to be issued in respect of
all options and awards granted under the Share Option Scheme
or Other Schemes (excluding any Options lapsed in accordance
with the terms of the Share Option Scheme) to such person in
the 12-month period up to and including the date of such grant
representing in aggregate over 0.1% of the Shares in issue, such
further grant of Options shall be approved by the Shareholders
in general meeting. The Company shall send a circular to its
shareholders containing such information as required under the
Applicable Laws and Rules 17.04(5). The relevant Grantee, his or
her associates and all core connected persons of the Company
shall abstain from voting in favor at such general meeting. The
Company shall comply with the requirements under Rules 13.40,
13.41 and 13.42 of the Listing Rules.

Termination

The Company by resolution in general meeting or the Board may
at any time terminate the operation of the Share Option Scheme
and in such event, no further Options may be offered or granted
under the Share Option Scheme but the provisions of the Share
Option Scheme shall remain in full force and effect to the extent
necessary to give effect to the exercise of any Options granted
prior to the termination or otherwise as may be required in
accordance with the terms and conditions of the Share Option
Scheme. The remaining life of the Share Option Scheme as of
December 31, 2023 is approximately 8.32 years.
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Granted

during the

Asat  year ended

Exercise  January 1, December 31,
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Lapsed Cancelled Exercised
during the during the during the
year ended

yearended  year ended As of

December 31, December 31, December 31, December 31,

Date of grant® price (HK$)® 2024 20242 2024 2024 20249 2024
REZ04F REBZ04F RMEZNUE REZNUEF

Name and category ~ 2HABZER ®2024%  12A31AL  12A31AL  12A31HLE  12R31AL H20245
of participant B5l RiHAHO @Y 1418 EERT® EEXN EERH EETRY 12A31R
Directors Ez
Dr. Gong Bk April 5, 2024 6.096 0 2,490,056 0 0 0 2,490,056
Mr. ZHU Pai KA April 5, 2024 6.096 0 100,000 0 0 0 100,000
Mr. ZHOU Feng A& April 5, 2024 6.096 0 100,000 0 0 0 100,000
Ms. CHEN Yawen RER April 5, 2024 6.096 0 100,000 0 0 0 100,000
Dr. LIN Tat Pang B April 5, 2024 6.096 0 100,000 0 0 0 100,000
Or. LI Jin Dr. LHJin April 5, 2024 6.096 0 100,000 0 0 0 100,000
Mr. LIU Xinguang EIEp April 5, 2024 6.096 0 100,000 0 0 0 100,000
Otheremployees  EAtfEE April 5, 2024 6.096 0 9712794 (156,785) 0 0 955600
Total 5t 12,802,850 (156,785) 0 0 12,646,065
Notes: e
1. Subject to a vesting period of over 4 years with vesting scale in 1. FERBRBBIFHEBHZH 8%

tranches of 25% each per annum starting from the first anniversary
of the Date of Grant and fully vested in the 4th anniversary of the
Date of Grant.

2. 156,785 Options lapsed during the Reporting Period.
3. No Options were exercised during the Reporting Period.

4. The closing price of the shares immediately prior to the date on
which the options were granted was HK$5.790 per share.

As 12,802,850 options were granted during the Reporting Period
under the Share Option Scheme, the calculation under Rule
17.07(3) (being the number of Shares that may be issued in
respect of options and awards granted under all schemes of the
Company during the Reporting Period, divided by the weighted
average number of Shares in issue (excluding treasury Shares
for the Reporting Period) is 5.22%.

For additional details of the share options granted by the
Company under the Share Option Scheme, please refer to the
Company’s announcement on the respective date of grant.
Additional details regarding the fair value measurements and the
accounting policy adopted are set out in note 29 to the notes to
the consolidated financial statements.
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EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

No equity-linked agreement was entered into by the Company at any
time during or subsisted at the end of the year ended December 31,
2024.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

The donations made by the Group during the year ended December
31, 2024 amounted to RMB107.1 million. This amount consists of
our donation of RMB103.2 million worth of B##® and cash RMB3.9
million to a non-profit charitable organization that supports cancer
patients for charitable purposes.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES OR SALE OF TREASURY SHARES

During the year ended December 31, 2024, the Company repurchased
a total of 30,000 shares of the Company on the Stock Exchange
at an aggregate consideration of approximately HK$175,250. The
repurchase was effected for the enhancement of shareholder value in
the long term. Particulars of the shares repurchased are as follows:

R R 89 175 3

HZE2024F12A31HILFE » KRAFIKRE
HEZE EREE &S5 4

% g

P — ) ~B

EEHE2024F12 A31BILFEENIBRA
ARBAI07TABEL  ZEBRESHEELSHM
M—RAEREEERHEEDNIEL TR
ZHEBRETEBARKI103.2BELHNE
HECRIBEARKIOAET  UXEARQ

<

B

BE - - HEIER EmES

HZE2024F12A31HIEFE + KRFEFE
HRX 5 FTEIME T 30,000 ARG - A%
BH /1752508 - IR AT RERES
IRFEE - BEROOAEERNT :

Price Paid per Share

BRERK

No. of Shares Aggregate

Month of Repurchase Repurchased Highest Lowest Consideration

=88 A 47 =1 B IR 19 21 ERESER EREEE®K &3t

(HKS) (HKS) (HKS)

(%) (%) (B#)

January 10,000 5.83 5.83 58,300
—A

February 20,000 5.85 5.85 116,950
—A

Save as disclosed above, during the Reporting Period, neither the
Company nor any of its subsidiaries or consolidated affiliated entities
has purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed
securities or sold any treasury shares (as defined under the Listing
Rules). As at December 31, 2024, the Company did not hold any
treasury shares (as defined under the Listing Rules).
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USE OF NET PROCEEDS FROM LISTING

The 255,642,000 Shares were listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange by way of Global Offering on December 15, 2022, and the
total net proceeds received by the Company from the Global Offering
(excluding the proceeds from the partial exercise of the Over-allotment
Option) amounted to approximately HK$251.1 million after deducting
professional fees, underwriting commissions and other related listing
expenses.

The 415,000 Shares in connection with the partial exercise of the Over-
allotment Option were listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
on January 11, 2023, and the additional net proceeds (together with
the total net proceeds from the Global Offering, the “Net Proceeds”)
received by the Company amounted to approximately HK$10.4 million
after deducting professional fees, underwriting commissions and other
related listing expenses.

The intended uses and the balance of the total net proceeds from
the Global Offering (including the proceeds from the partial exercise
of the Over-allotment Option) as at December 31, 2024 are set out
below:
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EFERE

FHRERERENAR
255,642,000 8% 1772 2022F 12 15 H B
BEREEEHIMERLT - EHKBE
¥EH pEAekEMBABLETEE -
RRAREEHEERSNMBRIEFEE
B(TRESSTEBEERENSENR
B) 4 AB251ABEEBT °

BRI T{E B R AL AR E R B M 415,000 i% A%
PHR2023FE1 A1 B EBZ IR LT -
EHMBREEER  REASREMERLE
ME%  KRRESHEMAEREBFE
(BRZHREEMSNBFHEAE  #E
[FI8FIEFE]) HA104888T -

R2024FE12A31 8 » 2B EMESREF
HAE (BT B RENTER
I8) K#E AR REBETINT

Total net
proceeds from
the Global Utilised
Offering ~ amount during
(including the the period
proceeds from from
the partial January 1, Utilised Unutilised Expected
Percentageto  exercise of the 2024t0  amountasat  amountas at time frame
total amount  Over-allotment ~ December 31, ~ December 31,  December 31,  for unutilized
% Option) 2024 2024 2024 amounts
RREE 20245
fresuERE 1A1RZ L] K
ERREN  sE(aERs 20245 20245 20245
Intended use of proceeds as stated in the ARERFRFEE ARl GERERRE 12A31A 12A31A 12A%8  RBRAGEN
Prospectus RERE % MATEHE) EBRENE EBENE ABAZE EARER
(RMB'O0D)  (RMB'00)  (RMB'00D) (RMB'000)
(AR®Trn)  (AR%fn)  (AR¥TR)  (AR%Tn)
(a) Research and development, regulatory filngs () EmAlEEEMAME -
and commercialization of our productand drug ~ EERERFE Dec 2025
candidates: 90 209,635.1 81,570.8 179,413.2 30,221.9 025F12R
() BEiE® envafolimab (i) BiEe(BAHENR) Dec 2025
55 128,110.3 71,773.0 128,110.3 - 025F128
(i) other drug candidates (i) EtEEED Dec 2025
% 58,2320 9,023.2 47,163.1 11,068.9 025%12
(i) the construction of our in-house production  (iil) BB T &£ M
faciliies in Xuzhou, Jiangsu province TRAPEERER
and procurement of new machineries, REMRE  G8A Dec 2025
instruments and equipment Ea 10 232928 7746 41398 19,153.0 20255121
(b) General corporate and working capital (b) —REEREEELAS Not applicable
puUrposes 10 23,2928 = 23,2928 - TR
Total &t 100 232,921.9 81,570.9 202,706.0 30,221.9
BRBEARGERAT —Z-WEFH
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The Group will utilize the Net Proceeds in accordance with the
intended purposes as set out in the Prospectus. The Board is not
aware of any material change to the planned use of the Net Proceeds
as at the date of this annual report.

USE OF NET PROCEEDS FROM THE 2023
PLACING

On July 21, 2023, an aggregate of 2,150,000 new shares were issued
at a price of HK$108.00 per share to not less than six professional,
institutional or other investors that are Independent Third Parties (the
“2023 Placing”) pursuant to the placing agreement (the “2023 Placing
Agreement”) dated July 14, 2023, representing approximately 0.83%
of the enlarged issued share capital of the Company immediately
following the 2023 Placing. The placing price per share was
HK$108.00, and the net price per share for the subscription after
deducting related costs and expenses was approximately HK$105.2
per share. The net proceeds raised from the 2023 Placing were
approximately HK$226.8 million. The intended uses and the balance
of the total net proceeds from the 2023 Placing as at December 31,
2024 are set out below:

AEBEBBRERRERABBER LA
FEFEFE BEAFEREAH &
EFWTAEBEMEFIRFEEE BB OE
MEBREE -

2023 FMEMESRIBFENA
®

2023%7H21H ' RIEHEA202347 A
14 S ([2023FEEWEHE]) &
HATIRANEBHE  BEXBBIE=
F R E AR E E RSN 108.008 LK
{B1%%172,150,000 % #TR% 17 ([ 2023 &£ &
€ HERARARNRER2023FRER
BIEABBITRAL0.83% - BRAMDHE
EEA108.00/8 7T » AN BRI A &
FAXENEREHIBBEFIENAETRE
13105.2/8 7T ° 2023 F Ac S EE M5 5818
FREK /226 8EEABIT c 2024512
318 ' 2023 FEEMAMERIBFHEMETEN
BERRMGEENT ¢

Utilised amount

during the period Utilised Unutilised
Total net from January 1, amount amount Expected
Percentage to proceeds  Change of 2024 to as at asat time frame
total amount  from the 2023 allocation of December 31,  December 31, ~ December 31, for unutilized
(%) Placing proceeds 2024 2024 2024 amounts
B0
1B1AZ
8%E  025RE AAUE HENUE  BEAUE
NEDL HFEHE fiesE 12A318 12A318 128318 ABRARAE
Intended use of proceeds fEREtEE Rz % FHEAE FEIERSE BHARE BHARE ABRRE  NEANER
(RMB'000)  (RMB'000) (RMB'000)  (RMB'00D)  (RMB'000)
(AR¥TR) (AR¥TR) (AR¥Tr) (AR®TR) (AR%Tn)
Planned clinical trials to evaluate (a) FHBRFERER Dec, 2025
envafolimab monotherapy BN EERAR 50 103,686.4 (96,000.0) 34122 37017 39648 2005%12A
Planned clinical Trial in NSCLC (b) HTEIBARHBNSCLCE
Perioperative Regimens - KNO35- Fiighg Dec, 2026
CN-017 -KNO35-CN-017 = 96,000.0 1,123,610 1,123.6 948764 2006512
Building construction and procurement  (c) &R ESNHEE
of equipment for our manufacturing REMETRERRE Dec, 2025
facilities in Xuzhou, China e 40 82,949.2 - - - 829492  2005F12R
Our general corporate and working ~~ APf—RE24EASRS Not applicable
capital purposes 10 20,7373 = = 20,737.3 - Byl
Total &t 100 207,372.9 - 4,535.9 25,582.6 181,790.3
Note: FtsE -

(1): Denotes the amount utilized from December 19, 2024 (being the date
when the change of use of proceeds announcement was announced) to

December 31, 2024.
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FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS
AND CAPITAL ASSETS

Save as disclosed in this annual report, we do not have other plans for
material investments and capital assets.

ADOPTION OF CHINESE NAME AND CHANGE
OF STOCK SHORT NAME

The Board announced that the adoption of “BiEEHRNDAERA
7]” as the dual foreign name in Chinese of the Company has become
effective. The Chinese stock short name of “BR@BELRGL" for
trading of the Shares on the Stock Exchange became effective from
9:00 a.m. on August 5, 2024. The English stock short name of “3D
MEDICINES” and the stock code of “1244" of the Company and other
trading arrangements in relation to the Shares will remain unchanged.
For details, please refer to the announcements of the Company dated
June 3, 2024 and July 30, 2024, and the circular of the Company
dated June 5, 2024.

CHANGE OF AUDITOR

Ernst & Young retired as auditor of the Company at the annual
general meeting of the Company held on June 28, 2024. With the
recommendation of the Audit Committee, Modern Assure CPA Limited
was appointed as the new auditor following Ernst & Young’s retirement
and to hold office until the conclusion of the AGM. For details, please
refer to the announcement and circular of the Company, both dated
June 5, 2024.
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SIGNIFICANT EVENTS AFTER THE END OF THE
REPORTING PERIOD

On January 15, 2025, the Company received a civil ruling issued
by the Qingdao Intermediate People’s Court (F&MHHARZER),
Shandong Province, People’s Republic of China. At the request of
Qingdao Hainuo Investment Development Co., Ltd. (& B/&#EE %
EARAF]) (“Qingdao Hainuo”), the court ordered the freezing of
bank deposits totaling approximately RMB458.5 million or the seizure
of other assets of equivalent value belonging to 3D Medicines (Hong
Kong) Co., Ltd. (BEBER I (FH)BR2AA), Integral Lane Holding
Ltd., our Director Gong Zhaolong, 3D Medicines (Shanghai) Co., Ltd.
(BREmAEYES(E)8)BMRAR), and 3D Medicines (Qingdao) Co.,
Ltd. (BRBEEE(FE)AMRAF]), 3D Medicines (Beijing) Co., Ltd. (&
(b R) BRI AR A A]), Jiangxi Keruida Medicines Co., Ltd. (JT
MRIREE AR A F]), 3D Medicines (Xuzhou) Co., Ltd. (%N B E& i
BEARAE]), WuYi (Hainan) Cultural Media Co., Ltd (BE(&mB)X
{bEHEBREMTAF]), 3D Medicines (Sichuan) Co., Ltd. (P9Il BE&E
B AR AR)). For details, please refer to the announcement of the
Company dated January 24, 2025. On March 19, 2025, the Company
entered into a letter of intent for strategic cooperation, subject to
formal agreement, with Qingdao Hainuo.

Mr. Ding Gan (7 ) was appointed as the chief commercial officer
of our Company, primarily responsible for work related to product
commercialization. For details, please refer to the announcement of
the Company dated February 10, 2025.

On March 25, 2025, the Company completed the cancellation of the
aggregate 30,000 ordinary shares previously repurchased in 2024.

Save as disclosed above, as of the date of this annual report, the
Group had no significant events after the Reporting Period.

There is no material subsequent event undertaken by the Company or
the Group after the Reporting Period and up to the date of this report.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
CODE

The Company is committed to maintaining high corporate governance
standards. Information on the corporate governance practices
adopted by the Company is set out in the Corporate Governance
Report on pages 59 to 80 of this annual report.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee, together with the management and the external
auditor, had reviewed the accounting policies and practices adopted
by the Group as well as the internal control matters, and had also
reviewed the Group’s consolidated financial statements for the year
ended December 31, 2024.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended
December 31, 2024 have been audited by Modern Assure CPA
Limited.

Modern Assure CPA Limited shall retire and being eligible, offer itself
for re-appointment, and a resolution to this effect shall be proposed at
the AGM.

By order of the Board

3D Medicines Inc.

Dr. Gong Zhaolong

Chairman of the Board and Executive Director

Hong Kong, March 31, 2025
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RiE - HERERRS

ABOUT THE REPORT

Reporting Period

This Environmental, Social and Governance (ESG) Report (hereinafter
referred as the “Report”) covers the period from January 1 to
December 31, 2024, with some content moderately extended
forward and backward. The reporting period covered in the Report is
consistent with that of our annual report.

Entity Scope

The entity scope covered in the Report is consistent with that of our
annual report, including 3D Medicines Inc. and its subsidiaries.

Basis of Preparation

The Report is prepared in accordance with the provisions of
Appendix 27 Environmental, Social, and Governance Reporting Guide
(hereinafter referred to as the “Guide”) to the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and
a summary of its major amendments. The Report has been reviewed
and approved by the Company’s Board of Directors (the “Board”).
Readers can refer to the last chapter of the Report — “Appendix: Index
to the Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited” for quick reference.

Data Source

All the qualitative and quantitative information used in the Report
originates from public information, internal documents, and relevant
statistical data of 3D Medicines.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Preparation Principle

The Report considers the importance, quantification, balance, and
consistency of specific indicators related to performance disclosure on
major ESG topics. Importance: Identify and rank important topics for
stakeholders through policy and standard analysis and communication
with stakeholders; Quantification: All key performance indicators
(“KPIs”) disclosed can be measured; Balance: Objectively present the
Company’s work in ESG in the Report; Consistency: The ESG report
in this year adopts the same data disclosure method as previous
years and compares data from different years, and lists changes in
statistical methods and key performance indicators.

Reference Help

For ease of expression and reading, 3D Medicines Inc. is also referred
to as “the Company” or “we” in the Report. Unless otherwise defined,
the terms and definitions used in the Report have the same meaning
as those used in the 2024 annual report.

Release Form

The electronic version of the Report is available at the HKEX website
(www.hkex.com.hk) and the official website of 3D Medicines Inc.
(https://www.3d-medicines.com/).
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MESSAGE FROM THE CHAIRMAN

With the increasing attention and further development of ESG
principles, the company has integrated environmental, social, and
governance initiatives into daily operations as a key focus in 2024.
We remain committed to sustainable development, guided by our
vision of “helping patients live longer and better lives.” Centered on
patient needs, we constantly explore superior treatment options while
establishing a top-tier innovative pharmaceutical enterprise that is

friendly to both the environment and society.

The company is dedicated to establishing a comprehensive ESG
management system. The Board of Directors serves as the ultimate
decision-making body for ESG matters, with the Board Office
overseeing strategy implementation. An ESG Task Force has been
formed to execute and deepen the practical application of ESG
management.

Innovation and R&D remain the driving forces of our sustainable
development. Focusing on the chronic disease management
of cancer, we strive to provide patients with more effective,
convenient therapies and improved treatment options earlier. This
year, we achieved breakthroughs in cutting-edge research areas
including mRNA cancer vaccines and radiopharmaceuticals. Our
commercialized product B#EE® received recommendations in four
additional clinical treatment guidelines, gained inclusion in multiple
regional healthcare insurance programs, and provided medication
assistance through charitable donations and various channels,
enhancing drug accessibility while reducing patient burdens.

Patient responsibility represents the most critical social obligation
for pharmaceutical companies. We have further strengthened our
Quality Management System to ensure systematic oversight of R&D,
production, and sales processes across our operations and supply
chain partners, effectively controlling product risks. Through multiple
platforms and third-party suppliers, we actively gather patient
feedback to provide medication guidance and ensure safe, proper
drug usage.

Collaborative partnerships form a cornerstone of our development
philosophy. In 2024, we established global full-industry-chain
collaborations with leading domestic and international innovative
pharmaceutical companies, spanning R&D, production, and
commercialization. Notably, we signed a USD700 million overseas
licensing agreement with multinational pharmaceutical distributor
Glenmark to advance B ##®'s development and commercialization in

emerging markets.
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Employees constitute the foundation of corporate creativity and
growth. We maintain people-oriented policies through fair and
transparent recruitment, employment, and career development
mechanisms. The company provides comfortable working
environments, regular health checkups, and commercial medical
insurance. We proactively support employee health and safety through
fitness initiatives, fire drills, and emergency evacuation training. To
recognize staff contributions, we hosted an annual summit in early
2024 featuring outstanding employee awards, team-building activities,
and exploration trips designed to boost morale and collaboration.
Regional branches organized cultural and sports events including
Beijing relay marathons, Shanghai food festivals, and Guangzhou
tug-of-war competitions, fostering learning cultures through reading
clubs and recognition programs.

We uphold ethical operations through enhanced risk and internal
control management. Anti-corruption initiatives and dedicated
compliance supervision departments have been established.
Procurement processes have been optimized with transparent
management systems, tripartite price comparisons, and

market-oriented purchasing practices.

Our green environmental management system minimizes ecological
impacts from R&D and production operations. Advanced wastewater
treatment and exhaust emission systems ensure safe discharge
management, complemented by waste liquid recycling programs
that conserve resources and reduce costs. We actively address
climate change by identifying related opportunities and challenges,
implementing energy conservation measures to build an eco-friendly
society.

Moving forward, we will continue pursuing our overarching ESG goal
of building an environmentally and socially responsible sustainable
enterprise. By balancing stakeholder interests, focusing on key
priorities, strengthening ESG oversight and target-setting, and
conducting regular reviews, we will systematically plan, implement,
monitor, and refine ESG management across all operational

dimensions.
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COMPANY PROFILE

3D Medicines Inc. (“3D Medicines”, Stock Code: 1244 .HK) is a
foreign-invested private innovative pharmaceutical company in
the commercialization phase, dedicated to the chronic disease
management of cancer treatments. Guided by its vision of “Help
people with cancer live longer and better”, the company focuses on
developing next-generation anti-tumor therapies and was successfully
listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange Main Board in 2022. As the
first listed company specializing in cancer treatment chronic disease
management on HKEX, it once achieved a market capitalization
exceeding HK$34 billion. The company’s pipeline comprises 12
innovative drugs with differentiated clinical value or global-leading
potential, including 8 candidates in clinical development or
commercialization stages. Notably, B###® — the world’s first
subcutaneously administered PD-L1 single-domain antibody - has
been approved by China’'s NMPA for three years, generating over
RMB2 billion in sales revenue. This breakthrough therapy has brought
new hope and improved quality of life for tens of thousands of
Chinese cancer patients and their families. 3D Medicines maintains
forward-looking positioning in global-leading research programs
including antibody immunotherapy, mRNA cancer vaccines, and
radio-pharmaceuticals. Leveraging its proprietary mRNA R&D platform,
internationally patented LNP technology, and Al-driven tumor genomic
big data analytics platform, the company is developing a series of
mRNA products. lIts first pan-cancer vaccine is scheduled for dual
China-U.S. regulatory submissions this year. Concurrently, its in-house
developed radio-pharmaceuticals are advancing to the pre-clinical
stage. The company has established full-cycle capabilities spanning
from drug discovery, pre-clinical research, clinical development, to
regulatory approval and commercialization. Three subsidiaries have
been recognized as National High-Tech Enterprises. In 2024, 3D
Medicines was honored with the “ESG Social Responsibility Pioneer
Enterprise Award” by CLS. Committed to patient-centric innovation,
3D Medicines continues to develop differentiated therapeutics with
significant clinical value.

Vision: Help people with cancer live longer and better
Positioning: Leader in helping chronic tumor patients
Mission: Prolong the life span of cancer patients and improve
the quality of their life
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R&D platform

The Company has a professional R&D platform in the field of
managing tumor as a chronic disease, on which we can carry out
a series of R&D activities including drug activity screening, drug
cell function study, drug biochemical study and biomolecule
detection.

The Company’'s R&D platform has strong molecular screening
and design capabilities to increase the success rate of molecules
from preclinical study to market, and support the R&D of pipeline
assets built around key pathways and targets.

We have established mature R&D centers in Shanghai and
Beijing respectively, including large and small molecular
platforms, cell line screening platforms, and compound
screening platforms.Based on the needs of our innovative R&D
initiatives, we have newly established a synthesis and screening
platform for ionizable cationic lipids — the key component in lipid
nanoparticles (LNP) — to support the development of our nucleic
acid drug pipeline.

We have established our own mRNA R&D platform and
oncogenome big data Al analysis platform, With the powerful
functions of these two platforms, a series of mMRNA products are
developed.

Product pipeline

We have established a diversified pipeline layout including
13 products and candidate drugs. Among them, Envafolimab
Injection was approved for commercialization in China in
November 2021. Currently, multiple pivitol Phase Il clinical
studies are underway, including those for non-small cell lung
cancer, cholangiocarcinoma and so on.

Relying on our in-house mRNA research and development
platform, tumor genome big data Al analysis platform, as well
as our independently developed efficient and safe lipid delivery
system, we have successfully developed a series of mRNA
candidate drugs. The first non-personalized mRNA therapeutic
cancer vaccine is about to file for an Investigational New Drug
(IND) application this year.
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We also possess radiolabeled conjugate drugs at the pre-

clinical stage. Preliminary pre-clinical data indicate their potential

superiority over currently marketed similar products. Moreover,

our pipeline encompasses diverse small-molecule targeted

drugs, single/bispecific antibodies, immune checkpoint inhibitors,

and peptide vaccines, spanning multiple stages of cancer

treatment, from early to late.

We are dedicated to developing innovative drugs, aiming to

address unmet clinical needs and offer more hope and choices

to cancer patients.
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Major Events in 2024
January

In January, 2024, 3D Medicines and Jiangsu Alphamab (the
‘Licensors”), and Glenmark (the “Licensee”) entered into
a license agreement (the “License Agreement’), pursuant
to which, the Licensors agreed to grant the Licensee an
exclusive license and the right to sublicence in respect
of oncology indications of Envafolimab, among others, (a)
develop Envafolimab in India, Asia Pacific (except Singapore,
Thailand and Malaysia), Middle-east and Africa, Russia, the
Commonwealth of Independent States and Latin America
(the “Territory”) for the purpose of commercialization in all
field of use in oncology (the “Field”) in the Territory; and (b)
commercialize Envafolimab in the Field in the Territory, subject
to the terms and conditions of the License Agreement. The
Licensee will develop and commercialize Envafolimab in the

Field in the Territory at its own cost and expense.

B 4= was registered and listed with the Macau Pharmaceutical
Administration. In January 2024, B#3=® was successfully
registered and listed with the Macau Pharmaceutical
Administration Bureau for the treatment of adult patients with
advanced solid tumors that are unresectable or metastatic
with high microsatellite instability (MSI-H) or mismatch repair
deficiency (dMMR).
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On January 26, 2024, the signing ceremony of the strategic
cooperation between the Company and Qingdao Sino Cell
Biomedicine Co, Ltd. (“Sino-Cell Biomed”) was held in
Shanghai, China. Dr. Gong Zhaolong, Chairman of the Board
and CEO of the Company, and Mr. Gao Qing, Chairman of the
Board of Directors of Sino-Cell Biomed, entered into the strategic
cooperation agreement. The agreement aims to facilitate joint
research efforts in innovative therapy within the field of oncology
immunotherapy, leveraging the respective advantages of both
parties. The agreement aims to jointly research innovative
therapies in the field of tumor immunotherapy based on their
respective advantages, explore new cooperation models, and
provide better treatment options for cancer patient
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February

On February 21, 2024, 3D Medicines Inc. and Novatim strategic
cooperation signing ceremony was held in Shanghai, which
aims to explore the combination of BE#:E® (Envafolimab) and
KY-0118. In addition, the two parties will also discuss further
cooperation in many aspects such as the product rights and
interests of Novatim Pharmaceutical’'s double etarget CAR-T and
global clinical trial research.

March

In March 2024, Professor Kuang Ming from the First Affiliated
Hospital of Sun Yat-sen University presented at the 33rd Annual
Meeting of the Asia-Pacific Association for the Study of the Liver
(APASL). He reported on the clinical study of PD-L1 inhibitors
combined with chemotherapy and targeted therapy (envafolimab
and durvalumab) in 43 patients with advanced biliary tract
cancer. The study showed a median progression-free survival of
11.29 months and a median overall survival of 14.8 months.

April

The ongoing Phase Ill overseas clinical study of 3D189 for the
treatment of acute myeloid leukemia (AML), led by our partner
SELLAS Life Sciences Group, Inc. (NASDAQ: SLS), underwent
positive reviews by the Independent Data Monitoring Committee
(IDMC) on April 29, 2024, and June 17, 2024. Following two
times reviews, the IDMC conducted a prespecified risk-
benefit assessment of unblinded data from the study and has
recommended that the trial continue without modifications.
Based on a detailed analysis of all unblinded data, the IDMC
projects with a high level of confidence that the interim analysis
(60 events) will occur by the fourth quarter of 2024. On January
23, 2025 as receiving a positive outcome from the Independent
Data Monitoring Committee (IDMC). Following an interim analysis
triggered by 60 events (death) in the study population, the
IDMC conducted a predetermined benefit/risk assessment of the
unblinded data from the study and recommended that the trial
continue without modification. SELLAS anticipates that next and
final analysis (80 events) will be reached this year.
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May

In May 2024, at the American Society of Clinical Oncology
(ASCO) Annual Meeting, nine studies on envafolimab were
selected for presentation, including four poster presentations
and five online publications. The research covered areas such
as biliary tract cancer, liver cancer, rectal cancer, endometrial
cancer, esophageal squamous cell carcinoma, and gastric/
gastroesophageal junction adenocarcinoma.

Among these, the first clinical data of envafolimab combined with
lenvatinib for the treatment of advanced endometrial cancer that
has failed at least one line of platinum containing chemotherapy
or is intolerant to it, and is non-MSI-H/non-dMMR, was disclosed
in a poster presentation. This study had previously been included
as a breakthrough therapy by the Center for Drug Evaluation
(CDE) of the China National Medical Products Administration
(NMPA). Currently, there is no standard treatment for this
indication in China. The available chemotherapy drugs, PD-1/
PD-L1 inhibitors, and lenvatinib monotherapy for endometrial
cancer have shown low objective response rates and survival
indicators. The disclosure of this data suggests that envafolimab
combined with lenvatinib may provide a more effective, safer,
and more convenient new clinical treatment option for patients
with advanced endometrial cancer who have failed at least one
line of platinum-containing chemotherapy or are intolerant to it.

Another noteworthy study is the ENLIGHTEN Study. This is a
single-arm, open-label, phase Il study aiming to investigate the
efficacy and safety of Envafolimab, combined with Lenvatinib
and gemcitabine plus cisplatin in patients with advanced biliary
tract cancer (BTC). Based on the interim analysis, the ORR and
DCR were 45% and 80% respectively. Survival data is expected.
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July

In July, 2024, the Company received a notification of
approval for a Supplemental New Drug Application (sNDA) for
B #E® (Envafolimab injection) from the National Medical
Products Administration. The approval included the change of
self developed media and adding new raw material suppliers,
the internal control standards for some new raw materials and
the change of production scale from 1,000L to 2,000L etc. The
supplemental application was supported by the data from a
randomized, double-blind, single-dose, parallel controlled Phase
| clinical study to evaluate the Pharmacokinetics, safety, and
immunogenicity of Envafolimab Injection in healthy male subjects
(ClinicalTrials.gov, NCT05849311), which demonstrated that
B 4= has stable manufacturing process and sufficient clinical
data. The expansion of production capacity can fully meet the
market demand.

August

In August 2024, B#E® was granted Breakthrough Therapy
Designation (BTD) by the NMPA for the treatment of patients with
unresectable or metastatic tumor mutational burden-high (TMB-H)
solid tumors that have progressed following prior treatment and
who have no satisfactory alternative treatment options. This
indication addresses life-threatening conditions for which there
are currently no approved standard therapies in China. In recent
years, high tumor mutational burden (TMB) has been utilized
in the United States as a biomarker for tissue agnostic drug
development by the FDA.

September

In September 2024, BE##° presented clinical data from a
Phase Il study (NCT05243355) evaluating the combination of
recombinant human endostatin and chemotherapy as first-line
treatment for advanced squamous non-small cell lung cancer
(sg-NSCLC) in a poster format. Among the 24 efficacy evaluable
subjects, the ORR was 81% and the DCR was 100%, with no
new safety signal. This finding demonstrated the combination
of Envafolimab plus angiogenesis inhibitor and chemotherapy
resulted in a favorable clinical efficacy with tolerable safety
profile in advanced sq-NSCLC, representing a promising
treatment regimen for this population.
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Meanwhile, a team led by Professor Di Ge from Zhongshan
Hospital, Fudan University, also presented a prospective study
outcome titled “Efficacy and Safety of Envafolimab Plus Platinum
based Chemotherapy as Neoadjuvant Therapy in Resectable
Stage II-IlIB NSCLC” at the World Conference on Lung Cancer
(WCLC). The study aimed to evaluate the efficacy and safety
of envafolimab combined with platinum based chemotherapy
as neoadjuvant therapy in patients with resectable stage
I1-111B NSCLC. Thirteen patients were enrolled. The pCR rate
was 30.7%, and the MPR rate was 53.8%. RO resection rate
reached 92.3%. Only two patients (15.4%) experienced grade
3 or 4 treatment-related adverse event. No grade 5 TEAE
related to Envafolimab were reported. Results indicated that the
combination elicited favorable safety profiles and promising a
novel option for neoadjuvant treatment.

In September 2024, Professor Wei Li from the First Affiliated
Hospital of Soochow University presented interim data from the
B-Enefit study (ChiCTR2400080783), a Phase Il trial evaluating
B#E® (envafolimab injection) in combination with GEMOX
chemotherapy and chidamide as first-line treatment for advanced
biliary tract cancer (BTC) at the ESMO Congress. The study
enrolled advanced BTC patients with no prior systemic anti-tumor
therapy. Preliminary results showed that among 22 evaluable
patients (16 with cholangiocarcinoma and 6 with gallbladder
cancer), the ORR and DCR reached 50% and 77.27%,
respectively, while median progression-free survival (PFS) and
overall survival (OS) were not yet reached. The incidence of
grade 3 or higher treatment-related adverse events (TRAEs)
was 59.9%, with no treatment-related deaths reported. These
results suggest that the combination of ZE#Z® chidamide,
and chemotherapy exhibits promising antitumor activity with a
manageable safety profile.
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In September 2024, the PRECAM study led by Professor Sheng
Dai’s team at Sir Run Run Shaw Hospital of Zhejiang University
was published in the high-impact journal *International Journal
of Surgery* (IF 12.5). The study focused on MSS-type locally
advanced rectal cancer and aimed to evaluate the efficacy of
a neoadjuvant regimen combining short-course radiotherapy
followed by envafolimab and CAPEOX. Preliminary results
showed that short-course chemoradiotherapy combined with
envafolimab achieved a remarkable pathological complete
response (pCR) rate of 62.5% in MSS locally advanced rectal
cancer patients — 20 out of 32 patients completed surgery
reached pCR. This suggests that neoadjuvant short-course
chemoradiotherapy combined with immunotherapy can lead
to higher pCR rates for MSS locally advanced rectal cancer,
thereby improving organ preservation rates and enhancing
patients’ quality of life. High organ preservation rates and quality
of life are key goals in the treatment of locally advanced or low-
lying rectal cancer.

October

In October 2024, a research team from the First Affiliated
Hospital of Zhejiang University School of Medicine published
a study titled “Envafolimab plus lenvatinib and transcatheter
arterial chemoembolization (TACE) for unresectable
hepatocellular carcinoma (uHCC): a prospective, single-arm,
phase Il study” in Signal Transduction and Targeted Therapy.
The study (NCT05213221) evaluated the efficacy and safety
of TACE followed by envafolimab and lenvatinib in patients
with unresectable hepatocellular carcinoma (UHCC). Results
showed that among 36 efficacy-evaluable patients, the objective
response rate (ORR) and disease control rate (DCR) reached
50% and 83.3%, respectively. Notably, 17 patients achieved
surgical conversion, with 16 completing surgery and an RO
resection rate of 100%. These findings suggest Envafolimab plus
lenvatinib and TACE yielded promising survival outcomes and
conversion efficiency with a tolerable safety profile.
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December

December, 2024, the European Society for Medical Oncology
Asia Congress (ESMO Asia) was held in Singapore. During the
conference, results from a Phase Il clinical trial led by Professor
Qingming Shi from Anhui Chest Hospital were presented in a
poster session. The findings suggested that for patients with
locally advanced or metastatic non-small cell lung cancer
(NSCLC), particularly for those patients had not received PD-L1
inhibitors in first-line treatment, envafolimab combined with
chemotherapy or anti-angiogenic therapy may serve as an
effective, safe, and convenient second-line treatment option.

In 2024, envafolimab was included in the 2024 edition of the
“Chinese Expert Consensus on the Perioperative Treatment of
Advanced Gastric Cancer with Immune Checkpoint Inhibitors”
published by the Gastric Cancer Professional Committee of the
Chinese Anti-Cancer Association and and the Expert Consensus
on Pharmaceutical Services for the Clinical Application of
Innovative Subcutaneous Formulations of Antitumor Drugs
has been released by the Hospital Pharmacy Committee of
the Chinese Pharmaceutical Association. With this inclusion,
B#Z® has now been recommended in 19 of the latest
authoritative clinical guidelines and consensus recommendations
both domestically and internationally.

(@ Chinese Edition of the “2023 NCCN Cervical Cancer Clinical
Practice Guidelines (1st Edition)”

(2@ Chinese Edition of the “2023 NCCN Uterine Tumor Clinical
Practice Guidelines (2nd Edition)”

@ Chinese Edition of the “2023 NCCN Ovarian Cancer
including Fallopian Tube Cancer and Primary Peritoneal
Cancer Clinical Practice Guidelines (2nd Edition)”

@  Chinese Expert Consensus on the Perioperative Treatment
of Advanced Gastric Cancer with Immune Checkpoint
Inhibitors (2024 Edition)
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Guidelines for the Clinical Application of Immune
Checkpoint Inhibitors in Cervical Cancer (2024 Edition)

CSCO Guidelines for Endometrial Cancer 2024 Version

CSCO Guidelines for Cervical Cancer 2024 Version

CSCO Guidelines for Ovarian Cancer 2024 Version

CSCO Guidelines for Clinical Application of Immune

Checkpoint Inhibitors 2024 Version

CSCO Guidelines for Gastric Cancer 2024 Version

CSCO Guidelines for Colorectal Cancer 2024 Version

Expert Consensus on Pharmaceutical Services for
the Clinical Application of Innovative Subcutaneous
preparations of antineoplastic drugs (2024)

Chinese Expert Consensus on MDT Management of

Colorectal Cancer Liver Metastasis (2024 Edition)

Expert Consensus on Immunotherapy for Gastric Cancer

Based on PD-L1 Protein Expression Levels (2023 Edition)

Expert Consensus on Drug Therapy for Gastric Cancer

Chinese Guidelines on Standardized Application of
Immunotherapy for Lung Cancer (2024 Edition)

Expert consensus on the whole-process management of
clinical application of immune checkpoint inhibitors for
esophageal cancer

Practice Guidelines for Off-Label Use of Immune Checkpoint
Inhibitors

Expert Consensus on Microsatellite Instability (MSI)
Detection Technology.
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4. Honors in 2024 4 -

Top 100 Chinese Pharmaceutical Innovation Enterprises

In September 2024, 3D Medicines Inc. was honored to be
listed among the “Top 100 Chinese Pharmaceutical Innovation
Enterprises” a distinction jointly awarded by Healthcare Executive
and independent third-party organizations. This marks the third
consecutive year that 3D Medicines has been recognized in
this prestigious ranking, highlighting its exceptional innovation
capabilities in the field of cancer immunotherapy.
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Top 500 Enterprises in the National SME Innovation and
Entrepreneurship Competition

In November 2024, the Qingdao branch of 3D Medicines Inc.
(Stock Code: 1244.HK) was selected as one of the “Top 500
Enterprises in the National SME Innovation and Entrepreneurship
Competition” during the 9th “Chuangke China” SME Innovation
and Entrepreneurship Competition. The event was organized by
the Cybersecurity Industry Development Center of the Ministry of
Industry and Information Technology (MIIT Information Center),
in collaboration with provincial SME authorities and relevant
organizations. The company earned this accolade by showcasing
the potential and development prospects of its “mRNA Cancer
Vaccine Platform R&D Project”.

Zhiyuan Award — ESG Social Responsibility (S) Pioneer
Enterprise Award

On November 29, 2024, 3D Medicines Inc. (Stock Code:
1244 HK) was awarded the “Zhiyuan Award - ESG Social
Responsibility (S) Pioneer Enterprise Award” at the 5th Caijing
ESG Forum hosted by Caijing Media Group.
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Best Commercial Return Award (Biotech Category)

On December 17, 2024, B4 #® a commercialized product of
3D Medicines Inc. (Stock Code: 1244.HK), was honored with
the “Best Commercial Return Award (Biotech Category)” at the
2024 China Biopharmaceutical Industry Chain Innovation Awards
Ceremony.ESG
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ESG

i

ESG concept

3D Medicines is keenly aware of the corporate role and
responsibilities in advancing social sustainability. We have been
committed to developing highly effective and innovative oncology
therapeutics to improve public health outcomes. By continuously
striving to enhance our performance in environmental protection,
social responsibility, and governance (ESG), we aim to become a
trusted world-leading biopharmaceutical company.

Management architecture of the Board of Directors

As the highest decision-making body of ESG work, the Board of
Directors of the Company is responsible for ESG implementation
policies, work strategies, risk identification and the formulation of
sustainable goals, as well as the monitoring of the implementation
of the ESG work and the annual ESG results.

The Board of Directors appoints the Board Secretariat as
the implementation and supervisory body for planning the
overall ESG work, identifying and evaluating the Group’s
ESG-related content, supervising the daily ESG performance
and implementation, evaluating ESG risks and establishing an
effective internal communication mechanism.
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The ESG work team is the actual execution department of the

Company’s ESG work, which conducts unified overall receipt,

collation, and reporting of ESG matters. ESG work team directly

communicates with various departments on the implementation

and progress of ESG content, and publicly discloses ESG-related

events.

All functional departments cooperate with the ESG work team to

execute and implement ESG work plans and goals.

Statement of the Board of Directors

1)

2)

3)

Responsibilities of the Board of Directors

The Board of Directors serves as the supreme governing
body for ESG oversight, responsible for formulating the
Group’s overarching ESG strategy and objectives. It
regularly monitors, reviews, and approves ESG initiatives
while identifying and assessing material ESG risks and
issues. The Board also ensures timely ESG disclosures
to stakeholders, proactively reviews and addresses
ESG-related incidents, and safeguards the achievement of
the Company’s sustainable development goals.

ESG execution

The Company has designated the Board Secretariat as the
institutional body responsible for ESG review, oversight,
and implementation. Under this structure, the Secretariat
has established an ESG Task Force serving as the
operational arm. This dedicated unit collaborates closely
with cross-functional departments to fulfill core mandates
including driving ESG strategic objectives, identifying
material risks, and managing the execution progress with
accountability mechanisms.

Major ESG topics

The Company attaches great importance to the identification
of major ESG topics, and finally confirm the content of
major ESG topics through visits and investigations of
various stakeholders and the evaluation of the Company’s
management.
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RiZ - HERER

4)

HE

ESG risk management

4)

The Board places strategic emphasis on ESG-related risks,
having instituted dedicated personnel for real-time media
monitoring. The Company has developed comprehensive
risk mitigation strategies encompassing systematic

processes for detecting,

identifying, assessing, and

addressing material exposures, thereby minimizing potential
adverse impacts. Through these institutionalized strategies,
we ensure methodical advancement toward long-term
value creation while maintaining sustainable development
trajectories.

4.

Stakeholders

Communication with stakeholders

Expectation and requirements

4. F

Company response
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Main communication modes

MEAERE S M EEFR AR E A TEBERR
Customers/ R&D innovation Study and innovation Daily operation
potential Product quality Platform construction Company website
customers Responsible publicity Media message
Responsible operation Academic conferences
Quality management Industry forums
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R&D innovation

R&D progress
Commercialization
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Shareholder’s equity
Intellectual property protection
Risk governance
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R&D and innovation

Platform construction

Recruitment of commercialization
executives

Quality management

Intellectual property protection

Commercial cooperation

Responsible operation

Supply chain management
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General Meeting of Shareholders

Investor roadshow

Interim conference call

Business progress news release

Clinical data release and
interpretation

Securities communication

Company website

Performance announcement

Interim and difficulty financial
report

Material disclosure
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Expectation and requirements Company response

RIR - HERERHRSE

Main communication modes

FEHEERAR HE R N EI[E e TERBERR
Employees Employee benefit Employee rights and interests ~ Team building activities
Employee training Employee health and safety Employee training
Employee health and welfare Employee training and career Performance evaluation
development Exit interview
Compliance employment
Employee equality
Employee communication
8T BIEF BIfEm BTEEES
BT BIfRFERES B I
BTfEEER BT EIHEER BRUET A
BRER B gk D K¢
ETTE
Zik
BTEB
Suppliers Company procurement Supply chain and supplier Daily operation
Procurement management management Supplier access
Supplier procurement request
Supplier audit
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Competitors

CISE<:)

Fair competition
Win-win cooperation

AFHF

BIEXR

Responsible operation
Commercial cooperation
Academic discussion
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Intra-industry exchange
Industry conference discussion
Strategic cooperation
Academic Forum
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Stakeholders
FRERES

Expectation and requirements Company response
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Main communication modes
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Government and
supervisory
body
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Community

a2

Responsible operation

Corporate governance

Promotion of industry
development

Sustainable development

Social welfare

L

hEES

TRETEER

AREER

HEREm

Sustainable development
Social welfare
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5. Analysis of substantive topics

Substantive topic matrix of the Company
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6. Communicate with investors 6 HREEBE

Since its listing in 2022, the Company has focused on NAEIE2022F LA - FEEEE
establishing long-term and effective communication mechanisms ERARE  BRAEBRELS - 2024
with investors. In 2024, the Company expanded various ways and FBRMERTSEERREERTH
channels to establish contact with investors, including media, 2HHFARES  BEHE  ®E -
forums, conferences, hotlines, etc. The Company helps investors g% ABRFEFN c HMBAERE -
understand the latest development and status of the Company FHRAE XEBHMEELBREE
through various channels such as roadshows, securities HORAEBRBRARGNERBERE
exchange meetings, and performance conferences, and answers AREE - WRREIREERA ORI o

the most concerned questions of investors.

During the reporting period, the Company carried out more than HEHAN  REEEBSZHELR
80 communication activities with investors, covering various 8035 MEREESR  KEES
formats such as investor conferences, investor calls/online #wOBERRE  EREEBEBRESE
communications, and information disclosures on the official E FW@F&QQ%E@W CRAT
website. These efforts actively responded to investors’ concerns SR BN EE HER A

and enhanced market trust and recognition of the Company.

At the same time, the Company places great importance on BAF - AFSEEREBRARROE
interacting with individual shareholders and has enhanced B RAARFTLELIARAGEEHR
information transparency through digital platforms. By B BRMBBELPERRER &
establishing corporate accounts on major trading platforms, the BFEAREK %iﬁ &E%?&EQTEET&
Company promptly discloses information and updates, carefully B WRESHIREENES
reviews investors’ comments, and responds when necessary. ERpET :JIEIEE °
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ENVIRONMENTAL MANAGEMENT

Integrated environmental management

The pharmaceutical sector bears distinctive responsibilities
in environmental stewardship, where establishing robust
management systems constitutes an industry imperative. 3D
Medicines has institutionalized comprehensive environmental
governance through policy formulation and measurable targets.
Focusing on emission reduction, resource circularity, and energy
efficiency controls, we implement process-wide optimizations to

systematically enhance environmental management capabilities.

1. Environmental management system

According to relevant laws, regulations, and regulatory
systems such as the Law of the People’s Republic of
China on the Prevention and Control of Environmental Solid
Waste Pollution and the actual situation, 3D Medicines has
formulates and implements an environmental management
system with the aim of strengthening hazardous waste
management, protecting the ecological environment,
safeguarding human health, and maintaining public safety.

In order to further optimize environmental management, 3D
Medicines clearly defines its environmental management
goals, and promises to continuously reduce environmental
pollution, practice resource conservation and recycling,
actively carry out energy management and ecological
protection, strengthen green supply chain management and
environmental risk prevention.

The environmental management measures carried out by
3D Medicines include:

o Periodic Resource Audits: Institutionalize clean
production verification with quantified resource
efficiency metrics, supported by dedicated R&D
funding for green process innovation

o Lifecycle Impact Assessment: Enforce mandatory
EIA for capital projects, implementing dual-track
management of ecological conservation plans and
environmental risk mapping
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o Compliance Audit Framework: Conduct annual
environmental due diligence through hybrid monitoring
combining facility inspections with loT-enabled
surveillance

° Standardized Management System: Develop
governance architecture encompassing policy
formulation, risk matrix analysis, capacity building, and
KPI tracking to achieve Plan-Do-Check-Act cycle

In 2024, the Company had no major environmental problems
or environmental protection punishments.

2. Emissions management

3D Medicines attaches great importance to emissions
management, strengthens the supervision of pollutant
emissions, ensures the standard discharge of wastewater
and exhaust gas, standardizes the management and
disposal of solid waste, and continuously improves the
environmental protection awareness of employees in green
emission reduction.

o Compliant emission

3D Medicines Inc. deeply embeds green sustainability
principles into corporate operations, rigorously
complying with national and local ecological
regulations. By building a circular industrial
ecosystem, we continuously optimize whole-process
clean production management to achieve dual
enhancement in waste resource utilization efficiency
and comprehensive economic value. Our R&D facilities
are equipped with three-waste treatment systems,
with emission indicators for wastewater, exhaust
gases, and solid wastes consistently exceeding
national standards. Through an established continuous
environmental management improvement system, we
are committed to setting the industry benchmark for
eco-conscious practices in biopharmaceuticals.

3D Medicines Inc. Annual Report 2024
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Ambient air

According to the Functional Zoning of Ambient
Air Quality in Shanghai (HHBF [2011] No. 250),
the Company is located in a class Il ambient air
zone, where the basic pollutants shall be subject
to the Ambient Air Quality Standard (GB3095-
2012) and its revised single secondary standard;
while other pollutants shall be subject to the
recommended values in Appendix D of Technical
Guidelines for Environmental Impact Assessment
— Atmospheric Environment (HJ2.2-2018) and the
Detailed Explanation of Comprehensive Emission
Standards for Atmospheric Pollutants.

Surface water environment

According to the Functional Zoning of Water
Environment Quality in Shanghai (Rev. 2011), the
Company is located in a class V water quality
area, and subject to the class V standard of the
Surface Water Environment Quality Standard
(GB3838-2002).

Exhaust gas emission standard

The exhaust gas emissions are mainly particulate
matters, and shall be subject to the Contro/
Standard of Particulate Matter for Construction
(DB31/964-2016), with the specific indicators
shown in Table 18.

Wastewater discharge standard

The wastewater discharge shall be subject to the
corresponding standards for indirect discharge
by biomedical R&D institutions in the Discharge
Standard of Pollutants for Bio-pharmaceutical
Industry (DB31/373-2010) in Shanghai, as
detailed in Table 20.

1)

2)

4)
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Solid waste

The general industrial solid waste storage
sites shall comply with the requirements of
the Standard for Pollution Control of General
Industrial Solid Waste Storage and Disposal Sites
(GB18599-2001) and its amendment in 2013;
Hazardous waste storage sites shall comply
with the requirements of Standard for Pollution
Control on Hazardous Waste Storage (GB18597-
2001) and its amendment. The storage capacity
of hazardous waste shall meet the relevant
requirements of the Notice of Shanghai Municipal
Bureau of Ecological Environment on Issuance of
the Implementation Plan for Further Strengthening
the Prevention and Control of Hazardous Waste
Pollution in Shanghai (HHT (2020) No. 50).

o Management of hazardous waste

3D Medicines attaches great importance to hazardous
waste management, adhering to a rigorous and
systematic approach to fulfill environmental protection
responsibilities.

3D Medicines Inc.

Management Responsibilities

The legal representative serves as the primary
responsible party for hazardous waste
management.The Biological Safety Committee
oversees unified supervision of pollution
prevention and control efforts2.

Key Management Principles

Implementation follows the principles of “unified
collection, categorized treatment, centralized
incineration, and risk elimination”, with continuous
advancement toward the goals of “reduction,
resource recovery, and harmless treatment”.

Annual Report 2024
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Infrastructure Development

Hazardous waste pollution control is
integrated into corporate development plans.
Environmentally compliant collection/storage
facilities and dedicated equipment are
established. Safety officers submit real-time
declarations to local environmental authorities
and annually register through Shanghai
Hazardous Waste Management Information
System. Ensure the transparency and legality of
management practices. Additionally, the Safety
Committee conducts annual comprehensive
inspections of hazardous waste collection
and transportation facilities as well as storage
sites. Any identified issues such as damage
are promptly addressed through cleaning and
replacement measures to eliminate potential
safety hazards.

Transportation Protocols

Licensed transporters designated by
environmental agencies handle waste
shipments.Non-specialized vehicles must
undergo immediate disinfection at centralized
disposal sites.The Safety and Environmental
Committee signs leakage and spillage prevention
agreements with transporters and conducts
regular inspections.
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Incident Reporting Mechanism

To address potential hazardous waste
incidents, 3D Medicines has established a
comprehensive accident reporting system. This
system categorizes environmental incidents
into immediate reports and post-resolution
reports. Upon identifying an environmental
incident, relevant personnel must submit an
immediate report within one hour, followed by
a detailed post-resolution report promptly after
the incident is addressed. During the collection,
transportation, storage, utilization, or disposal of
hazardous waste, if a contamination incident or
other sudden environmental emergency occurs,
the responsible entities and individuals must
immediately implement measures to prevent or
mitigate pollution risks, notify potentially affected
organizations and residents in a timely manner,
and report the incident to the local environmental
protection authorities where it occurred.

Maintenance & Compliance

Annual maintenance checks are conducted on
collection/transport facilities and storage areas,
with prompt repairs for any identified defects.

Through these comprehensive measures, 3D
Medicines strives to achieve efficient, safe, and
eco-friendly hazardous waste management,
contributing to sustainable development.

3D Medicines Inc. Annual Report 2024
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Management of other emissions

In terms of emission management, the Company
strictly controls the discharge of various pollutants,
including the treatment and disposal of exhaust gas,
wastewater, and waste residue. The Company adopts
advanced pollution control technique and equipment
to effectively reduce pollutant emissions and ensure
compliance with relevant regulations and standards. In
addition, the Company strengthens source control by
optimizing production processes and adopting clean
production methods to reduce waste generation.

The solid waste generated by the Company mainly
comes from office waste and household waste in
the production and operation process. To achieve
effective management of office waste and household
waste, the Company reduces the impact of waste on
the environment through sorted collection. In addition,
the Company advocates the use of reusable materials
and containers, such as paper and plastic, to reduce
waste generation.

In 2024, the Company has further strengthened its
waste and emissions management and conducting
regular internal supervision and management.
Therefore, based on 2022, relevant data was more
accurately collected and disclosed.
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Indicator Unit 2024 2023 2022
EE By 2024 F 2023 F 20224
Total amount of hazardous wastes Ton
BEEEYES I 50.42 43.71 3.16
Hazardous waste discharge Ton/million

density revenue
EEBEDHNEE Wi, EE S 0.113 0.069 0.005
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(I) Coordinate energy conservation and emission reduction (Z) GBERERH
3D Medicines acknowledges that resources are fundamental BRRaBER2AERERIERSAEM
to sustainable societal development. Committed to green and EURERENZLOMEERE AR
low-carbon principles. BEFERMKRERES - KeeRANA

HARYRHERRERA

1. Energy saving and consumption reduction

3D Medicines strictly adheres to the provisions of laws and
regulations such as the Energy Conservation Law of the
People’s Republic of China, actively implements the concept
of resource conservation in its production and operations,
and establishes a systematic energy consumption
measurement and monitoring framework to record energy
usage data comprehensively. The company has formulated
internal policies including the Electricity Conservation
Management System and Water Conservation Management
System, in alignment with national environmental protection
guidelines and its strategic development goals. Through
continuous enhancement of energy management
mechanisms, 3D Medicines aims to optimize resource
allocation and improve energy utilization efficiency.

- BPBEIRFE
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REBE N B FEREUE - HIE
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EEEX  BLEREE  2H
RITBERTIA R

1. Paperless Office Practices 5
Implemented a digital document management system,
mandated double-sided printing, and reduced color printing
usage.

2. Waste Recycling Program 2.
Deployed categorized recycling stations (paper, batteries, ink
cartridges) with incentive mechanisms to promote reuse.

3. Energy-Efficient Equipment 3.
Upgraded 90% office lighting to LED and introduced
energy-saving printers with auto-sleep functions.

Case ESY]
In 2024, 3D Medicines further advanced energy conservation 2024%F + B }E & B R (LB RE R BE
through the following initiatives: BE - %A EHEEATF - BBAIAT

BIFTEREE fﬁﬁ AR
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RIR - aERERRE

Specific energy-saving measures

The Company supervises laboratory and office staff to carry out
energy-saving and consumption reduction work by posting warning
signs and other means, for example, turn off lights when leaving,
turn off air conditioner, facilities and equipment, and save more
resources. Meanwhile, the management conducts supervision
from top to bottom and deeply cultivates the concept of energy
conservation. For example, we criticized and educated personnel
on each floor who have not turned off lighting and air conditioner
after work. In this way, we constantly deepen employees’
awareness of energy conservation and reduce resource waste. In
2024, the company’s total electricity consumption decreased by
11.2% compared to the historical average.

AR EE

ARBARBERBSAIN  BRER
= MRGE THESEMRETE
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RE ©2024%F - RAIABHEREL T
HERLLRKD11.2% ©

2. Energy management

3D Medicines prioritizes energy management as a
cornerstone of sustainable development. In strict
compliance with the Energy Conservation Law of the
People’s Republic of Chinal, the company focuses on
reducing energy consumption per unit output through
a multi-dimensional approach. By implementing an
end-to-end energy monitoring system spanning R&D,
production, and logistics, real-time data analysis drives
continuous optimization of energy usage patterns3.
Standardized energy audits and periodic equipment
efficiency evaluations, demonstrating corporate leadership
in advancing ecological civilization.

In 2024, the Company urged employees to save energy
by posting warning signs, turning off lights, air conditioner
and other equipment when leaving. We have established
dedicated administrative personnel responsible for
monitoring and regulating air conditioning temperatures,
ensuring continuous maintenance within the range of
24-26°C, The management also supervised and criticized
personnel on each floor who have not turned off lighting and
air conditioner after work, deepening their energy-saving
awareness, reducing energy waste, and achieving a
significant reduction in energy consumption.
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Indicator Unit 2024 2023 2022
EBE B 2024 F 2023F 20224
Total electricity consumption Kilowatt-hour 731,805.5 723,926 1,184,615
HRERE TR

Energy efficient kWh/RMB 10,000 revenue 16.42 11.40 20.00
BERR R FTRE BrEl

Note: The statistical data above involve 3D Medicines and its
physical production subsidiaries in China.

Water resources management

Strictly abiding by the provisions and requirements of
relevant laws and regulations such as the Water Law of the
People’s Republic of China, 3D Medicines advocates the
rational use of water resources, continuously improves the
recycle rate of water resources, improves the water-saving
awareness of employees by promoting the concept of
water conservation, so as to boost the construction of
water-saving industry.

During the reporting period, the Company valued the
use and consumption of resources from management to
grass-roots employees, and we reduced water resource
consumption through methods such as posting warning
signs and management supervision.The company’s total
water consumption in 2024 decreased by 20% compared to

FH - LR EEST EERBRAE
ERBENEEERRTAR -

KEFERE

BREBERBET(PEAR
HMBIOR) FHEERER
REMER - SEEEMNAKE
R FBEREKERNEEN A
R ORBEEEKES  RAR
THETKER - R R A KT
EE -

WEHR AERERERNEE
BIBERERMERMNBERE K
MREREBORNE  TREEEE
ERH  BEBRMOKERHE
¥ o 2024F » DRIBREKER
L FRIE20% ©

the previous year.

Indicator Unit 2024 2023 2022
EE By 2024 F 2023 2022%F

Municipal water supply

consumption m? 2,168 2,735.70 10,891.00
THHKAE SLTOR

Barrelled water consumption m? 4.95 28.68 25.13
REKAE AV N

Bottled water consumption m? 25.44 4.87 0.88
MEKAE TR

Total water consumption m? 2,198.39 2,769.20 10,917.01
FKBE LK

Water consumption intensity m3*/RMB 10,000 revenue 0.05 0.04 0.19
IKFEEE SMHKR S BITER
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Note: (1) Water efficiency can reflect the revenue per ton of water
resource output, namely, the larger the output value per
unit of water resource, the higher the water efficiency.

(2) The annual revenue data of 3D Medicines is from the
H-share 2024 Annual Results Announcement.

(8) The data only involves 3D Medicines and its main
subsidiary factories in China.

Material management

3D Medicines specializes in pharmaceutical R&D and
clinical trials, with material usage primarily concentrated
on drug formulation development and experimental
research. In alignment with China’s Dual Carbon Strategic
Initiative (carbon peak and carbon neutrality), the company
implements comprehensive controls over pharmaceutical
raw materials and packaging supplies to minimize waste,
while optimizing material reuse rates and ensuring regulated
recycling of non-recyclable materials. Through these
measures, we achieve synergistic optimization of resource
efficiency and environmental protection while maintaining
pollution-free operations.

According to the 2024 annual operating data, the company
has outsourced full lifecycle management of packaging
materials — including production, processing, and final
disposal — to certified third-party specialists, thereby
eliminating direct consumption metrics for packaging
resources within our operational scope.
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RIE-HERER

HE

() Responding to the “Dual Carbon” strategy

3D Medicines proactively integrates national policies into its
sustainability framework, embedding ecological protection
mechanisms across its full operational chain. The company
rigorously implements systematic control mechanisms for
greenhouse gas emissions, operating in full compliance
with China’s
policy-aligned environmental stewardship

“Dual Carbon” strategic objectives to ensure

Protect green homeland

3D Medicines constantly improves the prevention and
control measures of air pollution to avoid negative impact
on the environment, and strictly abides by the Law of the
People’s Republic of China on the Prevention and Control of
Air Pollution and other laws and regulations; in addition, we
also take low-carbon development as an important driving
force to improve quality and efficiency under the new
normal, strictly control the total emissions of greenhouse
gases, and enhance the low carbon competitiveness.

The greenhouse gas emission generated within the physical
boundaries of production, operation and office of 3D
Medicines mainly includes two types of direct emission
and indirect emission. The scope of cooperate operation
does not involve direct emission sources; the main indirect
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(i

source of emissions is purchased electricity. FERINEE S
No. Indicator Unit 2024 2023 2022
FR R By 2024 F 2023 2022%F
1 Direct emissions (Category 1)  tCO,e - - 3,087.61
BN (EE1) WAL EE
2 Indirect emissions (Category 2) tCO.,e 417.35 412.85 659.21
B (5 2) WE LIRS 8
3 Total GHG emission tCO,e 417.35 412.85 3,746.82
AEREHRES WAL EE
tCO,e/RMB1 million
4 GHG emission intensity revenue 0.94 0.65 6.60
—&tiEE BET
BERBHERGAE %Hﬁl
Note: (1) Direct emissions (Category 1) refer to the greenhouse SR (1) EEHER(HEE1) 2K

gas emissions from the combustion activities of fossil

energy, such as coal, natural gas and oil and industrial

production processes;
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(2) Indirect energy emissions (Category 2) refer to greenhouse gas
emissions from the purchased electricity and heat;

(8) The accounting of calculations is based on the HKEX
Environmental, Social and Governance (ESG) Reporting Guide,
and the National Development and Reform Commission’s
Guideline for Accounting and Reporting Greenhouse Gas
Emission of Other Industrial Enterprises.

Response to climate change

Against the backdrop of escalating global climate
challenges, companies are actively seizing opportunities
in climate transition. In line with this trend, our organization
conducted systematic climate risk identification and
assessment in 2024, guided by the Task Force on
Climate-related Financial Disclosures (TCFD) framework.
This process entailed establishing a comprehensive
climate governance structure across business value
chains. Through the development of multidimensional risk
assessment models, we identified climate vulnerability
hotspots across operational segments and formulated
tailored mitigation strategies. Concurrently, we are
advancing decarbonization initiatives through energy
efficiency upgrades and clean technology adoption,
with a clear target to reduce lifecycle carbon emissions
intensity. Going forward, we will continue refining our
climate management framework to strengthen sustainable
development capabilities and fulfill environmental

stewardship commitments.
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RiE - HERERRS

Risk name
EBE B

Risk description
B B 4

Solutions

e 4 B

Policies and regulations

Reputation

Lt
1j

Market risks

w5 RER

3D Medicines Inc. Annual Report 2024

The government has issued new
policies and regulations to address
climate change and strengthen

the compliance requirements of
environmental management.

BT & #EBREER - ARE SRR
A MBRFEENAREER -

A company'’s actions on climate
change that are not aggressive
enough or are perceived to have a
negative impact on the environment
can lead to a negative public
perception of it, which can affect
the company’s reputation and
image.
PEERYREECTENITE TN
BRRERRERTERT BEAY

2 NRegRARYHEELAAERE
A M EERNBENTER -

Climate change affects

energy price fluctuations and
pharmaceutical production costs;
climate change may lead to
changes in the prevalence patterns
of certain diseases, thereby
affecting the market demand for
drugs.

RIFE (R BREREBIRNE  FER
BEAEEA IR g B &
FRHRITEA B AR E - My
BEmMTISH K o

Closely follow up changes in

climate change related policies and
regulations, and establish a sound
compliance management system;
regularly evaluate the impact of policy
and regulatory risks on the Company,
develop corresponding risk response
strategies, and reduce the adverse
effects of risks.

EYIRT AR BB ADER
£ BYRZNARERESLS  EHE
HEREEREARECENTE - HITERE
B [ B B S SRS - PR KRB A SR A R B2
&2 .

Take measures to reduce carbon
emissions, improve energy efficiency,
or promote sustainable development
practices; develop and implement clear
sustainable development strategies,
strengthen environmental management,
improve transparency, and effectively
communicate with stakeholders.
ERERFE MR D R BE A - IR B AR IR R it
BRIRFEERER  tIEWE AR
FETREE  IRRRER  BRREH
B B SEREETENER

Strengthen market monitoring

and analysis, optimize supply

chain management, increase

R&D investment, promote green
development, and enhance
competitiveness and risk resistance.

RIS ERMA T - B E IR
MAFRBERA - HBREERE - RS
SRS TRREES
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Risk description
B B 4

RS- HERERHRE

Solutions

e 4 B

Technical risks

TR

Acute physical risks

o
3
it
i
)
%

G0
PR

Chronic physical risks

et ERRR

As the impact of climate change
intensifies, new technological
standards and regulations may
emerge, and existing technologies
may not be able to adapt to the
new challenges brought about by
climate change.
BEEREE(CHZEME AT
WO EAMREMIRE - IR A BAAl
BE SR IE RAR B LA R AR PR -

Physical losses and risks resulting
from unexpected events, such as
extreme climate events, natural
disasters, and environmental
accidents (e.g., typhoons,
rainstorms, floods).
HERRIESEG - BRLE  REE
H(BInEeR - B~ HK) FRER
TSR E SRR TR

Physical losses and risks resulting
from the long-term and progressive
effects of climate change (e.g.
sustained high temperature,
drought and sea level rising).

ARIEEC R - BEMENTE (1
BESR %E BFYELR) E
WM ERBIBLRMER -

Strengthen technological research and
innovation, pay attention to changes

in technological standards, actively
engage in technological cooperation
and exchange, and pay attention to
the protection of intellectual property
rights.

ISR B A AIHT - B R R AR A &
& BERARKMEENRR  AKIE
HBEERRE -

Establish an emergency response
mechanism, strengthen the anti-
disaster ability of infrastructure,
establish flexible supply chains,
optimize storage conditions, and
develop emergency plans.
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Develop long-term strategic plans,
conduct comprehensive risk
assessment, and analyze the potential
impacts of chronic physical risks on
the enterprise; strengthen monitoring
and early warning of climate change
and environmental change.
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3. Green and low-carbon operation

3D Medicines Inc. adheres to the principle of sustainable
development and vigorously pursues a low-carbon
transformation strategy. By establishing an integrated green
management mechanism spanning R&D, manufacturing,
and office operations, we have embedded eco-friendly
practices throughout the value chain. A standardized
environmental training program combined with paperless
office initiatives has been implemented to enhance
employees’ ecological awareness.

o Environmentally friendly and energy-saving buildings

3D Medicines Inc. has systematically implemented
environmental protection measures across all value
chain stages. During lab construction, eco-compliant
building materials and high-performance
soundproofing/thermal insulation systems were
adopted to minimize building energy consumption. In
production, energy-efficient equipment and renewable
energy sources were integrated to enhance energy
utilization efficiency. By optimizing manufacturing
processes, waste generation was reduced, while a
comprehensive waste classification and recycling
system was established to promote resource
conservation.
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Laboratory fresh air risk control system of

Sewage treatment system

3D Medicines (Beijing)
B (R EREFAESI R 5
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o Advocate low-carbon life

3D Medicines Inc. has established a systematic
environmental education program to promote
eco-conscious office practices and low-carbon
lifestyles among employees. The company has
fully transitioned to paperless operations by
implementing intelligent information management
systems, enabling digital workflows for approvals
and reimbursement processes to minimize resource
consumption. Energy conservation measures include
the deployment of energy-efficient lighting across
office areas, standardized HVAC usage protocols,
and installation of water-saving triple-spout faucets
in laboratories. Visible energy-saving signage and
sustainability-themed initiatives are integrated into
daily operations to reinforce environmental stewardship
values.

Green supply chain management

Green supply chain management is a critical component of
environmental governance in biopharmaceutical enterprises.
3D Medicines Inc. has established a supplier sustainability
assessment framework to collaborate with industry partners
in building a shared environmental governance mechanism.
The company conducts regular environmental capacity
audits of suppliers, promotes clean production process
upgrades among chemical APl suppliers, and advances
green supply chain development through collective efforts
to minimize the environmental impact across the entire

supply chain.
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INNOVATIVE R&D

R&D management system

As an innovative pharmaceutical company, R&D capability
has always been the core competitiveness of 3D Medicines.
Therefore, we are committed to establishing a comprehensive
R&D management system, providing prerequisites and important
guarantees for the improvement of our R&D capabilities.

In terms of R&D management system, the Company, guided by
unmet clinical needs, always performs drug R&D management
with high-quality standards and continuously improving R&D
management policies, ensuring that the products under study
have sufficient clinical value worth exploring from beginning
to end. During the reporting period, in order to achieve more
efficient R&D management, improve innovation level and
competitiveness, the Company established a new R&D center
to manage four functional departments, responsible for the R&D
and management of chemical drugs, biomacromolecules, mRNA
tumor vaccines and new products. The R&D center is directly
managed by Dr. Gong Zhaolong, Chairman and CEO of the
Company, to further improve the efficiency and effectiveness of
R&D management.

Innovation platform construction

The Company has established a variety of drug R&D platform
and continued to explore in the field of chronic cancer treatment.
Relying on the Company’s proprietary R&D platform, the
Company can carry out preclinical R&D activities, including
medicinal chemistry synthesis, drug activity screening, drug
cell function study, drug biochemical study and biomolecule
detection.

The Company’s R&D platform has robust capabilities in molecular
screening and design, enhancing the success rate of advancing
molecules from preclinical research to market approval. This
enables the development of innovative therapeutics and supports
the pipeline assets built around key pathways and targets.

3D Medicines Inc. Annual Report 2024
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The Company’s R&D centers in Shanghai and Beijing include
large and small molecule platforms, cell line screening platforms,
and compound screening platforms, mRNA R&D platforms,
etc. Based on the needs of our innovative R&D initiatives, we
have newly established a synthesis and screening platform
for ionizable cationic lipids - the key component in lipid
nanoparticles (LNP) — to support the development of our nucleic
acid drug pipeline.

The Company has hundreds of commercial tumor cell lines from
ATCC, ECACC, JCRB and RIKEN, the world’s four major cell
banks. It covers cancer types with high prevalence in the United
States, Europe and Asia, such as lung cancer, liver cancer, colon
cancer, gastric cancer, esophageal cancer and breast cancer.
This enables broader, more effective and more convenient
screening of candidate drugs in early preclinical R&D, and
these samples also demonstrate significant advantages in the

development of tumor biomarkers.

Construction of R&D team

R&D capability is the core asset of our Company, and
outstanding R&D professionals are instrumental in driving the
company'’s rapid and sustainable growth. We are committed to
building a high-caliber, experienced, as well as high-potential
R&D team. In terms of the overall composition of our R&D
personnel, 10% hold doctoral degrees, while 36% hold master’s
degrees. Additionally, we place great emphasis on nurturing
young R&D talents, with employees under the age of 30
accounting for 23% of our R&D workforce.

Among R&D personnel:
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R&D and industrialization base

The Company is actively advancing the enhancement of R&D and
production capabilities, committed to establishing an integrated
R&D-production industrial model. We are constructing internal
production facilities in Xuzhou City, Jiangsu Province, which
encompass the complete drug development process for both
chemical and biological agents. The manufacturing systems and
facilities fully comply with current Good Manufacturing Practice
(cGMP) standards to meet stringent global requirements.
To address the substantial demand for pharmaceuticals
post-commercialization, we have secured land use rights for a
65,637.97-square-meter site in Xuzhou. With the acquisition of
the construction permit, the development of the new production
facility in Xuzhou has now commenced.

Business cooperation

The Company always maintains an open and win-win philosophy
in cooperation, draws on each other’s strengths utilizing our
mature product R&D experience and advantages, discusses
new technologies and ideas with partners, and improves the
commercial competitiveness of the Company and partners
through cooperation, building a sustainable upstream and
downstream cooperation model. During the reporting period,
the Company signed cooperation agreements with SINO-CELL
BIOMED, and Novatim to cooperate in drug R&D. We completed
licensing cooperation with Glenmark, granting exclusive licensing
rights to the development and commercialization of B #iE
® (Envafolimab, Subcutaneously-Injectable PD-L1) for tumor
indications in India, Asia Pacific (excluding Singapore, Thailand
and Malaysia), the Middle East and Africa, Russia, CIS and Latin
America, in order to benefit patients in more parts of the world.

Drug accessibility

We are committed to ensuring that every patient has access to
optimal treatment. Our mission is to address unmet clinical needs
by developing innovative and differentiated therapies. Guided by
this principle, we prioritize accelerating clinical trials, expediting
drug approvals, and expanding accessibility to enhance the
efficacy and reach of our products, ultimately benefiting broader
populations.

3D Medicines Inc. Annual Report 2024
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During the reporting period, we actively pursued global
partnerships to expand the availability of our therapies. In early
2024, we entered an exclusive licensing agreement with India’s
Glenmark Pharmaceuticals, granting rights to develop and
commercialize our oncology therapies in India, the Asia-Pacific
region (excluding Singapore, Thailand, and Malaysia), the Middle
East and Africa, Russia, CIS countries, and Latin America. This
collaboration aims to bring life-saving treatments to patients in
developing and underserved regions.

In 2024, we also partnered with multiple biotech companies
to advance cutting-edge technologies, including mRNA
platforms, tumor-infiltrating lymphocyte (TIL) therapies, CAR-T
cell therapies, and antibody-drug conjugates (ADCs), as well
as exploring combination strategies with B #Z® (Envafolimab,
subcutaneous PD-L1 inhibitor). Leveraging our expertise and
collaborative networks, we strive to diversify our pipeline and
deliver transformative solutions to patients.

In 2024, B4 #®, the world’s first subcutaneously injected PD-L1
inhibitor, has been approved and commercialized in China. It is
now available in over 3,000 hospitals and 763+ retail pharmacies
across 30 provinces and 305 cities. Furthermore, B#E®
has been included in the reimbursement lists of 36 city-level
“Huiminbao” programs (government-supported supplementary
insurance schemes), significantly reducing out-of-pocket costs
for cancer patients.

Intellectual property protection

At the beginning of the company’s establishment, in accordance
with the standards of intellectual property management, the
company gradually established intellectual property management
systems such as the “Patent Management System”, “Trademark
Management System”, and “Copyright Management System”,
and continuously modified, supplemented, and improved them
according to the company’s development during subsequent
operations. In 2024, the company adjusted and improved the
provisions of the “Patent Management System” based on its
current development situation to adapt to the company’s current
management regulations.
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By the end of 2024, the company had accumulated 36 patents, FE2024F K - ARIRETEREFZ6
86 registered trademarks, and 28 copyrights. In 2024, the - M EeeH - EE#2814 -
company newly applied for 6 patents and 16 trademarks. In 2024 F RAIFTBRFEZAN6H - FTRE
2024, the company was granted 4 patents and 1 trademark was BEIZE161F » 2024 F A A)IREHEF| 4
registered. o MR

lll. QUALITY MANAGEMENT = mEKE

1.  Quality management system 1 REBEEZRS
Our company strictly complies with relevant laws and regulations AR BERAG BT (P E AR LA 42
such as the “Drug Administration Law of the People’s Republic MEEEI(EREEEEEEIA)
of China,” the “Measures for the Supervision and Administration MERFAMERIE) SHREEERE
of Drug Production,” and the “Measures for Drug Registration BOBRTE  UERB(EREEREE
Management.” We conduct research and production of new BR&BGMP)) (EMBRRARMEE
drugs in accordance with the “Good Manufacturing Practice BHE(GCP)) MCERIEBKRARE
(GMP),” “Good Clinical Practice (GCP),” and “Good Laboratory BHRE(GLP) Y TR B 22 A i 5 2
Practice (GLP).” KR
As the company operates under a contract manufacturing RAREREERN  UEBERAE
model and currently has no actual production operations, there BiE WEER2AEHABRER %
is no established occupational safety organization system HEEFES - RAABC(ERET
or safety production protocols. However, the company has SEBLEETERRE)  SYFHTE
implemented the “Standard Operating Procedures for Contract EERMET T RMER o WINER
Drug Manufacturing,” conducting quality audits of contracted AATREERNRERS  HIT
manufacturers every six months. To ensure drug quality and SERETRSEERSES - AHC(E
safety, the company performs on-site supervision and inspections mEMEERSEERESFREETIER
of contracted manufacturers, guided by the “Standard ) SmEFEHIEEERENM
Operating Procedures for On-Site Supervision of Contract EHERIF DEEHERE B
Drug Manufacturing.” All critical processes, quality control R RRAREET —RRE 0 2024
laboratories, warehousing systems, and utilities at contracted FRRRBEEEIEAEREM
production facilities are inspected every two quarters. In 2024, U FEETHERNIBR - ARLE
the company did not incur any losses due to work-related injuries FERE WG ERENITERREE
among employees in production roles. The company currently BR  BAEREBEREZSE -

maintains no production equipment and therefore has no policies
regarding equipment depreciation, retirement, or systems for
equipment management and maintenance.
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Quality control

Our company has established a comprehensive quality
management system in strict accordance with the latest national
regulations, including the *"Regulations on Supervising and
Managing the Implementation of Drug Quality and Safety
Responsibilities by Marketing Authorization Holders™ (No.
126, 2022) and the *"Announcement of the National Medical
Products Administration on Strengthening the Supervision
of Contract Manufacturing by Drug Marketing Authorization
Holders™ (No. 132, 2023). The system encompasses quality
assurance protocols for the entire drug production process, such
as *Document Management Procedures®, *Employee Training
Management Procedures®, *Supplier Management Procedures®,
*Contract Drug Manufacturing Management Procedures®, *Drug
Market Release Management Procedures”, *Product Sales
Management Procedures*, and *Customer Complaint Handling
Procedures*. Additionally, the company has implemented
*Corrective and Preventive Action (CAPA) Management
Procedures* to analyze, assess, and investigate identified or
potential non-conformities throughout the product lifecycle
and management processes. Corresponding corrective and
preventive measures are taken to eliminate root causes, prevent
recurrence, and achieve continuous improvement in product
processes, quality risk control, and the quality management
system.

Our products are pharmaceuticals, and the quality management
system for contract drug manufacturing has passed regulatory
inspections by the National Medical Products Administration
(NMPA), obtaining the *Drug Manufacturing License* issued by
the NMPA.

Quality training

The company has conducted multiple training sessions for
key quality management personnel, covering topics such as
quality standards, process technologies, R&D techniques,
and pharmacovigilance. In 2024, Sichuan Silu Kangrui
Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. (MAH), as the primary production
division, completed a total of 15 training sessions: 5 on
regulatory compliance, 2 on technical skills, 2 on operational
workflows, 1 on contractual obligations, and 1 on role-specific
responsibilities. Each session lasted approximately 1 hour,
involving 468 participants.
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The training topics included:

Training theme

BIEBMT

Training Category

Training date

o EESE B $EI B8

Drug Commissioning Quality Agreement Protocols 2024.02

BRBAEELEE NS A

Guidelines for Quality Risk Management of Pharmaceutical Collinear Regulation Class 2024.04
Manufacturing

(EQHAREEBSRBERERM) ERER

MAH Regulations Regulations Class 2024.04

MAHE#E TERRER

Guidelines for contamination control strategies for sterile pharmaceutical Regulation Class 2024.05
products

M B o) S AR HIR B 45 R ERIE

1,000L production process and quality standard training Technical training 2024.06

1,000L £ T & 2R TR

Sampling inspection management procedure Technical 2024.06

MR E AR AR

Key points of supervision for the production process of Envolizumab stock technical 2024.06
solution (1,000L scale)

BURTEHIRRERETE (1,000LAK) BEEZER eI

MAH Regulations and regulatory elements of compliance Regulation Class 2024.06

MAHER R EREEER ERIE

Drug traceability Management Procedure Class 2024.07

BB ER R2ER

Pharmaceutical excipients, pharmaceutical packaging materials GMP Regulations 2024.09
(draft for comment)

ZAEH - ZABMGMP (BekERR) ERIE

2,000L Craft training Technical 2024.09

2,000LI§ét%§J|l Bt

2,000L product quality standard and inspection procedure Technical 2024.09

2,000 8 8124 L i 12 Es il

Pharmacovigilance Training Protocol Classes 2024.10

B E R IE 2R

Key department and job responsibilities training (production, quality) Responsibilities 2024.11

AREMFI R ECBESE (EE - B58) BAEA

Knowledge of microbiological testing Technical 2024.12

T8 A W e e RN 2B sl
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Training images:

4. Customer service

7)

Pharmacovigilance and customer complaints

The company attaches great importance to customer
rights and services and pays high attention to drug safety
work. We actively and comprehensively collect individual
safety reports, customer complaints and feedback
regarding all our registered/marketed products. We strictly
abide by relevant laws and regulations. The company’s
pharmacovigilance department has specially formulated
the following SOPs: “Standard Operating Procedure for the
Handling and Submission of Post — marketing Drug Safety
Information” (File No.: SLD-SMP-PV-002) and “Standard
Operating Procedure for Product Quality Complaints of
Marketed Drugs” (File No.: SLD-SMP-PV-029). These
are to ensure that the company can handle all adverse
reaction reports and quality complaints of products in a
timely and compliant manner and implement necessary
corrective and preventive measures. Meanwhile, other
supporting procedures are also implemented, such as
“Standard Operating Procedure for Safety Signal Detection
and Management” (File No.: SLD-SMP-PV-004), “Standard
Operating Procedure for Hotline Management” (File No.:
SLD-SMP-PV-028), “Operating Procedure for Handling Post-
marketing Medical Consultations and Queries” (File No.:
SLD-SMP-PV-013), “Standard Operating Procedure for
Reply Management of Drug Regulatory Inquiries” (File No.:
SLD-SMP-PV-012), and “Standard Operating Procedure
for the Handling of Feedback Data” (File No.: SLD-SMP-
PV-033). As of the end of 2024, a total of 33 customer
complaints were received, and all of them have been
followed up and resolved.
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Customer privacy

The company adheres strictly to all relevant national
laws and regulations on the protection of personal and
organizational data. The safeguarding of customer
data permeates every aspect of the company’s
pharmacovigilance activities. The pharmacovigilance
Department has specially formulated the “Standard
Operating Procedure for the Safety Management of
the Pharmacovigilance Information System” (File No.:
SLD-SMP-PV-020),”Standard Operating Procedure for the
Management of the Pharmacovigilance Information System”
(File No.: SLD-SMP-PV-021) and other SOPs. Across all
pharmacovigilance operations, the company applies
rigorous confidentiality and security management standards
to ensure the privacy and security of customers.

Product recall process and handling mechanism

The company has established the *Standard Operating
Procedures for Drug Recall* in accordance with the *Drug
Recall Management Measures®.
departments of the Marketing Authorization Holder (MAH)

The quality management

and the contracted manufacturer jointly assess drug
quality risks. If potential safety hazards are identified, an
investigation is immediately initiated. The final decision to
recall is made by the MAH’s responsible person based on
the investigation results.

Recall Process: The recall process begins with assessing
potential drug safety hazards. Once a recall is confirmed,
a recall plan is developed and initiated. Recall notifications
are issued to drug distributors, healthcare facilities, and
other relevant entities. Within the specified timeframe,
the recall plan, recall notice, and quality/safety risk
assessment report must be filed with provincial drug
regulatory authorities. Recalled drugs are isolated and
stored separately while the recall progress is monitored and
reported to provincial authorities. Under supervision from
relevant departments, the recalled drugs are disposed of
appropriately. The entire process is documented, and after
completion, a final report detailing the recall and disposal is
submitted to the local provincial drug regulatory department
and health administration authority within the required
timeframe. If no issues are identified, the recall is formally
closed, and all records are archived.
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The recall process diagram is as follows:

Quality problems or other safety hazards
HEMEREMZ2RE

v

BE  dHERELGHRE

ARIREEDNT

Quality and safety risk assessment (MAH and the trustee

jointly evaluate and confirm)
B 2R 2B BT (MAHMZ T LR G HER)

Food and Drug Administration
Order for recall

Recall decision: combined with the recall
opinion of the responsible person of the
entrusted ent%gpri§e, the MAH quality
(=11 5
RARENTEEARAEBEER
MAHEE S HAMBEEEASZLRER (XHEE)

Create a recall plan

BERESAMD

HIEARE (MEEEER)

Quality authorized persons and responsible
persons of enterprises

MEXEANCEAEAMRERER

-

Initiate recall

RREAm

v

The quality management department shall record the recall
plan, recall notice and quality and safety risk report to the
provincial drug regulatory department
MEERIAEREERPIBRREOE - AEBA -
REZERERSE

Notice of recall

In the process of recall, the quality control
department shall report the progress of drug
recall to the local drug regulatory department.
Level 1 every 1 day
Level 2 every 3 days
Level 3 every 7 days
BEBEFREERREE AT EREEE
B ERPI IR B B B B ERER ©
—&E\1R
—&E3R
=&8\7AR

AREM

v

Recall process execution and
Report to the drug administration
department

BEBERIT RIS HEHM

v

The marketing and sales department shall issue recall
notices to drug manufacturers, drug distributors and
drug users. According to the recall level, the recall level
should be within 1 day for first class, within 3 days for
second class, and within 7 days for third class.
TISHERMEREERE  BREERE -
ERERENSEMALCEM - REBBSRER—F1BUARN
ZARBBARN - =ZRTBLAR -

Handling of recalled drugs

CAPA system, implementation, follow-
up, evaluation, and closure

Ao % i B 7

v

Recall summary

CAPAZRSE - it - IR - 514 - BARA

BRBERE

After the notice is issued by the holder, the relevant
party shall immediately implement it in accordance with
the requirements of the notice. Each executive
FAABMBRNE - BT EIRRA A E R AT -
FRTHBFIRRITEETRTMQARIERE®E
QATZEGRELMRMEBEEE -

-

Recall shutdown
A EEEE

v

Data archiving
AREE

Within 10 working days after the completion of the recall,
the quality control department shall report to the provincial
drug supervision and administration department and
the health department
ERBEEREHI0ETIERR - REEEIFEER
HREEERAPIMEERETE PRS-

o In 2024, the Company has no products that need to

be withdrawn or recalled due to health and safety

reasons.

°  2024%F - RAERA (R
ZE2FERBHE MA@
D ©
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55

Sustainable supply chain

7)

2)

Supply chain management

The commercial supply chain of the Company adopts cold
chain transportation and supplier management to provide
services. We have established a long-term and close
cooperative relationship with CR Jiangsu Pharmaceuticl.
Through information sharing and management of the supply
chain work system with our partners, we manage warehouse
management and logistics distribution, and achieve
maximum competitiveness of the supply chain at the lowest
cost.

Warehouse management: Adopting real time inventory
monitoring, safety stock setting, etc., to ensure inventory
costs, improve inventory turnover, etc. can meet market
demand and avoid resource waste and other problems such
as near-expired drugs and dull sale.

Logistics and delivery: We strictly review the transportation
equipment and plans of our partners. The partners have
complete qualifications and logistics systems, which
can ensure that the drugs are safe under the specified
temperature and humidity conditions at every stage from
storage, transportation to delivery.

At the same time, we also attach great importance to risk
management, and comprehensively identify and evaluate
various risks that may arise during the operation of the
supply chain, including supplier risk, inventory risk, logistics
risk, etc. In response to these risks, we have developed
corresponding response strategies and plans to reduce the
likelihood and impact of risk occurrence, and minimize the
losses caused by risks.

Supplier management system

We abide by the Government Procurement Law of The
People’s Republic of China, the Law of the People’s
Republic of China on Bid Invitation and Bidding and other
relevant laws and regulations. Meanwhile, the Company has
formulated management documents such as Procurement
Management System, Service Provider Evaluation Form and
New Supplier Information Form to continuously optimize
the supplier management system. The Company adheres
to the procurement mode of compliance, transparency
and diversification, and actively communicates and
cooperates with suppliers. We are establishing a reliable
and competitive supply chain guarantee system with our
suppliers.

3D Medicines Inc. Annual Report 2024

5.

ARG
1) HEREE

2)

BRAaBENEHERERAL
BN EEHERRERTE
TR RMEEFRIHRELE
B ZT0AFERE  BAEA
ET R HEE TIER S AMHAA
MEE  SHHEREENYITE
RETTER - AREKRAERT
EOHEBENZEF DR -

ERER: INEFER =22
BEFHESE  REETRE - 12
SEFRAEBXEE AR TS
FoREY IR - ik G B2 G B AR AT R
B OBHESHE BERERR
=,

MR RO AIETESR
B ERHRETERER A
T RBEENEEMEENY
MR EMRERERT &
WA RR & — ERE - RAAIH
BHEREMENREARE &
BFHETRE -

RREMEIEEERRBRER
it EEE T RRER LR
ZIEE LT 2 B FRTE
PREAERRR -  ETFRE -9
MRS - SHEEERRE - &M
HIE AR EL REEAMTER + M
PRARRBEEREEMTEE &
MeRBEBHRIEK -

REFEEZL

BB TR EARKXMBE BT
REL) (PEARANMBRR
BRIBE)SEHBERZER - R
B REHECRBERSIE)
(RBAEFER) (HERIILE
AR)EEERE - TEBECH
EBEBREBR - ARRFAR -
EH - ZAREBERN  ERE
HEFETEBRAE - RFAIE
EREEHEE—(AERER
BEAEBRFNMHERRER



Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Prior to the selection of suppliers, we will audit the
qualifications of suppliers, fully consider the relevant impact
of suppliers on the environment and society, incorporate the
audit scoring mechanism, and conduct on-site inspection
and audit as appropriate. The suppliers after qualification
will be included in our supplier database. We implement
annual audit system for suppliers, auditing their product
and service quality, brand value, price, communication
mechanism, flexibility, and order response speed. We
eliminate the suppliers with low scores, so as to ensure the
quality of suppliers and reduce the risk of suppliers.

As of the end of the reporting period, the Company has a
total of 295 inbound suppliers from multiple regions and
countries. The Company has conducted access review and
regular verification for each supplier.

RE - HERELRHRE

BEHRERA  RMASHHRER
MBEETER  ROEEHE
BEREMEENABTE &
ABZROHS - REBREE
TERERER  KHRBERABA
BOHERE - RAEHERHR
REEHE  SHEFNERRK
RERE - migEE BB B
EHH - BRI FTERERE
FEZ REFOBER BAE
HEOWENRERETEL
VAt iREHREE R E - B
7 E R o

HERSEBER  DAKAAE
HER295R « KA % Ak E A
BX - ATYEREEEHHEST
TEABENRE RS -

Location Number of suppliers
Hh2h HEBHE
Hangzhou LM 6
United States e 8
Japan SN 1
Shanghai 8 171
Beijing i) 118
Nanjing 22 4
Guangzhou M 2
Wuxi mi5 1
Suzhou #RM 1
Singapore N 1
Switzerland It 1
Shenzhen il 2
Sweden Tiiy B8 1
Netherlands Gt 1
Kunming EM 1
Dongguan £ 1
Chengdu Bk EB 4
Qingdao 55 7
Xiamen = 1
Shenyang &S 1
Total a5t 333
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HE

IV. PEOPLE FIRST

1.

Safeguard employee’s rights and interests

Our company strictly adheres to relevant laws and regulations,

including the Labor Law of the People’s Republic of China and

the Labor Contract Law of the People’s Republic of China, to

effectively protect employee rights and ensure workplace safety.

We have established competitive compensation standards and

created clear career development pathways to support the

growth and well-being of our employees.

7)

Employment

Our company adheres to the principles of lawful
employment, a people-centric approach, fair competition,
and diversified hiring. We have established and
continuously improved internal management systems, such
as the Recruitment Management Policy, to strictly prohibit
any recruitment practices involving child labor, forced labor,
or any discrimination based on region, gender, or ethnicity.
Any violations discovered will be addressed in accordance
with company regulations.

The company rigorously follows recruitment procedures and
job requirements to ensure compliant hiring practices and
to attract high-caliber, capable, and responsible talents.
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RIR - aERERRE

As of the end of 2024, the company has 191 full-time HE2024FK - RA2BES
employees. The distribution of full-time employees by H191A - 2BEEMIER - F
gender, age, work location, and educational background is B BEHIEN - HERESH
as follows: L
Gender Age
a1l Fie
>50
50B% A & <30
Male 2% 30BA T

Female
pegis
68%

Area

IR 55¢

United States
=% &
5%

Other regions

‘ 18%

30-50
30-505%
80%

Education background
HERE

Others  Doctoral degree
HAth Et
8% 6%

of China Shanghai .

P B L 3 & 5

25.7% 41.9%
Bachelor
2t ,
559, Master’'s

Beijing
b=
31.9%

degree
PRt
34%
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Female
pegis
52%

HERERRE

Employee turnover rate:

The company’s workforce remains relatively stable. In
2024, the overall employee turnover rate was 12%, with the
turnover rate for R&D employees at 16%. The distribution of
departing employees by gender, age, and work location is
as follows:

Gender
14 Rl

Male

Area

58 35§

Other regions
H i@
4%

During the reporting period, there was no voluntary layoff.
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Employee remuneration and benefits

We are committed to establishing an effective
compensation system that aligns remuneration with job
value, performance, and individual potential. The company
has formulated the Compensation Management Policy and
Performance Management Guidelines, linking remuneration
adjustments, bonuses, and promotions to employees’ work
outcomes.

The company has implemented the Benefits Management
Policy to standardize and safeguard employee
welfare. In addition to statutory benefits, the company
provides supplementary benefits, including allowances
(transportation, lunch, and communication subsidies),
supplemental commercial insurances (medical, accident,
etc.), paid sick leaves, annual health check-ups,
team-building funds, continuing education incentives,
holiday gifts, and condolence payments.

The company complies with statutory working hour
regulations and follows the standard two-day weekend.
In compliance with national regulations, the company
provides statutory holiday leaves with full pay and benefits.
Employees are also entitled to annual leaves as stipulated
by the Regulations on Paid Annual Leave for Employees
and /mplementation Measures for Paid Annual Leave for
Enterprise Employees, with full pay and benefits during
the leave period. To secure employees’ health condition,
the company offers 5 days of full-pay sick leave per year.
Other types of paid leave include maternity leave, prenatal
check-up leave, paternity leave, parental leave, and
bereavement leave.

Employee promotion

The company is committed to providing employees with
fair and equitable opportunities for career development.
To standardize job grading and promotion procedures,
the company has established the Employee Promotion
Management Policy. The qualifications for positions are
assessed based on multiple dimensions, including work
experience, educational background, knowledge and skills,
performance results, and comprehensive competencies.
Promotions are guided by the principle of emphasizing both
integrity and performance.

During the reporting period, 31 employees were promoted
to higher positions.

RIE #HERER

2)

3)

wE

ETFHBEF

BIBUTRITIETT 2 B 3 E B
%Avﬁﬁwwﬁﬁmjﬁﬁ~
B BOEE - RRIEHACE
Iﬁ% @%&Nﬂﬁﬂaﬁ
RE) BIHMAE - Be
BEAL B MR IE TERCRME -

RAGIECETRAEEIOER)
REETRAZREIC - EER
M2 FRBEHNEESZE - A
Zié CRE BRESERMMEE
REBER  BIIMHAEER
w'%%F%~¢F%$‘%W
Egie  EEHEH® - HAH

{%E‘J:&l N @Fﬁﬁﬁ% °

REVEEEE IRGIE - BT8R
RENKR: RAIGFERBEHRFE
B RYDEEHBRBARR - ER
ERZOEERANRRSAH =X

EEHFMENGE  A6ESR
FEFBFRE - FREXRE

QMR RN AT S DRI R G
ERTIHHFARBERIE) G
7 REEFAREME  FXLE
BHENGE  RRERES
DREE - AREREERMTSE
FERMEHRM - RbHwHR
EBREER ERR  BER-
ERR - BRE -

ETEH
NABHARBREATALEN
FHBEREAHKSE - BTHE
BB A E AR - ARSI
TCABEAERIEE) - ARIAY
B TR A RIS ERIE TIEER
RABERE - MBETRE - BX
R RARNSHEE - ABE
FEEEEMERTENRA -

WEHA  KRFBIATKT
BUEH  RAYAREHRER
Ko

BHRAEHRHERIR —B-MNFFH

17



172

Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIB )

4)

HERERRE

Employee training

To standardize training management, the company has
including the SOP for
Employee Training Management and the External Training

established relevant policies,

and Examination Management Policy .

In 2024, 10 employees participated in training programs
organized by external institutions, covering topics such
as pharmaceutical regulations, quality management,

pharmacovigilance, and statistics.

Additionally, all new employees are required to attend new
employee orientation training within their first two weeks
of employment. The training is organized by the Human
Resources Department and delivered by professionals from
relevant departments. In 2024, a total of 18 new employees
participated in the orientation training.

In 2024, the company conducted a total of 5 company-wide
training sessions covering compliance, finance, attendance,
performance management, and corporate management
policies. The average training duration ranged from 1 to
1.5 hours per session, with an average attendance of over
100 participants. Specifically, male employees completed
approximately 240 hours of training, while female employees

accounted for around 510 hours of training participation.

2. Employee occupational safety

7)

Employee safety management

The company explicitly states in the Employee Handbook
that employees have the right to a safe and protected
working environment. The company believes that ensuring
employee health and safety is an integral part of its
operations and commits to complying with PRC laws and
best practices in health, safety, and environmental matters.
Employees are encouraged to immediately report any
unsafe working conditions they encounter, become aware
of, or observe to their supervisors or relevant departments
such as EHS, Human Resources, or Administration. The
Employee Handbook also emphasizes that employees are
responsible not only for their own health and safety but also
for that of their colleagues present in the workplace during
working hours.
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The company has established the Emergency Response
Management Policy to widely promote awareness of
emergency laws, regulations, and common knowledge
on prevention and risk avoidance, thereby enhancing
employees’ emergency awareness and response
capabilities. The company actively collaborates with
relevant departments to organize emergency training, such
as fire drills, for all employees.

In 2024, the company recorded zero days lost due to
work-related injuries and zero fatalities from workplace
accidents.

2)  Employee health and safety

The company strictly adheres to relevant laws and
regulations, including the Occupational Disease Prevention
and Control Law of the People’s Republic of China, to
provide employees with occupational health protection. To
safeguard employee safety and health, the company offers
annual health check-ups, provides personal protective
equipment, and maintains medical supply Kits in the
workplace.

In addition to statutory medical insurance contributions,
the company has purchased supplementary commercial
medical insurance for employees, covering outpatient care,
hospitalization, and accidental injury benefits, to further
enhance employee health and well-being.

Employee care

The company provides a certain amount of condolence payments
to employees who are hospitalized due to illness during their
employment or who have lost immediate family member(s).
Additionally, the company has established the Guardian
Program, which offers tumor gene sequencing testing services
for employees or their family members diagnosed with cancer,
with eligible individuals receiving financial subsidies under the
program.

The company also provides support to employees in matters
such as Hukou-related formalities and work residence permit
applications.

Outstanding employees are recognized and rewarded through
various means, including honorary awards, cash bonuses, and

equity incentives.
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4. Employee Activities 4. EEEH

To enhance employee well-being, strengthen team cohesion, RAIREEE & O EE - 1558 E X
and foster a positive work environment, the company regularly RENMEERBRA LN TESE -
organizes employee activities. TEEEMEEES -

In March 2024, the company held annual conference in Kaiping, 2024%F3 A RRIEERAMFME
Guangdong Province. The event included award ceremonies, MEe FTLENBRERTAL &
summary presentations, employees’ performances, team-building BEEE - ERBERE - BHREEH N -
exercises, and local sightseeing tours. The awards segment FERYRHRB LU EIE  BF
featured a diverse range of categories, recognizing both team (& B SR AR TE RN A JB 8 IE -

and individual achievements.
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In November 2024, the company organized a unique marathon 2024F 11 R RelBEERITT —
relay race. Employees enthusiastically participated and worked RAIFEBENBRRENR - EEBE
together to complete a total distance of 55.2 kilometers, B2 BOHBH - EHKE T55.2
showcasing their teamwork and spirit. NERKE o

V. COMMUNITY CONSTRUCTION AND HEER REQH
ENGAGEMENT IN PUBLIC WELFARE

Guided by the vision of “being a responsible corporate citizen,” RARFIUCELARAOES TS
3D Medicines integrates community development into its EFXINZLES  BrREHEERA
sustainable growth strategy. Through systematic philanthropic ARFEERERNEZENTD - A
initiatives and cultural embeddedness of social responsibility, we BESFEARRARELELERE
have established a three-dimensional value framework: BRMERT =Bt eE
BER:
Strategic Level: Embedding ESG principles into corporate BREE - BITESGURE - g A
governance B)EEER #BomBHE
A EBBORE
Operational Level: Implementing diversified philanthropic BiTE : MEZTEAREE (BB
programs (education empowerment, X BELEERER
healthcare accessibility, ecological &) FERBRBARE107.1
conservation) with annual donations BETARKE

RMB107.1 million

Cultural Level: Fostering volunteerism through employee XAbE BB I EFERGHES - 52
engagement programs BrEUHGREER

BREEARBAERIA —T-MEFH 175
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VI.

Charitable drug donation

Cancer, as a major disease category, imposes tremendous
burdens on patients, their families, and society. Mindray
Pharmaceutical has always upheld corporate social
responsibility, focusing on oncology patient needs, and
collaborates with Beijing Kangmeng Foundation to continuously
implement patient assistance programs, contributing to cancer
prevention and treatment efforts.

In 2024, our program delivered medication assistance, helping
patients enhance treatment efficacy, alleviate disease-related
pain and economic pressures, reduce societal and family
burdens, improve quality of life, and build confidence in fighting
the illness. Going forward, we will persistently explore oncology
philanthropy, expand assistance scope, and enable more
patients to receive substantive support, prolong survival periods,
and elevate life quality.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Integrity is the cornerstone of the pharmaceutical industry.
Mindray Pharmaceutical strictly adheres to laws and regulations
including “The Anti-Unfair Competition Law of the People’s
Republic of China” and “Provisional Regulations on Banning
Commercial Bribery,” and complies with “The Securities Law
of the People’s Republic of China” and HKEX Listing Rules.
The company continuously refines its governance framework,
implements rigorous risk management and anti-corruption
measures, upholds corporate integrity, and ensures long-term
sustainable development.

Corporate Governance system

The board of directors is the core governing body of the
company, comprising the chairman, independent directors,
and non-independent directors, with independent directors
accounting for more than one-third of the board. The
board establishes three committees: the Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee, and Nomination Committee, to
supervise the management team and ensure the company’s
long-term development. The company prioritizes the professional
expertise and industry experience of its board members. For
the year 2024, the board consists of seven directors, including
one executive director, three non-executive directors, and
three independent non-executive directors. Among them, three
hold doctoral degrees, and one is a female director. All board
members possess extensive industry experience and expertise in
their respective fields, enabling them to make informed decisions
for the company’s comprehensive growth.

3D Medicines Inc. Annual Report 2024

1 ZEp=
FEEEAEARKREE K85 K
ERHEHERRERE - BIHmER
HWERIFGELSET FIERES

ERk BInFERESERHESE
FREEERDER  REREEER
BRINE -

2024 F HMBBZ BB RHEME
By EBRERIDARENM - B
RREEREERED  REHERE
B NEREELRBAMIRE
RBEED o RRBEFPIEIFERE
BrmEE  HRENDEE EES
SERSEEEY  TRAEGFHHE
ReELEWEE -

HERBFETENZLES - DA
BEARBRERELYE  BRET
(PEARHAMBERTERFE) (E
LARBRIT/AEITHRE) EEAARE
B WEEETIEFC(PEARKRM
BIRE %) REBB R ETARRD
(EMRRPAEER]) - REFETE
RERE  RRREZRERBEER
BiE ECEXBE  RUBERR
RHBERE -

1. REER
AAREEGRATAENZ LK
B HESE BIYEBEENEBIE
ERR HhBYESHESEN=
Az—HULE -BEEGTR=/ZEE
g ERZEEE FMHEEENESR
ZE®  NEBLAREEENTS
REATINRYRE - AFSEER
EEERENSEEESRITELR
2024FE - AAFEEGHTRES
HE > BE1BHTES  38EHT
EENIERBUFHYUTES He >
SUEEELEN 1L HES-
AFEEEREYEABEENITER
B URSHEANED  TALD
ANEZEGERRME ERRE -



Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Internal control management

In accordance with the requirements of establishing a modern
enterprise system, starting from enterprise risks and combining
with its own development situation, the company has established
a corporate governance structure and set up organizational
structures that meet the company’s business scale and operation
and management needs. It continuously improves and optimizes
the company’s internal control management system from five
aspects: control environment, risk assessment, control activities,
information and communication, and internal supervision to
ensure that the internal control system is effective, sound, and
has clear responsibilities.

The company attaches great importance to the construction of
the internal control management system and has developed a
series of company policies and processes, including policies
related to company sales, procurement, quality management,
pharmacovigilance, legal and compliance, finance, internal
audit, human resources, and IT. During the reporting period, to
enhance the risk and internal control awareness of management
and employees, the company provided publicity and training to
employees through online and offline methods.

Risk control

The company believes that a sound risk management system is
conducive to the company’s sustainable development. We attach
great importance to the risks in all production and operation
links of the company, especially major risk issues related to the
company’s strategy, major asset purchases and sales, external
investments, and related party transactions. The company’s risk
management system is mainly led by the board of directors and
consists of the legal and compliance department, the internal
control audit department, and various business departments and
business teams. For major risk projects, relevant project initiation
meetings will be held, attended by board members, the legal
and compliance department, the internal audit department, and
relevant business departments. Together, they will identify risk
items, consider the potential risks and opportunities of the overall
project. After repeated deliberation and review, the final decision
will be made by the board of directors.
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Complaining and whistle-blowing ways

We have issued the “Reporting and Handling Management
Measures for Improper Conduct” (procedures for the
reporting process) and set up a reporting email address
(compliance@3D-medicines.com). We encourage employees
to report and file complaints regarding compliance and
fraud-related issues to the company, and we do our best to
protect the interests and privacy of whistle-blowers to ensure that
they are treated fairly and justly. For all reports and complaints,
if a preliminary confirmation indicates that an investigation
is required, the legal and compliance department will take
the lead, jointly establish an employee integrity file with the
human resources department, and conduct an investigation
after obtaining the authorization of the CEQO. The results will be
reported to the company’s management.

In 2024, the company did not receive any anti-fraud-related
reporting information.

Training on combating corruption and upholding integrity as
well as internal control risks

The company organizes new employees to participate in
anti-corruption and compliance training every year to enhance
their compliance awareness. In 2024, the Human Resources
Department organized colleagues from the Legal and
Compliance Department to serve as training lecturers, and a total
of 4 such training sessions were held.Among them, the promotion
of the anti-commercial bribery related systems of 3D Medicines
and the training content covered multiple aspects, including
the anti-commercial bribery management system, anti-money
laundering management system, third-party due diligence
investigation management system, management measures for the
reporting and handling of improper behaviors, conference and
event policies, as well as typical cases in related fields in recent
years.All employees of the company actively participated and
studied the anti-commercial bribery related systems. By correctly
complying with the relevant laws, regulations and systems
against commercial bribery, employees can better maintain
the company’'s image and fundamentally promote the upward
development of the company.
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Main categories, levels, general disclosures, and KPIs

TEHE  EFH-

—REBERBARERER

Disclosure section

WERED

Main Category A. Environment

TEHBARER

Level A1: Emissions

EEAT : BERY

General disclosure

Disclosure about relevant exhaust gas and greenhouse gas
emissions, discharges into water and land, hazardous
and non-hazardous waste:

(a) Policies; and

(b) The information about the compliance with relevant laws
and regulations that have a significant impact on the

Environmental
management:

Integrated environmental
management

Coordinate energy
conservation and emission

issuer. reduction
Responding to the “Dual
Carbon” strategy:
Protect green homeland
Response to climate
change
— AR 5E BHBERIOREREHN - FKRTHBEET - EEREEE REER
BEYNEEFH FARREE
(a) B & BEBERRE R BE
(b) BTFHETABEAZENRBERNRIINER - (o0 fE [ &2 8k | B mE
THEACRKE
JE T RARE L
KPI'A1.1 Emission types and relevant emission data. Integrated environmental

RS AR IR A1

PR R M ARR Y I BR -

management:
Pollution discharge

management

vT = i&t§§f§

TERYE R

KPI A1.2

RSB IR IRAL.2

Direct (scope 1) and indirect (scope 2) greenhouse gas
emissions from energy sources (in tons), and (where
appropriate) intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume,
per facility).

Scope 1 Emissions

Scope 2 Emissions

B (HBE1) RERMEE (BE2) AEREBHRE (LANE:TE
k(@R BE (nAgESEMN - §HEKREE

E— PR

&5 B — HF

Responding to the “Dual
Carbon” strategy:
Protect green homeland

(o] [ S0 | 8RR -
TESERE

BHREEHRGERAR

“EMEFR
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Main categories, levels, general disclosures, and KPIs

TEEE BE —REERBEERER

Disclosure section

BREED

Integrated environmental
management:

Pollution discharge
management

Py

HRAIRBER
SR BEE R

KPI A1.3 Total hazardous waste produced (in tons) and, where
appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume,
per facility).

FRIEIEIRA13 FEXAEEEMAE AERTE) M (WER) BE (WMASE
BB - FERIEHH

KPI A1.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced (in ton) and, where
appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume,
per facility).

R IEIRAT 4 FEXEZEEEWAE AERTE) M (WER) BE (WMASE

B - BIERETE

Integrated environmental
management:

Pollution discharge
management

FARRERE
BRBEREIRE

KPI'A1.5 Description of the emission objectives set and the steps
taken to achieve such objectives.

Integrated environmental
management:
Pollution discharge

management
R IEIEIRATE RPRET I BE N E B IR R RERE L BRI T - FERRER
ERYEE R
KPI'A1.6 Description of the method to dispose of hazardous and non- | Integrated environmental

hazardous wastes, waste reduction objectives set and the
steps taken to achieve such objectives.

RASR A M HE 1R A1.6 Wl EIE A ENESERMNITE - RIBIATE] AR EE B 17
R AEREL B IRATREAZBR -

management:
Pollution discharge
management

MAREERE

ERYEE R

Level A2: Use of Resources

EHEA2 : EIRER

General disclosure Policies on the efficient use of resources, including energy,
water and other raw materials.

Environmental
management:
Coordinate energy

conservation and emission

reduction

— MR E BRERER (BIEER - KEEMERME) BB - RIEER
SIS AL R BE

KPI A2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type (e.g. Coordinate energy

electricity, gas or oil) in total (KWh in '000s) and intensity
(e.g. per unit of production volume, per facility).

RS A MIEIRAL. WENEOMEEE RERER (T - Roh) 278 (A
TETREFE )&ff(ﬁﬂut?§° i - FEREETE) ©

conservation and emission
reduction:
Energy management

FTEETRLREE -
BEIRERE
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Main categories, levels, general disclosures, and KPIs

Disclosure section

TEHE BEEH —REERBEENESR REESH
KPI'A2.2 Water consumption in total and intensity (e.g. per unit of Coordinate energy

RS IR IRA2.2

production volume, per facility).

BFKEBREE WASESEN - BRARBFE) -

conservation and emission
reduction:

Water resources
management
HEBERBE

KERERE

KPI A2.3

R IEIRA2.3

Description of the energy use efficiency objectives set and
the steps taken to achieve such objectives.

SR RvA: Ok

B o

LR A B IR R AEDE L B RAERE 5

Coordinate energy
conservation and emission
reduction:

Energy management
J‘fiﬁﬁﬁwﬁ#

RERE T

KPI A2.4

BASR A MIEIR A2 4

Description of any problems in obtaining the applicable
water sources, the water use efficiency objectives set and
the steps taken to achieve such objectives.

o SKEUGE A /KR _E R A AR
BRAEDE L B RATERIA B -

VAR PRraTSZE0 Ak 3z B

Coordinate energy
conservation and emission
reduction:

Water resources
management
SIS AR REE

KERER

KPI A2.5

R IEIRA2.5

Total packaging material used for finished products (in ton),

and, if applicable, proportion of per production unit.

R mAREEMHNEE (CANETE
(-

5) K (nER) BHEESN

Coordinate energy
conservation and emission
reduction:

Material management

SIS AR B

MEER

Level A3: Environment and natural resources

EBHA3 : BRERRXARER

General disclosure

—RIBE

Policies on minimizing the issuer’s significant impact on the

environment and natural resources.

BT AHREERRAERERERNTENHEER -

Integrated environmental
management:
Environmental
management system
Responding to the “Dual
Carbon” strategy:
Response to climate
change

FARRER

RIREEES

o fE [ %Ak | 8RR -
FEHRIREL

BHRAEHRHERIR —B-MNFFH
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Main categories, levels, general disclosures, and KPIs

TREE EE

—REBRARERER

Disclosure section

BREED

KPI A3.1

BSR4 IR A, 1

Description of significant impacts from business activities
on the environment and natural resources and the actions
taken to manage them.

MR EDHRERRANERNEAFENERNEEAH
FENTY -

Responding to the “Dual
Carbon” strategy:
Response to climate
change

ol 8 [ 4% | B
FES RIRE (L

Level A4: Climate change

EHEAS : RIZZ

General disclosure

Identification and response to policies prepared for
significant climate-related issues that have already had or
may have an impact on the issuer.

Responding to the “Dual
Carbon” strategy:
Response to climate

change
— MR E BRI REHE LA EHBEITAEETENERRIKBHESE o1 FE [ &£ 0ik | BLmg
HABUR FEET R IR &L
KPI A4.1 Description of significant climate-related issues that have Responding to the “Dual

AR ERIRIRA4A

already had or may have an impact on the issuer and
corresponding responsive actions.

DR AREE Y
JEX1TE) -

TRITAELAXENEARFHEBEERE &

Carbon” strategy:
Response to climate
change

(o] FE [ 0k | B s
e RIRE L

Main Category B. Society
TEHRB.AE

Employment and Labor Practices

BRERETIER

Level B1: Employment
EEB1 : &%

General disclosure

—RIRE

Relating to compensation and dismissal, recruitment
and promotion, working hours, rest periods, equal
opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination, and other
benefits and welfare:

(a) Policies; and

(b) The information about the compliance with relevant laws
and regulations that have a significant impact on the
issuer.

ERFMREE  BRERE  TERE - RY  TSHE -
Zlt - RIBRARE MRS RAEM -

(a) BK + &

(b) BTHETABEAZENBRERRADNER -

People first:
Safeguard employee’s
rights and interests

AN
HESTHR
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Main categories, levels, general disclosures, and KPIs

Disclosure section

TEHE BEEH —REERBEENESR REESH
KPI B1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment type (full time or People first:
part-time), age group and geographical region. Employment
BARE R IEIRB 1 RIR - EREE (NERERE) - FiRERNREE S E AANBAR
S@ - BETERE
KPI B1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and People first:

geographical region.

Employment

BSR4 MIE1EB1.2 IR FRRERN MBI NHEERAKLLE - AANBA
BT{ER
Level B2: Health and safety
[EEB2: #EEZE
General disclosure Disclosure about providing a safe working environment and | People first:

protecting employees against occupational hazards:

Employee occupational

(a) Policies; and safety
(b) The information about the compliance with relevant laws
and regulations that have a significant impact on the
issuer.
— MR BRRHUZE2THERFRREEEBRBMELETH AANBZ
(a) BOSE : R ETHEZS
(b) BTFHBITABEAZENHMERZRBROINER -
KPI B2.1 The number and ratio of work-related deaths annually in the | People first:
past three years (including the reporting year). Employee occupational
safety
RS2 AE BURIRB2.1 BEZF (BRERFE) SFRITHOABILLE - AANBZ
BIR¥ELZS
KPI B2.2 Lost days due to work injury. People first:
Employee occupational
safety
B IE N IEIEB2.2 EHIGIERTERE - AR
BIRERS
KPI B2.3 Description of occupational health and safety measures People first:

RSB 815 B2.3

adopted, how they are implemented and monitored.
Describe training activities.

RORPIER AR BRI 2 2466 - U RABBRIT REERITE -

Employee occupational
safety

AANBA

BTRZEZE

BHRAEHRHERIR —B-MNFFH
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Main categories, levels, general disclosures, and KPIs

TEEE BE —REERBEERER

Disclosure section

BREED

Level B3: Development and training

[EHEB3 : BEREI

General disclosure

Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and skills for
discharging duties at work.

People first:
Employee training

— AR R BRREERITIIERE M MB R REENER o #HEIE AANRA
) o 8 T3
KPI B3.1 The percentage of employees trained by gender and People first:

employee category (e.g. senior management, middle
management, etc.).

Employee training

RABEAERURIEB3.1 RUERIREEEN (WRRERE PREEES) 250X AANBZ

EEBSL - B T
KPI B3.2 Average training hours completed per employee by gender People first:

and employee category. Employee training
BB IERIRIRB3.2 RUERILEEERIB D - BRESTKZ I TR AABA

I
Level B4: Labor standards
[BHEB4 : 35T XH|

General disclosure Disclosures about preventing child and forced labor: People first:

(a) Policies; and
(b) The information about the compliance with relevant laws
and regulations that have a significant impact on the

Employment

issuer.
— AR ER BRADI IEE T ko8 mI 55 T ¢ AANBAR :
(a) B : & BT {RME
(b) BFHETABEATENRERNROINER -
KPI B4.1 Description of measures to review employment practices to People first:
avoid child and forced labor. Employment
RARIE RIS B4 1 R MBS PR e LA B 2 B T eI T - AANRA
BTER
KPI B4.2 Description of steps taken to eliminate such practices when | People first:
discovered. Employment
BB E WIRIRBA.2 e B BE RIS HIR B BB TR 28] - AARA
BT{ER
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Main categories, levels, general disclosures, and KPIs

TEEE BE —REERBEERESR

Disclosure section

BREED

Level B5: Supply chain management

[EEBS : frEgEEE

General disclosure

Environmental and social risk policies for supply chain

Product liability:

management. Supply chain management
— MR ERHEENIRE Mt S RBEBUR o EmEE:
HrEpen
KPI B5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical region. Product liability:

RS RUEIREBS A

ZREDOHEREE -

Supply chain management

EmBEFE:
Hregers

KPI B5.2

RS A 515 B5.2

Description of practices relating to engaged suppliers,
number of suppliers where the practices are being
implemented and how they are implemented and monitored.

Wt BRI A ERED - MERITERBEHMNHRERE
B ARBENTRERTX -

Product liability:
Supply chain management

EmAE:
HreEEn

KPI B5.3

BSR4 515 B5.3

Description of the practices used to identify the
environmental and social risks at every stage of the supply

chain and relevant implementation and monitoring methods.

A ARSI R RS ERENRE LA ERBNES - ARk
HEARITRERTE -

Product liability:
Supply chain management

EmAE:
HAERE R

KPI B5.4

RAS2 45 515 B5 .4

Description of the practices used to promote the use
of green products and services at the time of selecting
suppliers and relevant implementation and monitoring
methods.

R ESR B EE R (R Z ARRERLRENEN - SAKRE
BT RERTE -

Product liability:
Supply chain management

EmEE:
HAERE R

BHRAEHRHERIR —B-MNFFH
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Main categories, levels, general disclosures, and KPIs

TEEE BE —REERBEERER

Disclosure section

BREED

Level B6: Product liability
[EEB6 : EmEE

General disclosure Disclosure about health and safety, advertisement, label

and privacy matters relating to products and services

provided and methods of redress.

(a) Policies; and

(b) The information about the compliance with relevant laws
and regulations that have a significant impact on the
issuer.

— AR R B R IR A AN AR TS Y fi2 R B CEE - BREEEUK
FLFR AR AR

(a) BSE + &

(b) BTHETABEAZENBRERRANNER -

Product liability:
Quality management
system

Quality control
Customer privacy

‘UBH+

gan
'?El: %%//L
mE EE
BEFERLE

HEED

\
.

F
]
[x]
jm]
2]

KPI B6.1 Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to
recalls for safety and health reasons.

Product liability:
Product recall process
and handling mechanism

received and how they are dealt with.

R N F515B6 1 EERCEXERBEPRRRERBAMARLKNESL - | EREE:
jZDD =] @/Nb%ﬁ%& I%%%”
KPI B6.2 Number of products and services related complaints Customer service:

Pharmacovigilance and
customer complaints

protecting intellectual property rights.

RS2 4E WIE1RB6.2 BRERMNERMREHIRFE B AR EH L - BEPR
LWL R PR ER
KPI B6.3 Description of practices relating to safeguarding and Innovative R&D:

Intellectual property

recall procedures.

protection
FAgR B RIRIEB6.3 R ERRENBEEG@ANED - BlIFTH L

FBE R
KPI B6.4 Description of quality verification process and product Product liability:

Product recall process
and handling mechanism

policies and how they are implemented and monitored.

RASR 4 M HE15B6.5 fUE B E ERHRE RILBEER - U RAAERITRERTE -

RS2 4E RIS B6.4 RS SR TREREMEWIER - EmAE:
B A B2 K R T
KPI B6.5 Description of consumer data protection and privacy Responsible operation:

Customer privacy
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Main categories, levels, general disclosures, and KPIs

TEEE BE —REERBEERESR

Disclosure section

BREED

Level B7: Anti-corruption

EmEB7 : RES

General disclosure

Disclosure about bribery, extortion, fraud and money
laundering:

Responsible operation:
Compliance and anti-fraud

(a) Policies; and management
(b) Compliance with relevant laws and regulations and other
materials that have a significant impact on the issuer.
— R iE BRI IERERR - B - MGFROTRER FIEEE
(a) B : & BN R FEERE TR
(b) BFHBEITABEAZENEBMERZRBAONER -
KPI B7.1 Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt Responsible operation:

RSB MIEIRBT .1

practices brought against the issuer or its employees during
the reporting period and the outcomes of the cases.
RERPANEBITAREEBERDIEEENETHARNGD
A RFDER -

Compliance and anti-fraud
management

BiEEE

BR NIRRT

KPI B7.2

RS 8RBT .2

Description of preventive measures and whistle-blowing
procedures, and how they are implemented and monitored.

e R R RIER - U REERITRER S E

Responsible operation:
Complaining and whistle-
blowing ways

BEEE

AR IR

KPI B7.3

RS A 815 BT .3

Description of the anti-corruption training provided for the
directors and employees.

Corporate governance
Training on combating
corruption and upholding
integrity as well as internal
control risks

EER

REFE R AR R

BHREEHRGERAR

“EMEFR
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Main categories, levels, general disclosures, and KPIs

TEEE BE —REERBEERER

Disclosure section

BREED

Level B8: Community investment

[EHEBS : HERE

General disclosure

Policies on community engagement to understand the
needs of the communities where the issuer operates and
to ensure its business activities take into consideration the
communities’ interests.

Community construction
and engagement in public

welfare

—RRHE B RSERTRESEMEHRFZNEREEXK TS HEER  BEDE
ZRARMNBOBER -
KPI B8.1 Focus areas of contribution (e.g. education, environmental Community construction

RS AR 215 B8. 1

concerns, labor needs, health, culture, and sports).

ETEREE (MBS RREE  STHRBE - b 8

B)-

and engagement in public

welfare

HEER - BRI A@m

KPI B8.2

RASR 4 515 B8.2

Resources (e.g. money or time) contributed to the focus
areas.

EEIREMBAER (MESEREH) -

Community construction
and engagement in public
welfare

HEER - BRI A@m
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RIR - aERERRE

BREEAX

3D Medicines Inc., an exempted company with limited liability
incorporated under the laws of the Cayman Islands on January 30,
2018, the Shares of which are listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange (Stock Code: 1244)

3D Medicines Inc. (B E 24) K AHRAMIE A 7

envafolimab (brand name: ENWEIDA, BE#3=®), a subcutaneously
injectable PD-L1 inhibitor for the treatment of tumor-agnostic indications
BAREN (M4 - B#ES) B —FARNGEZBENN TEHPD-L1#
A

biologic license application

SRR RE R B

new drug application
CE Lok

multi-regional clinical trial

Investigational New Drug

BERRARPH

Plan — Do — Check — Act
Plan (51 &) - Do (¥177) - Check (1% ) - Act (FZ3%)

Platinum-resistant ovarian cancer

SAFR BRI L e B S

acute myeloid leukemia, a type of cancer that progresses rapidly and
aggressively, and affects the bone marrow and blood
SUBEAmE  —BERRERELREE  SXEEBNIR

Malignant pleural mesothelioma

N AR R R R

Ovarian cancer

0 s

Multiple myeloma
ZEUEEHR

Messenger RNA
B

Center for Drug Evaluation, National Medical Products Administration

FREmEEERRERETTL
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NMPA
NMPA

CSCO
CSCO

ESG
ESG

cGMP
cGMP

ELISA
ELISA

FDA
FDA

PCR
PCR

XtalPi
XtalPi

GMP

GMP

GCP
GCP

SOP
SOP

GDPR
GDPR

R&D
R&D

referred as

ECl

referred as

Ecl

referred as

Ec

referred as

5

referred as

B

referred as

Ec

referred as

EC

referred as

5

referred as

referred as

B

referred as

EC

referred as

EC

referred as

5
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National Medical Products Administration
EREMNEBEER

Chinese Society of Clinical Oncology

hEEKERSS

Environmental, Social and Governance
RIE - e ERE

Current Good Manufacturing Practice for Drugs
BRREMNEETIRRE

Enzyme Linked Immunosorbent Assay

B o R 5

the United States Food and Drug Administration
EHRREREEEER

Polymerase Chain Reaction
FelRRE

XtalPi
IR

Good Manufacturing Practices, the existing guidelines and regulations
issued in accordance with the Drug Administration Law of the People’s
Republic of China, as part of quality assurance, are designed to
minimize the risks of contamination, cross-contamination, confusion
and errors in the manufacture of pharmaceutical products, and ensure
that drugs subject to such guidelines and regulations are continuously
manufactured and controlled in accordance with the quality and
standards applicable to the intended use

EMEEREEERE  RBE(PEARANBEREIRE) PREMOIE
SIRME  ERBEREBN—HD  EEZSAREMFEEREEBESS
FRXFF - BERERSRAR  BRIXZFHESILRERBHERIER
HEERBERNRERRESBEERTE

Good Clinical Practice
ZYERH BN EEER®

Standard Operation Procedure

REEERER

General Data Protection Regulation

B A BUR R E D

research and development
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIE -HERERHRE

FORM OF READER’S FEEDBACK AESROER
Dear readers: BHMMEE
Hello! RAT |
Thanks for reading this report. We are sincerely looking forward to your R R EARRE - RPEH ISR E
valuable feedback and advise on the report so that we can continue RBRELITHE  BHESERIUERM
to improve our work, enhance ESG management ability and upgrade BENE TE  IBEESESGE B ML K
ESG management standard! You may send us the questionnaire ¥ | RELGRIBE S IR A 3K E T
through mail or scan the questionnaire and send us a digital version HEBBEFOBSLBAEREM  BOERE
through email. Your active feedback are most welcomed. Thank you! HESERNEE - Bin
Mailing 7 Liangshuihe 1st Street, Building 3-6, Yizhuang HKEK : PRI R OE R R R R
Address:  Biomedical Park, BDA, Beijing, China SR — /7Y SR AEY
BRI 5RIE
Tel.: +86(10)6788 8635 EiE 0 +86(10)6788 8635
E-mail: fang.xia@3d-medicines.com EE : fang.xia@3d-medicines.com
1. What kind of stakeholders of the Group do you work for?
[J Shareholder and Investor [ Employee [ Supplier [ Customer
[J Government and Regulator [J Community [l Partner [ Industry Association/NGO
[J Others (Please specify)
TR TIEEMBASEERNB— BN =ER 7 ?
OBEREEE OEI O#Elm O0XF
OBNREE®E OdE O &ERYE DIERE./NGO
O Hh (B8R
2. Your overall rating of the Report:
[J Good [J Fair [J Average [J Poor
BE AR E R TE I ?
O OF O—& O=
3. How do you rate the clarity, accuracy and completeness of the information and data disclosed in the Report?
(] Good [ Fair [J Average [ Poor
BRRABREABRENET - BUEBME - EWHME - TBEMNM ?
O OBy O—% O=
4. How do you rate the comprehensiveness of the economic responsibility undertaken by the Group reflected in the
Report?
(1 Good L[ Fair [ Average L[] Poor
ERBARERM A EE AN LB N2 E M 2
O Oy O—& O
5. How do you rate the comprehensiveness of the environmental responsibility undertaken by the Group reflected in

the Report?

[0 Good [0 Fair [J Average [J Poor

HRBNHRE RMRAE B FAENRBEE TN S0 ?
O Oy O—% O=

BHRAEHRHERIR —B-MNFFH
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIE - HERERERSE

6. How do you rate the comprehensiveness of the social responsibility undertaken by the Group reflected in the
Report?
[J Good [ Fair [ Average [ Poor
ERRARERRAEBEPAAEN LS EENZE N[ ?
O%#% ORF O—& O

7. Do you think the information provided in the Report is readable?
[1 Good L[ Fair [ Average L[] Poor
ERBABEFRENENRTABIEL?

O OBy O—% O

8.  What would you like to know that is not disclosed in the Report?

CHREBEBEIRERRETRENNRE ?

9.  Your comments and suggestions on the ESG work and report preparation of the Group.
THAREIRE e RCERBITENRERFEHNERMNER
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Modern Assure

RAR LA & 36D F 5% 7R R 9)

Sheung Wan
Hong Kong

Tel: 3579 8590
Fax: 3643 0455

To the shareholders of 3D Medicines Inc.
(Incorporated in Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of 3D
Medicines Inc. (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set
out on pages 201 to 304, which comprise the consolidated statement
of financial position as at December 31, 2024, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including material accounting policy
information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at
December 31, 2024, and of its consolidated financial performance
and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) issued by
the International Accounting Standards Board (the “IASB”) and have
been properly prepared in compliance with the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA”). Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the
audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our report. We
are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code
of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Unit B, 14/F, Eton Building
288 Des Voeux Road Central

Independent Auditor’'s Report
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BYZBEHRE

Emphasis of Matter

We draw attention to note 2.1(A) to the consolidated financial
statements and the Company’s announcements dated February 17,
2025 and January 24, 2025, which indicate an uncertainty relating
to the future outcome of a civil proceeding against the Group. Our
opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. For each matter
below, our description of how our audit addressed the matter is
provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report, including in relation to these matters.
Accordingly, our audit included the performance of procedures
designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements. The results of
our audit procedures, including the procedures performed to address
the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the
accompanying consolidated financial statements.

3D Medicines Inc. Annual Report 2024

BMAEEE

B BRI A MR E2.1(A) A R
RAIN202551 A 24 AfN20252 417 R
BMOAE  ETBRT BEEHARR
FEERFAERNTHREN - RMHER
W EFL UL FBIELES -

HEET SR

MREAFTRIRERMANEZHE - &
REAMGE M BHRENBARREED
BH - ZEFERREUGAVBRRER
ETRFALRSTEREAFERNERTHE
TREMN  MERMIHYZEFFARHER
MER - RMBETRE-—FEAREFHR
Al R IR MR TR AL B E =

HMERTARSESAN [ REEMHBA GRS
BRERAENEME | —HMEANEE - &
EEZEERAEORE - - - H A
MES TEREATAEYEEMB MK
B OK 8 R R [ B O 5 7 1 AR R T O B A AR
e BMPBTEARFNER  BEEE
TREEFATHER - BB AR
EMBMRBERE; B RIRERE -



Key audit matter

BRETER

Independent Auditor’'s Report
B BEN RS

How our audit addressed the key audit
matter
BMNEFNWEEERETEE

Risk of misstatement of research and development expenses
— Expenses relating to the Outsourced Service Providers and
collaboration partners

R B H A m b — B GIREIE M E
RFIREIEBHIEENESR

The Group incurred significant research and development (“R&D”)
expenses of RMB180,721,000 as disclosed in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income for
the year ended December 31, 2024. Service fees paid to contract
research organisations (“CROs”), clinical site management operators
(“SMOs”) (collectively referred as “Outsourced Service Providers”),
and co-development fees paid to R&D collaboration partners are
included in the Group’s R&D expenses.

HE2024F12A31ALFENREBEREME2ERERTESE - 15
BEAETARYE180,721,000 tEAMEER - XL ERFFTALRZ
([CROJ) - MRS EEELE ([SMO)) (KB A INBIRBEIRES )W
RISE  URIHAHESEEHOEARREEN S EEBNHEER
q:n °

The R&D activities with these Outsourced Service Providers and
R&D collaboration partners are documented in agreements and are
typically performed over an extended period. These expenses are
charged to profit or loss based on the progress of the R&D activities.
We identified the measurement of R&D expenses as a key audit
matter due to the significant amount and the judgement involved in
determining the progress of the research and development projects.

BE LN IRISIREE A B A ERH ORI RS ERTT - BBE
R—BERENBEANT - SLEBERREABBZDHOERT ABE - AN
HESFBEBEA  WHAAEEENEIEBERE S MAE - HASHEEROE
EMERRRREESSHE-

The accounting policy and significant accounting estimation related
to R&D expenses are set out in notes 2.4 and 3 of the consolidated
financial statements.

B EAABN S RRMENG A BN GRS M RRME2.4 MK
3

We obtained an understanding of and
evaluated the key controls over the R&D
expense recognition process.

B ERI AT T WA B R ERBEN
RAgR I o

We inquired management about the
reasons for periodical fluctuations in
these R&D expenses for each project
and assessed the reasonableness of
those fluctuations.

BPmERERRTSEREEERA
HERBHRE - WaE T ELKEBHNE
Bt o

We, on a sample basis, checked the
payments of these R&D expenses
against supporting documents in both
current and subsequent periods to
determine whether these R&D expenses
were recognised in appropriate periods.

HMERSEOER L - BE T REMRE
IR S B A MBI R 1E X
- HEE 3% B R R D EEE o R fE

7 °
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BYZBEHRE

Key audit matter

BRETER

How our audit addressed the key audit
matter
BMNEF NN EEERETEE

Risk of misstatement of research and development expenses
— Expenses relating to the Outsourced Service Providers and
collaboration partners

TR EHEH A m b — B GIREIE M E
RFIREIEBHIEENES

3D Medicines Inc. Annual Report 2024

We, on a sample basis, checked the key
terms set out in R&D related agreements
with Outsourced Service Providers

and R&D collaboration partners and
evaluated the completion progress of the
R&D projects based on the inspection of
supporting documents.

B RS T BB RIS E AT
BIER AT AT B ARRE 10 E P MY B 52 15
B WS HF MR R 3T E T
MEIAE TRERE -

We, on a sample basis, obtained
confirmations from the Outsourced
Service Providers.

HMEMSENER L - VB RBREE
MBS T EERER -



Other matter

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2023 were audited by another auditor who expressed
an unmodified opinion on those statements on March 28, 2024.

Other information included in the Annual Report

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information included
in the Annual Report, other than the consolidated financial statements
and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the directors for the consolidated financial
statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with IFRSs issued by the IASB and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the
Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
directors of the Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process.

Independent Auditor’'s Report
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BYZBEHRE

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Our report is made solely to you, as
a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the

reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

3D Medicines Inc. Annual Report 2024
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o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to

cease to continue as a going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair

presentation.

. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for
our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

Independent Auditor’'s Report
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BYZBEHRE

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

Modern Assure CPA Limited

Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, March 31, 2025

Wong Wai Lun

Practising Certificate Number P06094
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Consolidated Statements of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

mEEEREMEERE

Year ended December 31, 2024 & Z20245F 12431 H IFFE

2024 2023

2024F 20234

Notes RMB’ 000 RMB’000

B sk AR¥T R ARETFTT

REVENUE A 5 445,647 634,949

Cost of sales SHERKA 8 (36,572) (49,091)

Gross profit EF 409,075 585,858

Other income and net gains H YA KT as 5 54,736 40,988

Research and development expenses 252 (180,721) (425,497)

Administrative expenses TR (78,256) (217,080)

Selling and marketing expenses HEREHAS (235,937) (378,806)

Royalty expenses RrarEERE 8 (37,337) (61,845)

Other expenses HibF 6 (111,378) (99,149)

Finance costs B AR 7 (9,503) (7,772)
Expected credit losses on financial CRVEEREFE

assets, net

LOSS BEFORE TAX
Income tax expense

(10,057) [ <
FR7 A 518 8

(199,378) (562,466)
RSB 11 (55)

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE LOSS FOR
THE YEAR

NEEL2HEBERE
(199,378) |CED

Attributable to:
Owners of the parent company
Non-controlling interests

AT AL FEL -
UNGIE 2 =DN (182,663) (524,697)
IR = (16,715) (37 824)

(199,378) (562,521)

LOSS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO
ORDINARY
EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT
Basic and diluted (RMB)

SRR EBREERA ARG
B ER

EARES (AR 13

L>
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

mE MR R

As at December 31, 2024 722024512 H31H

2024
2024
RMB’ 000
ARETT

121,733
625
25,992
56,817

23,338

4,059
47,862

93,537
1,313

169,516

227,146
444,318

987,751

51,131
223,736
204,592

487,788

Notes
Bt s
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FEMENEE
Property, plant and equipment W% - BERZE 14
Intangible assets mREE 15
Right-of-use assets CREAE 16
Other non-current assets EIERB A E 17
Financial assets measured at SR AT E SRMEAE
amortised cost 21
Amount due from a related party JE AR RS 5 SRIE 33
Total non-current assets EMENEELE
CURRENT ASSETS MEEE
Inventories 7E
Trade receivables B 5 W IR 18
Prepayments, other receivables and TERTFRIE « E At FEUCGRIE R H
other assets fth & B 19
Amount due from a related party JFEUR BAES 5 5RIE 33
Financial assets at fair value through  EZRQAFEFAEZR ([RAFE
profit or loss (“FVTPL") ABREDNEREE 20
Financial assets measured at LAERRPK AT E 2 ©RVE EE
amortised cost 21
Cash and bank balances & RIRITEEER 22
Total current assets MEEERE
CURRENT LIABILITIES mEAE
Trade payables B 538 23
Other payables and accruals HitbERIa R ETEA 24
Interest-bearing bank borrowings B BERITIE K 25
Income tax payables FEAT RS AR
Amount due to a related party FE A BB EE 5 5RIE 33
Lease liabilities HERE 16
Contract liabilities ERAE
Total current liabilities mEBEEARE
NET CURRENT ASSETS mBEEFE

499,963

TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT
LIABILITIES

BERERTBAE

728,468

3D Medicines Inc. Annual Report 2024

2023
20234
RMB'000
ARETT

133,266
727
59,984
14,202

124,272
1,207

333,728

4,612
5,459

88,506

209,329

120,776
666,472

1,095,154

71,899
178,483
201,374

55

800
23,225
24,535

500,371

594,783

928,511



Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e BRI R

As at December 31, 2024 72024412 531H

2024 2023
2024F 20234
Notes RMB’ 000 RMB’000
Bt AR¥T R AE%?%
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FERBBE
Lease liabilities HEAE 16 8,254 28,584
Interest-bearing bank borrowings B B ERIT AR 25 16,500 29 242
Total non-current liabilities EMEBBELERE 24,754 57 826
NET ASSETS FEE 703,714 870, 685
EQUITY T
Equity attributable to owners of the NRAFFE AEMLER
parent company
Share capital f& 7 26 226 226
Treasury shares JERER) 26 (172) (12)
Reserves =] 27 785,008 936,525
785,062 936,739
Non-controlling interests SRR 28 (81,348) (66,054)
TOTAL EQUITY EmEEE 870,685

Dr. Gong Zhaolong

BkEE L
Director

EZE

Mr. Zhou Feng
A%t
Director

EE
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

RERBBEHR

Year ended December 31, 2024 & Z2024F 12318 It FE

Year ended December 31, 2024

At January 1, 2024

Total comprehensive loss for the year

Recognition of equity-settled share-based
payments (note 29)

Repurchase of shares in relation to restricted

Share

capital

&

RMB 000

ARETT

(note 26)

(K26)
R0uE1A1R
EMREEELE

BEXRHRAEERRA
(o)

TEREEI RO AERON

share units note 29) (H29)
Repurchase of orcinary shares (nofe 29) BEERRRG (Fi2)
At December 31, 2024 RNA4E 124318

3D Medicines Inc. Annual Report 2024

HZE2024512831HILEE

Attributable to owners of the parent company

BOTRAARS

Treasury
shares
EER

RMB 000

ARRTR

(note 26)

(H&26)

Share
premium
RtiE
RMB'000

ARBTT
(note 36)
(Hit3p)

4,785,332

4,785,221

Other
reserve
AhER

RMB’000
ARETR

311,965

3.216*

Accumulated
losses
£ithE
RMB'000
ARETT

(180,772
(182,663)

(4,343,435

Total
RMB’000
ABETR

9673
(162,663)

31,250

(105)
(160)

786,062

Non-
controlling
interests
FERER
RMB'000
I\

(66,054)
(16,715

1421

(61,348

Total
equity
REEE
RMB’000
ARET7

870,685
(199,378

2672

(105)
(160)

103,714




Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
mEERBER

Year ended December 31, 2023

HZE2023F12A31BILEE

Attributable to owners of the parent company

Year ended December 31, 2024 £ Z2024F12 A31H It FE

BATREAERE
Non-
Share Treasury Share Other  Accumulated controlling Total
capital shares premium Teserve |osses Total inferests equity
ie ERR RivaE i 2k B HihEs faig
RMB'000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000
ARETT  ARETT  ARETT  ARETn  ARETn  ARETn  ARETT  ARETH
(note 26) (note 26) (note 38)
At January 1, 2023 RN23E171A 23 (26) 4201891 30982 (3636,075) 943,001 (47.587) 895,414
Total comprehensive loss for the year EMREERLE - - - - (54.607)  (524,697) (o788 (562521)
Repurchase of shares in refaon fo restricted BNEREE I ROBERIAR
share units (note 29) (HiEo9) - (1) ) - - (43) - )
Recogniion of equily-setted share-based EOSRHRAZMABRE (Hi2o)
payments (note 29) - - - 282,781 - 262,781 16,182 298963
Evercise of restricted share units note 29) fifEXRalRR B (Hxo0) - 15 U463 (338623 - 285 = 2855
Exercise of an over-allotment option fikBELRE 1 - 8,992 - - 8,993 - 8,993
Placing of new shares RENRA 2 - 21233 - - 212340 - 212340
Share issue expenses R%ER = = (5.316) - - (5,316) - (5316)
Capital contrbution from & non-controling WEAT-AHERRRMIE
shareholder of a subsidiary - - - 16,825 - 16,825 3,17 20,000
At December 31, 2023 1023% 124318 26 (12) 4,785,332 311.965" (4160772 936,739 (66,054) 870,685
* These reserve accounts compromise the consolidated reserves of * ZERBERPBIEN2024F12A318

RMB785,008,000 as at December 31, 2024 (2023: RMB936,525,000) in
consolidated statement of financial position.

REEMBRARTFNGERBEARYE
785,008,0007T (20234 : &RA B AR

936,525,0007%) °

BREEHRHERAR

—E_MEFH
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

GERERER

Year ended December 31, 2024 & Z=2024F12A31H I FE

Notes
Bt s
CASH FLOWS USED IN OPERATING KEEEFTRRERE
ACTIVITIES
Loss before tax FR7A A 518
Adjustments for: PATZIEEL T
Finance costs RN 7
Interest income FLEWA 5
Gains on termination of leases BIEHEE 7 Was
Investment income on other DERIEBRKNATEZ
investments classified as financial TREENHEMIZED
assets measured at amortised cost BERA 5
Investment income on other DERERATEF ABR
investments classified as financial WEREENEMIEE
assets at FVTPL ORI PN 5
Fair value gains on other investments DEAE AT EFAERE
classified as financial assets at WEREENEMIIRE
FVTPL A FE RS 5
Gain on disposal of property, plant Y BEMIEEE
and equipment Wz
Depreciation of property, plant and ME - BEREBETE
equipment 14
Amortisation of intangible assets mEESE 15
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREESERE 16
Written off of property, plant and WEHTZ - RE MR
equipment 6
Expected credit losses on financial SREEREFE
assets, net
Foreign exchange changes, net bE N FE)FER 5/6
Equity-settled share-based payments DARE 25 45 8 AR D A 2L 1R
VR 29

Changes in working capital:
Inventories
Trade receivables
Other non-current assets
Prepayments, other receivables and

other assets

Trade payables
Amount due to a related party
Other payables and accruals
Contract liabilities

A A

F=

2 MR

L IER B E E

IR - H KRR
REMEE

B S RN RIA

J& A BRESE 77 FOR

HEA N R R EETE R

ERAE

i s

\

Net cash flows used in operating
activities

REFHFAREMEFE
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2024

2024 F
RMB’ 000
ARETT

RELEYZ))

9,503
(10,923)
(3,657)

(14,363)

(8,914)

(10)

8,907
102
16,242

4,069

10,057
(8,976)

32,672

34,234

553
(42,659)
2,737

(5,031)
(20,768)
(800)
45,069
(24,535)

(210,578)

2023
2023
RMB'000
ARETT

(562,466)

7,772
(6,531)

(12,891)

(44)

(7,379)

7,859
101
17,501

(837)
2,554

298,963

307,068

(3,416)
72,705
(7,045)

34,118
56,019
800

(66,731)
24,535

(144,413)



Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
n-\éiﬁrﬁﬁéﬁ

Year ended December 31, 2024 & Z20245F 12431 H IFFE

CASH FLOWS FROM/(USED IN)
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchases of property, plant and

2024
2024 F
Notes RMB’ 000
Bt AR® T
BEEEHE (A BE
mE

BEWE BERXEREB

equipment (1,464)
Proceeds from disposal of property, LEWE  BERRES

plant and equipment Wzs 31
Deposit paid in respect of construction BRERIRINZETS

in progress (43,893)
Purchase of financial assets at FVTPL BERATESABED

SREE 20 (230,000)

Proceeds from disposal of financial HER AT ERABRN

assets at FVTPL SRVEEFTS A 20 279,202
Purchase of financial assets measured BEIREBRNATTEZ

at amortised cost SREE (60,000)
Proceeds from disposal of financial HEREMRKATEZ

assets measured at amortised cost ERVEEFSHIEA 63,255
Interest received [SAL&IES 10,821
Net cash flows from/(used in) investing BEEEAG (A Be

activities mME

BREEHRHERAR

2023
2023 4
RMB’000

ARETTT

(6,324)

(163,023)

69,721

(263,116)

168,735

6,428

(187,579)

—E_MEFH
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

GERERER

Year ended December 31, 2024 & Z=2024F12A31H I FE

2024

2024 F

Notes RMB’ 000
Bt s AR¥T T

CASH FLOWS (USED IN)/FROM
FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Payments for repurchase of shares in
relation to restricted share units

Offshore preferred shares repurchase
before listing

Net proceeds from issue of ordinary
shares upon IPO

Listing expenses paid

New bank borrowings

Repayments of bank borrowings and
loan interests

New other borrowing

Repayment of other borrowing

Payments for rental deposits

Principal portion of lease payments

Payments of compensation for the
termination of leases

Proceeds from return of rental deposits

Proceeds from exercise of restricted
share units

Payments for repurchase of ordinary
shares

Capital contribution received from a non-
controlling shareholder of a subsidiary

MEERD (FTA),/ iR
me

BB [0 2[R il A BB AR B A
(HXNEA

LRI EEIME LR

BITERRAIISRIAFR

B EHRAX
FTIBRITIE R
ERRITERRF L

HIGEMBER
ERAMER
HEZ SR
HEMFNAZ 7D
XFRIFEERNHES

RERSME SR

TR BN BALFAE
A

BB R

P8 X B) — A FE R AR AR 9
TE

246,350

(264,066)
15,000
REXI)
(753)
(13,451)

(1,734)

Net cash flows (used in)/from financing
activities

MERY (A FARSE

s B &
mE R

(33,919)

NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning
of year

Effect of foreign exchange rate changes,
net

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT
END OF YEAR

RekA2EBYWRIFR

FORELBRSEFED

SINEETE R B B 5 AR

FRRENBREEED

(226,545)

666,472

4,391

444,318

ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents as stated
in the consolidated statement of cash
flows

RekBeEBMEHRIT

SERTRERMIIZESD
LB EEY

22 444,318
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2023
2023
RMB'000
ARETT

(43)
(5,709)
216,370
(994)

242,600

(149,420)

(550)
(20,802)
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2,854

20,000

304,511

(27,481)

696,740

(2,787)

666,472

666,472



Notes to Financial Statements

B RS HRR 5L

Year ended December 31, 2024 & Z20245F 12431 H IFFE

CORPORATE INFORMATION

3D Medicines Inc. (the “Company”) was incorporated in the
Cayman lIslands (“Cayman”) on January 30, 2018 as a limited
liability company. The registered office address of the Company
is Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman
KY1-1111, Cayman Islands.

The Company is an investing holding company. The Company
and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”)
are principally engaged in the research, development and
commercialisation of pharmaceutical products.

Information about subsidiaries

As at the date of this report, particulars of the Company’s
subsidiaries are as follows:

Place and date of

AR ER

3D Medicines Inc. ([&ARQRA]) A
—fR2018F1A30REREHS
MK BERAR o ARAWE
f i E @R it ACricket Square,
Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681,
Grand Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman
Islands °

ARRRREZBAT - KRR RM
BAR (ABAIAEE]) XEREL
R REELL -

ME D BER

RAREBE  ARARMBARNF
BT

incorporation/ Issued ordinary Percentage of
registration and equity attributable
Name place of operations registered capital to capital Principal activities
HEMAL/ RbER BRITEER/
8 AR E XL EfRA NG R TEXH
Direct Indirect
Ef 553
Full Goal Trading Limited (“Full Goal") British Virgin Islands (“BVI") US$50,000 100% - Investment holding
January 30, 2018
Full Goal Trading Limited ([ Full Goall) RBRAHE ([RERI#HS]) 50,000% 7T 100% - RERR
20181 A30A
3D Medicines USA, Inc. (“3DMed USA") United States of America (‘USA”) US$1,500 100% - Research and
October 12, 2018 development
3D Medicines USA, Inc. ([3DMed USA])  ZFIEARE([XE ) 1,500% 70 100% - E
20185104 128
3D Medicines (Hong Kong) Co., Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 100%  Investment holding
(BRABERE () BRAF February 8, 2018
(“3DMed Hong Kong")
BREBERR (FR) BRAA &k 10,0007t - 100% HEAER
(TBHuEE]) 201852 A8H
Integral Lane Holding Limited BVI US$50,000 - 100%  Investment holding
April 17,2018
Integral Lane Holding Limited EBRUES 50,000%7T = 100%  REAER
20185474178

BHREEHRHERIR —B-MNFFH
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Notes to Financial Statements

B RS HRAR I EE

Year ended December 31, 2024 & Z=2024F12A31H I FE

1. CORPORATE INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

As at the date of this report, particulars of the Company’s

subsidiaries are as follows: (continued)

Place and date of

RAEH (&)
HE A AR ()

RARE B - AARKE AR

BT - (88)

incorporation/ Issued ordinary Percentage of
registration and shares/ equity attributable
Name place of operations registered capital to capital Principal activities
HMARYL/ EREER BRALER/
&R AANRE R BTN LN R TERH
Direct Indirect
Ef 553
3D Medicines Biotechnology (Shanghai) Chinese Mainland US$119,735,390 - 89.46%  Research and
Co., Ltd* (REEEMBLE(LB)BRAR)  September 10, 2015 development
(“3D Medicines”)
BReLEYBE(LE)ERAR RE R 119,735,390% 7T - 89.46% B
(TRRpeE) 201599 10R
3D Medicines (Beijing) Co., Ltd.” Chinese Mainland RMB200,000,000 - 89.46%  Research and
(BRAILR)BERRBRAT) December 22, 2014 development
(“3DMed Beijing”)**
BHE(LR) BERRERAR A AR #200,000,0007 = 89.46% M
(TRt 2014512228
3DMed Shanghai Pharmaceutical Chinese Mainland RMB50,000,000 - 89.46%  Research and
Technology Co., Ltd.* (B8(L)8)B%E  April 13, 2017 development
R BRAR) (“3DMed Shanghai”)
B (08 BERRERAR hE R A&H50,000,0007 - 80.46% W%
(IBxe L8] 2017E4A17H
Sichuan 3DMed-Alphamab Co., Ltd.* Chinese Mainland RMB50,000,000 - 89.46%  Research, and
(M BREREEARAT) March 16, 2016 development and
(“3DMed Sichuan”)** commercialisation
M BRI EEARAR PE R AR 50,000,007 - 80.46% HEREEL
(Tm)I BB ) 2016537168
Xuzhou 3D Medicines Pharmaceutical Chinese Mainland US$150,000,000 - 100%  Manufacturing and
Co., Ltd.* (RMBHBEEERAF) November 26, 2020 trading
(“3DMed Xuzhou")
BSMBREEZARAR ([BIREHM]) PE R 150,000,000% T - 100% SERES
2020511 7268

3D Medicines Inc. Annual Report 2024



Notes to Financial Statements

B RS HRR 5L

Year ended December 31, 2024 & Z20245F 12431 H IFFE

CORPORATE INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

As at the date of this report, particulars of the Company’s

subsidiaries are as follows: (continued)

Place and date of

1.

RNAEH (&)
HE A AR ()

RAZREBH » NRFMERFHIF

BT - (8)

incorporation/ Issued ordinary Percentage of
registration and shares/ equity attributable
Name place of operations registered capital to capital Principal activities
ERAY/ RBER BRTLER/
2R ABNREELE R FRAAEEEEAALL TEEH
Direct Indirect
Ef 3
Longteng Pharmaceutical (Jiangsu) Co., Chinese Mainland RMB50,000,000 - 100%  Manufacturing
Limited" (REEE(TEH)ERAA) March 30, 2021 and trading
ERE (IH) ERAF RE R ARH50,000,0007C - 100% SERES
202143 A30A
3D Medicines (Qingdao) Co., Ltd.* (B5i#  Chinese Mainland S$302,869,976 - 99.05%  Research and
BE(FE)ER2LA) (“3DMed Qingdao”) June 18, 2021 development
BREBE(5R)BRAR(RREER])  HEAM 302,869,976 - 99.05% &
20216 4188
Kuntai Pharmaceutical Consulting (Xuzhou) ~ Chinese Mainland RMB100,000 - 100%  Medical consultation
Co., Lid.* (RRBEZREMNBRAR) March 27, 2024 Services
BRRETARNERAR RE R AR%100,0007C - 100%  BEHHARSE
202453R278
Wuyi (Hainan) Culture Media Co., Ltd.* Chinese Mainland RMB1,000,000 - 100%  Medical consultation
(BREOER)ULERERELDR) May 26, 2024 services
BB (80) ULEEAREALR FERH AR1,000,0007 - 100%  BEZARS
2024457268
Jiangxi Keruida Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.*  Chinese Mainland RMB100,000,000 - 100%  Manufacturing
(IERREREERAR) October 17, 2024
IRMREREARAF RER AR100,000,0007 - 100% &
2024510A178
BREEHRDERAT —ZT-MFEFR
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Notes to Financial Statements

B RS HRAR I EE

Year ended December 31, 2024 & Z=2024F12A31H I FE

1. CORPORATE INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

As at the date of this report, particulars of the Company’s

subsidiaries are as follows: (continued)

>k

The English names of these companies represent the best effort
made by the directors of the Company to translate the Chinese
names as these companies have not been registered with any
official English names.

On October 17, 2023, 3DMed Beijing, 3DMed Sichuan and
Jiangsu Alphamab Biopharmaceuticals Co., Ltd. (“Alphamab”) had
collectively signed a confirmation letter, in which Alphamab agrees
to transfer the 49% equity interest in 3DMed Sichuan back to 3DMed
Beijing for the original consideration of RMB1 so as to unwind the
previous arrangement of transfer of 49% equity interest in 3DMed
Sichuan to Alphamab Group under the equity transfer agreement
dated April 29, 2021. As of the date of this report, the parties are
still in the process for completing the administration procedure.

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

2.1

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) (which include all
International Financial Reporting Standards, International
Accounting Standards (“IASs”) and Interpretations) issued
by the International Accounting Standards Board (the
“IASB”) and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. They have been prepared under the
historical cost convention, except for wealth management
products which have been measured at fair value. These
financial statements are presented in Renminbi (“RMB”) and
all values are rounded to the nearest thousand (RMB’000)
except when otherwise indicated.

3D Medicines Inc. Annual Report 2024

1. AFEHR (H)
HE A AR ()

RARE B - AARKE AR
BET - ()

ok

MR EEREMETRXEHE  »
o B st A 2 R R B R TR A
ARABEERBEE AR BEMEL

WRES S -

R2023F10A17H » BEE@EiLR -
Y )1| B B8 R I BT R R B 5t I AE ) Y
BZERAR (DIHEEHSR]) D&
RZET—HHERR - B - THRE
BIRREAREREARE1THED
)1 BB BB 49 % O A% 88 0] T B BK e
b= - ABUH L ATIRIE B 81 R2021
F4R29BMREERREZD)IE
BRI 49% BRI H B T R A &
EHZH - BEARSEMHZA - &
FADESERATBAR PR BIRH -

2. WAUEERSTHE

2.1

BB
ZEHEAMBRERDREBERK
B s s R ([ ER M SRS
EA R BEERGE
AEEg ([HEEEFEAE=S
g ) R E A BB T RS
A B e R (R e
A1) REE R R GG R EE 2
Ko BRIRATEFENE TSR
TEN - ZEMBEHRERTIRIEE
ERAEREL - R B AN
ZEHBHRRAAREZS - B
EeRANEEHEEANTT
(ARBTIT) -



Notes to Financial Statements

B RS HRR 5L

Year ended December 31, 2024 & Z20245F 12431 H IFFE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.1

BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)
Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended December
31, 2024. A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured
entity), directly or indirectly, controlled by the Company.
Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has
rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the
investee and has the ability to affect those returns through
its power over the investee (i.e., existing rights that give the
Group the current ability to direct the relevant activities of
the investee).

Generally, there is a presumption that a majority of voting
rights results in control. When the Company has less than
a majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the
Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances in
assessing whether it has power over an investee, including:

(a) the contractual arrangement with the other vote
holders of the investee;

(b) rights arising from other contractual arrangements;
and

(c) the Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared
for the same reporting period as the Company, using
consistent accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries
are consolidated from the date on which the Group obtains
control, and continue to be consolidated until the date that
such control ceases.

2. WAUEERSTHE (&)

2.1

BREEHRHERAR

RBEE ()
HEEE

BAMBEBREREEARAIRE
MEBAR (REIAERE]) &=
202412 A31 B ILFENYH
HE - MBARARNAREER
HEESNER (RELELEE
) EAKEHSHEKRES
¥BMAIEOREAERRIZS
EFIA R BB IBEIE N BWIR
B ERE (R FAEER
BRENEZHIREFERESH
BETFHER]) - BNERIS 1R HI4E -

—RREVS S BERRENES
A o AR BHEA D NIRER
BT B BURRSR LR - B
AEERFHEERLHFIRET
BERENREEE—IERER
KfER - 83

(a) HEWEBREDHEMBREERS
BARARZEE

(b) EftERTHELENR
MR

(c) AEEMNBREEREBEER

e

MEA RN BIHRERTIMELRR
AR AR SRS MEERA - g
AR - B AREAR
REBEDRSEGEE BEFEEA
IR WHRESSAREZABE
B E BRI -

—E_MEFH
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Notes to Financial Statements

B RS HRAR I EE

Year ended December 31, 2024 & Z=2024F12A31H I FE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.1

BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)
Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the parent of the
Group and to the non-controlling interests, even if this
results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance. All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity,
income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full on
consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee
if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes
to one or more of the three elements of control described
above. A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary,
without a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity
transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises
the related assets (including goodwill), liabilities, any
non-controlling interest and the exchange fluctuation
reserve; and recognises the fair value of any investment
retained and any resulting surplus or deficit in profit or loss.
The Group’s share of components previously recognised in
other comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or loss
or retained profits, as appropriate, on the same basis as
would be required if the Group had directly disposed of the
related assets or liabilities.

3D Medicines Inc. Annual Report 2024

2. WAUEERSTHE (&)

2.1
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HEEE (&)

B M A2 E RS S AR E D
BERNASES QRS AR
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Notes to Financial Statements

B RS HRR 5L

Year ended December 31, 2024 & Z20245F 12431 H IFFE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING 2. RBEERSEBEE (&)

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued) 21 RBEE(E)
(A) Going concern basis (A) FFEEEREE

In preparing the financial statements, the Directors
considered the operations of the Group as a going
concern notwithstanding that the Group incurred a
net loss of approximately RMB199.4 million for the
year ended 31 December 2024 and the Group’s bank
borrowings amounted to approximately RMB204.6
million and RMB16.5 million in current and non-current
liabilities as at 31 December 2024, respectively.
In addition, on January 15, 2025, the Company
received a civil ruling (the “Civil Ruling”) issued by
the Qingdao Intermediate People’s Court, Shandong
Province, The People’s Republic of China. At the
request of Qingdao Hainuo Investment Development
Co., Ltd. (“Qingdao Hainuo”), the court ordered the
freezing of bank deposits totaling approximately
RMB458.5 million or the seizure of other assets of
equivalent value belonging to certain subsidiaries of
the Company and the Director of the Company, Gong
Zhaolong (the “Preservation Order”). In February
2025, the Group and Qingdao Hainuo have agreed to
unfreeze the bank accounts of one of the subsidiaries
of the Company, 3DMed Sichuan which serves as
the commercial operation company of B#Z®, as a
result, the preservation order on such bank accounts
had been lifted. On March 19, 2025, the Company
entered into a letter of intent for strategic cooperation,
subjected to formal agreement, with Qingdao Hainuo.
The Directors acknowledges that the Civil Ruling may
have some adverse effects on the Group's operations
and research and development activities, and the
Company’s own funds is sufficient to maintain the
normal operation of the Company’s activities.

BREEHRHERAR

TERBMBEREE  EF
ZRIAEENKELETH
MABFHELERRE
BEAEEREE2024
F12A31 AL EEHE
FEBARK100.45E
T BREER20244F
12 A31 BmRITIE R TIE
REBEBERERBARBA
R¥2046EETEAR
¥i16.58&87L e ML K
AEIR2025F 1 1581
FhEARLMEILRE
EEMHFRARZERRS
HEZ  BESEEHR
BERBBRAR([EEE
#=1) Bk REERAR
RAIE T F AR RARQGEH
EERKENRITTERLD
AR BET458 5 A E T
gEH - MWEMEEN
E(R22]) 2202552
A AEBESEEHE
ek - FRRARRIET
TR M) B R B G &
E¥BRAR  ERB#E
PHEEEL AAINIRITER
F Bt ZFRITEF
HRES B WK ° 2025
£3H198 - AFREFS
BHEERBESERR
EE -EFRTZREH
AR EHAEENEY
M EBELE—TEHT
FEE KRR EESD
TS EFERREBN
EEEE -
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Notes to Financial Statements

B RS HRAR I EE

Year ended December 31, 2024 & Z=2024F12A31H I FE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)
(A) Going concern basis (Continued)

In light of the above, the Directors have carefully
considered the Group’s cash flow projections for the
forthcoming 18 months from 31 December 2024 and
have given due consideration to the above matters
that give rise to doubt as to its ability to continue as
a going concern after considering the following plans
and measures:

1. The Group continues to maintain good business
relationship with its key distributors, customers
and suppliers in respect of the commercialization
of BHE®.

2. The Group expects timely settlements of
principals and interests in accordance with
the respective repayment schedules from
counterparties in respect of the Group’s financial
assets measured at amortised cost. As at 31
December 2024, such financial assets measured
at amortised cost amounted to RMB250.5 million.

3. The Group considers to dispose financial assets
measured at fair value through profit or loss,
where necessary to obtain additional funds to
settle its liabilities when they are due. As at 31
December 2024, such financial assets measured
at fair value through profit or loss amounted to
RMB169.5 million.
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Notes to Financial Statements

B RS HRR 5L

Year ended December 31, 2024 & Z20245F 12431 H IFFE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2. WAUEERSTHE (&)

4. The Group expects to repay its outstanding bank
loans and interests according to its respective
loan repayment schedules. Based on the

recent communications with the Group’s certain

major banks, the Group expects that the banks
would not request for immediate repayments of

outstanding bank loans and interests.

5. The Group, with the assistance of its external
legal counsel, continues to actively negotiate
with Qingdao Hainuo to reach a solution. The
Directors, having considered the advice from
the Group’s external legal counsel as well as
the latest information available, believe that the
allegation would not result in significant cash
outflows from the Group.

Having regard to the cash flow projections of the
Group, which are prepared assuming that the above
plans and measures are successful, the Directors
of the Company are of the view that, in light of the
plans and measures taken to-date, together with the

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued) 21 RBEE(E)
(A) Going concern basis (Continued) (A) FFEALER (E)
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expected results of the other measures in progress, AREMIEFETHOE
the Group will have sufficient cash resources to MERTEBRBR  AEEK
satisfy its future working capital and other financing HEEREHNR S ERAR

requirements.

If the Group is unable to achieve the above plans
and measures and unable to continue as a going
concern, adjustments must be made to reduce the
carrying amount of the Group’s assets to recoverable
amounts, to provide for any future liabilities that
may arise, and to reclassify non-current assets and
non-current liabilities to current assets and current
liabilities, respectively. The effect of these adjustments
has not been reflected in the consolidated financial
statements.
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Notes to Financial Statements

B RS HRAR I EE

Year ended December 31, 2024 & Z=2024F12A31H I FE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following the amendments
to IFRSs for the first time for the current year’'s financial
statements.

Amendments to IFRS 16  Lease Liability in a Sale and
Leaseback

Amendments to IAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current

Amendments to IAS 1 Non-current Liabilities with
Covenants
Amendments to IAS 7 Supplier Finance Arrangements
and IFRS 7

The application of the amendments to IFRSs in the current
period has had no material impact on the Group’s financial
positions and performance for the current and prior years.
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Notes to Financial Statements

B RS HRR 5L

Year ended December 31, 2024 & Z20245F 12431 H IFFE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE IFRSs

2. WAUEERSTHE (&)

2.3 O HEME R E AV E R ISR

The Group has not applied the following revised IFRSs, that
have been issued but are not yet effective, in these financial
statements. The Group intends to apply these revised
IFRSs, if applicable, when they become effective.

Amendments to IAS 21

Lack of Exchangeability’

Amendments to IFRS 9
and IFRS 7

Classification and Measurement
of Financial Instruments?

IFRS 18 Presentation and Disclosure in
Financial Statements®

IFRS 19 Subsidiaries without Public
Accountability Disclosures?®

Amendments to IFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets
and |IAS 28 between an Investor and its

Associate or Joint Venture*

1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1,
2025

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1,
2026

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1,
2027

4 No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for
adoption

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of
the impact of these new and revised IFRSs upon initial
application. So far, the Group considers that these new and
revised IFRSs may result in changes in accounting policies
and are unlikely to have a significant impact on the Group’s
results of operations and financial position.
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Notes to Financial Statements

B RS HRAR I EE

Year ended December 31, 2024 & Z=2024F12A31H I FE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Fair value measurement

The Group measures certain financial instruments at fair
value at the end of each reporting period. Fair value is
the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid
to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date. The fair
value measurement is based on the presumption that
the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability
takes place either in the principal market for the asset or
liability, or in the absence of a principal market, in the most
advantageous market for the asset or liability. The principal
or the most advantageous market must be accessible
by the Group. The fair value of an asset or a liability is
measured using the assumptions that market participants
would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that
market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the
asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate
in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are
available to measure fair value, maximising the use of
relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of
unobservable inputs.
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Notes to Financial Statements

B RS HRR 5L

Year ended December 31, 2024 & Z20245F 12431 H IFFE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2. WAUEERSTHE (&)

2.4 BEAREFTBER (&)

Fair value measurement (Continued)

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured
or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based
on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole:

A FlER 2 (%)

AN AR BEFERET R
RPBENEEMEBEORAR
EBEEEMRETOR  AEOT
ERUBRAABEIEARE
AEENREERBAEA

Level 1 - based on quoted prices (unadjusted) F—EHR — ERBEREESK
in active markets for identical assets or BERERMS
liabilities B PR B AR (RAE

AE)

Level 2 - based on valuation techniques for which the FER — ERERAEAT
lowest level input that is significant to the B EBEADH
fair value measurement is observable, either ABR (AR
directly or indirectly %) RIEHRE A

HENMERE

Level 3 - based on valuation techniques for which the F-EHR — ERERAYEAT
lowest level input that is significant to the B EBEKRD
fair value measurement is unobservable Al B & (R R
Bl & A R 8 1k
BR%

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial
statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines
whether transfers have occurred between levels in the
hierarchy by reassessing categorisation (based on the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting
period.
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Notes to Financial Statements

B RS HRAR I EE

Year ended December 31, 2024 & Z=2024F12A31H I FE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than
inventories, contract assets, deferred tax assets, financial
assets, investment properties and non-current assets/
a disposal group classified as held for sale), the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’'s recoverable
amount is the higher of the asset's or cash-generating
unit’s value in use and its fair value less costs of disposal,
and is determined for an individual asset, unless the
asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely
independent of those from other assets or groups of assets,
in which case the recoverable amount is determined for the
cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the asset. An
impairment loss is charged to profit or loss in the period in
which it arises in those expense categories consistent with
the function of the impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting
period as to whether there is an indication that previously
recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or
may have decreased. If such an indication exists, the
recoverable amount is estimated. A previously recognised
impairment loss of an asset other than goodwill is reversed
only if there has been a change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount of that asset, but not to
an amount higher than the carrying amount that would have
been determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation) had
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior
years. A reversal of such an impairment loss is credited to
profit or loss in the period in which it arises.
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Notes to Financial Statements

B RS HRR 5L

Year ended December 31, 2024 & Z20245F 12431 H IFFE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a)

or

(b)

the party is a person or a close member of that

person’s family and that person

(i)

(if)

(iii)

has control or joint control over the Group;

has significant influence over the Group; or

is a member of the key management personnel of
the Group or of a parent of the Group;

the party is an entity where any of the following

conditions applies:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

the entity and the Group are members of the
same group;

one entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow
subsidiary of the other entity);

the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the
same third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and
the other entity is an associate of the third entity;
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Notes to Financial Statements

B RS HRAR I EE

Year ended December 31, 2024 & Z=2024F12A31H I FE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Related parties (Continued)

(b)  (Continued)
(v) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or
an entity related to the Group;

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a);

(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity); and

(viii

=

the entity, or any member of a group of which it
is a part, provides key management personnel
services to the Group or to the parent of the
Group.

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation
and any impairment losses. The cost of an item of property,
plant and equipment comprises its purchase price and
any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its
working condition and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs
and maintenance, is normally charged to profit or loss in
the period in which it is incurred. In situations where the
recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for a major
inspection is capitalised in the carrying amount of the asset
as a replacement. Where significant parts of property, plant
and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals,
the Group recognises such parts as individual assets with
specific useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.
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Notes to Financial Statements

B RS HRR 5L

Year ended December 31, 2024 & Z20245F 12431 H IFFE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING 2. RBEERSEBEE (&)

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 2.4 BEAREHEBEE)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation (Continued)

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write
off the cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to
its residual value over its estimated useful life. The principal
annual rates used for this purpose are as follows:

WE - BERREUARTE (&)
FEDZERANE - WS
WE -~ BE R REORARE
AR FHMEE AR RE
B - FULRANE B FHERM

Leasehold improvements Shorter of remaining lease HEEE SBTHEBARMGER]

terms and estimated useful lives FRAFHNRES
Office equipment 9% to 32% NS 9% — 32%
Laboratory equipment 19% to 32% ERER 19% - 32%
Transportation equipment 24% EHRE 24%

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated
on a reasonable basis among the parts and each part is
depreciated separately. Residual values, useful lives and
the depreciation method are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at least at each financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any
significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or
retirement recognised in profit or loss in the year the asset
is derecognised is the difference between the net sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Construction in progress is stated at cost less any
impairment losses, and is not depreciated. It is reclassified
to the appropriate category of property, plant and
equipment when completed and ready for use.
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Notes to Financial Statements

B RS HRAR I EE

Year ended December 31, 2024 & Z=2024F12A31H I FE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on
initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets
acquired in a business combination is the fair value at the
date of acquisition. The useful lives of intangible assets are
assessed to be either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets
with finite lives are subsequently amortised over the useful
economic life and assessed for impairment whenever there
is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired.
The amortisation period and the amortisation method for an
intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least
at each financial year end.

Intangible assets are amortised on the straight-line basis
over the following useful economic life:

Software 10 years

Research and development costs

All research costs are charged to the statement profit or
loss as incurred.

Expenditure incurred on projects to develop new products
is capitalised and deferred only when the Group can
demonstrate the technical feasibility of completing the
intangible asset so that it will be available for use or sale,
its intention to complete and its ability to use or sell the
asset, how the asset will generate future economic benefits,
the availability of resources to complete the project and
the ability to measure reliably the expenditure during the
development. Product development expenditure which does
not meet these criteria is expensed when incurred.
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Notes to Financial Statements

B RS HRR 5L

Year ended December 31, 2024 & Z20245F 12431 H IFFE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING 2. RBEERSEBEE (&)

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 2.4 BEAREHEBEE)

Leases

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a
contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains,
a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use
of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration.

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement
approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and
leases of low-value assets. The Group recognises lease
liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets
representing the right to use the underlying assets.

(a) Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are recognised at the
commencement date of the lease (that is the date the
underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use
assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses, and adjusted
for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost
of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease
liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and
lease payments made at or before the commencement
date less any lease incentives received. Right-of-use
assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over
the shorter of the lease terms and the estimated useful
lives of the assets as follows:
Office and laboratory 2 to 5 years
Leasehold land 40 years
If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Group
by the end of the lease term or the cost reflects
the exercise of a purchase option, depreciation is
calculated using the estimated useful life of the asset.
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Notes to Financial Statements

B RS HRAR I EE

Year ended December 31, 2024 & Z=2024F12A31H I FE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Leases (Continued)
Group as a lessee (Continued)

(b) Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are recognised at the commencement
date of the lease at the present value of lease
payments to be made over the lease term. The
lease payments include fixed payments (including
in-substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives
receivable, variable lease payments that depend on
an index or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid
under residual value guarantees. The lease payments
also include the exercise price of a purchase option
reasonably certain to be exercised by the Group and
payments of penalties for termination of a lease, if the
lease term reflects the Group exercising the option to
terminate the lease. The variable lease payments that
do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised
as an expense in the period in which the event or
condition that triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments,
the Group uses its incremental borrowing rate at the
lease commencement date because the interest rate
implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. After
the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities
is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and
reduced for the lease payments made. In addition,
the carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured
if there is a modification, a change in the lease term,
a change in lease payments (e.g., a change to future
lease payments resulting from a change in an index
or rate) or a change in assessment of an option to
purchase the underlying asset.
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Notes to Financial Statements

B RS HRR 5L

Year ended December 31, 2024 & Z20245F 12431 H IFFE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2. WAUEERSTHE (&)

2.4 BAREFTBER (&)

Leases (Continued)
Group as a lessee (Continued)

(c) Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to its short-term leases of office properties
(that is those leases that have a lease term of 12
months or less from the commencement date and do
not contain a purchase option). It also applies the
recognition exemption for leases of low-value assets
to leases of office equipments that are considered to
be of low value. Lease payments on short-term leases
and leases of low-value assets are recognised as an
expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Investments and other financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as
subsequently measured at amortised cost, and fair value
through profit or loss (“FVTPL").

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition
depends on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow
characteristics and the Group’s business model for
managing them. With the exception of trade receivables
that do not contain a significant financing component or for
which the Group has applied the practical expedient of not
adjusting the effect of a significant financing component,
the Group initially measures a financial asset at its fair
value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair value
through profit or loss, transaction costs. Trade receivables
that do not contain a significant financing component or for
which the Group has applied the practical expedient are
measured at the transaction price determined under IFRS
15 in accordance with the policies set out for “Revenue
recognition” below.
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Notes to Financial Statements

B RS HRAR I EE

Year ended December 31, 2024 & Z=2024F12A31H I FE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Investments and other financial assets (Continued)
Initial recognition and measurement (Continued)

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured
at amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive
income, it needs to give rise to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest (“SPPI”) on the principal
amount outstanding. Financial assets with cash flows that
are not SPPI are classified and measured at fair value
through profit or loss, irrespective of the business model.

The Group’s business model for managing financial assets
refers to how it manages its financial assets in order to
generate cash flows. The business model determines
whether cash flows will result from collecting contractual
cash flows, selling the financial assets, or both. Financial
assets classified and measured at amortised cost are
held within a business model with the objective to hold
financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows,
while financial assets classified and measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income are held within a
business model with the objective of both holding to collect
contractual cash flows and selling. Financial assets which
are not held within the aforementioned business models are
classified and measured at fair value through profit or loss.

Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within the period generally established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace are recognised
on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group commits
to purchase or sell the asset.
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Notes to Financial Statements

B RS HRR 5L

Year ended December 31, 2024 & Z20245F 12431 H IFFE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING 2. RBEERSEBEE (&)

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 2.4 BEAREHEBEE)

Investments and other financial assets (Continued)
Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends
on their classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently
measured using the effective interest method and are
subject to impairment. Gains and losses are recognised in
profit or loss when the asset is derecognised, modified or
impaired.

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
carried in the statement of financial position at fair value
with net changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial
asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is
primarily derecognised (i.e., removed from the Group’s
consolidated statement of financial position) when:

° the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired; or

. the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation
to pay the received cash flows in full without
material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’
arrangement; and either (a) the Group has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset,
or (b) the Group has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but
has transferred control of the asset.
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Notes to Financial Statements

B RS HRAR I EE

Year ended December 31, 2024 & Z=2024F12A31H I FE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Derecognition of financial assets (Continued)

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through
arrangement, it evaluates if, and to what extent, it has
retained the risk and rewards of ownership of the asset.
When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all
the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of
the asset, the Group continues to recognise the transferred
asset to the extent of its continuing involvement. In that
case, the Group also recognises an associated liability.
The transferred asset and the associated liabilities are
measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations
that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee
over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the
original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum
amount of consideration that the Group could be required
to repay.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit
losses (“ECLs”) for all debt instruments not held at fair value
through profit or loss. ECLs are based on the difference
between the contractual cash flows due in accordance with
the contract and all the cash flows that the Group expects
to receive, discounted at an approximation of the original
effective interest rate. The expected cash flows will include
cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit
enhancements that are integral to the contractual terms.

3D Medicines Inc. Annual Report 2024

2. WAUEERSTHE (&)

2.4 BAREFTBER (&)

HUEZREHEE (F)

HEASRECEEES —REEWR
BRERENBHN KT LER L
B AlgtE R RE %R EER
BRER R & [ R IA K AR #72
B - HEMEESEIREZEE
A RBRREE - FEEE
BEMEDRE - AIARERER
BLRREEEEREHNOEE
BE - EULBERT - ARBETRE
RIEMEE - CEENEENRE
BB B Al R AR AN SR [ (R A Ay A8
MEEEREETE

NEEREERRTEAZBNRE
B2RETAZAEENREEE
EALEAEFERZEENZESR
EMEZREEFE -

EHEERE

AEBR AL IR A TEFAERR
FAMMEES T AERRY
FEEER((BRBEEER] &
- BHEEERNERBES
MG RREREEAEE
TRHIRER M PR AR 2R 8 ZH A
ZRET  YRREERFEN
MLVERLER - ERSRERE
SRR mRE A R 5
REEAE R FMEHIRE R

=

= °



Notes to Financial Statements

B RS HRR 5L

Year ended December 31, 2024 & Z20245F 12431 H IFFE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING 2. RBEERSEBEE (&)

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 2.4 BEAREHEBEE)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for
which there has not been a significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses
that result from default events that are possible within
the next 12 months (a 12-month ECL). For those credit
exposures for which there has been a significant increase
in credit risk since initial recognition, a loss allowance is
required for credit losses expected over the remaining life
of the exposure, irrespective of the timing of the default (a
lifetime ECL).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether
the credit risk on a financial instrument has increased
significantly since initial recognition. When making the
assessment, the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the reporting
date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the date of initial recognition and considers
reasonable and supportable information that is available
without undue cost or effort, including historical and
forward-looking information. The Group considers that
there has been a significant increase in credit risk when
contractual payments are more than 30 days past due.

The Group considers a financial asset in default when
contractual payments are 45 to 70 days past due. However,
in certain cases, the Group may also consider a financial
asset to be in default when internal or external information
indicates that the Group is unlikely to receive the
outstanding contractual amounts in full before taking into
account any credit enhancements held by the Group.

A financial asset is written off when there is no reasonable
expectation of recovering the contractual cash flows.
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Notes to Financial Statements

B RS HRAR I EE

Year ended December 31, 2024 & Z=2024F12A31H I FE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
General approach (Continued)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subject to impairment
under the general approach and they are classified within
the following stages for measurement of ECLs except for
trade receivables which apply the simplified approach as
detailed below.

Stage 1 — Financial instruments for which credit risk
has not increased significantly since initial
recognition and for which the loss allowance
is measured at an amount equal to 12-month
ECLs.

Stage 2 - Financial instruments for which credit risk
has increased significantly since initial
recognition but that are not credit-impaired
financial assets and for which the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal
to lifetime ECLs.

Stage 3 - Financial assets that are credit-impaired
at the reporting date (but that are not
purchased or originated credit-impaired)
and for which the loss allowance is
measured at an amount equal to lifetime
ECLs.
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Notes to Financial Statements

B RS HRR 5L

Year ended December 31, 2024 & Z20245F 12431 H IFFE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING 2. RBEERSEBEE (&)

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 2.4 BEBAREHBEE)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Simplified approach

For trade receivables that do not contain a significant
financing component or when the Group applies the
practical expedient of not adjusting the effect of a
significant financing component, the Group applies
the simplified approach in calculating ECLs. Under the
simplified approach, the Group does not track changes in
credit risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance based
on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. The Group has
established a provision matrix that is based on its historical
credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors
specific to the debtors and the economic environment.

Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans
and borrowings, or payables, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value
and in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net
of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade payables,
financial liabilities included in other payables and accruals,
interest-bearing bank borrowings, amount due to related
parties, and preferred shares.
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Notes to Financial Statements

B RS HRAR I EE

Year ended December 31, 2024 & Z=2024F12A31H I FE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial liabilities (Continued)
Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends
on their classification as follows:

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

After initial recognition, trade payables, financial liabilities
included in other payables and accruals, interest bearing
bank borrowings and amount due to related parties
are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using
the effective interest rate method unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are
stated at cost. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or
loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through
the effective interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs
that are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The
effective interest rate amortisation is included in finance
costs in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities measured at FVTPL

Financial liabilities measured at FVTPL include preferred
shares which are designated upon initial recognition as at
fair value through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as
at fair value through profit or loss are designated at the
initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in IFRS 9
are satisfied. Gains or losses on liabilities designated at
fair value through profit or loss are recognised in profit or
loss, except for the gains or losses arising from the Group’s
own credit risk which are presented in other comprehensive
income with no subsequent reclassification to profit or loss.
The net fair value gain or loss recognised in profit or loss
does not include any interest charged on these financial
liabilities.
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Notes to Financial Statements

B RS HRR 5L

Year ended December 31, 2024 & Z20245F 12431 H IFFE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING 2. RBEERSEBEE (&)

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 2.4 BEAREHEBEE)

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation
under the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another
from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the
terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such
an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition
of the original liability and a recognition of a new liability,
and the difference between the respective carrying amounts
is recognised in profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the
net amount is reported in the statement of financial position
if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the
recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on
a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously.

Treasury shares

Own equity instruments which are reacquired and held by
the Company or the Group (treasury shares) are recognised
directly in equity at cost. No gain or loss is recognised in
profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of
the Group’s own equity instruments.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined on the first-in, first-out basis and,
in the case of finished goods, comprises direct materials
and an appropriate proportion of overheads. Net realisable
value is based on estimated selling prices less any
estimated costs to be incurred to completion and disposal.
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Notes to Financial Statements

B RS HRAR I EE

Year ended December 31, 2024 & Z=2024F12A31H I FE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the statement of financial
position comprise cash on hand and at banks, and
short-term highly liquid deposits with a maturity of generally
within three months that are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash, subject to an insignificant risk of changes
in value and held for the purpose of meeting short-term
cash commitments.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand
and at banks, and short-term deposits as defined above,
less bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand and
form an integral part of the Group’s cash management.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal
or constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and
it is probable that a future outflow of resources will be
required to settle the obligation, provided that a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the end
of the reporting period of the future expenditures expected
to be required to settle the obligation. The increase in the
discounted present value amount arising from the passage
of time is included in finance costs in profit or loss.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income
tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss
is recognised outside profit or loss, either in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the
taxation authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period, taking into consideration
interpretations and practices prevailing in the countries in
which the Group operates.
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Notes to Financial Statements

B RS HRR 5L

Year ended December 31, 2024 & Z20245F 12431 H IFFE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable
temporary differences, except:

° when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liabilities in
a transaction that is not a business combination
and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither
the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss and
does not give rise to equal taxable and deductible
temporary differences; and

o in respect of taxable temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, associates and
joint ventures, when the timing of the reversal of
the temporary differences can be controlled and it
is probable that the temporary differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.
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B RS HRAR I EE

Year ended December 31, 2024 & Z=2024F12A31H I FE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, and the carryforward of unused
tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax
assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences, and the carryforward of unused tax
credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

. when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition
of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not
a business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor
taxable profit or loss and does not give rise to equal
taxable and deductible temporary differences; and

o in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates
and joint ventures, deferred tax assets are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable that the
temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable
future and taxable profit will be available against which
the temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred
tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets
are reassessed at the end of each reporting period and are
recognised to the extent that it has become probable that
sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part
of the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply to the period when the
asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.
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Notes to Financial Statements

B RS HRR 5L

Year ended December 31, 2024 & Z20245F 12431 H IFFE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING 2. RBEERSEBEE (&)

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 2.4 BEAREHEBEE)

Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset
if and only if the Group has a legally enforceable right to
set off current tax assets and current tax liabilities and the
deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to
income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either
the same taxable entity or different taxable entities which
intend either to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a
net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously, in each future period in which significant
amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected to
be settled or recovered.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where
there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received
and all attaching conditions will be complied with. When the
grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised as income
on a systematic basis over the periods that the costs, for
which it is intended to compensate, are expensed.

When the grant relates to expenses or losses already
incurred or for the purpose of giving immediate financial
support to the Group with no future costs and obligations,
it is recognised in profit or loss in the period in which it
becomes receivable.
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Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when
control of goods or services is transferred to the customers
at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the
Group expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods
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B RS HRAR I EE

Year ended December 31, 2024 & Z=2024F12A31H I FE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

When the consideration in a contract includes a variable
amount, the amount of consideration is estimated to which
the Group will be entitled in exchange for transferring
the goods or services to the customer. The variable
consideration is estimated at contract inception and
constrained until it is highly probable that a significant
revenue reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue
recognised will not occur when the associated uncertainty
with the variable consideration is subsequently resolved.

When the contract contains a financing component which
provides the customer with a significant benefit of financing
the transfer of goods or services to the customer for more
than one year, revenue is measured at the present value of
the amount receivable, discounted using the discount rate
that would be reflected in a separate financing transaction
between the Group and the customer at contract inception.
When the contract contains a financing component which
provides the Group with a significant financial benefit for
more than one year, revenue recognised under the contract
includes the interest expense accreted on the contract
liability under the effective interest method. For a contract
where the period between the payment by the customer and
the transfer of the promised goods or services is one year
or less, the transaction price is not adjusted for the effects
of a significant financing component, using the practical
expedient in IFRS 15.
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Notes to Financial Statements

B RS HRR 5L

Year ended December 31, 2024 & Z20245F 12431 H IFFE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)
(a) Sales of products

Revenue from the sale of products is recognised at the
point in time when control of the asset is transferred
to the customer, generally when the products are
delivered and accepted by the customers.

During the year ended December 31, 2024 and 2023,
the majority of sales of products were made through
Jiangsu Simcere Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. (“Jiangsu
Simcere”)/Jiangsu Zaiming Pharmaceutical Co.,
Ltd. (“Simcere Zaiming”) to pharmacy stores and
distributors which are the Group’s customers. Jiangsu
Simcere and Simcere Zaiming acted as service
providers of the Group and the service fees retained
by Jiangsu Simcere and Simcere Zaiming were
recognised as selling expenses.

Other income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using
the effective interest method by applying the rate that
exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts over
the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter
period, when appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the
financial asset.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when a payment is
received or a payment is due (whichever is earlier) from
a customer before the Group transfers the related goods
or services. Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue
when the Group performs under the contract (i.e., transfers
control of the related goods or services to the customer).

2. WAUEERSTHE (&)

2.4 BAREFTBER (&)

WA TR (%)
EFPERHA (&)
(a) HEEmM

HEERWBARERE
R =T P R fE 3
(—RREMXNEEFR
ks ) SR o

B E2023F &2024F 12
AB1HIEFE KD E
mEETEREBEZERR
RE (I EX])
THEBBHEEFRA
A ([EBBHA]) HERE
RAEBRPWEER D
HE o THEBEERE
BBERECAKRENRE
HER  TITHEBEEER
LEBRAMREZRBE
HRRBMERX -

AR A

MBWAZ B EER A ERF
FLHER - MEANMNE RS
BT AREMFIARERE R
(A ) KB Z At R 2 %
BITRE S REEREFEANF

= o

BEEE

e % B 1R S % 81 545 4 B 720 o S R
TEEEAIA R AR URER A 3Rk
MRE PR (ABREERE)
ReaRafE - ARAERAKHE
BiTaRK (REFEBAR
7 R SR TS 0 4R U ) RERR R UK
A e

BHREEHRHERIR —B-MNFFH

243



244
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B RS HRAR I EE

Year ended December 31, 2024 & Z=2024F12A31H I FE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Share-based payments

The Company operates a share option scheme. Employees
(including directors) of the Group receive remuneration in
the form of share-based payments, whereby employees
render services in exchange for equity instruments
(“equity-settled transactions”).The cost of equity-settled
transactions with employees is measured by reference to
the fair value at the date on which they are granted. The
fair value is determined using the back-solve method or
binomial model. Further details are included in note 29 to
the financial statements.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised in
employee benefit expense, together with a corresponding
increase in equity, over the period in which the performance
and/or service conditions are fulfilled. The cumulative
expense recognised for equity-settled transactions at the
end of each reporting period until the vesting date reflects
the extent to which the vesting period has expired and the
Group’s best estimate of the number of equity instruments
that will ultimately vest. The charge or credit to profit or loss
for a period represents the movement in the cumulative
expense recognised as at the beginning and end of that
period.

Service and non-market performance conditions are not
taken into account when determining the grant date fair
value of awards, but the likelihood of the conditions being
met is assessed as part of the Group’s best estimate of the
number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. Market
performance conditions are reflected within the grant date
fair value. Any other conditions attached to an award, but
without an associated service requirement, are considered
to be non-vesting conditions. Non-vesting conditions are
reflected in the fair value of an award and lead to an
immediate expensing of an award unless there are also
service and/or performance conditions.
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Notes to Financial Statements

B RS HRR 5L

Year ended December 31, 2024 & Z20245F 12431 H IFFE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING 2. RBEERSEBEE (&)

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 2.4 BEAREHEBEE)

Share-based payments (Continued)

For awards that do not ultimately vest because non-market
performance and/or service conditions have not been met,
no expense is recognised. Where awards include a market
or non-vesting condition, the transactions are treated as
vesting irrespective of whether the market or non-vesting
condition is satisfied, provided that all other performance
and/or service conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as
a minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms had not
been modified, if the original terms of the award are met. In
addition, an expense is recognised for any modification that
increases the total fair value of the share-based payments,
or is otherwise beneficial to the employee as measured at
the date of modification.
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not yet recognised for the award is recognised immediately.
This includes any award where non-vesting conditions within
the control of either the Group or the employee are not met.
However, if a new award is substituted for the cancelled
award, and is designated as a replacement award on the
date that it is granted, the cancelled and new awards are
treated as if they were a modification of the original award,
as described in the previous paragraph.

When the equity-settled award are exercised, the amount
previously recognised in equity-settled share-based
reserve will be transferred to share premium. When the
equity-settled award are forfeited after the vesting date
or are still not exercised at the expiry date, the amount
previously recognised in equity-settled share-based reserve
will be transferred to retained earnings.
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B RS HRAR I EE

Year ended December 31, 2024 & Z=2024F12A31H I FE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Other employee benefits
Pension scheme

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate
in Chinese Mainland are required to participate in a
central pension scheme operated by the local municipal
government. The subsidiaries are required to contribute
a certain percentage of their payroll costs to the central
pension scheme. The contributions are charged to profit or
loss as they become payable in accordance with the rules
of the central pension scheme.

Borrowing costs

There were no borrowing costs eligible to be capitalized
into plant and equipment during the reporting period. All
borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

Foreign currencies

The financial statements are presented in RMB, which
is the Company’s functional currency. Each entity in the
Group determines its own functional currency and items
included in the financial statements of each entity are
measured using that functional currency. Foreign currency
transactions recorded by the entities in the Group are
initially recorded using their respective functional currency
rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
are translated at the functional currency rates of exchange
ruling at the end of the reporting period. Differences
arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are
recognised in profit or loss.
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B RS HRR 5L

Year ended December 31, 2024 & Z20245F 12431 H IFFE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING 2. RBEERSEBEE (&)

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 2.4 BEBAREHBEE)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary
items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rates at the date when
the fair value was measured. The gain or loss arising on
translation of a non-monetary item measured at fair value
is treated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on
change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation difference
on the item whose fair value gain or loss is recognised
in other comprehensive income or profit or loss is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or loss,
respectively).

In determining the exchange rate on initial recognition of
the related asset, expense or income on the derecognition
of a non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability relating
to an advance consideration, the date of initial transaction
is the date on which the Group initially recognises the
non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability arising
from the advance consideration. If there are multiple
payments or receipts in advance, the Group determines the
transaction date for each payment or receipt of the advance
consideration.
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Year ended December 31, 2024 & Z=2024F12A31H I FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets
and liabilities, and their accompanying disclosures, and the
disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that could
require a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of the
assets or liabilities affected in the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgements, apart from
those involving estimations, which have the most significant
effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements:

Research and development expenses

All research costs are charged to profit or loss as incurred.
Expenditure incurred on projects to develop new products is
capitalised and deferred only when the Group can demonstrate
the technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that
it will be available for use or sale, its intention to complete and its
ability to use or sell the asset, how the asset will generate future
economic benefits, the availability of resources to complete the
project and the ability to measure reliably the expenditure during
the development. Product development expenditure which does
not meet these criteria is expensed when incurred. Determining
the amounts of development costs to be capitalised requires the
use of judgements and estimation.
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Year ended December 31, 2024 & Z20245F 12431 H IFFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within
the next financial year, are described below.

Research and development expenses

The Group relies on Outsourced Service Providers to conduct,
supervise, and monitor the Group’s ongoing clinical trials in the
Chinese Mainland. Determining the amounts of research and
development expenses incurred up to the end of each reporting
period requires the management of the Group to estimate and
measure the progress of receiving research and development
services under the contracts with Outsourced Service Providers
using inputs such as the number of patient enrolments, time
elapsed and milestone achieved.

Provision for expected credit losses on trade receivables

The Group uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs for trade
receivables. The provision rates are based on internal credit
ratings as groupings of debtors that have similar loss patterns.

The provision matrix is initially based on the credit loss rate
of similar companies in the market as the Group has not had
sufficient credit loss data. The Group will calibrate to adjust
the expected loss rate with forward-looking information. The
expected loss rate will be back-tested against observed default
rates in the future and changes in the forward-looking estimates
will be analysed.

The assessment of the correction among credit loss rates of
comparable companies, forecast economic conditions and ECLs
is a significant estimate. The amount of ECLs is sensitive to
changes in circumstances and forecast economic conditions.
The Group’s expected credit loss rate and forecast of economic
conditions may also not be representative of a customer’s actual
default in the future. The information about the ECLs on the
Group’s trade receivables is disclosed in note 18 to the financial

statements.
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Notes to Financial Statements

B RS HRAR I EE

Year ended December 31, 2024 & Z=2024F12A31H I FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Fair value of financial assets at FVTPL

The fair value of financial assets at FVTPL, in the absence of
an active market, is estimated by using appropriate valuation
techniques. Such valuations were based on expected yield rates
and terms associated with the wealth management products,
which are subject to uncertainty and might differ from the actual
results. Further details are included in note 20 and note 35 to the
financial statements.

Provision for expected credit losses on financial assets measured
at amortised cost

The expected credit losses on financial assets measured at
amortised cost are estimated by using appropriate valuation
techniques. Such valuations were based on certain assumptions
about credit risk and terms associated with the instruments,
which are subject to uncertainty and might materially differ from
the actual results. Further details are included in note 21 and
note 35 to the financial statements.

Recognition of income taxes and deferred tax assets

Determining income tax provision involves judgement on the
future tax treatment of certain transactions and when certain
matters relating to the income taxes have not been confirmed by
the local tax bureau. Management evaluates tax implications of
transactions and tax provisions are set up accordingly. The tax
treatments of such transactions are reconsidered periodically to
take into account all changes in tax legislation.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses to
the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the losses can be utilised. Significant management
judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred tax
assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and
level of future taxable profits together with future tax planning
strategies.
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Notes to Financial Statements

B RS HRR 5L

Year ended December 31, 2024 & Z20245F 12431 H IFFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Fair value of share-based payment transactions

Estimating the fair value of share-based payment transactions
requires the determination of the most appropriate valuation
model, which depends on the terms and conditions of the
grant. This estimate also requires the determination of the most
appropriate inputs to the valuation model including the expected
life of the share option, volatility and dividend yield and making
assumptions about them.

For the measurement of the fair value of share-based payment
transactions with employees at the grant date, the Group uses a
binomial model. The assumptions and models used for estimating
fair value for share-based payments transactions are disclosed in
note 29 to the financial statements.

Leases — Estimating the incremental borrowing rate

The Group cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit
in a lease, and therefore, it uses an incremental borrowing
rate (“IBR”) to measure lease liabilities. The IBR is the rate of
interest that the Group would have to pay to borrow over a
similar term, and with a similar security, the funds necessary to
obtain an asset of a similar value to the right-of-use asset in a
similar economic environment. The IBR therefore reflects what
the Group “would have to pay”, which requires estimation when
no observable rates are available (such as for subsidiaries
that do not enter into financing transactions) or when it needs
to be adjusted to reflect the terms and conditions of the lease
(for example, when leases are not in the subsidiary’s functional
currency). The Group estimates the IBR using observable inputs
(such as market interest rates) when available and is required to
make certain entity-specific estimates.

3.

ERSEHHE R AT (&)

fhat THAMEE (&)
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AR BERNN R ZHAF
B FTEEETRSENGHERE M
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AR EEEHERENARTDEE
BARE  SRERENEHRES -
RIENM B ER - WHZEHAR
BRIEHRER -

RTHABERL BHEESETHN
BOBERNNARZHATE &
SEEMA—E BB - ARG
BARUD A B BRI R 5 B A SRR
RR R R T AR A B IS R I A
29 °

HE — 151 EBEHFE

AEBEENSEENEER SO
= AL B AR E AR R ([
EEFMNX])AHEREARE - S
AR RS AR B AR RS
AEBERUFEH (RERLUERR)
M2 E S AEREEBERE T RIS
BEREEEFRUBENEE
bt EEERANERMRAEE KA
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SRIEENE (HIan EFT LR E R
ZHOMEBAR) REASEELFE
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Notes to Financial Statements

B RS HRAR I EE

Year ended December 31, 2024 & Z=2024F12A31H I FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Impairment of non-financial assets (other than goodwill)

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of
impairment for all non-financial assets (including right-of-use
assets) at the end of the reporting period. The non-financial
assets are tested for impairment when there are indicators that
the carrying amounts may not be recoverable. An impairment
exists when the carrying value of an asset or a cash-generating
unit exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher of its fair
value less costs of disposal and its value in use. The calculation
of the fair value less costs of disposal is based on available data
from binding sales transactions in an arm’s length transaction
of similar assets or observable market prices less incremental
costs for disposing of the asset. When value in use calculations
are undertaken, management must estimate the expected future
cash flows from the asset or cash-generating unit and choose a
suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value of
those cash flows.
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Notes to Financial Statements

B RS HRR 5L

Year ended December 31, 2024 & Z20245F 12431 H IFFE

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

Operating segment information

The Group is engaged in biopharmaceutical research and
development, which is regarded as a single reportable segment
in a manner consistent with the way in which information is
reported internally to the Group’s senior management for
purposes of resource allocation and performance assessment.
Therefore, no further operating segment analysis thereof is
presented.

Geographical information

During the reporting period, all of the Group’s revenues were
derived from customers located in Chinese Mainland and almost
all of the Group’s non-current assets were located in Chinese
Mainland, and therefore no geographical information is presented
in accordance with IFRS 8 Operating Segments.

Information about major customers

Revenue from each major customer (including sales to a group
of entities which are known to be under common control with
that customer) which accounted for 10% or more of the Group’s
revenue during the reporting period is set out below:

£
AEBRERE/E—AHEDHA
) DRSS

B2 HAE—FEED AT -

ERERA - NREEMRERAERE
RERMEE P B AR EE AT A I
MEBEEDCNHBEAM - BRI KB
BRERMBHREERFHFLL D
2R HEE

FHIEEFHESN

BRE-—EBRAZZEL AREFNE
BZBWAERNRESEEZEFHK
A (EREBRBAREEKRAR10%k
LAE) #HanT -

Customer A EFA
Customer B %FB
Customer C BFEC

2024 2023
2024 F 20234

RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARETTT
195,660 271,776

53,044 79,165

45,820 71,510
BRUEHRHERAT —S-NMEER
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Notes to Financial Statements

B RS HRAR I EE

Year ended December 31, 2024 & Z=2024F12A31H I FE

5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND NET GAINS

An analysis of revenue is as follows:

5. WA - HMt AR FWE
WABHTET :

Revenue from contracts with customers EEEHWA
Sales of products HEEM

Revenue from contracts with customers

(a) Disaggregated revenue information

2024 2023
2024 F 20234
RMB’ 000 RMB’000
AR¥TR AREFTT

445,647 634,949

BEEEHBA
(a) WAZEHEH

Geographical market B 5
The PRC AR A
Timing of revenue recognition W e 2 By

Goods transferred at a point in time ~~ RE R ZEENE S

Revenue recognised that was included in the contract
liability balance at the beginning of the year amounted
to RMB24,535,000 (2023: nil). There was no revenue
recognised from performance obligation satisfied in
previous periods (2023: nil).

(b) Performance obligations

Information about the Group’s performance obligations is
summarised below:

Sales of products

The performance obligation is satisfied upon delivery of
the products and acceptance by the customers. During the
years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023, for customers
obtained through Jiangsu Simcere/Simcere Zaiming's
distribution network, Jiangsu Simcere and Simcere Zaiming
reconciled the payments received from the customers with
the Group on a monthly basis, and the credit term given to
Jiangsu Simcere and Simcere Zaiming is usually 70 days,
while direct customers developed by the Group usually
have a credit term of 45 to 60 days.
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(b)

2024 2023
2024 F 20234
RMB’ 000 RMB’000
AR¥TR ARET T

445,647 634,949
445,647 634,949

HE-_Z-_M&—A—BARA
BEARM24,535,0007T (2023
F E)EBIAARFEHK
A UEGBTHEEEXD
B E ERERUA (20234 :
) o

BREF

AEEBHEETNER B
T

HEER
BHEERERXFREFER
BFSEAk o Bl E20234F £ 2024 4
12A31BIEFE - §HRERT
LB EE S LEBRBEHOSH
REENMCRF gL BEE
RAEBEBEARAEEZE B
BEERBMRIE  c AEEETIT
BAEBBRERABEAMNEES
BEAT0OKR  MASHEMEN
EREFNEEHNRAE B4R
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Year ended December 31, 2024 & Z20245F 12431 H IFFE

REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND NET GAINS 5. WA - Hhx A R F &

(CONTINUED) (#&)
An analysis of other income and net gains is as follows: EAARFR A TAT -
2024 2023
2024 F 20234
RMB’ 000 RMB’000
AR® T ARETT
Other income EHAbug A
Government grants' AT BN 14,137
Investment income on other DERNEBRKATEZ
investments classified as CREEMNHMIZEDN
financial assets at amortised cost FEWA 12,891
Interest income B U A 6,531
Investment income on other DERRAFEFT ABEL
investments classified as CRIEEMNEHMIRED
financial assets at FVTPL BERA 44
Others Hth 6
Subtotal NEE 33,609
Net gains il
Fair value gains on other investments DEAERAFET ABEN
classified as financial assets at SRLEENHAMIRED
FVTPL N ERE 7,379
Gains on termination of leases HLIERE 2 W -
Foreign exchange gains, net bE 5 sk 558 =
Others HAth -
Subtotal NEE 21,557 7,379
Total 5t 40,988
1 The government grants mainly represent subsidies received L XA 478 B = E 45183t 7 BURF U B &9 A
from the local governments for the purpose of compensation of REERELERABREEER «
expenses spent on research, clinical trial activities and allowances BRZEUMEE - BIEEZSHYE
for new drug development. There were no unfulfilled conditions or BRARER G AEE -

contingencies relating to the grants.
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B RS HRAR I EE

Year ended December 31, 2024 & Z2024F 12318 It FE

6. OTHER EXPENSES 6. HMBEX
2024 2023
2024 F 20234
RMB’ 000 RMB’000
AR® T ARETT
Donations' B 107,122 96,213
Foreign exchange losses, net M 5 1855 - 2,554
Written off of property, plant and equipment 5% - BEMRE 4,069 =
Others HAh 187 382
Total #ast 99,149
1 Donations represented the expenditures incurred in relation to a L BEER —RESEBRINERE

drug donation program organised by a charity organisation. WIEAEENFASE -

7. FINANCE COSTS 7. HMBRAE
2024 2023
2024 F 20234
RMB’ 000 RMB’000
AR%ET ARETT
Interest on bank and other borrowings RITERFE 8,192 6,333
Interest on lease liabilities HEEEFNE 1,311 1,439

256 3D Medicines Inc. Annual Report 2024



LOSS BEFORE TAX

Notes to Financial Statements

B RS HRR 5L

Year ended December 31, 2024 & Z20245F 12431 H IFFE

The Group’s loss before tax is arrived at after charging/

(crediting):

8. KRBIRIEIE

AEENBBATERCD R GEA)

Marketing service fees'

Donations

Royalty expenses?

Cost of inventories sold

Depreciation of right-of-use assets

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment

Auditor's remuneration

Lease payments in respect of short-term leases

Amortisation of intangible assets

Expected credit losses of trade receivables, net

Expected credit losses of financial assets
measured at amortised cost, net

Fair value gains on other investments classified
as financial assets at FVTPL

Employee benefit expenses (excluding directors’
and chief executive’s remuneration (note 9))

Wages and salaries
Equity-settled share-based payment expenses

Pension scheme contributions®
Staff welfare expenses

EHRGE

B

BRtERAE?

BEEFEMAE

EREAENE

mE - WERREAE

12 A

RHEENHEEMNK

EBVEBESHK

B SRR RREF 5

NESRRA B EREE
RIEFER

NERE R EF ARG
EREENEBRENR
FE%RE

EERANAX (TEEEE

BE&RSITRA B H M
(F3E9))
TERF®

DA g A AR () AR
NRER

RIREE B

STRMNER

THI&IE :
2024
2024 £
Notes RMB’ 000
B aE AR¥T T
210,201
6 107,122
37,337
36,572
16 16,242
14 8,907
2,600
16(c) 1,241
15 102
18 256
21 9,801

(8,914)

Total

101,041

BREEHRHERAR

2023
20235
RMB’000
ARETT
339,854
96,213
61,845
49,091
17,501
7,859
4,038
987
101
(123)

(714)

(7,379)

91,589

13,150
8,955
2,403

116,097

—E_MEFH
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B RS HRAR I EE

Year ended December 31, 2024 & Z=2024F12A31H I FE

8. LOSS BEFORE TAX (CONTINUED)

1

Pursuant to the marketing and promotion agreement with Simcere
Zaiming, the Group agreed to pay Simcere Zaiming marketing
service fees for the marketing and promotion services performed by
Simcere Zaiming for the Group’s sales of envafolimab. The marketing
service fees are recognised in selling and marketing expenses at
the time when the Group is obligated to pay and the amounts are
determinable.

Pursuant to the co-development agreement with Alphamab, the
Group agreed to pay Alphamab royalty fees on profit-sharing basis
as part of the consideration for the exclusive rights acquired from
Alphamab to conduct clinical trials and commercialise envafolimab
worldwide. The royalty expenses are recognised at the time when
the Group is obligated to pay and the amounts are determinable.

There are no forfeited contributions that may be used by the Group
as the employer to reduce the existing level of contributions.

9. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
REMUNERATION

Directors’ and chief executive’'s remuneration for the year,

disclosed pursuant to the Rules Governing the Listing of

Securities on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange (the “Listing
Rules”), section 383(1)(a), (b), (c) and (f) of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure

8. &

BRI 1R (4])

R IR T R ST B A A 2 8 R R 1)
# AKEREMIHEBEHAR
SEHEBRFE IR & H R
R AR5 [F) )T B 56 22 B AR S A & SH AR T
B SHRBENASERREB XN
T R E S IR 8 6 % B B S B

=7
o °

REFETHREQ/TOAIERED
i ARBERBEMNE A Z AR
HREEMRXNESTRERE R
BIIHEERRIBBRENZ K E
B—HD + LR 2HFARBRRARR
BELBRMER - HAEERER
AEBEAEHEBIN BB EERE

=l
At ©

AEEEAABANE LB - Ty
HMEE R KRE KT -

9. EERRSTHRASHMH

RBEBIAES(LETRAD
(IKEMRADI) ~ FARAEIIE

383(1)(a) ~ (b) »

(c) B (f) A R A B

(RBEEENRER) ROIE28 5 M
RENRAFRHENEENRSTH
ABHFBT

of Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation, is set out
below:
Fees e
Other emoluments: E A B -
Salaries, bonuses, allowances and & RMREYH &

benefits in kind

Equity-settled share-based payment LARE 2 S B DA RRD 75 AT &Y
expenses N E R
Total HBEr
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2024 2023
2024 F 20234
RMB’ 000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARET T
945

1,800 1,800
19,346 285,813

288,558
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B RS HRR 5L

Year ended December 31, 2024 £ Z2024F12 318 It FE

9. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 9. EERBEITHAEHM

REMUNERATION (CONTINUED) (&)

(a) Independent non-executive directors (a) BIAFHTES
The fees paid to independent non-executive directors NEZROBIIERTESHS
during the year were as follows: R

2024 2023
2024 20234

RMB’ 000 RMB’000

ARET R ARETT

Mr. Lin Tat Pang EmENS LA 319 315

Mr. Li Jin Li Jin%c4E 319 315

Mr. Liu Xinguang Bl kA& 319 315

The share-based payment expenses paid to independent RNEZ NGB IERITESR A

non-executive directors during the year were as follows: mEEARO AERONZHER

W

2024 2023

2024 F 20234

RMB’ 000 RMB’000

ARETR ARETT

Mr. Lin Tat Pang HEREE 79 =

Mr. Li Jin Li Jin%c4E 79 -

Mr. Liu Xinguang Bl kA& 79 =

Total 5T -

There were no other emoluments payable to the NERERABLIFRNTESIZAN
independent non-executive directors during the year (2023: H A E B (20234 : ) ©

Nil).
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9. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
REMUNERATION (CONTINUED)

(b)

9. EEREETHRAEHM
(&)

Executive director and chief executive, and (b)

BITEERBESTRABMURE
BITESE

non-executive directors

260

Salaries,
bonuses,
allowances
and Pension Share-based
benefits scheme payment
in kind contributions expenses
RER EhEe HURHBAE
ik BRI SRR BOARER #ct
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETE AR¥ETR AR¥TRT AR%®Tn AR¥T:R
2024 2024 F
Executive director and HITESRESTH
chief executive: AE:
Dr. Gong Zhaolong BikREd+
Non-executive directors:  FH{TEE :
Mr. Zhou Feng [Ri& 54
Mr. Zhu Pai KELE
Ms. Chen Yawen BRAEE 2+
Total st
Salaries,
bonuses,
allowances
and Pension Share-based
benefits scheme payment
Fees in kind  contributions expenses Total
ER BRE  URGBAE
we EWHR FHEMR BEANRER st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ETT ARETT AREFT ARETT ARETRT
2023 20235
Executive director and BITEERBATH
chief executive: AE:
Dr. Gong Zhaolong BikEeE L = 1,800 = 285,813 287,613
Non-executive directors:  FH{TEE :
Mr. Zhou Feng IBl-$7d = = = = =
Mr. Zhu Pai KERE - - = = =
Ms. Chen Yawen BIEZ L+ - - - - -
Total FCE = 1,800 = 285,813 287,613
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Year ended December 31, 2024 & Z20245F 12431 H IFFE

9. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
REMUNERATION (CONTINUED)

(b)

Executive director and chief executive, and non-
executive directors (Continued)

There was no arrangement under which a director or the
chief executive waived or agreed to waive any remuneration
during the year.

During the year and in prior years, directors were granted
restricted share units and share options, in respect of his
services to the Group, under the share incentive scheme
and share option scheme of the Company, further details
of which are included in the disclosures in note 29 to the
consolidated financial statements. The fair value of such
restricted share units and share options, which has been
recognised in profit or loss over the vesting period, was
determined as at the date of grant and the amount included
in the consolidated financial statements for the current year
is included in the above directors’ and chief executive’s
remuneration disclosures.

10. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

The five highest paid employees during the year included one

director (2023: one director), whose details of remuneration are

set out in note 9 above. Details of the remuneration for the year

of the remaining four (2023: four) highest paid employees who

are neither a director nor chief executive of the Company are as

follows:

9. EERBRETHRAEHM

(4&)

(b) BITEERBZSTHRASNURE
BTES(E)

REW BT EELITHARE N
F kR B E A e HE -

RAFERBEFE - REAR
B E B {0 BB AT B b B AR A AT
2 BEEpERAEERMANR
TSR SR B £ B8 o % A
B H N A MR
H29M I E - ARXR BN
BRLBROAFE(BERESR
HARBERERER) REL A S
i AFARFEEGS BB HRRE
SREAALREERSZEDITHRA
S MES -

10. T EREHFMES

FRAEEmTHNEERE—®E
= (2023F : —BEF) HHMF
BEN EXXHFEY - £ A TEA
(2023%F : &) WIARRESHR
BITHA BB &= ME B M HEN
BT

2024 2023
2024F 20234
RMB’ 000 RMB’000
ARETR ARETFTT

Salaries, bonuses, allowances and e 8K FUHEREYF=
benefits in kind 7,303

Equity-settled share-based payment LAREZS 45 8 AR (D AR

expenses & 6,307
Pension scheme contributions BIRESEEIME R 371

BHREEHRHERIR —B-MNFFH
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Year ended December 31, 2024 & Z=2024F12A31H I FE

10. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES 10. BB S HMMES (&)

(CONTINUED)

The number of non-director and non-chief executive highest paid

FHENATENNIFEERIERS
TRABNREHMEEABWMT

employees whose remuneration fell within the following bands is

as follows:

2023
20234

HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000
HK$3,500,001 to HK$4,000,000
HK$4,500,001 to HK$5,000,000
HK$5,000,001 to HK$5,500,000

HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000
HK$3,500,001 to HK$4,000,000
HK$4,500,001 to HK$5,000,000
HK$5,000,001 to HK$5,500,000

Total 5T

A= = 1 N

During the year and in prior years, restricted share units and
share options were granted to four non-director and non-chief
executive highest paid employees in respect of their service to
the Group, further details of which are included in the disclosures
in note 29 to the consolidated financial statements. The fair
value of such restricted share units and share options, which
has been recognised in profit or loss over the vesting period,
was determined as at the date of grant and the amount included
in the consolidated financial statements for the current year
is included in the above non-director and non-chief executive
highest paid employees’ remuneration disclosures.

RAER EF - ZR IR 867 5
REMRERAREREREMER TH
HHEENFERTBRABNRSH
BER - EE—PHBRREEUT
HRME20M IR - BRIZREIRN
BULHENAFEENREBHMAL
RER  YEREHAHREE &
FHEAMBRRMBESHEDHA L
FEERFERDITRABNRD B
BREFBRES -

11. INCOME TAX 1. FiBH
2024 2023
2024 F 20234
RMB’ 000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETTT
Current income tax B EAFR BB
- Hong Kong profits tax — BBREH 55

The Group is subject to income tax on an entity basis on profits
arising in or derived from the jurisdictions in which members of
the Group are domiciled and operate.
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ERAERREEKE R
ERRERDAEREL S E
FSH °

REE AL
AIFfTEE R 8
GLOEIbEE !



Notes to Financial Statements

B RS HRR 5L
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11. INCOME TAX (CONTINUED)

Cayman Islands/BVI

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman Islands and
the BVI, the Company and subsidiaries of the Group incorporated
therein are not subject to any income tax in the Cayman Islands
and the BVI.

USA

The subsidiary incorporated in Delaware, USA, is subject to
statutory United States federal corporate income tax at a rate of
21%. It was also subject to the state income tax in Delaware at a
rate of 8.7% during the reporting period.

Hong Kong

Under the two-tiered profits tax rates regime, the first
HK$2,000,000 of profits of qualifying corporations will be taxed
at 8.25%, and profits above HK$2,000,000 will be taxed at
16.5%. Only one subsidiary of the Group, 3DMed Hong Kong, is
a qualifying entity under the two-tiered profits tax rates regime.

Chinese Mainland

The provision for corporate income tax in Chinese Mainland
is based on the statutory rate of 25% of the taxable profits
determined in accordance with the Chinese Mainland Corporate
Income Tax Law which was approved and became effective on
January 1, 2008, except for 3DMed Beijing, 3D Medicines and
3DMed Sichuan. 3DMed Beijing and 3D Medicines were qualified
as High and New Technology Enterprises to enjoy a preferential
income tax rate of 15% from 2022 to 2024. 3DMed Sichuan was
qualified as a High and New Technology Enterprise to enjoy
a preferential income tax rate of 15% from 2023 to 2025. This
qualification is subject to review by the relevant tax authority in
the Chinese Mainland every three years.
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RERAEHERRBREZEESHNHRA
KRB AR RAEERE P M
R E AR BASMRESHEE R
RBEZBEBSNEMREH -

£

7 35 B 1 52 M SE AT B SZ /O B /B 2 )
TRIR 21 % B T 3R B4R OA TE 1Y 3% B B
MEEMBH - RIMED - HTAR
8.7% KBt KT R N TS B -

&5

BEAMEHMAR  GEREEY
2,000,000 7% 7T #5112 8.25 % By i &
BB 2,000,00078 T A £ B9 3%
16.5% MM EHI - AEEER—@E
MEBAR - BEROEEEFNEHME
BIFTHAEEIRELS -

Bl A it

F B b B 1 EE P S TR R T AR R
2008F 1 A1 BH#ET EMA (P E
ARZXRBECEMRBRA)EETHE
MFRF R 25% KA E R - B
i - DR BB R B
HHBR AN o B BK i3k TR A B BE B Y
2022 F E 2024 F 1 RTE A= 2 Bl
% AIREECEMBHRBEERI5%
MBER o )| BEE IR 2023 6 &
2025 FWRE A= EMEE « AliE
BELEMEHBEI5%MBIAHR
ZEEB-FAKHEANMMHEREE
TEEBPIEZ o

BHREEHRHERIR —B-MNFFH

263



264

Notes to Financial Statements

B RS HRAR I EE

Year ended December 31, 2024 & Z=2024F12A31H I FE

11. INCOME TAX (CONTINUED)

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to loss before tax
using the statutory rate of the jurisdictions in which the majority
of the Group’s subsidiaries are domiciled to the tax expense at
the effective tax rate is as follows:

1. Fri5% (&)

BRAAREE KA D M B A R P B RDE
BB )R E B Rt E AR B AT B 1R E
MR B S B B R R AT H B R
R ESRRINT

B 5% B 5 4

Loss before tax

Tax charged at the statutory tax rate of 25% AT B L 25% T EHIFiIE
75 & B A 6 T R

Effect of different tax rates enacted by

local authorities En)Z
Additional deductible allowance for qualified & &R RIERH
research and development expenses FEINDREE

Deductible temporary difference and tax REROAENEREER
losses not recognized K IEE 8
Expenses not deductible for tax AR A

2024 2023

2024 F 20234
RMB’ 000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETTT
(199,378) (562,466)
(49,845) (140,617)
11,811 25,390
(21,326) (59,099)
34,913 98,732
24,447 75,649

Tax charge at the Group's effective rate

BAREE TR X HHHIR

. -

The Group has accumulated tax losses in Chinese Mainland
of RMB1,924,083,000 in aggregate as at December 31, 2024
(2023: RMB2,219,626,000), which will expire in one to ten years
for 3DMed Beijing, 3D Medicines and 3DMed Sichuan and one
to five years for the rest of entities within the Group in Chinese
Mainland, to offset against future taxable profits of the companies
in which losses were incurred.

The Group also has accumulated tax losses in the USA of
RMB46,131,000 in aggregate as at December 31, 2024 (2023:
RMB43,385,000), that can be carried forward indefinitely to offset
against future taxable profits of the companies in which losses
were incurred.

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of
these tax losses as they have been incurred in subsidiaries that
were loss-making in the past and it is not probable that they will
generate sufficient taxable income in the foreseeable future to
utilise such tax losses.
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12.

13.

DIVIDENDS

No dividends have been declared and paid by the Company
during the year (2023: Nil).

LOSS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO
ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE
PARENT

The calculation of the basic loss per share amount is based
on the loss attributable to ordinary equity holders of the parent
and the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue
(excluding shares reserved for share incentive scheme) during
the reporting period.

No adjustment has been made to the basic loss per share
amount presented for the reporting period in respect of a dilution
as the impact of the restricted share units and share options
had an anti-dilutive effect on the basic loss per share amounts
presented.

The calculation of the basic loss per share is based on:
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12.

13.
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FR - ARBLET IR
B (2023%F : &) -

Ko A E AR B
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2024
20245

(182,663)

244,959

Loss for the year fﬁWEﬁE

Loss for the year attributable to ordinary TEEREANEEANEA
equity holders of the parent, used in Z Lﬁﬂéﬁﬁ%\—rﬁ}\%ﬁiﬁﬂ@i
the basic loss per share calculation BARETT)
(RMB'000)

Number of shares B4

Weighted average number of ordinary FTEERENEEFANEA
shares in issue during the year, used in B BT EBRME
the basic loss per share calculation ('000) (FR%)

Loss per share (basic and diluted) SREE (ERREBE)

RMB per share BRAR®ET

BREEHRHERAR

2023
20234

(524,697)

228,469

(2.30)

—E_MEFH
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14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14. Y% - BERRZE

266

Leasehold Office Laboratory Transportation  Construction
improvements equipment equipment equipment in progress Total
HEEE WARME ERZRfG EWRfk EEIR b
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
ARBTR ARBT R ARBT R ARBT T ARBT T ARBT T
2024 20245
At January 1, 2024 M2024%1 718 :
Cost A 35,086 3,178 4,263 112,023 155,393
Accumulated depreciation 25HE (16,463) (2,308) (2,723) - (22,127)
Net carrying amount ERFE 18,623 865 1,540 112,023 133,266
At January 1, 2024, net of 202451 /18
accumulated depreciation Mk 25H7E
Additions WE 147 1,464
Disposal RE - (21)
Written off Hisa (4,069) (4,069)
Depreciation provided during FREHENE
the year (7,460) (711) (8,907)
At December 31, 2024, net of R2024F12R318
accumulated depreciation Mk 25HH7E 7,241 2,103 112,023 121,733
At December 31, 2024: R2024F12/318
Cost KA 31,164 5,537 112,023 152,767
Accumulated depreciation 25HE (23,923) (3,434) - (31,034)
Net carrying amount FHFE 7,241 2,103 112,023 121,733

3D Medicines Inc. Annual Report 2024
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14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14. Y% - BERRE (E)
(CONTINUED)

Leasehold Office Laboratory ~ Transportation ~ Construction
improvements equipment equipment equipment in progress Total
HEXE HARE ER=RE R IR &t

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETE  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR  ARET:X

2023 2023
At January 1, 2023: R2023F1A1R ¢
Cost XA 33,160 3,120 4,094 848 99,868 141,090
Accumulated depreciation ZiTiTE (10,106) (1,456) (2,274) (432) = (14,268)
Net carrying amount FE¥E 23,054 1,664 1,820 416 99,868 126,822
At January 1, 2023, net of R2023F1A18

accumulated depreciation MBREFHE 23,054 1,664 1,820 416 99,868 126,822
Additions NE - 53 169 - 14,081 14,303
Transfers RE 1,926 - - - (1,926) -
Depreciation provided during FREHENE

the year (6,357) (852) (449) (201) . (7,859)
At December 31, 2023, net of R2023F12R318

accumulated depreciation Mk 25478 18,623 865 1,540 215 112,023 133,266
At December 31, 2023 R2023F12/318
Cost KA 35,086 3,173 4,263 848 112,023 155,393
Accumulated depreciation ZithE (16,463) (2,308) (2,723) (633) - (22,127)
Net carrying amount REFE 18,623 865 1,640 215 112,023 133,266
In accordance with the Group’s accounting policies, the Group BEAEBENSTER  AEEBRE
reviews the carrying amount of its property, plant and equipment M - BRERBEOIRDEBAEE
to determine whether there is any indication of that these REEPRBTRZSEECEXRIE
assets have suffered an impairment loss. Where an indicator of B - BERBETR - BN RS HHE
impairment exists, a formal estimate of the recoverable amount is Al El e EED ERX A -

made at the reporting period.
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14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(CONTINUED)

The completion of the manufacturing facilities in Xuzhou was
deferred due to the temporary suspension of the construction.
Accordingly, management of the Group considered the
temporary suspension is an indicator of impairment and
performed an impairment assessment accordingly. As at
31 December 2024, construction in progress and leasehold
land of approximately RMB110,399,000 and approximately
RMB10,344,000 (note 16) were respectively recorded in
property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets (the
“Manufacturing Facility Related Assets”). The recoverable
amount of the Manufacturing Facility Related Assets has been
determined by fair value less cost of disposal approach adopted
by management of the Group. Key inputs used in the calculation
include:

RMB168 — 207
per square metre

Land market prices

Cost per square metre RMB2,925 per square metre
construction floor area

Functional obsolescence 5%

Economic obsolescence 5%

Based on the impairment assessment, as at 31 December
2024, the carrying amount of the Manufacturing Facility Related
Assets is less than the recoverable amount. Accordingly, no
impairment loss on the Manufacturing Facility Related Assets was
recognised.
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15. INTANGIBLE ASSETS
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15. B EE

Software
B
RMB’ 000
AR®T T
2024 2024 F
At January 1, 2024 ®2024%1A1H
Cost RN
Accumulated amortization RETEE Y
Net carrying amount BREE(E

At January 1, 2024, net of accumulated amortisation:
Amortisation provided during the year

R202451 A1 8 - kR REHE#S
FRETRE

At December 31, 2024, net of accumulated amortization

R2024F12 A31H » 1k EaH#s

At December 31, 2024

M2024%12 A431H

Cost DN

Accumulated amortization ZEHE

Net carrying amount BRTEDFE

2023 20234

At January 1, 2023 72023F1A1H

Cost D% 1,013

Accumulated amortisation Rt (185)

Net carrying amount BREF(E 828

At January 1, 2023, net of accumulated amortisation 202351 A1H « MR RET#H - 828

Amortisation provided during the year FRFHRE (101)

At December 31, 2023, net of accumulated amortisation 720234128318 - Nk Kt 727

At December 31, 2023 1202312 A31H

Cost %N 1,013

Accumulated amortisation RETHEE Y (286)

Net carrying amount BREF(E 727
BRBEARGERAT —Z-WEFH
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16. LEASES 16. HE
The Group as a lessee REBEEREBA
The Group has lease contracts for several buildings used as its AEEHBAERLAERERENS
office and laboratory. The movements in the carrying amount of FREYMNEESR - HE2024F12
right-of-use assets and lease liabilities during the year ended RA31RILFE  FHRELAERHEES
December 31, 2024 are as follows: EREENZBIERET
(a) Right-of-use assets (a) RFABEE

Office and Leasehold
laboratory land Total
BAER
BERE HELT ast
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR¥T T AR®T T AR¥T T

At January 1, 2024 R2024F1 A1H 49,353 59,984
Additions NE 11,082 11,082
Termination of leases wIFHAE (28,832) (28,832)
Depreciation charge meE® (15,955) (16,242)
At December 31, 2024 K2024F12A31H

At January 1, 2023 R2023F12 A31H 40,103 10,918 51,021
Additions NE 26,464 - 26,464
Depreciation charge mes (17,214) (287) (17,501)
At December 31, 2023 7R2023F12 A31H 49,353 10,631 59,984

270 3D Medicines Inc. Annual Report 2024



16. LEASES (CONTINUED)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

(b) Lease liabilities

(c)

Notes to Financial Statements
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Year ended December 31, 2024 & Z20245F 12431 H IFFE

16. & (&)

The carrying amount of lease liabilities and the movements

during the year are as follow:

FEBEREBEA (F)

(b) HERE

HEEENEREERFANEE

BT

2024
2024 F
RMB’ 000
ARBTT

Carrying amount at 1 January
New leases
Accretion of interest recognised during

A1 RRREE
MEE
FRRER B SIE 0

51,809
11,082

1,311

(34,223)
(13,451)

the year
Termination of leases wIEHE
Payments (NEA
Carrying amount at 31 December W12 A31BMEREE
Analysed into: DA
Current portion mENER
Non-current portion FETREN R

The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is disclosed in note

36 to the financial statements.

The amounts recognised in profit or loss in relation to leases

are follows:

2023
20234
RMB’000
AREFIT

44,708
26,464

1,439

(20,802)

51,809

23,225
28,584

HEBBNIBAW NGRS BT

RARMIFEICWE

(c) KRR EZEHEERIEFEN

:

2024
20245
RMB’ 000
AR®ET T

Depreciation charge on right-of-use assets

Interest on lease liabilities

Gains on termination of leases

Lease payments in respect of short-term
leases

EREEENTER
HERAEN S
RIEEE 2 s
EEHEMNHERN R

16,242
1,311

(3,657)

1,241

Total amounts recognised in profit or loss

2023
20234
RMB’000

ARETFT

17,501
1,439

987

19,927

BREEHRHERAR

—E_MEFH
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17.

18.

OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS 17. HitERBEE
2024 2023
2024 F 20234
RMB’ 000 RMB’000
ARETx AREFT
Value-added tax recoverable AT U B E R 10,014 7,983
Deposits e 2,270 3,907
Loans to employees’ mEEER - 2,312

Deposit paid in respect of construction in M - BB R FRAETENRIA?

progress? , =

! As at 31 December 2023, loans to employees were unsecured, with
an annual interest rate of 3% and terms of 36 and 24 months.

N For the year ended 31 December 2024, the Group placed a
deposit amounting to approximately US$6,200,000 with a company
controlled by the government authority in Xuzhou in respect of
the manufacturing facilities in Xuzhou, which was classified as
construction in progress in these consolidated financial statements.
The deposit was interest-free. The deposit shall be returned to the
Group to pay the construction cost to the relevant contractor upon
the completion of the manufacturing facilities.

i RZZZ=F+=A=+—H \E
BERAEER RFEFEI%E
K AHI36 24fE A -

2 BE-Z-NF+-_A=+—HILHF
& AEBERAMRRMN RIS TR
%Mﬁfim&ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂmﬂﬁﬁ
A#96,200,000E TR RS - 2%
EREERNGAMBRERP O ERE
HIR - ZEGRREEM - BER
MBI RS RERAEE
AR 1B B A B P S S R AR o

TRADE RECEIVABLES 18. EZ EWRIE
2024 2023
2024 F 20234
RMB’ 000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETTT
Trade receivables B 5 EWGRIE . 5,492
Expected credit losses BE (33)
Total S 5,459

The Group’s trade terms with Jiangsu Simcere and Simcere
Zaiming and the distributors are payment on credit. The credit
period is generally 70 days for Jiangsu Simcere and Simcere
Zaiming and 45 to 60 days for the distributors. The Group seeks
to maintain strict control over its outstanding receivables and
has a credit control department to minimise credit risk. Overdue
balances are reviewed regularly by senior management. The
Group does not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements
over its trade receivable balances. Trade receivables are
non-interest-bearing. The Group had a concentration of credit
risk as 81.2% of trade receivables were due from Jiangsu
Simcere and Simcere Zaiming, service providers of the Group at
the end of the year (2023: nil).
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18. TRADE RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

An ageing analysis of the trade receivables as at the end of the
reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as follows:

18. EZEWFIE (18)

R ERNE 5 R FRRER

Within 3 months 3 @l A A 3EAR

HItE L BRI AT 2T
2024 2023
2024 F 20234
RMB’ 000 RMB'000
AR¥ET T ARETT
5,492

The movements in the expected credit losses of trade
receivables are as follows:

2 5 ENGIERERNEIEREZE N
T

2024 2023
20244 20234
RMB’ 000 RMB'000
ARETR ARETTT

156
(123)

At beginning of year REH
Impairment changes, net BEZB)FRE
At end of year RER

33

-
.

The Group performed an impairment analysis during the
reporting period by considering the probability of default of the
debtors or comparable companies with published credit ratings.
Set out below is the information about the credit risk exposure on
the Group’s trade receivables using a provision matrix:

REENRERNETREST 5
LREBAXEERAREEXTNAEL
BRABEDMAIREN - TREINEH
AEEE S RGN EE AR (K
PR R ERE) BH

HHEEBEX
FREAE(ARBTIT)
EHEEER (ARETT)

Expected credit loss rate
Gross carrying amount (RMB’000)
Expected credit losses (RMB’000)

2024 2023
2024 F 20234
0.6% 0.6%
48,151 5,492
289 33
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19. PREPAYMENTS, OTHER RECEIVABLES AND 19. ENRIE - HtEWFRIER
OTHER ASSETS HittEE

2024 2023

20244 20234

RMB’ 000 RMB’000

AR%T ARETTT

Prepayments TERTRIB 8,970

Value-added tax recoverable ATk B3 (A R 7,990

Loans to employees’ AEEEK =

Rental and utility deposits refundable ARENHSTKERE -

Other receivables? o e W IR 71,546

g Loans to employees were unsecured, with an annual interest rate of
3% and terms of 12 months.

2 Other receivables mainly include RMB70,000,000 intention payment
made by the Group under a cooperative development agreement
with an independent third party, which were unsecured, interest-free
and subject to refund when the agreement is terminated (2023:
RMB70,000,000).

The Group seeks to maintain strict control over its outstanding
receivables to minimise credit risk. Long ageing balances are
reviewed regularly by senior management. The Group does
not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements over its
prepayments and other receivable balances.

Other receivables had no historical default. The financial assets
included in the above balances relating to receivables were
categorised in stage 1 at the end of the reporting period. In
calculating the expected credit loss rate, the Group considers
the historical loss rate and adjusts for forward-looking
macroeconomic data. As at December 31, 2024 and 2023, the
loss allowance was assessed to be minimal.

20. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FVTPL

20.

! AESERAEER - BRFEFEI%
AERAH12EA -

2 HthERFBEEOEAEERIE
BBV E=FFINEERAZEHZE
Y HH AR# 70,000,000 T E A&
3 BEREEER £ 1%
MRIERE A RIE o (2023 1 ARME
70,000,0007T)

AN &2 (B B B A R W 3 R R R
o LWREEERR - RERENE
HRARREREEHEMN - AEEL
45 B TR A R OR B L At UK IR A B
Fr A EMEA Rk E S REAR -

L Ath JE W SR IE S A E S B A0 0 8% o BT
ALl BERIES B A B SR
BERBEHADBEE R - &£
TEBEHEEEERE  AEEEE
JFE 52 15 18 51 0 B A IR M R R AT BUR
EH A% - 1R2024F 2 2023F 12 A
318 @ BEEHEHED -

BAFEFABENSHME
E

2024 2023
2024 F 20234
RMB’ 000 RMB’000
ARET T AREFTT

Wealth management products 12 B EE i

209,329
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20. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FVTPL (CONTINUED) 20. RAFEFABZHNEME

Z= (&)
The financial assets measured at FVTPL represented financial EATEFABENESREEIRETE
products with no predetermined return which are principal REIRA S REE @ Hﬁﬂ%zﬁﬁﬁ °
protected investments. The financial products are with expected ZErTREREERRAKER - BTE
yield rates, depending on the market prices of underlying EEcRTAE (BEES &ﬁﬁﬂimﬂﬁ
financial instruments, including bonds and other financial assets. BE)WmiSERNE -  BtEE408 e
Hence their contractual cash flows do not qualify for solely METHEERRINAE R EH
payments of principal and interest. The expected vyield rates &1 - BR2024F 128318 » FEHIW
ranged from 1.5% to 4.5% per annum as at December 31, 2024 HENFTEF1.5%E4.5% (2023F
(December 31, 2023: 1.5% to 4.5% per annum). 128318 : #F1.5%%E4.5%) °
The fair values are based on cash flows discounted using the NEENUFEAERREXRMENRS
expected vyield rate and are within Level 2 of the fair value MERER  URATEERN2HK
hierarchy. #ER o
The movements in the carrying value of the wealth management DHERERATESAER E’Jiraﬁﬁ?
products classified as financial assets as at FVTPL are as ZEVEGNEREEZSERNAT
follows:
RMB’ 000
AR TR
At January 1, 2024 R2024F1H1H 209,329
Acquisition’ L 230,000
Investment income' TEKA 475
Gain on fair value change NEEZS) W= 8,914
Disposal’ e (279,202)
At December 31, 2024 R2024F12A31H 169,516
At January 1, 2023 K2023F1/1H 108,604
Acquisition i 163,023
Investment income 8= L ON 44
Gain on fair value change NEEZB 7,379
Disposal HE (69,721)
At December 31, 2023 R2023F12A31H 209,329
1 In addition, the Group purchased certain short-term foreign 1 BEoh - BE2024F 12831 HILF
exchange-linked structured deposits amounting to RMB230,000,000 B AEEEE T EEINERNEE
with yield rates ranged from 1.05% to 2.40% for the year ended #F R AR 230,000,0007T * Yam
December 31, 2024. The deposits were fully redeemed by the end of ENTF1.05%FE2.40% ° & LFRE
the current year. Gain on these short-term foreign exchange-linked ANEEED 2 EPE R &R HINE#
structured deposits amounted to RMB475,000. HEEMTFRN KA ARKE475,000
ﬁ o

EREEARBERIA —Z-NFFHR 275



276

Notes to Financial Statements

B RS HRAR I EE

Year ended December 31, 2024 & Z=2024F12A31H I FE

21. FINANCIAL ASSETS MEASURED AT

AMORTISED COST

21. LEBBRAATTBZEREE

2024 2023
20244 20234
RMB’ 000 RMB’000
AR%T ARETTT
Current B

Short-term notes* HHIER 179,404 121,007
Loan** B 57,693 =
Expected credit losses TERE AKX (9,951) (231)
Total — current ENARTE 227,146 120 776

Non-current 3E7E FERE
Notes* e 23,623 70,793
Loan** B 53,683
Expected credit losses TEHAE AEX (285) (204)
Total — non-current SEmBIARER 124 272
Total #st 25&484 245,048

The balances represent the notes issued by third parties with
expected yield ranging from 2.5% to 6% per annum (2023: 2.5% to
6% per annum).

** The balance represents the loan to a third party, with a yield of 8%
per annum (2023: 8% per annum).

Financial assets measured at amortised cost are the debt
instruments held by the Group that meet both of the following
conditions: (1) the financial assets are held in the business model
whose objective is achieved by collecting contractual cash flow;
and (2) according to the contractual terms of the financial assets,
the cash flow generated at a particular date is only the principal
and the interest on the outstanding amount of principal.

The Group conducted an ECL assessment of according to
forward-looking information and used appropriate models and
assumptions in its expected measurement credit losses. These
models and assumptions relate to the future macroeconomic
conditions and borrower’s creditworthiness (e.g., the likelihood of
default by borrowers and the corresponding losses).
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FINANCIAL ASSETS MEASURED AT 21.

AMORTISED COST (CONTINUED)

The movements in expected credit losses of financial assets
measured at amortised cost are as follows:

UBSHATtECEMEE
(&)

DB AR A B 2 & BUA R (A5 1A
BEZBERMT :

2024 2023

2024 20234

RMB’ 000 RMB’00

AR%T ARETT

At beginning of year REA 1,149

Expected credit losses TEREREX (714)

At end of year RER 435
CASH AND BANK BALANCES 22. RERIBITHER

2024 2023

2024 F 20234

RMB’ 000 RMB’000

ARETT

Cash and bank balances Be RRITHEH 666,472

Denominated in FHEEE

Us$ e 196,287 172,045

RMB AR 247,348 493,268

HK$ oty 683 1,159

444,318 666,472

The RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies, however,
under Chinese Mainland’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations
and Administration of Settlement, and Sale and Payment of
Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to
exchange RMB for other currencies through banks authorised to
conduct foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily
bank deposit rates. The bank balances are deposited with
creditworthy banks with no recent history of default.

ARBIEARABBEMBER - R
i AR B A AN E B R P &
(HE  EERNEEERBAE) A%
BB R E R AT INERTE
RITHARE LA EMEE -

PITRSRESBRTFRNERT
BRI EBEFIS. o SRITAEEA TR
R 4 RSB RITHIRTT o

BHREEHRHERIR —B-MNFFH
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23. TRADE PAYABLES 23. EFENRE
An ageing analysis of the trade payables as at the end of the REZAMESHNBSHRNE S
reporting periods, based on the invoice date, is as follows: JERTRRIBRRER D ATIAT
2024 2023
2024 F 20234
RMB’ 000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETFT

Within 3 months 3@EARN 40,501

3 to 6 months 3Z61EA 18,254

6 months to 1 year 6EAE1F 13,144

More than 1 year ZR1E =

Total T 71,899

The trade payables are non-interest-bearing and payable on B O RNFIBETE - RERKEER

demand, which are normally settled on terms of 1 to 3 months. —MRIFIEIEANHAREE -

24. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 24, HttENRIERETERA
2024 2023
20245 20234
RMB’ 000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETFTT
Accrued research and development FEETIEE R

expenses 103,222

Payables for property, plant and ME - BE KBRS RE
equipment* 39,806

Accrued marketing service fees FERH & SHARTS & 10,422

Accrued royalty expenses RS EERE -

Payroll payable ERNIE 6,729

Payables to precedent investors** FER TR A E R IE 8,323

Payables for financing services Bh & AR 75 FE A 3E 3,976

Other tax payables HAtb eI Hi18 1,859

Other payables E fth fE - 53K8 4,146

Total #Et 178,483

Other payables are non-interest-bearing and repayable on EAbFEMFIETE B A EREKERE -

demand.

3 Payables for property, plant and equipment were mainly * ME - BERREENREZZ AT
procurements and expenses incurred for the construction of BNEREERBEENRBEEAR
manufacturing facilities in Xuzhou. Fx °

** |t represented the amounts withheld by the Group which will > EASEBEINMNKIE  BRETRE
be returned to the precedent investors when they confirm the ERERTUBIEHEERIE TIARE -

completion of tax filing.
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25. INTEREST-BEARING BANK BORROWINGS 25.

Current
Unsecured bank loans

Unsecured bank loans

Unsecured bank loans

Unsecured bank loans

Unsecured bank loans

Current portion of long term
unsecured bank loans

Total - current

Non-current
Unsecured bank loans

Total - non-current

Total

i)
BERFTEN

BERETEN

BERSTER

EERFTEN

BERRTER

RABERRTERY

ik

RERRE

Ei)
BERSTEN

FRBEE
@i

Notes to Financial Statements
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Year ended December 31, 2024 & Z20245F 12431 H IFFE

December 31, 2024
2024%12A31A
Effective
interest rate
ERAI=
(%)

RMB’000
ARBTR

Maturity
HHEE

One-year LPR-5bp 2025
—EHERTRHE
F=-5{HER
One-year LPR-10bp
-FHERTHEHE
Flz-10BEH
One-year LPR-20bp
—EHERTRHE
HE-20EE%
One-year LPR-25bp
-EHERTHEHRE
Flz-25fEE %
One-year LPR-35bp
—EHERTERE
ME-35{EEH
Five-year LPR-90bp
RERERTSEE
Flz-90fBE S

112,640

30,000

204,592

Five-year LPR-90bp
RERERTSEE
HE-90EEH

221,092

Bt 28R 1T B K
December 31, 2023
20235124318
Effective
interest rate Maturity RMB'000
ERAE HEEE  ARETR
(%)
One-year LPR-40bp 2024 100,000
—ERERTSRE
F%E-40 EEE
One-year LPR-15bp 2024 40,000
—ERERTHRE
Fil=-15EE
One-year LPR-25bp 2024 14,850
—ERERTSRE
Fil=-25 (B L
One-year LPR-20bp 2024 10,000
—ERERTHRE
Fil=-20EES
One-year LPR-17bp 2024 9,524
—ERERTISRE
=17 AR
One-year LPR+11bp 2024 27,000
—ERERTHRE
Fil=-11{EES
201,374
One-year LPR-5bp 2025 29,242
—EHERTSRE
il bEEE
29,242
230,616
BREEHRDERAT —ZT-MFEFR
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26.

SHARE CAPITAL AND TREASURY SHARES

Authorised:

HRE(EO0.001 B ITH) E B

26. BRAREFR
ETE
2024 2023
20244 20234
Number of shares Number of shares
REE RmHEE
500,000,000 500,000,000

Ordinary shares of HK$0.001 each

Issued and fully paid:

Number of
shares in issue

ERITROEE

SR E0.001 B ITH)
R

Ordinary shares of HK$0.001 each
258,207,000

ERITRAR :

Share capital
&N
RMB’ 000
AR¥ T

HK$’ 000
FHET

2023
20234

Number of
shares in issue

Share capital

EEITRHER [N
HK$’000 RMB’000
FHET AREFT
Ordinary shares of HK$0.001 each &% E{E0.001%& T
LBk 258,207,000 258 226

During the year ended December 31, 2024, the Company
repurchased 10,000 and 20,000 ordinary shares at total
consideration of HK$58,300 and HK$116,950 respectively,
resulting an increase in treasury shares of RMB160,000. As at 31
December 2024, the Company has not deregistered these shares
which were subsequently derecognised at March 25, 2025.

3D Medicines Inc. Annual Report 2024
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26. SHARE CAPITAL AND TREASURY SHARES 26. RAREER (&)
(CONTINUED)

Issued and fully paid: (Continued) ERTRHE : (&)

The total number of issued ordinary shares included 13,236,808 ERTEBEREBHBERFERDZE
shares (December 31, 2023: 13,135,162 shares) held for a 5T 218913,236,808 i i1 (20234F 12
share incentive scheme; and 30,000 shares repurchased during A31H8 :13,135,162%) ;LA RAKF
the current year of approximately RMB160,000, which were all [Z [E18E #930,000 % £ A R #160,000
recognised as treasury shares of approximately RMB172,000 T ERERBEFR - BEHAR
(December 31, 2023: RMB12,000). #172,0007T (2023 12 HA31H : A

R#12,0007T) °
A summary of movements in the share capital is as follows: RASEHENT

Number of
shares in

issue Share capital
556
RDBE IR
HK$’ 000 RMB’ 000
TERT AR®T

At January 1, 2023 R2023%1A1H 255,642,000
Issue of ordinary shares upon exercise of 1T{FFB5E A AL HETL 41T

over-allotment option TR 415,000
Placing of new shares fid & ¥ A% 2,150,000

At December 31, 2023, January 1, 2024 120234 12H31H -
and December 31, 2024 2024F1A1H X
202412 A31H 258,207,000

EREEARBERIA —Z-NFFHR 281
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26. SHARE CAPITAL AND TREASURY SHARES 26. RAREER (&)

(CONTINUED)
Issued and fully paid: (Continued) ERTRHE : (&)
A summary of movements in the treasury shares held for a share EETF AR ERR (D B s Sl B 2 a0
incentive scheme is as follows: T
Number of
treasury
shares held
for a share
incentive Treasury shares held for
scheme a share incentive scheme
EEREE
BER®G
HEEHE EFRISERG BB T8
HK$ RMB’ 000
BT AR T
At January 1, 2024 R2024F1A1H 13,135,162
Exercise of restricted share units (note 29) 17 2[R A% {7 B {1
(FF5E29)
Repurchase of shares in relation to B8 01 52 BR I AR 17 Bz
restricted share units El ) S 101,646
At December 31, 2024 R2024%F12831H 13,236,808
At January 1, 2023 R2023F181H 31,446,746 31,447 26
Exercise of restricted share units (note 29) 171 2[R A% {7 B {1
(FF3E29) (18,332,232) (18,332) (15)
Repurchase of shares in relation to F& (] 2 PR i AR {7 BE iz
restricted share units BRI 20,648 20 1
At December 31, 2023 R2023F 12 A31H 13,135,162 13,135 12
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27.

28.

RESERVES

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements therein
for the current and prior years are presented in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity.

PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES WITH
MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

Details of the Group’s subsidiaries that have non-controlling
interests are set out below:

Percentage of equity held by
non-controlling interest
UFEZERESRFENRET I

2024
2024

3D Medicines and its BREBHER
subsidiaries EHEAR]
(the"3D Med Subgroup”)

3DMed Qingdao BHHES

Transactions with non-controlling interests

Notes to Financial Statements

B RS HRR 5L

Year ended December 31, 2024 & Z20245F 12431 H IFFE

27. #1E

AEBARFEMUAMFENHESRE
MESPELEAERZBRBIIR -

28. BAEAFEREZNES

EfEQT

REETES FIERES

BESIIT

2023 2024
20234 2024 F

RMB’ 000
AR¥ T

(84,408)
3,060

(81,348)

OB B8 X B FF

Carrying amount of
non-controlling interests
FERERNREE

2023
20234
RMB’000
ARET T

(69,175)
3,121

(66,054)

BEERERZENRS

2024
2024 F
RMB’ 000
ARETT

Recognition of equity-settled share-based Fi B A R FEFR AR b 2 FE A TR
payments attributable to subsidiaries with MARERR S E AR D B AR

non-controlling interests (N

BREEHRHERAR

2023

2023 F
RMB’000
AREFTT

16,182

—E_MEFH
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28. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES WITH
MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS
(CONTINUED)

Set out below is summarised financial information for the 3D Med
Subgroup that has non-controlling interests that are material to
the Group. The amounts disclosed for the 3D Med Subgroup are
before inter-company eliminations with other subsidiaries of the
Group.

28. BREARFERESRHNES

EMEAT (&)

TERBMBIRABEELEMB AR
MHES  BHRABERAENEAR
FIFFIE R S R B R FH R ERA ©
PR EN B aBERENBARMN
SHEEERAEEEMFATETA
BB R RIHEBRY B TR -

3D Med Subgroup
BREBEERHEWEAR

2024 2023
2024 F 20234
RMB’ 000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARETTT

Summary of statement of profit or loss and 8z R E

457,988 668,563
(616,029) (1,027,005)

other comprehensive income PER e K IGE
Total revenue L ON-E
Total expense Fk 158
Total comprehensive loss for the year FAREHEEIBERE

(158,041) (358,442)

Loss attributable to non-controlling interests ~ FE¥EAR 2 FE (G B9 12

2024 2023
2024 % 20234
RMB’ 000 RMB’000
ARBTT AR¥ETTT

Summary of statement of financial position B BA KK E

364,820 445,185
33,020 54,084
(1,174,134) (1,106,924)
(24,754) (48,832)

(801,048) (656,487)

2024 2023
2024 F 20234
RMB’ 000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARETT

(102,752) (99,746)

493 (50,671)

(33,554) 233,961

Current assets MENEE

Non-current assets ERBEE

Current liabilities mEE &

Non-current liabilities FRBEE

Net assets FERE

Accumulated non-controlling interests ZEH IR ER

Summary of statement of cash flow HEMELRBE

Net cash flows used in operating activities K EBMARSTEF5

Net cash flows from/(used in) WEEBATS/I(FTA)
investing activities RenEFH

Net cash flows (used in)/from RUEEBN(FTA)/ 5
financing activities RenEFH

Net (decrease)/increase in cash and & RRITER
bank balances (R A)/3E hnyFaE

83,544
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29. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

2021 share incentive scheme

Pursuant to the share incentive scheme of the Company
approved and adopted on June 22, 2021, 26,068,462 restricted
share units had been granted to certain employees of Group on
September 30, 2021 and 13,995,821 restricted share units have
been granted to a certain employee of Group on October 6,
2022.

The Group’s employees have the option to acquire the granted
restricted share units at exercise price when all the vesting
conditions are fulfilled, and therefore, the fair values of the
restricted share units granted were estimated as at the grant
date.

The following restricted share units were outstanding under the
scheme during the reporting period:

At January 1, 2024 20241518

Exercised during the year FRNBITE
Forfeited during the year FABRK

At December 31, 2024 R2024F12A31H

29. IR BER NI

2021 FR B BT E

BIEARRARN20214F6 A22 B #t &
MM IR BB &l - 26,068,462
R H M ELDR2021F9 A
S0RBETAEEETEEESE ' &k
13,995,821 R &l x5 B 2 R
2022F 10 AR TFTALEETAE
Ele
AEENETIREEREMBERBK
HEIMERRTEEBEMETH
PREIMERZEMN - Bt - R THR
FIMERZEMHAAEBERETAE
fTilEr -

AT RN E BT 88 T mARTT
150 B PR AR £ B8

Weighted average

exercise price

IREFI9ITEE
HK$ per share  Number of units
SRET BugE
11,906,389

(277,500)

11,628,889

At January 1, 2023 7)2023%F1A1H 0.90 31,446,746
Exercised during the year FREITE 0.17 (18,332,232)
Forfeited during the year FARAB KR 1.29 (1,208,125)
At December 31, 2023 R2023%12A31H 1.97 11,906,389

18,332,232 restricted share units have been exercised, among
which, the vesting of 13,449,055 restricted share units were
accelerated, during the year ended December 31, 2023. No
restricted share units have been exercised during the year ended
December 2024.

HZE2023F12A31HILFE ' B
18,332,232 R #l ik 15 B i1 B 1T
£+ H 13,449,055 R HIMDE
EMREFE - HZE2024F12 A31
BIEFE - RITETMAZR IR E

fiL -

BHREEHRHERIR —B-MNFFH
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29. IR AERNAR (&)
2021 ERH BB ()

2024412 A31H }M2023412 A31
B M ARITERZ R GIRR (5 B 1TE

29. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (CONTINUED)
2021 share incentive scheme (Continued)

The exercise prices and vesting periods of the restricted share
units outstanding as at December 31, 2024 and December 31,

286

2023 are as follows:

December 31, 2024

Number of restricted

BREEMIT

2024%12A31H

Exercise price

Batch share units per share Vesting periods
A/ ZREIRDENCHE BRITEE BEH
1 1,168,576 HK$0.001
0.0013& 7T
2 5,377,244 HK$2.2078
2.2078 T
3 1,844,287 HK$2.2078
2.20785& T
4 3,238,782 HK$2.2078

December 31, 2023

11,628,889

Number of restricted

2.207838 T

20234 12HA31H

Exercise price

Batch share units per share Vesting periods
BR ZPR HIA D BB E BRITHEE BRITEE
1 1,283,576 HK$0.001 4 years
0.001%7T 44

2 5,467,244 HK$2.2078 4 years
2.20787 7T VS

3 1,916,787 HK$2.2078 4 years
2.2078# T 45

4 3,238,782 HK$2.2078 4 years
2.2078% 7T 44

11,906,389

The outstanding restricted share units are subject to vesting

conditions including performance condition of relevant grantees.
25%, 25%, 25% and 25% of the total number of the restricted
share units granted shall vest on the first, second, third, and
fourth anniversaries from the grant date, respectively, if the

vesting condition is fulfilled. The administration department may

also at its sole discretion to accelerate the vest period based

on the performance by the grantee according to the employee

performance indicators as implemented or amended by the

Company from time to time.
3D Medicines Inc. Annual Report 2024
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29. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (CONTINUED) 29. R AEBRNSRK (E)
2023 Share Option Scheme 2023 FERETE
The share option scheme was approved and adopted by the ZEREFTEIER2023F6 A26 B
Company on June 26, 2023. RN AR E RERAR o
On April 5, 2024, the Company granted share options to certain 2024F4 A58  ARRIBRTFET
eligible participants to subscribe for a total of 12,802,850 EERKRSMEERE - NER6.096
ordinary shares in the share capital of the Company, at the price BILHEERBARRAARAREH
of HK$6.096 per share. 12,802,850 A% & AR -
Options granted are subject to a vesting period of over 4 years BETHHENGBHA4IFEEZ  BF
with vesting scale in tranches of 25% each per annum starting THME—FI  FFL25%H L6
from the first anniversary of the date of grant and fully vested in SHEE WERTHEFNFTE
the 4th anniversary of the date of grant. The exercise period is 4 B THHEAR4LIE - B2025%F4
years from April 5, 2025 to April 5, 2029. HA5H#EZE2029F4 A58 IF -
Set out below are summaries of options granted under the plan: BIEZATEIR TROEEBREZENT -

Weighted average

exercise price 2024

IEFIITEE 20244

HKS$ per share

BRAET

As at January 1 MW1A1H = =
Granted during the year FAREEE 6.096 12,802,850
Exercised during the year FRETHE = =
Forfeited during the year FRBE R 6.096 (156,785)
As at December 31 M®12A31H 6.096 12,646,065
Vested and exercisable at December 31 12 A31BE B AI1T{E =
No options expired during the periods covered by the above ERREOHEA - ORBHEDH -
tables.
The expiry date of share options outstanding at the end of the 2024512 A31 B IEFE R KRIT
year ended December 31, 2024 is April 5, 2029. EHHENEI A R2029F4 A5H -
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29.

30.

SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (CONTINUED)
2023 Share Option Scheme (Continued)

The fair values of share options granted were estimated as at
the grant date using binomial method, taking into account the
terms and conditions upon which the options were granted.
The fair value of the share options granted on April 5, 2024 was
approximately HK$27,700,000 million. The following table lists
the inputs to the model used to determine the fair values of the
share options granted in 2024:

29.

URHBBEBNSR (E)
2023 FERELTE (&)

ERTHRESHENAABERE=E
HEME  WERT R FHENK
HAEH - RIETBETT - R2024
FA4ASEETHHENATELN A
27,700,000 7T © T &5 H AR TEE
2024 FETFHHEAABENEARN
BAER

As at
April 5, 2024
A 20244 48 5H

Expected volatility (%) LN
Risk-free interest rate (%) 2 3 B ) 2
Exercise multiple TEREE

44.6%
3.5%
221t028

The expected volatility reflects the assumption that the historical
volatility is indicative of future trends, which may also not
necessarily be the actual outcome.

The Group recognised the total expenses of RMB32,672,000 for
the year ended December 31, 2024 (2023: RMB298,963,000), in
relation to 2021 share incentive scheme and 2023 share option
scheme of the Company (2023: 2021 share incentive scheme).

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

(a) Major non-cash transactions

During the year ended December 31, 2024, the Group
had non-cash additions to right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities of RMB11,082,000 (2023: RMB26,464,000),
respectively, in respect of lease arrangements for office and
laboratory premises.
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(a) FEFREXRS
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30.NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)

(b) Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities

2024

Payables to

30. FERERERME (H)

(b) BMETEBFELZAESE
2024 F

Interest-

bearing bank

precedent and other Lease
Investors borrowings liabilities Total
B 5R B S8R 1T
REEE REMER HESE st
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR¥TT AR¥T T AR¥T T AR¥T T
At January 1, 2024 R2024%1H1H 230,616 51,809 290,748
Changes from BmEREREZE
financing cash flow (17,716) (13,451) (31,167)
Interest expense FERX 8,192 1,311 9,503
New leases FHRERH
arrangements 11,082 11,082
Termination of leases #X LS (34,223) (34,223)
Foreign exchange b 34
changes 125
At December 31, 2024 72202412 A31H 221,092 16,528 246,068
2023 20234
Payables to Interest- Accrued
precedent  bearing bank Interest Lease listing
investors  borrowings payable liabilities expense Total
FEfT AT iifs} fEqt
REEZE BITER ERFIE  HERE AR @t
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  ARETT ARBTr AREBTT ARETR ARETR
At January 1, 2023 M2023%1A1R 13,936 130,993 110 44,708 9,902 199,649
Changes from financing cash flow BERERECEY (5,709) 93,290 (110) (20,802) (641) 66,028
Interest expense FERZ - 6,333 - 1,439 - 7772
New leases arrangements MHERH - - - 26,464 = 26,464
Foreign exchange changes ExE 9% = = = - 9
Changes from non-financing cash flow  FFRERLHEZEH - - = = (9,261) (9,261)
At December 31, 2023 72023512318 8,323 230,616 - 51,809 - 290,748

BHREEHRHERIR —B-MNFFH

289



290

Notes to Financial Statements

B RS HRAR I EE

Year ended December 31, 2024 & Z=2024F12A31H I FE

The Company and SELLAS Life Sciences Group, Inc., a
company listed on the Nasdaqg Stock Market (stock code: SLS)
("SELLAS") entered into an exclusive license agreement and
several supplementary agreements regarding the development
and commercialisation of 3D189 as well as 3D059 in Chinese
Mainland, Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan. On December 20,
2023, the Company received a notice of arbitration filed by
SELLAS and its subsidiary, SLSG Limited, LLC with the Hong
Kong International Arbitration Centre against the Company as
respondent, alleging certain disputes, including, among other
things, the triggering of milestone payments relating to initiation
of the phase Il clinical trials for 3D189, as well as failure to
maintain sufficient expertise and resources to fulfil its obligations
under the licensing agreements (the “Application”).

The directors, having considered the advice from the Group’s
external legal counsel as well as the latest information and
evidence available, believe that based on current development,
the Company has reasonable chances of defending the
claimants’ claim in the Arbitration. Hence, the Group has not
provided for any claim arising from the arbitration, other than the
related legal and other costs for the years ended December 31,
2024 and 2023.
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30.NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED 30. MEBRSRERMET (&)
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)
(c) Total cash outflow for leases (c) HAZRESRHELE
The total cash outflow for leases included in the FTAGARERERZHEHZE
consolidated statement of cash flows is as follows: SRmLBRENAT
2024 2023
2024 F 20234
RMB’ 000 RMB’000
AR%E T ARETT
Within operating activities RIEETFEN 1,241 987
Within financing activities REEEEA 15,938 21,401
31. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 31. FAREE

AR A B AE A HT 2 5 AR 2 ﬁiﬁimm
SELLAS Life Sciences Group,
(RE|RE : SLS)(TSELLASJ)zAu
T BRI e A R % @7 e
B RIEFBARE - B - BRPINEE
I3 IR 213D 189 % 3D059 ° 2023
F12H208 * RARUKEIT SELLAS
RETFATSLSG Limited, LLCHAZE
PR MEP ORI EBA -
RWEHEBA  EEFEEEEZ B
FEER3D 189 1) 3 = [ ER & K S B R &
AR EREREMAROEE - LARAKREE
HREHNEENENERABITHE
TEFT Al et THOER S ([FRFB D) o

EEMEZRTREINEEARZBERD
BRNREFHESMEIRE - 18
EREMNERS %*$“ﬁ&@ﬁ
$ﬁAﬁm% REHFITHRE

o At %.ﬁ%ﬁ2024$%l]2023
FHIEWFEH AR MR
RSN+ IR R 3 EE A B9 (AT R B iR
HEE -



32.

33.

COMMITMENTS

The Group had the following capital commitments as at the end

of the reporting period:

Notes to Financial Statements

B RS HRR 5L

Year ended December 31, 2024 & Z20245F 12431 H IFFE

32, &
REERBE PRGN TEAELE -

Contracted, but not provided for:
Purchase of property, plant
and equipment

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The directors are of the view that the following companies are
related parties that have material transactions or balances with

the Group during the reporting period.

2024 2023
2024 F 20234
RMB’ 000 RMB'000
AR¥ET T ARETT
BRTHERERHE
BEWE - BERKREEE
39,253
33. BB A RS

EEZRRUTARARRE AR ER
SEBEERRGNERZ BB -

(a) Names and relationships of the related parties (a) BBAZEBE HEREBEE
Name Relationship
BB BB B%
Dr. Gong Zhaolong Chairman and executive director
BjkiEE FRERNTES
Ms. Zhang Jing Key management personnel of the Group
Rt REEFEERAR
Qingdao Huiquan Risheng Trading Co., Ltd.* A related company of non-controlling interest
EEERHABSERATR FEPERR R BV B R X )
(b) The Group had the following transactions with related (b) AEERBEHBEBEAKS ZH
parties during the reporting periods: BETUTRES :
2024 2023
2024 20234
RMB’ 000 RMB’000
AR¥T ARETFT
Loan to and repayment from Qingdao EEEREBRZESAR
Huiguan Risheng Trading Co., Ltd.* NAMERKER -
Interest income on loans to related parties:  [A]E5E T B EIFIEHA
Key management personnel FTEEEAB 97
Qingdao Huiquan Risheng Trading EEEXHBAESER
Co., Ltd.” NG| =

o I

EREEARBERIA —Z-NFFHR 291
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33. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(CONTINUED)

(c) Outstanding balances with related parties:

(c)

Amount due from a related party JEW I A
Ms. Zhang Jing — non-trade: R LT — EE 5.
Amount due to a related party: JE1T BT 7 7 0H:

Dr. Gong Zhaolong — non-trade: BkERLT — kB S

Amount due to Dr. Gong Zhaolong was unsecured, interest-
free and repayable on demand. The amount was settled
during the current year.

Amount due from Ms. Zhang Jing is an unsecured loan,
with an annual interest rate of 3% and a term of 24 months.
The maturity date of the loan borrowed by Ms. Zhang Jing
was originally November 10, 2023, but was extended to
November 10, 2025.

The Group has assessed the expected loss rate for amount
due from a related party by considering the financial
position and credit history of this related party and
assessed that the expected credit loss is minimal.

(d) Compensation of key management personnel of the
Group:

(d)

RSB AR BERER
NG
TE-{t

Equity-settled share-based payment
expenses

Salaries, bonuses, allowances and
benefits in kind

Pension scheme contributions BIRSEEIME R

A 2B REWREN

Further details of directors’ and the chief executive’s
remuneration are included in note 9 to the financial
statements.
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33. B LRE (&)

BB S 2 Bz REE A
2024 2023
2024 £ 2023
RMB’ 000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREFT
1,277
800

FERTEEILBE B T RRIA R AR -
RERBREFRIER - ZFAL
RARFERELEE

JE WR o 3% 20 + WO FRIB B 1R 4R 3
B FHMEAE3% - ERHAR
B2AER - RBEELTFEER
K EIH A 9)46 /2023411 A 10
B EBEEZEREZE2025411510
E| °

AREELRIBE B R 7 1
RSB RS R AT (i FEUR BA R 75
FIRMTRHBE R MEHEF IR
HEEBREN -

FEFTEEBEAEZEHM -
2024 2023
2024 2023
RMB’ 000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARETTT
289,608
11,428
425

301,461

AREERSSTRARME
E— SHERRGA M BREM
59 -



Notes to Financial Statements

B RS HRR 5L

Year ended December 31, 2024 & Z20245F 12431 H IFFE

34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial
instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

34. RERIEITNEMTH

RBEBHR - SEHESHRTANEKRR
BT :

2024 2023
2024 F 20234
RMB’ 000 RMB’000
ARETT AREFTT

Financial assets SREE
Financial assets at FVTPL: BRATEFABSNEREE :
Wealth management products IO E 169,516 209,329
Financial assets at amortised cost: BB ATTEC SREE
Cash and bank balances e MIRTTHEH 444,318 666,472
Financial assets measured at amortised cost AR AT EZ S REE 250,484 245,048
Trade receivables B S rWEIE 47,862 5,459
Financial assets included in prepayments, ST ATERT IR - Efth R
other receivables and other assets EHREMEENSREE 77,115 71,546
Financial assets included in other non-current st AEMIERBEEN S RE
assets BE 46,803 6,219
Amount due from a related party JE Ui R Bt 5 I8 1,313 1,277
Total S 867,895 996,021
Financial liabilities SRBE
Financial liabilities at amortised cost: LSRR ATTEz 2mAE :
Interest-bearing bank borrowings Ht B ERTTIE K 221,092 230,616
Financial liabilities included in T AE M ER R IE R IERT &
other payables and accruals RAH e & 215,621 169,895
Trade payables B 5 W RIE 51,131 71,899
Amount due to a related party FEA — 2 B 5 B 800
Total st 473,210

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and bank
balances, financial assets measured at amortized cost, trade
receivables, financial assets included in prepayments, other
receivables and other assets, financial assets included in other
non-current assets, amount due from a related party and trade
payables, short term interest-bearing bank borrowings, amount
due to a related party, financial liabilities included in other
payables and accruals approximate to their carrying amounts
largely due to the short-term maturities of these instruments.

EREE HIRE MIRITAER - A
BERAHBZEREE  EHEUR
B FFAENFIE - AR RIE R
HEMEENSREE st AEMIER
PDEENSEBAEE  BUEIR T IR
"B SRENFIR - M ERITE
o BN — BB FOR  FEAEAM
ENFAREFERANSBEENR
FEEEREERS  TEEHRVU
FTARNEHNZIHRE -

BHREEHRHERIR —B-MNFFH
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34.

35.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY
(CONTINUED)

The Group’s finance department headed by the senior
finance manager is responsible for determining the policies
and procedures for the fair value measurement of financial
instruments. The finance manager reports directly to the chief
financial officer and the audit committee. At each reporting date,
the finance department analyses the movements in the values
of financial instruments and determines the major inputs applied
in the valuation. The valuation is reviewed and approved by the
chief financial officer. The valuation process and results are
discussed with the audit committee twice a year for interim and
annual financial reporting.

M. ZERHEBINEMIA
(%)
75 B 1 7 AR T IR SRS M B 7 2
BEETSMTAAFEFRNER
REF - HBRRERRERUBE
MEZZEGRE - REBREH - o
BHAMERTABESSRETE
RREENEEHARE - HRIH
BEMRILEHGE - FHBRAER
SERBEREARTRAA - ARF
HRE I B RE -

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY /. eMITAERAFERAFES
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS &
Fair value hierarchy AFHEER
Financial assets at FVTPL: HRFEFGABREHEE -
2024 2024 %
Fair value measurement using
RAUNTEESNENAFE
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
RIEBTEPH EAUBE EBEALTUTEE
BE BWAHE WAHE
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
(%) (B=H) (E=R) st
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR¥ T AR¥T AR¥T T AR¥ET T
Wealth management products B EMR 169,516 169,516
2023 20234
Fair value measurement using
KRN TEEAENATE
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable  unobservable
markets inputs inputs
PE BB T 5 i) BEAAEHE BATAHER
HE AR BAHIE
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
(B—R) (=) (B=H) et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT
Wealth management products B Em - 209,329 - 209,329

3D Medicines Inc. Annual Report 2024



Notes to Financial Statements

B RS HRR 5L

Year ended December 31, 2024 & Z20245F 12431 H IFFE

35. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

Assets for which fair values are disclosed

2024

35. SMIAAFERATEE

A& (%)

AT EER ()
HELFEHEE
2024

Fair value measurement using
RAUT &E BN A TLE

Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
RERm 5 H 8 BEATHE EXFAUEE
BE WABE WABE
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) cll
(B—#) (B=#H) (B=H) st
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
ARYET T ARMT T ARMET T ARMT T
Financial assets measured at AR AT B 2
amortised cost — non current EMEE —FRD
Long-term deposits REITFR
2023 20234
Fair value measurement using
KANTEEEM R TE
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable  unobservable
markets inputs inputs
PR B TI5 4 6 BRABE EATIHE
BE BAYIE WA
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
(B—#) (=) (BE=#) st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT
Financial assets measured at NESBR AT EZ
amortised cost — non current EWMEE —FR - 124,272 = 124,272
Long-term deposits RHER - 3,907 = 3,907
Amount due from a related party  JEUR B8R 5 0B = 1,277 = 1,277
Amounts due from employees FE W g B 5RIB - 2,312 - 2,312
- 131,768 - 131,768
BREEHRDERAT —ZT-MFEFR
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35. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY /5. LMITARAFERAFESE

OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) & (&)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued) REEER (&)
Liabilities for which fair values are disclosed WELFENEE
2024 2024 %

Fair value measurement using
RANTREFEN A FE
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
RERm 5 H 8 BEATHE EXFAUEE
HE WABE WABE

(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) cll
(B—%&) (B=H) (B=4) st
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR®TT AR®T ARBTR ARBT

Interest-bearing bank borrowings i ER1TIE X

2023 20234

Fair value measurement using

RANTRBEFENAFE

Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable  unobservable
markets inputs inputs
AR BB T35 6 BAABE BATIUEER
B BABE BABE
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
(B—#) (B=#) (B=#) st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT

Interest-bearing bank borrowings it SSR1THE = 29,242 = 29,242

- 29,242 - 29,242
The fair values of wealth management products, the non- BHER NEBBRKAHFEZEHNE
current portion of financial assets measured at amortised cost ERNFERB IS KK SRITEROA
and interest-bearing bank borrowings have been calculated by TEHEFERFEAABHEERR  EE
discounting the expected future cash flows using rates currently [E B K gr TR EA B 6 T A BRI AT 15
available for instruments with similar terms, credit risk and FIEITIRIBARRIR @ MEFTHEEE ©

remaining maturities.
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FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)
Financial instruments in Level 3

During the reporting period, there were no transfers of fair value
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers into
or out of Level 3 for both financial assets and financial liabilities.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments mainly comprise
cash and bank balances, and wealth management products,
and interesting-bearing bank borrowings. The main purpose of
these financial instruments is to raise finance for the Group’s
operations. The Group has various other financial assets and
liabilities such as trade receivables, financial assets included in
prepayments, other receivables and other assets, trade payables
and financial liabilities included in other payables and accruals,
which arise directly from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments are
foreign currency risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The board of
directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these
risks and they are summarised below.

Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk of loss resulting from changes in
foreign currency exchange rates. Fluctuations in exchange rates
between RMB and other currencies in which the Group conducts
business may affect the Group’s financial condition and results of
operations.

35.

36.

SMIAAFERIFES
A& (%)

AFEER ()

E=H2BTA
RBEMR - ReMEERSBE N
ZATEHEMS  EREE-R
ZMLEBE  TEEAREHES
% -

B E b E IR B R R BUR

AEETZSMTATIZEERE N
RITHERR - BB E R B ERTTER
E -ZEERMIAZTEREIAAR
SEEBEE - AEBEAE SRR
FIE - T ATRNFUR - H AR FUR
REMEENEREE EHENAX
AN ET AR MR SR R BT B R
CREESZHAGEREERA
B HEERNAEESETES -

AEEEMTAEEZ T EAR I
ERE  FERBRRDESER -
ExgRIAIBEEESEMEBRR
ZHE - ZERRHRIT

SNEE R R

SNSRI RINEE R BB R E RN
Rk AREEAEBERRELAA
Hth Gz MEX N EFERE
B SAR R -

BREEARGERLT —ZS_NFFIHK
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 36. KEKREEEEREE

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (CONTINUED) (&)
SRR (4)

TRAARBELR - AR BB
FER (AR EBEERBENAT
ERD) RAREESEYIEEE S
A B {0 M) BURE (ZE T A
SRETENHERT) -

Foreign currency risk (Continued)

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end of
the reporting period to a reasonably possible change in foreign
currency exchange rate, with all other variables held constant, of
the Group’s loss before tax (due to changes in the fair value of
monetary assets and liabilities) and the Group’s equity.

298

Increase/ Increase/ (Decrease)/
(decrease) (decrease) increase
in loss
in basis points before tax in equity
S BE = BREL RIS 18 e
EH(FER) 2, GR) CRi),/ #n
% RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
ARETT AR®TT
2024 2024
If RMB weakens against US$ M AREE R EITiE (20,041) 20,041

If RMB strengthens against US$ M AR R EITHHE 20,041 (20,041)
2023 20234

If RMB weakens against US$ M AR R EITizE (19,069) 19,069
If RMB strengthens against US$ fig N R ¥ K ZETTHAE 19,069 (19,069)

Credit risk

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy parties.
It is the Group’s policy that all customers who wish to trade
on credit terms are subject to credit verification procedures.
Receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing basis and the
Group’s exposure to bad debts is not significant. The credit risk
of the Group’s other financial assets, which comprise cash and
cash equivalents and financial assets included in prepayments,
other receivables and other assets, arises from default of the
counterparty, with a maximum exposure equal to the carrying

amounts of these instruments.

For other receivables and other assets, management makes
periodic collective assessment as well as individual assessment
on the recoverability of other receivables based on historical
settlement records and past experience. The directors believe
that there is no material credit risk inherent in the Group’s
outstanding balance of other receivables.
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Credit risk (Continued)

Maximum exposure and year-end staging

The tables below show the credit quality and the maximum
exposure to credit risk based on the Group’s credit policy, which

is mainly based on past due information unless other information

is available without undue cost or effort, and year-end staging

classification as December 31.

The amounts presented are gross carrying amounts for financial

assets.

As at December 31, 2024

12-Month

ECLs

1218 A

BHEEEE

Stage 1

F1RE

RMB’ 000

AR¥TR

Cash and bank balances e RRITHEER 444,318
Financial assets measured B At E 2

at amortised cost** SRVEE 260,720

Trade receivables* B ZrERIE" -

Financial assets included FTATERFUA -

in prepayments, other B e W R I B
receivables and other HiEENER

assets** BE 77,115
Financial assets included in st AEfMIETREE

other non-current assets™  EMLEEE" 46,803
Amount due from a related  FEURBEES 5 ZIE*

party™ 1,313

Total st 830,269

Stage 2
E2ME R
RMB’ 000
AR¥T T

36. W KEAREEBEEREE

(&)

EERR (&)
RE R R FARIELR

TEBRTREARBEEERR (XZ
ERB#ER - RIFEBAEANHTL
ENRARB N TREEMER) 6
FEEZR&ERRR - URRHREH
RZEREEDHE -

EFNESERAEREENREAE -

R2024512A31H

Lifetime ECLs

EHERFEER

Stage 3
1R
RMB’ 000
ARBTR

BREEHRHERAR

Simplified
approach
(473
RMB’ 000
AR®TT

Total

st

RMB’ 000
AR®ST R

444,318

260,720
48,151

878,420

—E_MEFH
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Credit risk (Continued)
Maximum exposure and year-end staging (Continued)

As at December 31, 2023

36.

BBEBEEERRBE
(%)
{EHAR (4)

RERRRFREE (E)
M2023F 12 A31H

12-Month
ECLs
12{E A Lifetime ECLs
HHEEEE 2 HEHEEERE
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
LB EoREER F1EER 97 wst
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT ARETR

ARETT ARETRT ARETRT

Cash and bank balances e RifITHES 666,472 = = = 666,472
Financial assets measured  JABEERRK ARG E 2

at amortised cost** EREE 245,483 = = = 245,483
Trade receivables* B 2N RIE - - - 5,492 5,492
Financial assets included FFAEMAFRE -

in prepayments, other ot FE WK IE K

receivables and other HiAEN SR

assets*™ BE" 71,546 = = = 71,546
Financial assets included in 3t AEfIEREE

other non-current assets™  EMEREE" 6,219 - - - 6,219
Amount due from a related  [EU BB 7 FIB

party** 1,277 - - - 1,277
Total FoE 990,997 - - 5,492 996,489
* For trade receivables, the Group applies the simplified approach for * HAKEERGEERENE 5 EK

impairment, information based on the provision matrix is disclosed in
note 18 to the consolidated financial statements.

o The credit quality of the financial assets included in financial asset
at amortised cost, prepayments, other receivables and other assets,
other non-current assets and amount due from a related party is
considered to be “normal” when they are not past due and there is
no information indicating that the financial assets had a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group’s exposure to
credit risk arising from trade receivables are disclosed in note 18
to the consolidated financial statements.
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 36. KEKREEEEREE

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (CONTINUED) (&)

Liquidity risk REESERE

The Group monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash AEBEZETHIFIAEBERERA
equivalents deemed adequate by the management of the Group RANBEE KBRS EBYKTE - LME
to finance the operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations ALERFEESIWRBESRERD
in cash flows. WRE -

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities at the end RBEBRR - NEE2HAEN D H
of the reporting period, based on the contractual undiscounted B (ERELRMIBAT) AT

payments, is as follows:

As at December 31, 2024 A2024F12H31H
Less than
12 months 1to
or on demand 5 years Total
12{8 A AL
BRER 1ZE5F st
RMB’ 000 RMB’000 RMB’ 000
AR¥T T ARBTR AR¥T
Interest-bearing bank borrowings M B R1TE K 207,816 225,047
Financial liabilities included in BT AE A< FRIE K e

other payables and accruals FTERNSREE 215,621 215,621
Lease liabilities HEBE 8,515 16,990
Trade payables Z 5 R I8 51,131 51,131

Total 5T 483,083 508,789

As at December 31, 2023 M2023F12H31H
Less than
12 months 1to
or on demand 5 years Total
1218 A A sk
RER 1854 “aEt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREEFIT ARETFTT AREFT
Interest-bearing bank borrowings K S ERTTRE R 205,542 29,370 234,912
Financial liabilities included in ST AELA FE 5 3R K e
other payables and accruals TEANSRAE 169,895 - 169,895
Lease liabilities HEAaE 23,670 29,360 53,030
Trade payables B 5 I8 71,899 = 71,899
Amount due to a related party FEAS B 77 kIR 800 = 800
Total wEt 471,806 58,730 530,536

EREEARBERIA —Z-NFFH 301
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36. FINANCIAL R

Notes to Financial Statements

B RS HRAR I EE

Year ended December 31, 2024 & Z=2024F12A31H I FE

ISK MA
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern and
to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its business
and maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments
to it in light of changes in economic conditions and the risk
characteristics of the underlying assets. To maintain or adjust the
capital structure, the Group may return capital to shareholders
or issue new shares. The Group is not subject to any externally
imposed capital requirements. No changes were made in the
objectives, policies or processes for managing capital as at the
end of the reporting period.

The asset-liability ratios as at the end of the reporting periods are
as follows:

36. %%ié)?lﬁl‘ﬁ%ﬂﬁ BRBX

EXREE
AEBEAERZ T ZHNABRAE
SEERECERBEFBREARL X
N REER  URER/BREERE
=EE -

AEBEBEEERER  WERLHER
R AR E R R R R RUE R
- BERFRAEREARE  ~&H
AIRERBIRRE R BITHRD - &
SEBABTEMIRNERRE
R|ERAR - BRERNER KX
K A2 Fr i ok -

RBERR - BERBLEWT :

2024 2023

20244 20234

RMB’ 000 RMB’000

ARETx AREFT

Total assets BERE 1,428,882
Total liabilities BERE 558,197
Asset-liability ratio* BEABEL X m—%%

*

Asset-liability ratio is calculated by dividing total liabilities by total
assets and multiplying the product by 100%.

Loan covenants

Under the terms of certain non-current bank borrowing of
RMB16,500,000, the Group is required to comply with the
following non-financial covenants:

(1) The Group shall provide written notice to the bank in the
event of profit distribution, additional financing, or providing
external guarantees;

(2) In the case of major events such as changes in equity or
changes in the actual controlling party, the Group shall
provide written notice to the bank.

Any violation of the above provisions shall be deemed a breach
of contract, and the bank reserves the right to demand early
repayment of the loan.

The Group has complied with these covenants throughout the
Reporting Period and there are no indications that the Group
would have difficulties complying with the covenants after the
Reporting Period.

3D Medicines Inc. Annual Report 2024

* BEBBLERAAEEBERIAEER
EEFEIA100%:1E -

=g/ &)
RIEAREE—% AR 16,500,0007T
IERBIRITERIER  AEEEE
SFUA TN IEBI 53249 ¢

(1) EETHEIE  BNRERE
SMEHIER - AEBEAIRTTE
REMBA

2) MBAREEE REB LGS
BEEATE - AREEART
RRETRA -

—

BRI FIGEBRGER - R1T
BRESIRAEEER -

WEMEA - NREERRETELER
IR BEDSBRARBEERS
HifE & & HIR BB TRONBER -



37. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Save as disclosed elsewhere in these consolidated financial

38.

statements,
Reporting Period.

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF

THE COMPANY

the Group had no significant events after the

Notes to Financial Statements

B RS HRR 5L

Year ended December 31, 2024 & Z20245F 12431 H IFFE

37. REHREE

BRI WMEKREIR -

2024
2024 F
RMB’ 000
AR¥T T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERBEE
Interests in subsidiaries R BRRIEE 2,567,341
Financial assets measured at amortised asset DR EEGENSREE 23,338
Total non-current assets SEmBEELE 2,590,679
CURRENT ASSETS mBEE
Financial assets at fair value through BRAFEABRN
profit or loss TRIEE 169,516
Financial assets measured at amortised asset DEHRAATECCREE
Prepayments, other receivables and TEAT IR « HAbEWGRIE KR
other assets HEtEE
Amount due from a subsidiary JFEUR BT B~ R FRIR
Cash and bank balances Re MIRTTHS
Total current assets mENEELE
CURRENT LIABILITIES =L
Amounts due to subsidiaries FEIBI B A RIZRIA
Other payables and accruals HibENRIBRETER
Total current liabilities mEAEERE
NET CURRENT ASSETS MENEEFE
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES BEBREBRRBEAE 2,783,021
o pren
EQUITY Ea
Share capital f& 7 226
Treasury shares BT 172)
Reserves G 2,782,967
Total equity A

Dr. Gong Zhaolong
BkEEE
Director

EF

Mr. Zhou Feng
Akt
Director

EF

BREEHRHERAR

B XX PR ERE SN

REBENIHEH

38. R F AR R T

2023
20234
RMB’000
ARETT

2,488,861

2,488,861

209,329
28,278

2
46,597
7,238

286,444

25,335
15,073

40,408
246 036
2 734,897
2 734,897

226
(12)
2,734,683

2,734,897

—E_MEFH
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Notes to Financial Statements

B RS HRAR I EE

Year ended December 31, 2024 & Z2024F 12318 It FE

38. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF
THE COMPANY (CONTINUED)

39.

Note:

A summary of the Company'’s reserves is as follows:

At January 1, 2024

Total comprehensive income for
the year

Share-based payment expenses

Repurchase of shares in relation to

restricted share units

MK2024F1HA18
FREEWELTE

VAR R ETE R R E
MR AR B E AR A
AR

At December 31, 2024

2024124318

Share
premium
R4 E
RMB’ 000
ARET T

4,785,332

4,785,227

38. AR FA M BARRK (&)

ff

ARBOREEELNT -

reserve
Hitb
RMB’ 000
AR¥T

(55,989)

32,672

(23,317)

Accumulated
losses

RMB’ 000
ARET T

(1,994,660)

15,717

(1,978,943)

Total

st

RMB’ 000
AR¥T T

2,734,683

15,717
32,672

(105)

2,782,967

Share Other  Accumulated

premium reserve losses Total

&t 5 (B H & E5q0 i Ly

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT AREFTT AREF T ARBF T

At January 1, 2023 ®2023F1 A1H 4,227,897 (16,329) (1,995,090) 2,216,478

Total comprehensive income for FREAEWRSEE

the year - - 430 430
Repurchase of shares in relation to &2 52 R %% 5 E {7

restricted share units ki) (42) = = (42)

Exercise of an over-allotment option 77 {5 A %8 AL A% 42 8,992 - - 8,992

Placing of new shares fid & F A D 212,338 = = 212,338

Share issue expenses BinEITER (5,316) = = (5,316)

Share-based payment expenses AR S R EHE R 5 E B - 298,963 - 298,963

Exercise of restricted share units 1TEZBRHIAR D B 341,463 (338,623) = 2,840

At December 31, 2023 K2023F12A31H 4,785,332 (55,989) (1,994,660) 2,734,683

APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue
by the board of directors on March 31, 2025.
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